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2014 Highlights

« In line or below inflation bill increases for last
four years - Severn Trent remains lowest average
combined bill in England and Wales

» Increased investment — £602 million capital
expenditure (+8% year on year) - continues to
improve services for the benefit of customers

» Customer service, sewer flooding and supply
interruptions all improving

~ Improved or stable performance on 10 out of
14 Ofwat KPIs year on year

- Customer satisfaction (SIM score) improved for
3rd consecutive year

« Continued growth in RCV 2 from £7,364 million
to £7,618 million (+3.4%)

» Group underlying PBIT rose 4.3% year on year
- Severn Trent Water underlying PBIT rose 4.0%

« Delivering on dividend policy - 6.0% growth year
on year to 80.40 pence

» Constructive engagement with Ofwat on 2015-
2020 business plan. Revised plan submission
27 June, draft determination expected 29 August,

final determination expected 12 December

1 Regulotory Coprial Volue
2 Marchy 2014 vo. Morch 2012
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Group turnover

£1,856.7m

2013 £1 8316m
Group profit*

£269.1m

2013 £251 3m (restated)**
Group profit before tax

£282.7m

2013 £200.2m (restated)***
Dividend per share

80.40p

2013 75 85p
Earnings per share™

88.4p

2013 92 6p (restated)*
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What we do

Severn Trent provides clean water and waste

water services in the UK and internationally through
our reqgulated and non-regulated businesses -
Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Regulated

Reod more on pages 13-24

One of the largest of the 10 requlated water and sewerage companies
in Engtand and Wales. We provide high quality services to more than
4.3 million households and businesses in the Midlands and mid-Wales.

Where we operate

Our re region stretches across the heart
of the UK, from the Bnstol Channel
to the Humber, and from mid-Wales
to the East Midiands

Image removed

Key facts

Turnover

£1 5 44 8 m (2013 £1,511 Om)

Proﬁt"

E518 6 (2013 £4985m (restoted))“
"Mj.mdforadopﬁonnﬂASlBR

Households and b bus:nesses serv:ced

Litres of dnnking water suppled each day

1.8bn

Litres of waste water collected f per day

14bn

Employees

5 902 (osot 31 March 2014)



Non-regulated

Severn Trent Services (STS)

Read more on pages 25-32

Commercial suppliers of water and waste water treatment services
and products, with customers around the world.

Where we operate

Severn Trent Services s our core non-
regulated business. It has two business areas
- Water Purification and Operating Services
Water Punfication (Products) 1s organised
around three regions - the Americas, Asia
Pacific and Ching; Europe, the Middle East and
Africa. Operating Services works for customers
In the US, UK and Italy

Image removed

Renewables

About us

STS Operating Services STS Water

Operating Services provides Purrfication (Products)
contract operations ond Products provides
mamtenance for murnicipal filtration, dsinfection

ond industnal clents and the and process salution
UK Ministry of Defence (MOD) techinologes for vanous
for water and waste water municipal and induistnial

treatrment focliies. water and woste water
treatment applications
and for the manne and
offshore industries.

Key facts

Tumover I )

£3 11 -[H I I (2013, £328 5m)

Employees

2 ) 3 87(05(1131 March 2014)

Profit*

{2013 £12 6m (restated))™

* Before Interest, tax and excepbionol tens.
** Adjusted for adopton of 145 15R

£71

Severn Trent’s non-regulated business already generates renewable energy from
wind turbines and anaerobic digestion (AD) of crops. We are now expanding into
the food waste AD market and plan to develop other technologies.
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Who we are

Water is essential to life and to the
communities in which we live and work.

At Severn Trent we are focused on continuing
to deliver better value, better servicesand a
healthier environment today, tomorrow and
for the longer term.

Our millions of customers in the UK and
around the world rely on us, so our aim is to
do the right thing, acting with honesty and
integrity and playing an active role in creating
a sustainable future for our water and

the environment.

Our principles, which govern the way we work,
are set out in our Code of Conduct: Doing the
right thing - The Severn Trent way.

Further details are provided on page 49

* Listering to * Giving our * Helping our * We're generating
; customers in customers peace customer and 23% of our
shapingourplans  of mind the envronment  energy from
 See page 13 See page 18 See page 25  renewable sources
See poge 31

|
i

Driven by ~
and for - our
customers

Image removed Image removed Image removed
Image removed
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Chairman’s statement

significant long term investment in
our regional water and sewerage
infrastructure, whilst keeping bill
rises on average below the rate

. of inflation.”

. Andrew Duff, Charman

‘ ‘ We have continued to make

Image removed

I am pleased to report another year in
which our focus on water and waste
water senvices has delvered benefits
for our customers and our shareholders

Sustainable retums

We have moade progress thisyearina
rumber of areas and again delvered o
good financial performance

Total group revenue rose by 1 4% to
£1,856 7 million, while undertying group
profit before tax was 7.1% higher ot
£2691 millon This resulted in adjusted
basic egrmings per share of 88 4 pence,
down & 5% from 92 6 pence

For 2013114, the board 1s proposing
afinal dvidend of 48 24 pence, tobe
paid on 25 July 2034 This will resuitin

a total dwidend for the financial year

of 80 40 pence, representing growth of
6 (% This 1s in ine with our policy for the
curent requlatory penad to March 2015
of growing the dividend each year by 3%
mere than the retall prce index.

As ever we aim to strike a bolance
between Improving our services and
keeping bills tow for our custormers,
whilst providing a fair retumn far our
shareholders. Qur shareholders and

our customers have benefited from our
consistent delivery over recent years

Since 2005, we've delivered a total
shareholder retum of 205 7%, well ahead
of the 86 8% return from the FTSE100

In May 2012, we announced that we
would invest a further £150 milion in
improving our water and waste water
networks for our customers whilst at

the sgme time returming £150 million to
shareholders by way of a speciol dwdend
To date we have invested a further

£120 million in our networks and senices
with more to come in 2014/15

Our contnbution

At Severn Trent, we make an important
economic, soaol and environmental
contnbution to the regions we serve

Whilst the general economy shows signs
of recovery, we recognise that customers’
incomes have been squeezed and our
focus remans on maenaging our business
as efficiently as possible, so we can keep
our costs and bills down
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Our price Increase for 2013/14 was agan
below the rate of nflation, making this
the fourth consecutive year in which
we've mantained or reduced average
bills n real terms. As a resuit, aur
combined average hausehold bills for
water gnd sewerage remain the lowestin
England and Wales

Over the last year, we have also
continued to make sigrificant long term
mnvestments in our regionat water and
sewerage infrastructure, supporting
many thousands of local jobs and small
businesses We also remain committed
to mvesting in skills development and
apprenticeships, supporting young people
to join our industry, As the economy
struggles to emerge from recessicn,

our commitment to investment in
infrostructure as well as providing
opportuntties for young professionals
makes ¢ redl difference

From 2015-2020, we expect to rvest
around £3 billon to help us deliver the
service Improvements that our customers
want and which the environment needs,
whilst still keepmg pnces as low as
possible The impact of this investment
will go beyond our core services and will
again be felt by a wide range of people
and businesses across our region

Sevemn Trent makes a mgjor contnbution
to a healthy ermronment ond we are
cormmitied to operating our business in
a responsible and sustainable way

Over the last yvear, we have reduced
senous polluticn incidents by overa

- third We have also achreved 99 29%
complicnce at our waste vater
treatment works Reduong greenhause
gas emisstons from our operations 5 also
important to us Over a number of years
we've builtt an industry leading posttion
in renewable energy, which now provides
23% of the energy we use

Our people

Cur performance dunng the year reflects
the expertise, professionalism and
dedication of our great people

Severn Trent Is fortunate to have an
engaged and loyal workforce who are
passionate about providing the best
possible service for our customers

3

At Severn Trent Water, over 98% of our
people are customers too, which helps us
to understand our customers better

It's also mportant to align our
employees’ interests with thosa of our
shareholders and to share the benefits
of our success with them More than
5,000 Sevem Trent Water ernployees
are mernbers of cur Share Incentve
Plan through which eligible employees
had the potentidt to be awarded shares,

* Up to a total maamurm value of £583

in 2013. We dlso offer to all eligible UK
employees the opportuntty to take part in
a Sharesave scheme, which 1s @ savings
plan that provides an aption to buy
discounted shares in Sevem Trent,

Protecting our employees’ hecith, safety
ond wellbeing 1s fundamental to the
way we dothings If we take good care
of our pecple, we believe they wall take
care of our customers I am particulary
proud that the last two years have been
our safest ever, and our Inyury rates

are among the lowest In the industry
Our am s that no one should be hurt or
made unwell by what we do

Our future

Dunng May and June 2013 the board
recewved a senes of condional proposals
from the LongRiver consortiurm,

which included Borealts Infrastructure
Management Inc, the Kuwart Investment
Office and Universities Superannuation
Scheme Limited. The board unanimously
conduded that the proposals farled to
reflect the signficant long term value

of Severn Trent or to recogrise its future
petential. The LongRiver consortium
deaided not to make an offer for

Sevem Trent.

Locking ahead, Severn Trent is confident
i continuing to deliver value for all and
we ore well posittoned to take advantoge
of changes n cur industry

Over recent years, Sevemn Trent has
actively informed the debate about water

" Industry reform through our ‘Changing

Course’ senes of publications. We hove
advocated changes which will help the
UK make the most efficent use of water
resources, Improve outcomes and sevice
for customers and deliver sustainable
returns for mnvestors.

+ and for - our customers and is shaped by

. executive directors.

. Coghlan os a non-executive director

w
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We're supportive of the Water Act 3
2014 and are well positicned to take 5
advantage of the changes it will bring, 3
induding the move towards grecter ®
competition We'll conbinue to make o
the case for further change where we £
see opportunities for efficency, greater Es
resilience and lower costs. §
We also continue to work with Ofwat to 2
_ finalise our business plan for the next g
regulatory penod ond are committed to g
on open, fair and transparent dialogue %

with our regulator Our plan s driven by -

the philesophy that underpins Changing
Course, providing ¢ solid and sustainable
foundation far the longer term

Board changes

Dunng the yeor the board announced
the retirernent of Dr Bernard Bulkin
and the appointments of Dr Angela
Strank and Philip Remnant as non-

Following the year end, the board
announced the appointment of John

with effect from 23 May 2014 and the
retirernent of Baroness Noakes as a non-
executive director with effect from the
conclusion of the Annual Generol Meeting
on 16 July 2014

Finally, ’m delighted to welcome

our new Chief Executive, Liv Garfield,
Tony Wray (former Chief Executive) did
an outstanding job of putting Sevemn
Trent in 0 strang position te deliver its
objectives, grounding the business

n quality management process and
ethical stondards. I know that Liv has the
qualities to bulld on these achieverments,
to inspire our ernployees to continue to
delver better value to our customers,
investors and other stakeholders, and

to keep Severn Trent at the front of the
debate about the future of our Industry

UOMDWLOUIIBYY)  SIUBWIAIDIS Prauduy Ausdwo)

Andrew Duff, Chairman
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Chief Executive’s review

' ’'m excited by the prospect of
‘ ‘leading the next phase of Severn
‘Trent’s development. The business is
performmg well, is soundly financed
. and is poised to take advantage
{ of the continuing development of
_our industry.”

l Liv Garfield, Chief Executive

Imaga tenmoved

. Introduction

I'm delighted to have joned Sevem
Trent, a forward lookang and industry
leading business

I appreaate alt the hard work fiom
Tony Wray and his colleagues over
recent years and I'm looking forward to
continuing to deliver for our custorners,

+ our shareholders, our regulators and our

great people at Severn Trent.

Another year of delivery
Thiswos o good year for Severn Trent's

+ regulated business, as we delivered on

our cormmitments to our austormers, the
emwonment, our mvestors ond employees,

Our custorners once again benefited
from the lowest combined water and
waste charges in England ond Waoles.
The curmulative price Increcse over

the past five years 15 below inflation
Weintend to mairtain below inflatien
Increases, on average, throughto 2020

We improved our operctonal performance
despite difficult weather, with a hot

summer followed by a winter of prolonged
rain and high winds. Although the ran
affected the qualtty of our row water, we
continued to deliver high levels of water
qualty compliance Our overall water
quality continues to be armongst the best
m the UK, however we know we have
more to do 11 delivenng the mprovements
identrfied in the Drinking Woter
Inspectorate (DWI)} Chief Inspector’s
report, We remain committed to enstinng
our custormers continue to recerve water
of the highest quality

We further reduced the average durotion
of interruptions to supply We remam on
track to hit our leakage reduction torget
over the cumrent regulatory cyde and we
ogan reduced the number of properties
sufferng intemal sewer flooding.

While our operating perfosrmance 1s good
across most parts of our business, as the
regulated business performance revew
details, sorme other performance areas
did not meet the required standard.
Three of the twenty indrcators used

to assess the long term hedlth of our

. assets are not performing within the

required levels This in turn has resutted
in three of the four serviceability areas
{each with one failing indicator) being
assessed as marginal. We recognise this
performance 1s not what our customers
expect, and we have put acttons in place

. to address this
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We have indluded shortfalls in our
2015-2020 business plan in recognition
that we have not delivered the level of
pesformance we had set ourselves

Also our customer service hosn't clways
been as good as we would like We are
commitied to defivenng the best possible
expenence for our customers and are
focusing on tramning, better systems and
processes and new ways for customers
to ntenact with us. One areg where we
have targeted iImprovements is on our
New Connections process We recognise
the need to provide custormers with a fast
and effinent service and are committed
to doing better to meet developers’
expectations.

This year, we've again seen our efforts
reflected in our improved Service
Incentve Mechanism (SIM) score, as
measured by Cfiwat, but there s still
much more to be done Further details
are provided on page 20

Qur SIM score redlly matters tous - ot
tells us if we are delvenng S out of 5
performance every tirme, every day for
our customers. We know we have lots
still to do ond that we need to deliver
improvement quickly to keep pace

with changes in customer behaviours
ond expectabions We've rmade good
progress in our Quontrtotive SIM scores
with a 14% improvernent this year,
meaning that customers are recening

a more responsive service from us

Our Qualitative SIM score, which
captures how our customers feel about
their mteraction with us, 1s where we
need to place mare focus in the year
ahead. For the year as o whole for this
measure, our scare 1§ 4 48 campared to
43610 2012/13 Although this leaves

us In seventh place cut of the 10 water
and waste water cormpaonies, we are
improving at a faster than average pace

Severn Trent has cne of the lowest levels
of bad debt in the sector, at around 2 2%
of reveres. This s important for our
custermers because those who pay bear
the cost of those who don't. We therefore
put considenchle effortnto ensunng that
custorners who can pay actually do pay
and we have mvested in new technologies
that make it easier than ever to do so

- see further details onpages 21 and 22

However, we recognise that economic
conditions remain tough As a responsible
business, It's Important that we help
people who are genuinely uncble to pay,

50 we have a comprehensive range of
sodial tanffs. Our relationship with the
Ghzens Advice Bureau also helps
customers to address therr broader
finanaal problemns.

We continued to lock after the
environment durnng the year, with our
nvestment progremme producing
further emaronmental improvements
that also benefit our customers. We cut
the number of sewer blockoges and

we reduced the number of senous
pollution inadents by over a third We'ne
also improving the qualrty of our nvers,

. achieving our best ever waste water

treatrent works compliance of §9 29%.
Knowing that we will supply them with
water 15 cntreal for our customers and

the secunty of supply ndex measures

our abilily to supply water in a drought.
Our score this year was 100 (based an our
Ofwat measure - see page 9), reflecting
the work we've done to improve resilence
and extract water sustainably

Our non-regulated business delvered

o mixed performance, with growth

In revenue and profits at Operating
Services on the back of new controct
wins and acquisitions, contrasting witha
disappointing perforrance in Products,
whuch recarded a loss for the year Anew
management team has been installed
with plans lounched to reduce the cost
base and return the business to proftable
growth over the next 12 months

We have taken a cautious view of the
nsks relating to these acbons, and the
costs ore reflected in these results, whilst

 the benefits will be seen progressively

throughout the coming year

We've also delivered for qur Investors.
Our focus on efficency, conttnuous
mprovernient and sustainable financing
trelps us to maintan our dmdend
commitmert to our shareholders

Our tax posihion this yeor reflects an

" outline agreement we have reached with

HMRC on along standing discussion
regarding overpayments of tax in pror
penods and have now factored this into
cur business plan for 2015202010
support lower customer prices in the next
requlgtory penod (AMPS6 - see further
details on pages 11 and 12)

This performance and continuous
improverment is made possible by our
committed and experienced team Good
performance 1s underpinned by daing

< thmgs the nght way, safer, better and faster

Qur tearmns have sustoined lost year's
ndustry leadng safety performonce -
for further detais see page 23

On behalf of al of rmy executve
colleagues, I would Uike to thank our
employees and supply chan partners
for therr continued commutment.

Looking forward, conclusion

and outlook

Severn Trent has submitted a balonced
plan for AMP6, which offers better
services and continued better value

for customers, along with g healthier
environment. At the same time, our plan
will dedver investment and growth in our
business, to produce farr and sustainable
returns for our Investors \We continue
towork with Ofwat to conclude the

prce review process. We expecta

draft determunation from Ofwat on

29 August and a finol deterrmination

on 12 December 2014

Wales remains an important area of
operation for us, We welcome the
publication of Welsh Government’s
Water Strategy and we will be playing
our full port to moke a success of is

* implementation. We also welcome the

publicobon of the Stk Commission’s
report Inte further devolution and look
forward to ongoing discussions about
ensunng our customers In Wales
continue to recerve excellent value

for money

My focus for the next 12 months will
be on making sure our custemers are
nght at the heart of Severn Trent ond
delvenng further operational and process
improvements, so that we are ready to

: delver onour plan for the next five vears

T

3

H

Under our current dwdend policy, the
dmidend for 2014715 s set to be 84 90p,
agrowth of 5 6% We will be n a position
to communicate our dividend policy for
the period 2015-2020 only after we have
received the final determination from
Ofwat on 12 Decernber 2014.

I ook forward to working with everyone
In Severn Trent, as we build the next
phase of our journey to deliver for our
customers, shareholders, employees and
the environment.

Liv Garfield, Chuef Executive

adupwangn  poda 21baoas
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Our strategy

Our aim is to drive value for our customers and shareholders
with a focus on water and waste water services in key regulated
and non-regulated sectors. Our strategy delivers better value,
better services and a healthier environment for our customers,
society and investors.

How we are organised to deliver

kegulated

In the UK, our requlated business Sevemn Trent Water
provides water and waste water services to over 4 3 milkion
homes and bustnesses

Our business plan for the next regulatory penod (AMP6

- see pages 11 and 12}, 1s dnven by - and for—our
customners Our am is to provde what our custormers want
and what the ervironment needs, whilst still keeping our
charges as low os possible

See our business model on pages 14 and 15

Non-regulate;i

In the UK and key international markets, Severn Trent
Services (STS) prowides woter and waste water senices
and water technology products to a wide range of
business, muricipal and ndustnal custorners. We also
have o growing non-regulated renewable energy portfolio
Our strategy is to leveroge our knowledge of water and
waste water tregtrment in UK non-regulated and gtobal
muniapal, Industnal and cormmeraial markets, which offer
long term growth opportunities.

See our business model on poages 26 and 27

@ Water and waste wuter

Regulated tumover

Graph removed

We aim to delver vatue for our
customers and our shareholders

Our customers get good value for
monay - quality products, the lowest
possible charges and a good overall
service Our sharehotders benefit fram
long term sustainable growth

Other non-

@ STS Water Punfication
(Products) - global water
technology/products

@ STS Operating Services
- contract operations
and maintenance for
municipal and industrial
dients including UK
(retof) business and the UK
Minustry of Defence (MoD)

Nor;-}egulatea tumover

Graph removed

regulated business
Renewable Energy -
Severn Trent also has ¢
non-requlated renewable
energy portfolio that
primarily supplies our
__ownregulated business.

Reép;ansible Ieader;ship

We have long advocated a more
socially, ermronmentally and
financiotly sustonable future for our
industry through our ‘Changing Course’
senes of publications We aim to have
on open and henest conversation

with our customers, our colleagues
and our regulators about the changes
we can all make towords a more
sustoinable future

Sustainability

At Severn Trent we balence the
interests of all our stokeholders and
the environment. We believe in doing
the nght thing for the longer term

and in operating our business Ina
sustanable way




Our strategy delivers

Image
removed

Better value and
better services
for customers

At Sevem Trent Water, we already
have the lowest combined water

and waste water bills in England and
Wales Through o focus on continuous
improvernent and efficency, we am
to delver the senvice Improvements
our custorners wart and which the
ervironment needs, whilst still keeping
prres as low as possible

At Severn Trent Services, we alsowork
in partnership with our custormers to
delver mnovative and cast effectve
water and waste water soluttons

Image
removed

A healthier
environment

At Sevemn Trent Water, our gim s to
protect and enhance the environment,
imiproving the quality of our rivers and
safeguarding the mfrastructure that
our customers and the environment,
depend upon

We strive to operate our business

i a sustainable way, reducing the
amount of water we take out of the
enwironment, reducing our carbon
emissions and generating our own
renewable energy

At Severn Trent Seruces, we offer
customers throughout the worid
arange of products and serices
(see inside the front cover for detals)
Frorn filtration and disinfection
equipment to water and woste
water contract operations, our water
treatment technologies and services
are designed to help protect and
preserve our environment

Image
removed

Sustainable returns
for investors

Cur strategy delvers long term
sustaingble growth for mvestors

Severn Trent Water invests on average
over £500 million annualty w our
water and waste water networks

We fund this programme from

the profits we generate, but also

by bomrowing money from capitol
markets Capital nvestrment is added
to our regulated asset base, which
also nses intine with iInflation each
year The returns we generate for
shareholders who invest in our asset
base are set by our economic regulator,
Ofwat, over five year planming cycles
We con generate addibonal retums
by being more efficent In the delivery
of the captal progromme, managing
our operational costs more effectively
and by fincnoing our business ot o
lower cost.

At Severn Trent Services we torget
long term contractual relationships
that provide finanaal and operational
stablity and a good platfarm

for growth.

UONDULGJULIBYIO  SILAWIDYS [oououy Auddwo)  SIUSW8Ims DUy dNoI  2DUDWBAGD uodas ybajons
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[ L)
Our objectives
Our objectives
P 1 We will provide you with water that is good to drink
mage Quality water provide yo 9
removed
| : 2 We will ensure water is there when you need it
| mage Service you yo
| removed can rely on
|
3 We will safely take your woste water away
4 We will provide you with excellent customer service
Affordable bills 5 We will have the lowest possibte charges
removed
6 Wewill help you if you struggle
Responsible 7 We will protect our local environment
removed service
8 We will protect the wider enviranment
9 We will make a positive difference in the community
Sustdinable 10 We will finance our business sustainably
resmoved finance

mage To achieve our objectives we need to support our great people
removed
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Basit How we measure themn 01314 2012113
_ Water qualty compliance 1.2 Lo O 9996 9998
MAT V\iatersemceabﬂrtynonnfmstructure3 ow QO MAR STA
MAT - DWI reportable events g 3,45 KPE3 o 24 23
ME  Ledkage tevels ran wriow O Q@ 441 441
ACT - Secunty of Supply Index (SOSD)* | KElow O 997100 95/100
MAT Wiater supply Intermuptions mdex per popertymes 5 _weow Q 16 29
MAT  Water serviceabilty infrostructure? ow [+ ] STA
Water serviceability {internal) KPE:S 0 202 80
Intemat sewer ficoding repeat mcidents aumber ow © 204 255
MAT - Sewernge servcedpiiity infrastructure o © MAR STA
Sewerage semceut_x:l{ty finternal) K7 00 57 78
ACT  Sewerage trectmertt works — faling consent Imits 2 L33 © 071 085
MAT  Service Incentve Mechunlsrn Qualitative (SIM) soore KL & OO0 448 436
ACT Service Incentve Macharssm Quantitative (SIM) xS KPS 00 143 167
Semvice Incentive Mechunlsm (Ofwat) ow O 81:55 7811
Vaice of the Custormer feedback - STS Global? SSPEIL @ 424 -
Average combined water bill £ eutumpros o QO £335 £32
aCT  Debtor days® KPE10 o 34.5 36.7
Customers benefitng from Watersure tanff numer O 9511 7972
Serious pollution incidents
Enfutnﬂup:ucmeguyl 2) per 16,000k network 3 o L] 127 217
Pollution inadents
o 1.2 31 per 10000%m 3,911 ow o Q 7797 A 66.10
MaT  Pollution incidertts eweragRcat 1 233101 KFL12 0 O__~ W49 ) 376
MaT  Sewerage semcecbilrty non mfmstrucu.ure3 oW o STA  SIA
" Distharge permit compliance %2 ow ‘© 9929 9915
GreenholLise gas emissIons keoze . _.ow_ O 5109 5204
MAT Net energy use Gwh w6 ) KPL15 Q 691 690
Satsfactory studge dtsposol% oW 1+ ] 100 9993
MaT Wc:ste\.\d'r:lterl:recnrnentp:verfon'mnce.-%12 STSKPE10 Q 56 108
. Irvestment amaon w9802 5554
Voice of the Custormer feedback - behaving sTS 0O Ak2 -
respansibly and with integnty
(. Interestooverse Low .9 38 36
i Net debt/RCV geanng % i i ow . 586 571
Credit rating stordort Poors o ow O BBB+ BEB+
ACT CAPD(mmwmdgmuadmwhx?-slu w3 N 0_0” _%8.?.2__ _ 5“41_8~
AT OPEX £m wrii 0 Q 5853 5665
Post tax retum on capital = ow o &4 67
&R Employee engagerment ' KP1:2 00 81 79
mar  Lost time inadents per 100,000 hrsworked“ KL (i ] om _0’21 021
maAT Losttme |ncn:!ents per100 OOOhrsworked STSKPE1 Q ) _‘!‘27 ) _030
R Emplo}ée engcgementss S8 (4] 75 77

)w -

Gucn: Regmated rneusurs
including Business KPIs and
Ofwat perforrnonce ndicators

Purple: Non-Regutated measures
nchrding Business KPls

Blacle Savern Trent group rmeasure

©  Eecuive Drector performaonce
measyre see Remuneration Comimitiee
report on pages 60 to 76

oW (Ofwot performance indicotor

MAT  Moving Annual Totol

QR Quarterly Review

MLE  Maxumum Likelihood Estrnote

ACT  Yerr End Actual

MAR  Margnal

STA  Stoble

O/ Uesred drection af KL

Hotes

1 Nalonger an Ofwet KP1 but still reported
2 Measured ono colendor year boss
3 Ofwut serviceabilty score ossesses how
we are mantorng our netwark and ossets against
arange of measures Assessed as &ither Inpre ang,
stable, marqrl or detenoroting.
4 Scorme of 99 represents nternd KP1-and 100 s our
Cfwat measure Measure 5.out of 100
5 Nurnber of minutes lost due to supply mtemuptions
for 3 howrs or longer per property served
6 Actud perfommonge based wholty or partially on
ntemat data
7 Customes satisfocton ard brondinn survey.
8  Actud performance based on gudited UK
GAAP francol staterments for the yeor endagd
31 Morch 2014
9 Nurnber of ntxdents adiusted 1o reflect compary sze.
10 Tats! nurnber of palhution nadents (category 1, 2, 3)
11 20712113 figures not comparable. In 2013 the
Ermwonment Agency changed its reportng
methodoingy for st ncderts, As o result of thes
reciossfication we now report mere staller nadents.
12. Non complioncs with consents, permits o formal
cliert requererments dunng the previesrs 12 months.
13 Irvestment excluding POAS ard IFRS adjustmerts.
14 Performance based on annuol survey of
o employess
15. Actual performaonee ooess oll employees and
ogenty staff
KP! 3 Dnnking Water Inspectorate - Reportoble events.
Thus KPLmeosures the raarmber of sigreficont events
reported to the W1
KF1 7 Serviceabiity Weeste Warter This KPT s an index
based onpellutors ond blockoges (bath mecsures
dmmbeluvw\dmtsurepmmmd
Semveage tredtrment warks ron
ground) Thendex reflects a Sﬂ'.snwefg‘\thgfor
2 and below ground arasets.
KPL 8 Senviceabiity Witer This index is bo-ed on rnarns
bursts and supply mtemuptions greater thar 12 hours
{bath, macares. of how our below ground assets are
performng) and Woter Treatrment Works (WTW) non
cormpliance {obove ground} The index reflects o 50-50
weightig for cbove and below ground assets.

KP1 14 Securkty of Supply Index (S0ST) & & rneasure
of hows resliert we are agarnst penads of drought,
Tha index calculotion ts based upon the difference
between the water cvolable to use ond the volurme
of water we expect ta gut into our Rupply netwark n
orcer to meet demend.
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Market and

industry overview

Severn Trent has contributed heavily to the

debate about our industry’s future and how
we tackle the challenges through our series of
‘Changing Course’ publications.

The water and sewerage industry

in England and Wales has more

than 50 milkion household and non-
household customers, More than 30
privately-owned companies serve these
customers, of which 10 - including Sevemn .
Trent Water - prowide both water and ‘
sewerage services. The industry invests
around £5 billion each year and employs
over 35,000 people

The water industry has achieved

much inthe 25 years since it was

privatised It has attracted over

£100 bilion of prvate irvestment to fund
improvements in, among other things,
customer service, dnnkang water and
environmental standards.

However, our sector stilt faces significant
short and long term challenges’

- customers’ incomes have been
squeezed, imiting their cbility to pay
far service mprovements. We needte |
ensure that our services are affordable,

= the UK's population 1s growing, placing
IMore pressure on Our water resources
and on our networks We need to
ensure we have sufficent capaaty;

+ we're expenenang more flooding and
droughts We need to ensure that we
have resilient senaces able to cope with
thus increased volatility;

« financal markets have changed
significartly since the 2008 financial
cnsis, raising questions about how the
industry can best finance s long term
imvestrnent. We need to ensure that
the industry 1s financed sustainably;

* + we st face considerable challenges

to meet the requirernents of the
Water Frarnework Directive and

other ermronmentat imperatives

We need to play our part in mproving
the emaronment, at. a price that is
affordeble to our customers, and

« some of our infrastructure s old
Whilst it has served us well itis no
longer able to delver the quality
standards and relability customers
want. We need to ensure that our
investments are timely, prowide good
value for money and will deliver marny
years of future serice

We have actively sought to be ot the
forefront of the debate about our

" industry's future and how we tackle
. these challenges, through our senes

of ‘Changing Course’ publications

We have championed a more socially,
environmentally and financially
sustainable water Industry

We've been pleased that many of the
ideas we have chompioned have been
reflected in the emerging UK policy and
regulatory framework that ts being put
in place Challenges remain, but we are
encouraged by the direction of refonm
We look forward to helping to make it

a SUCCEss.

How the industry is regulated

Severn Trent Water 15 a regulated
business We work within five year
regulatory planning cydes, with the pnices
we charge our customers set i the
beginning of each cyde by our economic
regulator Ofwat. These five year cycles

_ are known as Asset Management Plan

(AMP) penods. We have just reached the
end of the fourth year of AMPS However,
we don't just think m the shiort term.

* Having a sustainable business requires us
to aiso balance longer termn requirernents
that stretch beyond our five year plans
For exarmiple, our water resource plans
lock 25 years into the future and we
study the need for rvestment in some of
our assets over a 40 year penod. We use
this informetion to adjust our Investment
plans for the next AMP cycle to ensure
we do the nght thing for the long term
whilst helping to keep customers’

bills affordable

Aswell as being regulated by Ofwat, our
performance s monitored by
+ the Dnnking Woter Inspectorate, which
makes sure we comply with dnnking
water qualty regulations,
» the Ermironment Agency (EAY),
which controls water abstraction,
 mver poliution and flooding, and

= Notunal Resources Wales, which bnngs
together the work of the Countryside
Council for Wales, the Emvironrment
Agency Wales and the Forestry
Commussion Wales to manage the
natural resources of Wales, and

* Natural England who protect and
improve England’s natural
envircnment.

" We olso work with other

agencies including

= the Department for Ermronment,
Food and Rural Affairs which sets the
policy context for the water industry
in England,

« the Welsh Government which sets the
policy context for the water industry in
Wales, and

= the Consumer Council for Water which
* represents custormers n the industry
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- Qur business plan for AMPS

Ofwat requires us to produce business
plans for each five year requlatory penod
In December 2013, ve submitted our
business plan for the next regulotory
penod (AMP6), which runs from Apnl
2015 to Morch 2020 This plan 1s currently
being reviewed by Ofwat who will give us
. 1ts fingl deterrnination in Decernber 2014

" Our plan s driven by - and for - our
custorners The ‘golden thread’ running
through our plan compnises four

* essentidl elerments.

1 Qur plan delvers better value

for money.

We're proud to have the lowest averoge
combined bills in England and Wales

Our AMPS plan detivers even better value,
by kimiting price nses to below the rate

of nflotion This meons our averoge
price nses from 2010-20 will have been

. below the rate of mflabon over that 10

" year penod.

" We're proud to have
the lowest average

" combined bills in

* England and Wales.”

~Our planis driven by -

: and for - our customers.”

At the same time, we'll increase gverall
caprital ivestrment to around £3 billon
Wwe'll pnontise mpreverments in those
aregs most important to our customers,
mcluding better senvices and hedlthier

1 nvers.In parteular, our plan proposes

* toreduce.

+ leakage by a further 6%,

, * thelength of ime our custormers’

. water supply 15 Interrupted by 47%,
' = the number of hormes affected by

' sewer flooding by 14%, and

+ « our carbon footpnnt by 3%.
7 We've also sat challenging efficiency

! turgets, reducing total costs in AMPG
by aver £370 rmilbon, helping to keep
average bills lower in 2020 than they

otherwise would have bean

2 Qur plan s far and balgnced

We've taken iInto account the mterests
of all our stakeholders. We're sharing
the benefits of outperformance with
aur customers by mvesting an extra
£150 million, to iImprove the service

our customers recene - see further
details about how we have spent this
extra investment so fgr on page 20.
We'll continue this approach in the next
requlatory penod, to ensure custormers
share in the rewards of our success and
also ensure that there 1s no need for
regulatory intervention in AMPE, We'll
have the opportunity to earn more,
through incentives that encourage us to
delver even better services. If we don't
deliver on ocur cormnmitments, penalties
will result in tower pnces to customers.

Our plan will also delver far retums
* for shoreholders

ajublwaaon  uodas aibaipns
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Market and industry
overview continued

({4

3 Our plon is robust and reliable

Our approach builds on our track record
of producing robust business plans and 1s
based on the largest customer research
and engagement exerise we've ever
undertoken through our Let’s Talk Water
consultation. We also put in ploce a
ngorous assurance pracess, to test the
plan’s robustness

In total, we talked to more than 16,000
customers and other stakehotders

We gave customers real choices

about where therr money should be
spent and we were challenged hard

by the Water Forum, our customer
challenge group, and changed our plan
as a result. The Woter Forum includes
representatives from customers, our
emvironmental regulators and local
authanties, and has an independent

Charr, Dame Yve Buckland, who 1s also the

Chair of the Consurner Coundil for Water

4 Our plan does the right thing for the
long term

We've long advocated a more socially,
environmentally and financially

sustamnable water industry and published

our first *Changing Course’ report. in
Apnl 2010 Our plan s shaped by the
philosophy that underpins ‘Changing
Course’ and provides a solid foundation
for thelong term

Our future plans include major
Investrments over the next two AMP

penods to increase the resiience of
Birmingharm's water supply

..there is a clear line of sight between what
customers wanted to see and what is being

proposed in the plan.”

Dame Yve Buckland, Water Forurn Char

We're also planning to make signuficant
rwvestment in 2015-2020 to improve the
quality of vers and an strategic resiience,
which we're phasing over 10 years to
ensure the nght balance for customers’
bitls 1n AMP6 We plan to double our
programme of sustainable urban drainoge
systerrs, to help prevent sewer flooding
We atso plan to reduce the amount of
water we take out of the ervironment per
customer by 6%, further strengthening
our leading position i thus area.

A changing regulatory emaronment
The water ndustry continues tobe
offected by a number of changes to
legislabon and regulations.

New tegislation introduced this year
through the Water Act 2014 brngs @
number of significant changes teo the
way the industry operates In particular,
it will aliow more competrtion for
non-household custorers and

greater 'upstream’ competition which
should eventudlly lead to amore
efficent mdustry

The Eunopean Water Frarmework
Directive (WFD) will be a significant

drver of our future capital expenditure,

It will help to protect and enhance our
nvers, lakes, streams and groundwater
During 2013/14, we published a
Changing Course report on implernenting

the WFD and shared it with the EA. Thisis |

our contnbution to the debate about
ochieving environmental improvernents
ot an affordable cost to customers We've
aiso begun to look at which technologies
affer the best solution to implermenting
the WFD, n preparation for AMP6

‘

The non-requlated market

The worldwide market for water ond
waste water products and services is
substontial with long term prospects

for growth N most areas we serve

The drvers of the water and waste water
business reman strong, and indude
water scarcity, population growth,
cimate change and more stingent
regulatory requirements

The customers for our Operating
Services are often muniapal or reglonal
authonties, who are locking to outsource
manogement of thetr reatrment
faclibes The market for these services

is therefore largest in countnes which
have established traditions of iInvolving
the prvote sector in providing public
services, suchas the US In the UK, we
will increasingly be able to provide water
services to business customers, as the
Wiater Act 2014 opens up the market to
cornpetion from 2017

On the Products sxde, our customers
range from public sector treatment
works and ndustnal operations to mernine
and offshore o and gas operations.

They need high quality products to meet
therr woter and waste water punfication
needs. The market for these products

s global We ore dlso developinga
dedicated cftermarket sales tearn to
create d new revenue stream The level
of demand for our products often
depends on emvironmental regulations,
the strength of muricipal finances and
the level of investment m new treatment
applcations In the shipping iIndustry,
ratification by the International Mantirme
Orngarwsation of new standards for
punfying baltast water to prevent the
spread of invasive species would expand
the market for our BALPURE® product me
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Regulated

Severn Trent Water

Listening to
customers
in shaping
our plans

Tackding the nosty probler of sewer
flooding for customers like Jessica
Hinnett from Alfreton in Derbyshire s a
top prionty for customers which came
out of our Let’s Tailk Water consultation

Over 16,000 custorners gave us ther
views In aur biggest ever customer
consultaion We made sure therr voices
were heard loud and degr when we
subrnitted our AMP6 business plan

to Ofwat.

Thankfully for Jessica, her problemn was
sorted out quickly “I can't speak hughly
enough of everyone at Severn Trent
who helped me at a ime when [ was
very emotional ”

Better
for Jessica

We made sure that we listened to our
custorners’ problems, like Jessica's,
In our AMP6 business plans

3,000

custormers attended
our Let's Talk
Water roadshows

Image
removed
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Regulated
business model

Water 1s essential to life and to the communities

n which we live and work. Severn Trent Water

15 Intnnsically inked to the life cydle of water

The customer s at the heart of our continuous
drive to improve our operations and services ACross
collection, delivery and cleaning of water

Sevemn Trent Water Is a regulated business. We work
within five year planning cydles, with custormer prices
set by our economic regulator, Ofwat, to allow us

to fund our Investment programme and cover an
efficient level of operating costs We are also subject
to regulation by two quality regulators - the Drinking
Water [nspectorate and the Environment Agency
{detalls of these regulators are provided below)

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by RPL inflation
each year In certain circumstances we can ask for
prices to be reviewad within the five year pencd due
to costs associated with ‘notified iterns’ or ‘relevant
changes of circumstance’. Customer bad debt and
the adoption of private drains and sewers are ncluded
i these categones for the current five year penod.
Severn Trent has not sought to review prices for ether
of these reasons durng 2010-15

The company eams a retumn on its asset base We can
generate addibional retums if we outperform Ofwat's
assumptions by becomning more efficient in the
delivery of our capital prograrmime, managing our
operattonal costs more effectively, and by financing
our business at a lower cost.

Our operating performance 15 assessed and
benchmarked against the sector by Ofwat. Within the
current price review there Is scope to earn addtional
Incorne, or Incur penatties, bosed on our performance

Regulatory fromewaork

Consumer Council for Water

Consurner Counal for Water 15 an independent body desgned to
protect the nghts of consumers. www.cowater org uk

Drinkang Water Inspactorate (DWT)

The Dnnking Water Inspectorate makes sure companies supply
water that I1s safe to dank ond complies wath all national and
Evropean standards. www dwi defra gavuk

Environment Agency (EA)

The Environment Agency 1sa public body set up to protect and
Improve the ervironment. wwwi.ervrenment-agencygov uk
Health and Safety Executive

The Health ond Safety Executive 1s the enforang authonty on
health and safety law www hse govuk

Natural England

Notural England protects and smproves England's

natural ermvironment. www naturalengland org uk

Natura! Rescurces Wales

Natural Resources Wales bnngs together the work of the
Environment Agency Wales, The Forestry Commission Wales
and the Countryside Councll for Wales

wiww natunlresourceswales.gov uk

Ofwat

The economic regulator for the water and sewerage industry
It makes sure that water companies use customers' money
efficently and effectively and sets our price irmits.

www ofwat.govuk

The role of Severn Trent Water

f@ "

Image
removed

Water is collected
(abstraction)

We pay the Environment
Agency for the water we
collect from reservoirs, nvers
and underground aquifers
across our region

Regulatory framework

= Ofwat

+ Natural England

+ Natural Resources Wales

* Ervironment Agency

« Health and Safety Executive

Risks

- Foture of key ossets may
result indarmage to property,
inpury to people andfor
disruption to our ability
to supply our customers
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 6 and 8)

(Where isks are currently
considered Principal Risks,
further details are provided
on pages 39-41)

©)

Image remaoved

Woater

is cleaned

Our 156 water treatment
works clean raw water
to the highest standards
making t safe to drnk.

+ Ofwat

+ Drinking Water
Inspectorate

* Health and Sofety
Executive

* Failure of key assets or
processes may result in
a decline in woter quality,
disruption in our supply
ta customers or foilure to
rneet regulatory targets
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 7 and B)
« Hazardous processes
or chemnicals may result
n pecple being injured
(Pnncipal Risk Ref €)

@_;

Image
removed

Networks invested
and maintained
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Image removed

Clean water

is distributed

A 47,000 b network
of pipes and enclosed
storage reservoirs bring
a continuous supply of
clean water nght to our
customers’ taps

+ Ofwat
» Drinking Water
Inspectorate

* Hedlth and Safety
Executive

+ The performance of our
distribution network may fall
below the standards expected
by DWI or Ofwat, resulting in
pogr senvice to our customers
and increased leakage from
our network (Prinapal Risk
Ref7)

+ Failure of one of our key
assets coutd result in
disruption to supply to
customers
(Principal Risk Ref 8)

Image
removed

Customers

enjoy our services
We bill 4 3 millon
businesses and households
ayear In retum, we provide
a safe, relicble supply of
water and the collection of
waste woter 24 hours a day,

365 daysa year

« Ofwat

= Consumer Council for
Water

* Drinking Water
Inspectorate

* We may be uncble to
sufficently improve our
performance in relation to
custormer service in order to
delver what our custorners
tall us they want.

(Pnncipat Risk Ref 1)

* We may be unable to respond

effectively to the opening up

of the business retol market

to competibion (Pnncipat Risk
Ref 2)

Image

Woaste water

is collected

Gurg 92,000 km of sewers
and pumping stations
collect waste water from
homes and businesses, and
surface water from outside
properties and drains

« Ofwaot

= Environment Agency

* Heglth and Safety
Executive

+ Failure to deal with customer
waste effectvely may lead
to sewer floodin
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 7)

Image
removed

Waste water
is treated and
returned to the

environment

Waste water i carefully
screened, filtered and
treated in our 1,019 sewage
treatment works to meet
stringent environmental
standards We pay the
Emaronment Agency an
annual consent fee to
return the now treated
water to the water systern

» Ofwot

» Natural England

+ Natural Resources Wales
+ Environment Agency

+ Health and Sofety
Executive

« We may suffer operational
foiture in our woste water
opergtions which results
in domage to the locol
environment. (Principal Risk
Ref 7}

We are an investment led industry, and cur capitol programime this
year wos £602 million, or around £140 per connected property,

Risks

We apercte within a compiex legal and

enwonment oS o water

reflecting increased mvestment yeor on year (2012/13 £555 million)
n our water and sewerage networks, including finding ond fixing mare
leaks and reducing the nurmber of supply Interruptions, Jmprovements
to our water and sewage treatment plonts ond upgrades to our
sewer network to reduce incidents of sewer flooding We fund this
imestrnent programinne from the prafits we generate, but also by
borrowing money from the capital markets, Capital investrnent s
added on to cur asset base, called the RCV Our asset base also nses
in line with inflation each year The retums that we generote for
charehalders on that asset base are set by our econatie regulatar,
Ofwat, over five year planning cycles. We can increase these retums
by outperfarrmance

reguiatory
ond sewernge serace provider m England and Wales. As a result we foce a
nurnber of nsks including those assoooted with passible non-comphionce
with our legnt ond reguiatory frarmework, fallure to obtain support
fromn Ofwat for our business plan for 2015-2020 and fallure to rmeet
the terms of our requlatory contract as set out m our agreed business
plan for 2010-2015 We also face nsks assocated with possible future
changes n iagisiotion which may result n our business plans becorming
unsustancble (Pinapal Risk Ref 3, 4 and 5 on pages 39 and 40)

Regulatary Framework
+ Ofwat.
Health and Safety Executive
+ Ernamonment Agency
+ Dnnking Water Inspectorgte

sauowenon  Uodar ibaons
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Regulated

performance review

Delivering better value,

better services and a healthier
envirenment

Our goal s to be the UK's best water

ond waste water cornpany This means
we rmust deliver better value and better
services to customers and investors, while
protecting the environment on which

we depend

To reach our goal and meet our
customers’ needs, we set 10 long term
objectives In 2013 Each year, we report
aganst our objectves and explain how
we've improved our performance

Quality water

Objective 1. We'll provide you with water
that is good to dnnk

Our drinking water 1S amongst the bestin
the UK and we achieved 99 96% overall
compliance with the Dnnking Water
Inspectorate’s (DWI) quality standards
(2012/13 99 98%)

However, some aspects of our
performance hove fallen below the
standard we and our customers expect.
We reported one more significant event
1o the DWI this year than lost. The two
most recent DWI Chief Inspectors’
reports have highlighted o number of
impraverment areas, and there has been
one prosecution dunng the last year n
relation to water quatity Specfically, our
performance in relation to the number
of outbreaks of detected coliforms
{non-harmful bactena) has exceeded the
maximurm level expected by Ofwat twice
in three years (induding 2013/14) Asa
result our serviceability on above ground
assets 15 rated as marginal

We are taking these fallures extrermely
senously and accept that we hove more
to do n order to address the 1ssues and
nsks we face We hove identified several
areas where improvernents to our assets
are required and investment programmes
are atready n progress. We have a
programeme of work dedicated to
identrfying and delivenng smprovements
We have stepped up cur operational
momitening and remain committed to
doing what 1s needed to address ssues in
this area at pace We remain committed
to ensuring that our custorners recene
water of the highest quality

We continue to imvest in our people and
in our treatment works to enable us to
Improve our performance Forexample,
this year we have run a programme to
improve knowledge and owareness of
water quality for our network operators
and operational call-centre colleagues
We are in the process of Investing to
renew ossets and 'Improve processes at
our largest works at Frankley At Bamnford,
Derbyshire, we've improved our processes
to Increase their resthience and ability to
treat water from the local pect moars.

We continue to look to the future with our
water quality strategy and our AMPE plan
will also look to addressing detenorating
raw water qualty iIn more innovative and
sustainable ways, for example, extending
our catchment approach Ttinvolves
working in partnership with tandowners
and users to minimise the nisk of poliution
entenng the raw water system, so we
can avaid addtional investrment in our
treatment works

Partnership working to reduce flood risks
Together with the Emaronment Agency,

we've created four hectores of woodland
alang the River Ashop, Derbyshire By stopping
tvestock grazing and workang with natural
processes, land management ke this reduces
ard delays the flow of water downstrearn,
cutting the nsk of flooding and pollution, while
imnproving wildife habitats and biodiversity

L1
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Services you can rely on

Objective 2. We will ensure water s there
when you reed it - -
Our customers expect water to be

there when they turm on the tap and for
leckage to be lower

As part of our commitment to
improvement, we hove reviewed

the bosis on which we calculcte our
leckage figure The net impact of the
improvements is neurtral with respect to
actual and target performance

Wemantained leakage at 441 MU/d
beating our Ofwat leakoge target of

456 Ml/d. Severn Trent 1s one of the few
compames to target lower leakage dunng
AMPS and we're on track to deliver 3 11%
leckage reduction over AMPS,

We've further reduced the average
number of minutes that custorners are
without supply from 29 minutes per
property to 16 minutes We're investing
In new pipes, valves and other assets,
and irmpraving our ability to restore
custormers' supplies quickly For example,
new technology allows us to keep

water flowing while we repar o pipe

Image removed

We were pleased to win an award for
innovation of the year at the Water
Industry Achievernent-Awards 2014
for new equipment we have developed
that improves leak detection efficiency
and s particulorly effectve with plastic
pipes which ts o problem throughout
the industry This equipment has been
developed by us worlang in partnership
with Loughborough University from

a research and developrnent project
through to commercial launch

with Echologics.

The number of properties that
expenenced a supply nterruption longer
than 12 hours was 2,699, an Increase

of 142 on lost year Over 900 of these
interrupbions occurred following the
extrerne storms of February when
power supplies were interrupted for
extended pencds This 1s a key input

, measure to serviceabilty assessment,

Desprte an underlying improvernent on

" this measure, ond the fact that other
, Inchcators performing within or ahead

of the operating ranges agreed with
Ofwat, the application of the serviceability
frarnework means our serviceability 1s
rated as marginal

We are committed to reducing the
number of interruptions longer than

12 hours In order to achieve this we
hove iIncreased our focus on improving
our nsk and contingency planrung and
emergency response

Creation of
4 hectares
of woodland

Towards the end of the year, we
consulted on our vsater resources
management plon This explains how
we'll provide sustainable and affordable
water to our customers, over the next
25 years and beyond. We also issued our
dmught plan, which sets out how we'll
maintan supples dunng shortages

Our futture plons include magor
investments over the next two AMP
penods to Incregse the resilience

of Birmningharr’s water supply

s will extend the ife of the Elan Valley
Agqueduct, ssving customers hundreds
of millions of pounds over the corming
decades ond reducing nsk te the UK's
second largest city We'll also continue
toimprove our trunk main network
and strotegic gnd of pipes to provide
custorners with increcsed resfience

Objectve 3 We will safely take your
waste water away

We continue to invest to reduce the

nsk of internal sewer flooding and have
protected ¢ further 121 properties

this yeor, putiing us on track for 741
properties over AMPS Our efforts have
reduced the number of customers
who suffered repeated internal sewer
flooding, from 2551n2012/13 10 204
this year We also mitgated the risk of
flooding for around 160 properties this

year We're increusingly using sustainable

drainage systems to reduce flooding, as

well as increasing our partnership worlang

with local authorities, the Ervironment
Agency, local dramage boards and
nighways authonties
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Giving our customers

peace of mind

In 2007, Gloucestershire suffered severe
fioods Hundreds of propertes suffered
sewer flooding and rising rver levels
forced us to shut our Mythe woter
treatrment works, leaving 140,000
properties without a piped water supply.

We were determmed that our customers
shouldnt have to foce this again

Since 2007, we've iInvested nearly

£47 milllon n matkang our water and
sewerage system robust and resiient.
We've installed 16 km of strotegic woter
mains and 3 4 km of sewers, along

with new water and sewage pumping
stations, and we have buiit flood
defences around our Mythe works

The result s peace of mind for custormers
like Sytvia Hyett. Despite appalling
weather, no properties have suffered
sewer flooding In this area in the last two
winters and our customers’ water supply
has been unaffected.

Sylvio soid

“We are so rebeved that this work has
been completed If it rains now, for the
first tirme In many years we cango to
bed without being temfied as to what
we may find in the morrung  the work
done by Severn Trent to prevent this will
Improve our lves iImnmeasurably

Mythe
works flood
defences

In action

Image removed
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Better
for Sylvia

Gloucester resident Sylwa Hyett
now has greater paace of mind after’
a £47 million mvestment in making
our water and sewerage system
robust and resiient,

Image removed
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Regulated performance
review continued

This year, we completed our flood
protection scherne in Gloucester It has
kept the town free from flooding, despite
extrerne weather over the last two
wirters. Our Royal Learmington Spa
sewer improvement project, which will
protect 103 properties frorm flooding, 15
going to plan and will complete in 2014
This project won a national Green Apple
award for regyding excavated matenal
and we're explonng how ta extend this to
other schemes.

Our overall serviceability remains
marginol. We hove continued to deliver
good performance on five of the six
indicators included n the seraceability
assessment. On the sixth mdicator,
sewer blockages, our performance

has shown animproving trend over

18 months (falling 13% last year) but
remains above the target agreed with
Ofwot. The mprovernent 1s reflective of
the oction we have taken throughout
the AMPS perod Although our overall
environmental performance remains
positive, and the other custormer and
envirenmental indicators within this area
are performing within or ahead of the
operating ranges agreed with Ofwat,
the apptication of the serviceabilty
framework resulis 1n a continuing
‘marginal’ assessment. This 1s consistent
with the assessment iInduded in our
PR14 Pian Our pollutions performance
is induded within Objective 7 - We will
protect our local environment — set out
on poge 21

We've made a good stort to adopting
and upgrading private pumping stations,
ahead of therr transfer on 1 October
2016 We've already adopted and
upgraded 24 stations and will adopt
another 150 in the next year

We will continue to improve our blockage
and pollution performance by iIncreasing
our focus on customer education 75%
of blockages are due to urwanted tems
that customers put down the tallet so we
are speaking to customers following any
local iIncident and developing a broader
carmpaign to provide more focus in

this areg,

Objective 4. We will provide you with
excellent customer service

We want to make it easy to be a Sevem
Trent customer In recent years we've
worked hard to offer our customers g
broader choice of contact channels, and
to delver an improved expenence frorm
each of those channels For example,
today we answer more than 80% of

calls within 20 seconds, and very soon
we will be answenng customer erails
within & hours. We're also working hard
to simpldfy our processes and provide our
custorners with more straightforward
Journeys through the vanous touchpoints
of our organisation Our compry-wide
Custorner Expenence Prograrmme

will continue to focus on practical,
measurable Improvements to what reclly
matters to our customers so that we can
consistently deliver tothem a Sout of 5
expenence, every tume, every day

There are a number of cther ways

that we capture and try to measure
customer satisfaction Ofwat measures
our custorner senvice using its Service
Incentve Mecharism (SIM), which has
qualitative and quaontttative elements
The qualitative elerment reflects our
customers' views of our service This year,
our qualttative score rose to 4 48 frorn

4 36, namowing the gap between us and
our peer group Despite our efforts we are
still n severith place for the year for this
measure and we recognise that our pace
of change neads to Improve

The quartitative metne reflecis the
number of customers who have to
contactus Our performance improved

by 14% Overall, our SIM scorewas 81 55, :

up from 78 11 last year

We also capture dota through our Voice
of the Customer’ surveys, which grves us
feedback from around 10,000 custormers
each month This shows that we're now
resolving 94% of custormer ssues first
time, while 93% are satisfied with the
way our advisors helped them

This year, we worked hard to understand
how we could more accurately predict
custorner demand This helps to ensure
that we have the nght resource at the
nght time, so we can respond faster to
our custormers’ needs

Dunng the year, we continued to rofl
out our Great People programme

" This gives our frontline adwisors better

customer interaction skills and helps
our managers to run maore customer
focused operations.

Affordable bills

Objective 5. We will have the lowest

. possible charges for our customers

With household budgets under pressure,
we are pleased that our custormers
benafit frorn the lowest combined water
and sewerage bills in England and Wales,
ot £335n 2013/14 Cumulatively, our
pnices over the lust five years have nsen
by tess than inflabion, a record we Intend
o mantain until 2020

This year, we have absorbed the

addihonal operating costs of the prvate

drains and sewers we adopted in October

2011 rather than seeking o pass these

on to customers We estimate that we'll

absorb addiional operating costs of

around £38 millior in AMPS, with around .
£42 million more caprtal investment |

We continue to share efficiency benefits
with our customers The additional

£150 million of mvestment we
announced in May 2012 s helping to
delver our services, including cleaning our
SeWErs, IMproving our sewage treatment |
waorks and reducing leakage To date,
we've nvested £120 million, with the
remainder to follow In 2014715

Customners who don't pay increase
the costs for those who do, so we take
a rigorous approach ta ensuring that
everyone who can pay actually does
We have one of the industry’s lowest
levels of bad debt, at 2 2% of turmnover

We continuolly improve the way we
work, so we can keep our customers’ bills
down and enhance our service We have
intreduced common systems and
processes which exploit our investment

. inour SAP enterpnise software solution,

which underpins and connects our
business operations, For exarnple, we are
simplifying our ‘Plan to Adopt’ process
(the way we build new assets) helping
us to deliver greater efficency n our
copital progromme
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Customer interaction

Customers want to interact with us i ways
that are convenent to them, sowe've
strengthened our web self-servce offerng,
gving customers full access ona sma

or tablet. We're also the UK's first utility to
launch Fingtt, Barciays' mobile payment app
We're giready explonng the next innovaions
that will make it easeer to pay

Dunng the year, we rwested m our
Customer Operations Service Centre

to improve efficency and save maney
When a customer reports a problem, our
agents have better information on the
affected osset, work crew availability ond
ather kay factors, so we confix problems
faster and give our customers g better
senice We've alsoinvested 0 Netbase, o
systern that anolyses our infrastructure’s
performance sa we can identrfy where
we need to focus the efforts of our work
crews to rapidly stop leaks,

Colloborative working with our

supply chain partners olso delivers
efficenaes and business mprovernents
In 2013714, we renewed our ‘One
Supply Chain’ approach for g further

five years Extending these relohionships
has enabled us to put together o

robust captal progromime for AMPE
More generally, our Procurerment team
hos continued to help us ot the cost of
the goods and services that we buy with
o totol of £58 milhon saved this year

Objective 6 We will help you

if you struggle

Poverty rates in qur region are
significantty higher than the nationol
average and we recogruse that some
custormers genunely struggle to pay their
bilts. We offer g wide range of soaial tanffs

and schemes to help, benefiting a total of

over 20,000 customers in 201314

This support includes the WaterSure
tanff, which caps bills for custorners who
have parbcular difficulty m poymg, and
Water Direct, which diiows custormers io
arrange small deductions from benefits,
to go towards their bilt ameors.

Image removed

The Severn Trent Trust Fund 15 o registered

» charity, which has helped many

customers to meet thew water bills.

The Big Difference Fund 1s our partnership
with the Ciizens Advice Buregu {CAB)
The CAB helps our customers to address

; ther brooder finanaial ssues, so they can

rrunimise or avoid household debts more
effecovely in the future Dunng 2013114,
we donated a further £3,5 million to
these funds.

Responsible business
Objectrve 7 We will protect our

local environment

Poliutron inadents are caused by
unplanned discharges of woter or
sewage Jnto the ermaronrnent. We've
further reduced the number of patiution
nadents, with senous pollution Incdents
down by over a thid. We understand
that we are one of only two companies
1o detver a year on year reduction in
sencus pollutions, as recognised by the
Environrent Agency (EA) Our overall
environmental performance, assessed
N 2012113 by the EAos 3k {out of @
possible score of 4%), has significantly

. improved in 2013714 We owait the EA's

final assessment on performance, due to

" be publshed in summer 2014 However,

there were two prosecution actions taken
by the £A during the year, this highlights
the need for continuad mproverment

n our operatonet performance We've
increased our vistbiity of our final
effluert quality by mstaling monitors ot

' 350 sites, with 209 of these sites being

cornmissioned and in service {cormpared
to only 50 the previous year) We am to

" hove moniters at 520 sites by the end

of AMPS

; We've continued to mvest n our sewage
" treatment works and we’re on track to
cornplete our imvestrment programme
for AMP5S Our non-infrastructure
improvernent group hos also onalysed
ond systematically eliminated problemns.
As a resuit, only five of our 704
consented sites failled to reach therr
compliance imits, gnvang us our best
ever performance of 89 29%, which has
* coninbuted to the servicedbiity of our
above ground assets rernaining stable

We also continue to innovate, testing
the Lontra Blade compressor at our
Worcester sewage trectment works.
The compressor & optimised for aeroting
waste water, to reduce the electricity
+ we use for this process by 209 The triol
demonstrated the unit’s efficency
and reliabity We've also begun work
on the UXs first vertical flow reed
bed This technology offers the lowest
maintenance and most environmentally
friendly soiution for sewage works in
rural areas

In ine with the EA’s National Environment

Programmie, we invested a further
£48 million to enhance mer quality,
bringing our AMPS investrment to
mare thon £150 million This included
Improving processes at 15 sewage works
and enabling public sewerage networks

. for four communrties to remeove polluting
pnvate discharges
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Regulated performance
review continued

Educating our future customers

Through our Water Champions prograrnime,
Sevemn Trent volunteers create fun and
educational water efficent gardens for
schools. We also prowde learming matenals
and home actvties, so children really learn
about water Alderrmoor Farm Pnmary School,
Coventry, 15 one beneficiory Our volunteers
spent three days there, helping the school to
transform its outdoor learming ervironrent.

We have an importont role In protecting
biodiversity, nduding at the 38 sites of
speciol scientific interest (SSSIs) we own
or partly manage. We're working with
partners such as Natural Englond, Natural
Resources Wales, the EA, wildlife trusts
and the RSPB, to bang all of our S55Is into
fovourable condiion by 2020 Our key
wisitor sites with SS5I status have been
entered into Natural England’s Higher
Level Stewardship schemes, whicham o
delver signficant environmental benefits
in prionity areas In particular, we're
looking to increase biodversity and offer
sustonable catchment manogement on
our lond

However, there are water quality Issues
ot the SS5I at the Chamwood Reservoirs,
Lexestershire To oddress these we're
close to finalsing a 10 year ogreement
and lease with Leicestershire & Rutiand
Wildirfe Trust (LSRWT), which will enable
L&RWT to manage the woodtand and
reservorr margm, iIn line with Natural
England’s SSSI conservation objectives

We continue to have our woodlands
certified by the Forest Stewardship
Council and enter thermn in the Forestry
Commmussion’s woodland grant schemes.
For example, a scheme ot Carsington
Water manages the landholding to
benefit woodiand birds white also
holding water, so It’s slowty released
into catchments. We also lioise with
community groups such as bird clubs,
to monitor the numbers and species
of birds on and around our resenvorrs.
Volunteer groups have helped create
biodiversity habitats such os new
ponds, manage reed beds and restore
wildflower grosslands,

Image removed

Objective 8. We will protect the
' wider ervironment

Water ond sewoge tregtment 15 energy
intensive and Severn Trent Water 5
! responsible for 98% of the group’s carbon
emissions We've been reporting our
performangce for more than a decade and
have consistently reduced our emissions
and costs, through energy efficency,
renewable energy production, improved
. metenng and more effective use of
transport. In 2013414, our emissions
totalled 511 kilo tonnes of CO, a
reduction of 9%. Qur plan is to reduce
our carbon ermussions by 3% in AMP&

We've had Carbon Trust Standard
accreditation since 2009 and contribute

tothe Carbon Disciosure Project (CDP)
More informahion obout our greenhouse
gas impact can be found in the Directors’
report on page 79

+ This year, we achieved 100% complhance

on satisfactory sludge dispesal and

implermnented a new IT system to

modernise our complance menitoring

and control. We also invested n biosolids

storage, to mitigate the effects of severe

weather, and tnalled innovative solutions

to ensure we can recyde bicsolds duning

challenging wecther

We've built a sector leading posttion m

renewable energy, which now provides

23% of our energy requirements.

A number of these processes use by-

* products or essential fegtures of our

, water or sewoge treatrment, and are
dassed os part of our requlated business

Dunng the year, we installed more
efficent combmed heot and power units
at our largest sewage treatment works,
to increase output by 10% We're also
budding our first, and the UK’s largest,
bio-methane njection plant at Minwaorth,
Brrninghom [nformation about our non-
requlated renewables can be found on
pages 31 and 32

Objective 9 We wili make a positive
difference in the community

Our actvibes bring broad ecanomic

and sockl benefits to our region
According to research we commussioned
from Coveritry University, for every £1 we
invest £1 6615 generated and retained
inthe regional economy {figures from
‘Moking a Difference’, o Severn Trent
Woter Report) With an investment
programme of around £600 million N
2013714, our contribution 1s considerable

We're also o major employer, of more than
5,900 people. We help young people into
work through our apprenbceships and
currently have more than 80 apprentices
In our operations and custormer services
As well as benefiting the young people
involved, this helps secure the skills we'll
need in the coming years.

Educating our current and future
customers Is also key to helpmg people
understand how to use water efficently
and what can be safely disposed of in our
sewers Ourschools education programme
reaches more than 45,000 dhildren each
year, so they understand the value of
water. We've extended this wath our
company-wide Water Champions
wolunteenng programme This allows our
people to create fun and educational
water efficient gardens m local primary
schools, which they can incarporate Into
everyday leaming This engages our local
communities, while improving our people’s
sklls and butding workang relaticnships
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Also, In 2013 we were a sponsor of the
Big Bang event in our region. The national
Big Bang progromme is the largest

promotional event for science, technology,

engineenng and maths for young peaple
in the UK and the regional event at the
Ricoh Arena n (oventry, UK, Involved
nearly 4,000 schoolchildren.

Our local communities are actively
involved in helping the running of our
visttor sites, volunteerng nearly 20,000
hours each year on conservation,
maintenance actty and providing
excellent custormer service Lost year

we invested over £1 1 million m our
vistor sites and over 3 milion customers
wvisited our sites during 2013, highlighting
our continued commitment to offer
high leveis of conservation, access and
recreation across our region. At Droycote
Water, our resenvorr site necr Rugby,

we have spent £330,000 over two

years remodelling and refurbishing the
vistor centre, bullding a children's play
areg and increasing parking facilies
Since its re-opening in April 2013 we have
seen an increase In visitor numbers of
almost 56%

Sustainable finance

Objective 10 We will finance our
business susta:nably

We aim to finance our business
sustningbly, so we can invest now to
protect our future senaces, We avord
excessive debt, which would transfer

nsk to our customers, and look fora
sustainable rmux of debt finance at the
nght cost, reflecting the long term nature
of our investment.

Our finanang needs are and will remain
substantial. [n AMP6 our plan suggests
we will need to raise around £2 6 billion
in new and refinanced debt, which
means it will be necessary to maintain an
investrment grada credrt rating. Qur long
term credtt ratings are BBB+ (Standard
and Poar's) and A3 (Moody’s} These are
in Lkne with regulatory assumptions and
wete unchanged dunng the year,

Our geanng ond interest cover remain
prudent - further detail canbe foundin
the Financial review on pages 33 to 37

Great people

To achieve our objectives, we have

a flexible workforce, with people
whao are willing to work in new ways,
embrace new skills and focus on our
customers’ needs

Our employee survey showed our highest
level of engagerment i eight years;

our engagernent index reaching 81%
This compares with 79% last year and
75% for other benchmarked cormparies,

Parbicular strengths induded health ond
safety, where our peopte understand our
comrmitment and therr own responsibility
for workng safely Severn Trent's Code

of Conduct, ‘Doing the nght thing - The
Severn Trent way’, explains our approach
o 155ues ranging frorm brbery ond
corruption to excellent customer service
Our pecple recognise thew responsbility
for complying with the Code of Conduct
ond our focus on dong the nght thing,
reflecting our continued training and
engagement in this areo They also
understand how the company’s goals
and ther role contnbutes to customer
expenence and are happy to go the extra
mile when required.

As always, there are areas where

we can improve Incomrmon with

rmany orgonisations, our pecple think

we could be better ot handiing and
communicating change They also waont
s to simphfy our processes, reflecting
the number of new systems and
processes we've infroduced in recent
years In response to feedback from last
year's survey, members of the Executve
Committee have held events around the
business rneeting tearns and shanng our
future plans. We continue to hold events
around the business, allowing ernployees
to ask about cur business and contnbute
their ideas.

Excellent health and safety

No ene should get hurt or made unwell
by what we do We've sustained our
fost tirme incident (LT} rate at 0.21 per
100,000 hours worked (2G12/13 021},
making us the leaders in our industry
Particular achievernents induded our
Water Production teamn workung for an
entire year without an LTI

We've done this through further
investment and training, Qur ongoing
MindSafety® training programme helps
our people to understand how they
should work and take responsdibity for
their own safety

We've diso implernented site besed
safety improvernent teams This gives
our people ownership of the issues

ond allows them to fix the day-to-day
problerns that can offect theyr heatth,
safety and wellbeing Our proactive
approoch to health, sofety and wetlbaing

. continues to iImprove, with ground

15,000 hazards identfied ond resolved
permonth

Occupational health has been a focus
for us this year We've introduced a
physictheropy and rehabiliation service
for those suffenng with musculoskeletal
problems, which has reduced employee
absence by more than 1,000 days

We've also developed Fit for the Future’,
whuch 1s part of our bespoke njury
preventicn programme This programme
not only trains pecple In safe ond efficient
manual handling but provides health

ond nutrtion advice to support our
emplayees In maintaining a healthy and
productve career The programme won
Rehabilitaton Intatrve of the Year at the
Rehabiltation First awards

Our next area of focus will be mental
health. We've taken part in Time to
Change, England’s biggest programme to
end stigma and discnrmination for people
with mental heaith problems We want
to identify the gaps between supporting
people with mental health 1ssues and
taking practical ackion We've surveyed
our people and are educating monagers
and employees about building personal

' resilience to better manage challenges at

horme and In work.
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Regulated performance
review continued

Developing our people ‘

We've continued to rolt out our

Leading for Performance programme:
This develops leaders who can coach
their teamns and inspire greater levels

of performance. We've also run
development centres for 80 manogers,
benchrmarking them externally ond
internally, and helping them to create
high quality personal development plans

We continue to develop our ine
managers through our Line Manager
Joumey So far, we've traned neary 700
people In a range of core management
skills We've rvested in IT and business
skills, as well as project and programme
rmanagement, with 850 traiming days this
year in thase areas.

Our Future Skills strateqy encompasses
our apprentice and graduate
pregrammes. We've taken on more
graduates this year, employing 20 for
genera leadership training and we have
introduced a technical engineenng
programme for graduates

A diverse workforce

A dverse and indusive cutture s
important for business sucress.

Our approach is based on doing the
nght thung and we're working to ensure
our polices, processes and practices are
open, farr and transparent.

, We montor our performance agoinst

a range of diversty measures and
benchmarks, 50 we con use thedata

to nform our actions. Cur workforce 15
slightly more diverse than the sector
average 31% of our employees are
wormen compared to the industry
average of 28 9% 7 5% of ouremployees
are Black, Asian and Minerty Ethnic
(BAME]} compared to the industry average
of 2% we're bulding a diversity and

. inclusion plan to address partaular areas

of improvement. Our current focus 15 on
attracting more women into operational
leadership roles and ensunng that our
frontline operational roles are attroctive
to BAME candudates To support our goals
we have camed out o complete revew
of our job descnptions and advertising

' strategy and tramned over 320 monagers

in effective Interview techniques

More information about our gender
diversty, Including statistics for the
group, are provided in the Nominctions
Cormnrittee report on pages 52 and 53

Information obout hurman nghts Issues

. for the group is set out in the Corporate

({4

Respensibility Committee report on
pages 57 to 59

" Rewarding our people

« Welook to offer nnovative rewords for
our people, with a strong Iink to mproving
' business performance, Through our
flexble benefits scherme {'Lifestyle’)
* employees con choose certain benefits,
such as buying or selling annual leave
doys. We also offer a range of products,
where we can use our buying power to
offer employees discounts. Lifestyle won
the Best Flexable Benefits Scheme at the
Employee Benefits Awards in June 2013

It's olso important to align our
employees’ interests with those of our \
shareholders and to share the benefits of
our success with them More than 5,000
employees are mernbers of our Share
- Incentive Plan and we offer a Sharesave
scheme, allowing employees to buy
discounted shares

Outlook

The next 12 months will see us complete
the delvery of our AMP5 plan

In the coming months we will also
finalise our plan for AMPS, so we can
+ continue to delver for our customers,
shareholders, employees and the
+ ervionment. We'll ensure we're ina
position to start deliverng t from day one
of AMPg

* Ofwat has commutted to publishing its
. final determination of all companies’
plans by 12 Decernber 2014

. A diverse and inclusive culture is important

for business success. Our approach is based
on doing the right thing and we’re working

. to ensure our policies, processes and practices
are open, fair and transparent.”
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Non-regulated

Severn Trent Services

Better
for Patrick

Along term waste water opergtions
partrership saved tens of thousands
of dollars for Sevem Trent Services’
business customer Patnck Banger
Better value and o
healthier ervironment

Helping our
customer
and the
environment

We've operated the Neely Wastewater
Redlamation Facility in Gbert, Arizona,
since 1999 While the town's population
has boomed, we've stilt delvered
irnprovements that benefit our
custormer and the emvironment. All the
facility’s treated water goes to imgate
parks, golf courses and cornmon areas,
or to recharge fadiity basins. We've
worked to save the town more than
£60,000 n operating expenses, while a
solar power systerm will save a further
£1 2 mittion over 20 years

Image removed

£1.2m

saving over 20 years
through a solar
power system
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Non-regulated
business model

Our non-regulated business allows us to
maximise our water and woste water
treatment knowledge by creating and
delivering services and products to the
UK and global municpdl, industnal and
commeraal sectors

We also provide renewable energy to
the group and are looking to identfy
new opporturities iIn energy generation
Where risks are currently considered
Pnnapal Risks, further detads are provided
onpages 39to 41

STS Operating Services

STS Water Purification
(Products)

Renewable energy

Image
removed

Identify and develop

opportunities

Identify and develop opportunities in
non-regulated markets

Operating Services provides contract
operations and maintenance for water
and waste water treatrent faclites
for rurucipal and industnal cients and
the UK Minustry of Defence {(MOD}

In the UK we provide design, buld and
contract operations for water and waste
water treatment facilties for o vanety
of industnal segments and supply retal
water to businesses throughout the UK.

Products prowdes filttration, disnfection
and process solution technologees for
vanous municipal and industnal water
and waste water treatment applicabons
and the manne and cffshore Industnes

Sevemn Trent's non-regulated business
genemtes renewable energy from

wind turbines and the anasrobic
digestion {AD) of crops and we are

now expanding into the food waste AD
market Our planned fadlity at Coleshull,
Warwidashire, UK, will convert up to
44,000 tonnes of food waste into 17,026
Mwh of electnaty and approxmatety
30,000 tannes of biofertitiser for
agnculture per year by 2016 We plan

to Investigate the developrment of other
technologies induding photovoltoics (PV)
and blomass combustion.

Y

O,

image
removed

Create products

and services

Create products and services that help
our clients manage thesr water and
energy needs

Our strategy is to continue growing our
Operating Services busness in the US
and Europe

Water supply services aaoss the UK
are changing, with legislation gving
businesses a choice In who they buy
their water and waste water services
frormn, Operating Senvices is pursuing
this open market movernent, helping
businesses achieve optirmum water and
waste water manogement through
enhanced services

Cur strategy s to introduce next
generaton products for traditional
markets and develop technologies to
address needs In new geographies
Addressing specific regional needs {such
os gas feed in Indig, and disinfection
and filtrabion in China) we will be able

to provide products that delbver the best
value for the customer

In 2014415 we wall supply over 40,000
Mwh of electricity and heat to our
regulated business,

Cur new food waste AD business wil
provide a servce for the recycling

of industnal, commeraat, retall and
domestic food waste
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Build strong and Maximise our return
respected brands Maunmse our etum on rvestment
Build strong and respected brands that ougn long term contracts @
recog service agreements and cross
ore rised across our sectors drssemm%tron of our products

Operating Services 1s recognised as
the largest private operator in terms

of fadlites operated in the US, where
we setve more than 400 fucilies in

22 stotes These focilities regularty win
owards in areas such as ermronmentat
compliance, hedlth and safety and
overall plant performance

Operating Services has taken a leading
role in the UK water supply market. With
water services licerices for Scotland,
England and Wales, we offer muttr-sited
businesses the benefits and synergies of
asingle suppler approach

Qur brands are used and recognised
throughout the world Sorne of our key
brands are-

ClorTect on-site sodium hypochlonte
generation systerns.

Capitol Controls® a line of gas feed
systerns and occessones.

TETRA™ 1s ore of the most trusted
names in dnnking water and waste
water fiters.

BALPURE® ballnst water treatrment
technology

We are recognised as being experienced
in the field of angerobic dgestion and
combined heat and power generation
(CHP) Our expertise in this complex
biologecal process means that we can be
trusted to provide an excellent service

We continue to enter new states in

the US, securing our lorgest monetary
contract to date n Bndgeport,
Connecticut, while expanding our
presence in Coliforma wath the:
acquisition of 14 contracts from
SouthWest Water Company Long termn
contracts with the MOD and First Mikk
provide cortinuing stability

We are moving to o regional operating
model, which will better address

our markets, bring us doser to our
customers and realign the cost base
to improve margins. We believe the
effectiveness of cur core technologies
can deliver long term potential.
Aftermarket sales of our water
treatment technologies represents a
further opportunty We look to enter
new and targeted market geogrophies
to expand our market presence

We have established electncty and
heat power sale/purchase agreements
with our requlated business. We will

be entering into long term contracts
with the wader supply market to process
food waste

L i

Associated risks

Hazardous processes may result in our
people beng injured {Principal Risk Ref &)
Fatture of products or treatrment
processes may result in ervironmental
darnage and regulatory non-compliance
{Pnnapal Resk Ref 7)

Requlatory or polibical change may leod
to decreased demand for our services.
We may be unable to take advantage of
the openng up of the UK retall market to
cormpetion {Pnnapal Risk Ref 2)

Fallure of products or treatrment
processas may resuit In injury to people,
ermronmental damage and regul
nonrcomplence (Prncpal Risk Ref6 and 7)
Dsruption in the global supply chain maoy
impact our abilty to meet cient needs.

The intellectual praperty in our kay
products may be used by compettors
Regulatory change may lecd to
decreased dermand for our products
New products may be introduced to the
miarket leading to increased competition
for our products and services

Nor-delivery of the expected benefits of
the restructunng plan

Hazardous processes may result nour
people being mjured (Prncipal Risk ref €)
We may be exposed to inaeased
volatilty m energy paces

Regulatary or political change or tocal
apposition to our plans may affect our
abilty to generate sufficent renewable
energy to achieve our targets.

auowakog  yodal 21631005
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Non-regulated

performance review

Severn Trent Services delivered a

mixed performance in 201314,
Operating Services performed well,
winning new contracts and delivenng
growth year on year However, in our
Products business, shipments were below
expectahons due to continuing custormer
project and delivery delays, leading to
tower revenues and profit before interest,
tax and exceptional terns (PBIT) for
Sevem Trent Services as a whole

After adjusting for the impact of disposals
in 2012/13 and exchange movermnents,
revenue was 1 3% higher but PBIT was
down by 48 6%. Reported revenue fell by
5 2% to £311 1 millon, while reparted
PBIT was down 43 7% at £7 1 million

Operating Services

Operabing Senices grew yedar On year,
winming new business in the US and UK,
and successfully renewing contracts

in the US and Itaty, with contract
retention rates overall ahead of torget.
Tumover increased to £2099 mullon, up
8 0% ofter adjusting for exchange rates
and disposals n the prior year

The US business secured its largest ever
win by monetary value in Bndgeport,
Connechaut, to provide operation,
mantenance, management and
customer services for the local waste
water collection and treatment systems

The £13.8 millon a yeat, 10 year contract
s our first In Connecticut, givingus a

* presence In 22 states, and a potential

spnngboard to win further work n New
England The business also won 24 new
projects in the Texas Gulf Muniopal Utilty
Distnct region

We also acquired 14 contracts from
the Californio based SouthWest Water
Company, representing apprexmately
£4 8 milbon in annucl revenue, which
expands the number of public prmvate
partnerships we have in Califormia

In the UK, we took full ownership of

the Sevemn Trent Costain business.

Our relatonship with First Mtk progressed
with a 10 year design, bulld and operate
contract to pravide a new effluent
treatment plant in South Woles,

We are well posttioned n our plans

to take advantoge of the openng up

of business retall morket beginning N
2017, leveraging Severn Trent's skills and
expertise to offer customers a single

expert supplier

10 year
Bndgeport
contract

Bridgeport, Connecticut

In Januory 2014 Operating Services
began tts largest ever contract interms of
monetary value with the Water Pollution
Control Authonty of the City of Bndgeport,
Connectiaut. The 10 year contract, which
indudes two subsequent five year optons,
requires us to provide operation, mamtenance,
management and customer services for the
Authonty’s waste water systems.

Image removed
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Bark River Westewater Treatment Plant
Products has been owarded a controct to
prowide its TETRA™ Derute ™ denitnficotion fiter
technology 1o the Back River Wastewater
Treatrnent Plant (WWTP) in Baltmore,
Maryland. The TETRA Denrte process will

be used to reduce high levels of nuthents
discharged into the Chesapeake Bay.

Upon completion, the £14 milbon instatiotion
will be the lorgest fixed-film denttnfication
systern in the world.

Our 25 year, £1 billon gperation and
mamtenance contract with the UK
Ministry of Defence 1s now ints ninth
year We've continued to deliver

our contractual commitrments for
environmentat performance and
asset improvement.

In [taly we successfully completed the
reorganisation and refinancing of our
assoaate business SIT This included

an agreernent to reduce the levels of
any shareholder supporting guarantees
and set up contracted repayment
amangernents over 15 years for loans
provided by shareholders. SII hos already
peid over the first arnounts due under
these new arrangements which will,
aver time, reduce the fully provided gross
exposure of the group

Water Purification (Products)
Performance was disappointing, with
shipments below expectations due to
continuing custormer project and delivery
delays across o nummber of markets, clong
with poor execution on some internal
projects iImpocting negatively on bath
revenues and PBIT

Products’ pesformance i Amenca and
Europe was impacted due to difficult
ecanomic condiions and bmited

£14m

denitrification
systern

" InSevern Trent De Norg, we hove seared  Qur products must cortinue to deliver

a framework agreernent with a global
ol company for future installation

of our OMNIPURE™ and BALPURE®
products. Customer delays affected all
product lines, largely in EMEA where the

custorners’ development of new offshore '
. operations is behind schedule

In the manne market, we still awart
ratificaton of ballast water tregtment

, standards by the International Mantime
Orgorizatton As a result, sales of our

BALPURE¥ product line remain lower
than expected. However, BALPURE™ still
delvered growth and we have a pipelne
of new projects, We continue to tnvest
in BALPURE®, so it has a broader reach

 across the marketplace This includes

madiying the product to make it rmore

. cost competrive for smaller ships, ond

taking costs out of the onginal design to
improve its competiiveness across the
product ange

. Orders were up by 23% over the pnor

customer investment in water and waste -

waoter projects.

In emerging markets such as Asid
Pacific, demand rernained consistent

for diginfecticn and filtration products
due to contmued urbarisotion In Ching,
effluent discharge standards continued
to drive filtration product dernand.
Important wins included o controct to
provide our Caprtal Controts- chlonnation
systemn to the Chengdu Seventh Tap
Water Plant in Chengdu, Chuino

year, and the challenge is to now convert
these orders into revenue Turmnover was
£101 5 million, a decrease of 10 3%
after adjusting for exchange rates and
disposols in the pror yeor

Action has glready been taken to

return the business to profitable
growth, induding installation of a new
rnanagement team, and over the next
12 months our Products business will
realigh s cost base to improve marging
growth Nevertheless, we hove taken

a cautious view of the nsks related to
these actions and have recorded an
imparment of £24 7 millon against
goodwillin the business Dunng the

« year the business conbinued its move

to @ regionol operatmg moded, which
will better address our markets and

« bring us doser to our cusiomers

value for custormers so we've created
teans for each of our core product
cateqornes. disinfection, filtraion and
electrochlonnation to assess our
ourrent plotforms and determime
future needs. As o result, @ number of
research and developrment projects in
our filtration and ultraviolet dsinfection
portfohios were discontinued to focus
on cument needs. We are developing
next generotion products for traditioncl
dismfection and gas feed rmarkets that
will delver better value for maoney

We are also developing a dedicated
aftenmarket sales team to create a new
revenue stream, with Sevem Trent De
Nora the first to provide on offering

Continuous improvermnent

Our teoms, including Hedlth, Safety and
Ervironiment, Human Resources and Legal
Counse, are dedicoted to implementing
systems and shanng best practices

which empower our colleaguesto

do the nght thing - the Severn Trent way
Pratecting health ond safety s ane of our
core values We set targets every year for

* inaemental iImprovermnent and we beat

our Lost Time Inodents (LTI} target of 0.30
for 2013/14 with a score of 0 27 {see STS
KPL 1 onpage 9) Ourachievernents
inctuded three consecutve months, and
six months in total, with no LTIs

The business also continues to adopt
Safer Better Faster, our approach to
continuous Improvement, with @ number
of our fadlies and offices introducing
some orall elernents of it. This s driving
safety and operotional improvermnents

sjusWa)DIs Puouy dnoig  BJupsanon  Jodas yybzons
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Better
for Neil

Renewable Enengy Monager Neil
Liddell-Young expects our new
£13 mullion food waste anoerobic
digestion plant to generate a further
2% of our energy needs

image removed
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Image removed

204 GWh

Severn Trent
generation 2013/14

We’re generating 23% of our
energy from renewable sources

Today, Sevemn Trent as a group generotes  We're investing £13 million in the plart,
23% of Severn Trent Water'senergy from ot Coleshil, Warwickshire, This will create
owwde vanety of sources Hovingexplored  new challenges for our ernployees and
opportunities frorn water and sewage we  supply chain as well as seven new jobs

are now expanding our non-reguiated in the local community when it opens
renewables portfolio, with cur pnmary later this year The plant’s ervironmental
focus for expansion being the emerging benefits ndude preventing food waste
food waste digeshion market. going to landfill, reducing our net carbon

We've now started work on a newplart,  emissions ond provding high quatty
which by 2016 will corvert up to 44,000 brofertiliser to reploce man-rmade

tonnes of food and liquid waste into olternatves The plant will also further
17,026 Mwh of enengy - equvalentto a tmprove our resilience and our abilsty
further 2% of our requinements to serve our customers, by making

us less relant on electnety from the

national gnd.

Picture abover Agrvert Ltd plant
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Non-regulated performance
review continued

Customner service

It 1s our chjective to provide excellent
customer service. Since 2013 we have
been monitonng customer satisfaction
through our Voice of the Custormer
surveys (see measures of objectives 4
and 9 cn pege 9) For STSKPI 11,this s
the first year that we have full data for
the whole of STS We scored 4 24 out of 5
for this year

Process

We've contnued to nvest in our systems.
We've Introduced a new enterpnse
rescurce planning system, and
implemented the Workday hurman
resource management system, which
enables us to manage our giobal
workforce of 2,387 employees from o
central application. We have also
implemented a global customer
relationship monagement system and
made all our operating systems cloud
based. A common IT infrastructure
improves our communications and allows
us to develop comman processes, 5o

mpreving our effioency

Great people

Our successful hecotth and safety
performance 1s often recognised
externally, for exarnple n Novernber 2013
we receved a plant safety oward from the
Eastem Pennsylvarma Water Pollution
Control Operators Assocation

We strive to support and develop our
great people, therr skills and opportuntties
for creative and Innovative thinking

In 2012/13, we put in place a trainmg and
development team This year, the team
has been active across the business and
inhated a range of training and
leadershup development programmes,
including onboarding for new recruits

All colteagues who fulfil a leadership role
are expected to further develop their skills
and many of our managers have been
rvolved in self awareness and teamn
building events

3
3
v

Nearly 900 emnployees took part mthis

. year's Global Corporate Challenge, 0 16

, wellbeing programime ivoiving more than ; po oy vy business in Operating Services

" will provide long termn revenue stabilty, as

week team based physical actmty and

37,000 teams globally. Our employees
took more than 919 milion steps and
walked 365,000 miles, finishmg second
armong all the companies n the gas,
electnaty and water supply category and
reporting many postve benefits.

Our employee engagement remains .
high but just below target, at 75% '
(2012113 77%) We conduct a brannual
survey and quarterly pulse surveys, based
on a random selection of 25% of our
employees These show continued

* positive perceptions of our business i

gmong our employees

Information about diversity intiatives
and our gender dversity, mcluding
statisbes for the group, 1s provided in the
Nomingtions Committee report on pages
52and 53

Information about diversity Inttiatives and
human nghts issues for the group 1s set
out in the Corporate Responsibility
Commitiee report on pages 57t0 59

Renewables

. In addttion to the renewable energy

generation that forms part of our
requlated business (see page 22) we
continued to build our non-regulated

! renewoble copacty

After secunng planning pemmission, we've
started wark on site on our first food
waste anaerobi digestion plant at
Coleshil, Warwickshire We’re planning to
commission the plant towards the end

of 2014

We've installed our first four large wind
turbines at sites in Derby, Leicester and
Newthorpe, ond three of these are now

generating electnaty Two rmore turbines
are planned for the coming year We've

" glso expanded our crop anaerobic

digestion plant in Nottingham This can
now produce 33% more renewoble
energy, Including heat sales. Sevemn Trent
Water uses the electnaty and heat that
we generate n its water and waste water
treatment processes

Outlook

Our expectations for our non-regulated
business remain positive

the business seeks to expand into larger
markets through onganic growth.

Next generation products and new
geographies will provide opportunities for
Products, offsetting delayed custorner
spending n tradiional markets. We will
continue to invest In BALPURE®, while
awating IMO ratrfication of ballast water
treatment standards We also expect to
see sustamnable growth from our
aftermarket sales intigtve While moving
to aregional operating structure, we will
target continuous iImprovernent aooss dll
business segments and ensure we
properly manage our supply chan
Having the nght cost base and
appropnate praducts for each region will
allow us to develop into a sustanable
glabal busiress

. Our non-regulated renewable energy

generation continues to grow as we seek

. to expand into different technologies and

new markets
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Financial review

Group financial performance

The group hes delivered a gead finanaal perferrnance overall
wath year on yeor impravernents ot Sevem Trent Water and the
Operating Services part of our nen-requidated business Severn
Trent Senvces, while the Products side has struggled with bath
market dynarnics and execution on a number of projects,

In the regulated business, Sevemn Trent Water, the costs that
we directly control were held at inflation, while other costs

aver which we have less diect nfluence, notably power costs,
conbinued to iIncrease at levels higher than inflabion, a trend we
have seen in pnor yaars. We mantained our good performance
on bad debts at 2 2% of turnover (UK GAAP), which 1s creditable
in the current dirnate where household ncomes remain under
pressure We continued to sustam our planned nvestment

In the assats and infrastructure that support this long term
business with totol capital expenditure at £602 1 million, up

8 5% on the pnor year, though nfrastructure mantenance
experditure nciuded 1n this figure and expensed under [FRS
accounting rules was down £7 4 million (5%), driven by shorter
ternm operational requirernents

With no substantial change in financing structures this

year, finance costs ncreased to nsing to £247 9 mullion

(2013 £244 3 mdlon) largely as a result of the higher level of
net debt.

PBIT s profit before interest and tax, underlyng PBIT s PBIT
exduding exceptonal items before tax as set out in note 8

an page 104 Our tox postion this year reflects an outline
agreement we have reached with HMRC on a long stonding
discussion regarding overpayrments of tox in pnor penods (os
set out n note 13 on pages 105 to 106) and we have now
factared this into our business plan for 2015 - 2020 to support
lower customer pnces in AMP6E Prior period comiparative figures
have been restated, where indicated, for the change in the
accounting policy for retirerment benefits. The impact is to
decrease profit previously reparted by £11 5 mullion, with an
equal and opposite movemnent in reserves.

Group tumover was £1,856 7 millon (2013 £1,831 6 million),
an increase of 14% over last year

Underlying gmoup PBIT increased by 4.3% to £516 8 million
(2013 £495 4 milbon) The pnmary factors affecting undertyng
PBIT are descnbed in the comrentary on Severn Trent Water
and Sevemn Trent Services below

There were net exceptional terns before tax of £44 & millkon
{2013 £5 8 milicn). Group PBIT decreased 3 5% to
£472 4 million (2013, £489 6 million).

+

Regulated - Sevemn Trent Water

Tumover in Severn Trent Water increased by 2 2% in 2013714,
10 £1,544 8 mihon Prces were increosed by 1% less than
Novernber 2012 inflation of 3 0% from 1 Aprit 2013 which gave
nse to an mcrease in tumover of £29 8 mitlion. The 2013 dry
summer led to higher consumption from metered custormers
which increased tumaover by £7 1 million year on year Growth,
net of the impact of meter optants, mcreased tumover by

£1 3 milhon which was offset by ather decreases amounting to
£4 4 mithon

Underlyng PBIT increased by 4 0% to £518 6 milion

Operating costs increased by 3 1% to £600 3 million in line
with expectotions. Depreciation ncreased by £3 3 rithion due
to the impact of capital expendrture increasing the size of the
asset base ond there was a decreose in infrastructure renewals
expenditure of £7 4 mulion

Dmectly rnonoged costs increased in bine with the level of
inflation at 3 0% year on yeor, while indmectly ranaged costs,
over which we have less contro, increased by 3 2%

2014
£m £m £m %
Directly managed casts
Employeecosts 2386 2266 120 53
Hredandcontocted 1541 1475 66 45
Raw matenals and
consumables . 425 434 ©s @n
Other 488 495 {0.7) (14)
Costs captalsed 926) (871} (55 63
3914 3799 115 30
Indrectly managed costs S
Baddebts 313 318 (05 (16)
Power 653 606 47 78
Rotes and sepace charges 1123 1101 22 20
2089 2025 64 32
Operating costs 6003 5824 179 31

Overall net labour costs, mdudng hired and contracted and
after costs copitalised, were 4.6% higher penod on period

Raw matenals and consurmaobles were lower than the pror year
pnmority due to savngs within waste water

Bad debts rernained stable at 2 2% of turnover (UK GAAP) due
to our continuing prooctive approach and range of social tanffs
to help custormers pay their bills. The increase in power costs
argse due to higher strike pnces on our energy swaps.

Dunng the year, Sevemn Trent Water invested £602 1 milkon
{2013 £555 4 rillion} (UK GAAP, net of contnbutions) in fixed
assets and mantaining and mproving its infrastructure netwiork
Induded in this total was net infrostructure maintenance
expendrture of £140 3 million {2013 £147 7 millon), charged to

, the income statement under IFRS
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Financicl review continued

Non-regulated - Severmn Trent Services

Iﬁcreasef
2014 2013 (decrecse)
£m fm %
Services as reported 3114 3285 (52%)
Stm_ctuml cha_nges - 2171
Impact of exchange rate
fluctuatons - 01 .
Like for ls 3114 3075 13%
Increase/
2014 2013 (decreose)
£m £m %
Underlying PBIT e e o
Services as reported 71 126 {437%)
Structural changes . - 12
Like for hke 7.1 138 (4B 6%)

In Severn Trent Senrvices there was like for ike growth in sales but |

undertying PBIT, measured on the same basis, was lower

The like for Uke results show the pnor year results using current
year exchange rates and exclude the amounts in the prior year
that arose from the Anclybicol Services and Metening Services
businesses, which were scld in that year

Performance was mixed Operating Senvces performed wedl
and like for like tumover was £209 9 mition, an increcse of 8 0%
compared to the prior year However, in Products, shipments
were below expectations due to continung customer project
and delivery delays leading to lower like for like tumover at
£101 5 milhon, a decrease of 10 3% compared to the pnor year

Both businesses were impacted by nat exceptional costs
tatalling £31 5 million, the detail of which 1s in the exceptional
rtems section below

Corporate and other

Corporate overheads amounted to £13 6 million

(2013 £14.6 million). Our other businesses generated an
underlymg profit of £2 5 million (2013 loss of £2 7 nullion}
This induded an underlying profit on our coptive insurance
actmvty of £2.3 milion (2013 loss of £1 8 millon} and an
underiying toss of £0 4 million {2013 loss of £0.5 milbon ) in
our renewables business ansing mainly from new investment
feasibility and other similar costs taken to charge There were
exchange losses in Corporate of £0 7 million {2013+ gains of
£04 million)

Exceptional items before tox

There were net exceptional operating costs in the year to

31 March 2014 of £44 4 million {£4.3 million) which gre
descnbed in further detarl below, end in the pnar year in Severn
Trent Services there was a net exceptional loss on disposat of
businesses of £1 5 million

Excepbiond opercting tems induded.
; » In Severn Trent Water, a profit of £8 2 million ansing from the
disposal of a mumber of propertses,

; » InSevern Trent Senvices exceptional costs of
£31 5 million compnsing

- In Products, a goodwill impairment of £24.7 millcn as
: the prospects for this business depend on the successful
execubion of aplan to reduce the structurdl cost base
of the business and move it closer to growth markets.
Manogement has taken a cautious view of the risks of
delivery of the expected benefits of this plon and, in line
with the requirements of accounting standards, has
not induded these benefits in s assessment of the
recoverability of the goodwill. At 31 March 2014 the group
was committed to restructunng costs of £3 4 million arsing
from the mplementation of this plan. A wnte down of
: software development costs of £2 4 million ansing from the
termination of a planned ERP system replacement that wall
no longer be required as o result of this reorganisation has
also been recorded as an exceptional cost.

- In Operating Services costs of £1 2 millon ansing from
the reorganusatien of the business in the UK followng the
acquistion of Costain's minority share it that business
and £1 0 rmullion in Italy to complete a reorganisation of

: the senior rmonagernent structure commenced in the

prior year

- Release of £1 2 million from a provision recorded in the prior
year for a commeraal legal dispute that was settled in the
current year for an amount lower than had been estimated

+ In Corporate there were exceptional costs of £18 7 millon
ansing from acdwisory, legal and other sennces related to
LongRwver Partners approach and an additional provision of
£2 4 rilion relating to potentral babilties frorn warmanties
granted on disposal of o business in a prior year

Net finance costs

The group's net finance costs were £247 9 mithon, compared
with £244 3 mitlion in the pror year

. The effective interest rate, Including index linked debt, for
2013/14was 5 8% (2013 59%) The cash interest rate was

; 4 9% (2013, 4 9%). The non-cash interest charge was lower year

" on year following repayment of an index inked loan during the

. year. This was offset by an increased cash interest charge on a

| higher level of net debt. Changes to the accounting stondard

i 1AS 19R have resulted in an increase of £17 2 million in net

pension finance cost (pror year figures have been restated by

£12 4 millon to reflect these changes)

I Gans/(losses) on financial instruments
The group uses finanaal dervotives solely to hedge nsks
; associated with its normal business actvities including

* » Exchaonge rate exposure on borrowings denorminated in
foreign currencies,

* Interest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and
"+ Exposures to increases in electndity pnces
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Accounting rules require that these dervatives are revalued at
each balance sheet date and, unless the crtena for cash flow
hedge accounting are met, the changes in value are taken to
the income statement. If the nsk that 1s being hedged does
not impact the income statement in the same penod then an
accounting mismatch anses from the hedging octvibies and
there 1s a net charge or credit to the income statement.

Where the dernatives are held to therr full tesm, these
mismatches are expected to net out. Furthermore, the changes
in value thot are recorded durmg the lves of the denvatives,
unless aystalised, do not represent cash flows. Therefore the
group presents adjusted earmings figures that exclude these
non-cash tems An analysis of the amounts credited to the
ncome statement in the penod 1s presented in nate 12 to the
financial staternents on page 105

Profit before tax

Underlying group profit before tax increased by 7 1% to
£269 1 mitlon {2013 £251 3 mitken) Group profit before tax
was £282 7 million (2013 £200 2 million)

Taxation

The current year tox charge for 2013/14 before exceptional
iterns was £56 5 millon (2013 charge of £27 9 million)

This includes a charge of £ 3 millon ansing from adjustments
to pror year tax computabions In the previous year adjustments
to prior year tax computations resuited in a current tax credit

of £29.2 millien due primarily to an industry agreement over

the treatment of infrastructure income in those computations
The deferred tax charge before excephicnal tox was

£21 5 mithon (2013 credit of £8.2 rillion)

An exceptional current tax credit of £59 2 million has been
recognised, reflecting the anticpated refund of overpayment of
tax in pnor penods as HMRC has now agreed that certan capital
expendrture within our water and waste water treatment
works 15 eligible for caprtal allowances as plant and machinery
This has also resulted in an exceptionat deferred tax credit of
£56 2 rdlion.

There was a further exceptional credit to deferred tax of

£114 8 million (2013 £36 7 milliony) arising from the reduction
in corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 Aprit
2014 and then to 20% from 1 Apnt 2015

Inthe pror year the group's UK subsidiary companies adopted
the new occounting standard FRS 101, which changed the basis
for those companies’ corporation tax computations. The most
significant iImpact of this chonge 1s that certan amounts that
had been taxed in previous years were recognised us profits
and will be taxed in future penods. Therefore, to prevent such
iterns being taxed twice, the tax already paid on such iems
was repayable The impact of this change was an exceptional
credit in the pnor year of £40 5 million to cument taxand an
exceptional charge of £38.8 millon to deferred tax

The total tax credit for the year was £152 2 milbon {2013 credit
of £18 7 miilion)

See note 13 on pages 105 to 106 for further detail

H

The underlying effective rate of current tax, excluding prior
year credits, exceptional tax credits and tax on exceptional

" tems and finanaial instruments, colculated on profit before

tax, exceptional terns before tax and gains/{losses) on financial
instruments was 17 3% (2013 25 4%).

We expect the effective rate of current tax, as defined above, for
2014/15 to be Inthe range of 20% to 22%

Profit for the year and earnings per share

" Profit for the year was £434 9 millon (2013 £218 9 mullion)

Adyusted bosic eamings per share (before exceptional tems,
gains/{losses) on finanaal instruments and deferred tad were
88 4 pence (2013 92 & pence) (see note 15 on pages 107 to
108) Although underlying profit before tox wos bigher year

on year, the previous year current tax charge benefited from

o large pnior year current tax credt and so adjusted earnings
per share are lowear year on year Bosic ecmings per share were
182 1 pence {2013, 90 9 pence)

Cash flow
’ T 2014 2013
£m £m
Cash generated from operations 7302 7312
Net capital expenditure (4639) (4018)
Netinterestpad (2055  (2334)
Tax receved/(paid) 272 (725)
Other cash flows {0.6) (0.5
Freecoshflow B84 230
Acqusiions and disposals (114) 111
Dividends i (1853) (3220
Net issue of shares 7 T 23 53
Change in net debt from cash flows (106.0) (2826)
Noen cash movernents (&h.2) (46.9)
Change In net debt i _ . . (502) (3295)
Net debt 1 April {6,297.3) (3,9678)
Net debt gt 31 March (8,5475) (62973)
Netdebt comprises: ] —
Coshand cash equivalents 1232 4036
Bank overdrafts i - 04)
Cross currency swaps hedging debt 514 1007
Bank loans L . (5969  (7587)
Otherloans N ~ (3,826.0) (3,8409)
Finance leases {2012) (201 6)

(44475) (4,2973)

Cash generated from operations was £730.2 millon

{2013 £731 2 milton) Caprtal expenditure net of gronts
and proceeds of sales of fixed assets was £463 8 million
(2013 £401 8 milbon} Net interest paid decreased to
£204 5 mtbon {2013 £233 4 mithon)

UCRDULOJUNIBQ0  STUAWSaLs jonunuy Auduso)  SIUBLLSI0S |DDMOUY dRoJD  20UDUIBNDD ! voda: mBajons
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Financial review continued

Inthe first part of the year the group made payments of tax,
howewver, the excephional credits in prior penods ansing frorm the
water industry’s outline ogreement with HMRC resutted in tax
refunds in the second hatf of the year In total the group paid
£48 5 million of tox and receved tox refunds of £75 7 million
resulting in net tax recenved of £27 2 million

Net debt at 31 March 2014 was £4,447 5 million

{2013 £4,297 3 million}. Balance sheet geanng (net debt/net
debt plus equity) ot the year end was 80 3% (2013. 83.6%)

Net debt, expressed as d percentage of RCV at 31 March 2014
of £7,618 miliion was 58 4% (2013 58 4%) The group's net
interest charge, exduding gans/(losses) on finanaiol Instrurments
and net finance costs frorm pensions, was covered 3 3 times
{2013 3 2 tmes) by profit before nterest, tax, depreciation

and exceptional tems, and 2 1 times (2013, 2.0 tmes}) by
undertying PBIT

Following the introduction of the new accounting standard,
TFRS 13 ‘Far Value Measurement’, the group 1s required to
amend its approach to eshmating the fair value of its debt
instruments to comply with the new standard which row
places more emphasis on quoted pnces in active markets rather
than expected cash flows discounted using rates denved from
market data The far value of net debt at 31 March 2014 1
estirnated to be £4,799 8 million (£4,880 4 millon) compared to
the book value of £4,447 5 millon (2013 £4,297 3 rnillion)

Treasury management and liquidity
The group’s pnncipal treasury management objectrves arer
= o access a broad range of sources of finance to obtan both

the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the
need for contirued avalabiifty;

= to mantain an nvestrment grade credrt rating; and

= tormantain a flaxible and sustainoble balance sheet structure
The group continues to carefully monitor iquidity

At 31 March 2014 the group had £123 2 miliion

(2013 £403 6 millten) in cash and cash equivclents and
commutted undrawn facilites amounting to £500 millior

(2013, £500 milion) Average debt matunity 1s around 16 years
The group s funded for its investment and cash flow needs up

to January 2015 without recourse to committed facilibes or
new debt.

Cash s invested in deposits with tighly rated banks and Lquidsty
funds and the list of counterparties Is regularly reviewed.

Treasury policy and operations

Gur treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance
with our Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statermnent.
The treasury operation’s role is to manage liquidity, funding,
ivestment and our finanaal nsk, iIncluding nsk from volatility in
interest and (to a lesser extent) aurrency rates end counterparty
credt risk. The board determmnes matters of treasury policy and
1ts approval 1s required for certain treasury transactions

Our strategy 1s to access a broad range of sources of finance

to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost
compatible with the need for continued avaiobility Our principal
operoting subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, 15 a long tenm

business charactensed by mulb year nvestment prograrnmes.
Our strategic funding objectives reflect this and the lquedity
position and availability of commtted funding are essential to
meeting our objectives and obligations, We therefore aim for a
balance of long term funding or commitrnent of funds across a
range of funding sources at the best possibte econormic cost.

We use finanaial dermatives solely to manage nsks associated
with our normal business activities. We do not hold or 1ssue
dervative financiol Instrurnents for financial trading

Except for debt rised in foreign currency, which is fully hedged,
our business does not Involve sigrificant exposure to forexgn
exchange transactions We have investments in vanous assets
denormninated in foreign currencles, prncipally the US dollar

and the euro Our current policy 1s to hedge on element of the
currency translation nisk associated with certain foreign currency
denominated assets.

The group 1ssues notes in foreign currency under its EMTN
progromme and uses cross currency swaps to convert the
proceeds to stering The effect of these swaps s that interest
and prnapal payments on the borrowings are denominated in
sterling and hence the currency risk s elminated. The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in
the bolance sheet at therr fair values and the changes in farr
values are taken to gans/losses) on finanaal mstruments in the
income staterment. Since the terms of the swaps closely match
those of the underlying notes, such changes tend to be broadly

» equal and opposite

The group's current policy for the management of interest

rate nsk requires that not less than 45% of the group's
borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through
the use of Interest rate swaps or forward rate agreements

At 31 Morch 2014, interest rates for 77% of the group’s net debt
of £4,447 5 rmilkion were fixed

The group holds interest rate swaps with a net notional pincipal
of £591 4 million and cross currency swaps with a net notional
prncipal of £610 2 nllion which econormically act to hedge the
Interest rate nsk on floating rate debt or the exchange rate rsk
on certain foreign currency borrowings However, the swaps do
not meet the hedge accounting rules of IAS 39 and therefore
the chonges in far value are taken to geins/(losses) on finandial
instrurnents in the Incorme staternent. Dunng the year there was

. acredit of £44 5 millon n relation to these instruments
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The group has entered nto a senes of forword starting Interest
rate swaps with o notional pnncipal amourt of £450 million
that hedge the interest rate nsk on the anbicipated borrowing
requirernents of Severn Trerit Water for AMPS These swaps are
treated as cash flow hedges and the chonges in fow volue gre
taken to other comprehensive income During the year swaps
with a notional pnncipal amount of £225 milkon reached therr
start dates. Hedge accounting for these swaps was terminated
as at 1 Apnl 2013 becouse the group was not able to identfy
speatfic debt instruments that would qualfy as the hedged
iterns in a future hedgng relabonship The far volue held in
other comprehensive income ot the date of termination will be
amortised to the Income statemert over ther remairing Ives

The group manages Its electnaty costs through a combination
of seif generation forward price contracts ond financiol
denvatives All of our external power requirements for the

first four years of AMPS and most of the remaining year have
been hedged n this way, at prices below those allowed inthe
final determination.

The group’s long terrn credit ratings are

Long term ratings SevernTrent Plc  Severn Trent Water
Moody's o Baal A3
Stondard and Poor's BEB- BBB+
Pensions

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes,
of which the UK Severn Trent Pension Scheme (STPS) 5 by far
the largest. Formdl tnennia! actuonal valuabions and funding
agreements as at 31 March 2013 for the STPS and the other
smaller defined benefit pension scherne have been agreed
ond renewed in the year Defict reduction contrbutions m
total include a payment of £40 million in 2013/14, £35 million
in 2014715, £15 million in 2015/16 and then £12 million per
annum in subsequent years to 202425 Further payments
of £8 millilon per annum through an asset backed funding
arrangement will also continue ta 31 March 2032

As previously announced, the final salary sections of the
pension schemes wall close to future accrual on 31 March 2015
The final salary sections were closed to new entrants in 2006,
Consequently the oge profile of scherne parbiapants i1s expected
to rise and hence service costs ore also expected to nse unit
future accrual cegses in March 2015

A new defined contrbution pension scheme has been
established ond members of the defined benefit pension
schemes will then becorme members of the new defined
contnbubion pension scheme. The existing defined contribution
pension scherme will also be replaced by the new pension
arrangements with effect from 1 April 2015 From 1 Apnl 2012
rnew employees have been automatically enrolted into this
scheme and those employees who were not members of o
Sevem Trent scheme were gutomatically enrolled into this
scheme from 1 Apnl 2013

' The key actuanial assumptions for the defined benefit schemes
" have been updated for these accounts. Onan IAS 19 basis,

" the estmated net position of the schermes was a defictt of

. £348 3 milkor as at 31 March 2014 This compares to a deficit
+ of £383 7 rillion as ot 31 March 2013 The movements inthe
net defict are summansed n note 30 on pages 119 to 122
The funding level has increased to 84 (% (2013 81 8%)

The major assumptions used 1n the valuation of the defined
berefit pension schemes were gs follows

2014 2013
* Pnce inflation . 33% 3%
Pension incregses in payment . 33% 3"“29“4:
Pension iIncreases in deferment 33% 3 2%
, Discount rate - O AA% G4%
E Remalr{lhg i:fe—expecfa“r;cy formembers T
| curentyoged 65 (ears) .
-rmen 213 215
- women 244 246

Rermnaining fe expectancy for members

, currently oged 45 upon retirement ot 65 (years) C
-men o . 228 227
- women 260 262

The following table surmmanses the estimated impact on
scheme liabilihies resulting from changes to key actugnal
assumphions whilst holding alt other assumptions constant.

, Impoct on schene

! Assumption Changein assumption  licbilities

' Increase/decrense by  Decreasefincrease by
' Discountrate  01% £38 million

Increose/decrecse by Increaseldecrense by )

Pnceinflaton O 1%

i Increase in ife
Mortalrty

£35 million

Accounting policies and presentation of the financial
statements

Our consolidated finanaial statements are prepared n
accordance with Internatonal Finanaal Reporbng Standards

" that have been endorsed by the European Union

asuowanon  uodal ybajons -

expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55 million

}
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Risk management

Our approach to risk:

Cur approach to nsk balonces the need
to efficently mitigate the inherent nsks
11 our business and the opportunity to
Irmprove our performance through the
targeted management of selected nsks

Across the group, we manage nisks within
the overall governance framework which
indudes clear accountabilrhes, delegated
authonty imits and reward policies

These are designed to provide employees
with an holisbic view of effective

nsk management.

within Severn Trent Water, our approach
reflects our status as a regulated

utility providing essential services and
operating as part of the Critical National
Infrastructure for the UK. The nature of
our Severn Trent Water business is such
that there are some significant inherent
nsks as lllustrated in the secton headed
‘Principal nsks’ We aim ta have a strong
control framework in place to enable

us to understand our nsks and manage
them effectively

Although the Severn Trent Senices
businesses are not generally regulated,
we provide products and senices

for dients who operate in regulated
environments and as a result, we take
a similar approach to nsk

Our Enterprise Risk

Management process

We use an established Enterpnse Risk
Managernent {(ERM) process across the
group to assess and manage our most
significant nisks which are linked to our
corporate objectives

Our ERM process covers all types of nsk
including operational, financiol and legal
and requlotory

We analyse both the possible causes of
nsk and what the impact would beif o
nsk crystallised. Using this process, we are
able to consider the controls needed to
minmmuse the likelthood of nsks occurnng
and those which can help to maximise
our resilence to nsks Our ossessment
of nsks includes explicit consideration

of the possible impact of the nsk on

the reputation of the group as awhole.
‘The understanding which we are able
to gain from our ERM process allows

us to put in place effective mitigation
strategies Reslience of our senaces is

vital and we reqularly carry out exerases
jomtly with other agencies such as local
authoribes, police and fire services
During the year we have also started an

' extensive traning program ne to increase

t

the number of trained staff avalable to
respond to inaidents.

The key nsks are reported to the Audit
Commuttee and discussed at the board

every six months in the form of nsk maps

' Inaddtiony, indmidual nisks or specific

nsk topics are also discussed by the

board dunng the year We have regular
nsk ‘deep dives’ at our executive team
meetings These take the form of updates
from indnadual business teoms within
Severn Trent Water on thewr progress with
improving controls and providing effective
mitigation for therr most significant nsks

Risk appetite

During the year the board held asenes
of discussions about cur appetite for rsk
from four key perspecbives consistency
with our culture ond values, delivenng
what our customers need, retaining
the confidence of our Ivestors and
compliance with the regulatory regme
inwhich we operate These perspectives
were applied to exght speafic areas.

+ Health, safety ond wellbeing,

* Financing the business,

*» Ambition for growth,

* Future competitive posttion,

= Customer confidence,

* Resllence of our network,

* Relotionships with regulators, and

* Sustainability of the business.

The board will continue to work on
refiring our approach to nsk appetite 1n
the coming year The board discussions
on nsk appetite, in the context of our
strategy, nfluence the cutcome of the
ERM pracess and, in particular, how we
establish an oppropnate target posiion

+ for each significant nsk.

Financial risks

Like all businesses, we need to plan
future funding in ine with busmess

need This s part of our normol business
planning process {see Prmapal Risk

Ref 4} The board receves regular
updates relating te funding, solvency and
liquidity matters.

Financial nsks are discussed indetoil on
poges 33 to 37

An example of nsk management In proctice

. We rely on our network of pariners and

suppters to enable us to continue our normal
operations, Our ERM process recognises the
risk of falure of the supply chom We have
anolysed which of the causes of failure would
rnpact on our essential operations in order
to dentify antical suppliers. We work with
supphers to understand their restience plans
and amongements

We also analyse the consequences of

supply chain faflure on our openations to
understand where we can diversiiy to use
altemative supplers, or to temporanly adapt
OLIr processes.

One of the most critical items for our
operations 15 having sufficent chernicals to
allow us to treat water and waoste water.

As aresult of our understanding of the nsk
we have put in place a strategy team to

. ensure that we manage the procurement of

chemicals effectvely Our analyss has also

. helped us to decide on stock levels for our

essential supples.
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Principal risks
We have a number of significant nsks in common with other companies operating water and sewage treatment works,
distnbution networks and related actvities {(as shown on our business models on pages 14 to 15 and 26 to 27) These indude

* we, orour dients, operate In heavily requlated environments and are subject to many vaned, complex and changing obligations
As tesult, we foce nsks associated with non-cornplance;

« Sevemn Trent Water has an extensive network of assets and the failure of key indmdual or collections of these assets could result
in a significant impact on our core business actmbes,

* oWl processes ore sensitive to the ympacts of extrerna weather events such os drought or ficoding;

« we foce nsks to the health, safety and wellbeing of our people, customers and contractors as a result of the nature of
our operahions;

* our business operoions deperd on the effective performance of key supply chain purtners,u

+ we share a concern with many other businesses over our ability to fund long term pension promises, and

» we share concems with other businesses over access to funding and over the security of funds placed with counterparties
‘Where appropniate, these are discussed in the table of pnncipal nsks below

Ref Whatis the nsk? Which part of Severn  What does it mean for us? What are we doing to mancge the nsk?
Trent 15 offected?
Customer perception ) L L ) L o
1 Wemaybeunableto  SevernTrent Water Falure to delver the sence We hove co-ordinated progrommas of work
improve and mantan custormners expect will lead to undenway acrass all parts of Severn Trent Water
our levels of custormer customer dissatisfaction As a toimprove our processes and our technology
service sufficiently regulated utility providing essential — to enable Us to deliver outstanding custorner
to delver what our sences, we recognise that service,
customers tell us they customer trust is wital for us to Cur performance as measured by Ofwat's SIM
want. martain legimacy rmeasure contmues to Improve. However, we are
1f we are unable to provide the not improving as fast as some of our competitors
level of service we want to our and our performance ts still not as good as we

austorners we may also suffer would like

financal penafties under Ofwat's  We have set ourselves more challenging torgets

Service Incenive Mechanism {SIM)  and our customer expenence mprovement.
prograrmynes are working to delver these at a
faster rate for our customers,

2 Wemay beunable to Group wide We may lose ncome as aresultof ~ Within Severn Trent Water cur strategy reflects
take full advantage business retall customers moving  the needs of different groups of customers -
of the opportunibes to competitors or we may fak to whether large or smal! businesses and whether
presented by the successfully grow ourbusimess by water s cnisaal to thesr operations
operung up of the being unable to develop sufficertly  Across the group we tre developing our service
business retail market to ottractive services to win new offenng which ndudes, for example, servces
competriion custormers. to help custorners understand and reduce their
water consul
We have established a dedicated programme,
overseen by members of our Executive

Committee, to put in place the systerns,
process and argarusationat changes needed to
implement our strateqy

Legal and regulatery ervironment

3 Wemaybeunablelo  SevemTrentWoter  Themajorpartofourbusiness,  Dunng the yearwe published the fourth m our

effectvely anbapate Severn Trent Water, operates in “Changng Course’ series - ‘Changing Course
and/or influence future a highty requlated ermronment. through the Sustainable implementation of
developments n the Whilst we are broadly content with  the Water Framework Directive' which sets out
UK water ndustry the direction of changes proposed  our view on an approach to implernentation
resulting in aur business for our iIndustry, there remains ansk  which is affordable for our custormers We also
plans becorming that future changes colld havea  commussioned a report from KPMG looking ot the
unsustainable. sgnificant impoct on Sevem Trent ¢hallenges and possible solubiens for sustanable
Water mvestrent to maintan the water nfrastructure

Wa will continue to engage with our peers,

Ofwat and other regulators, UK Government
departrments and other stakeholders to inform the
direction of regulttory policy where approprate

yoda aiSaiong
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Risk Management continued

Ref What 15 the risk?

Trent is affected?

Which part of Severn  What does it mean for us?

" What are we doing to manage the nsk?

Legal and regulatory emvironment

4

Operations, assets and peqp:lt_a

6

We rmay be unable to Severn Trent Water
develop and delvera

five year business plan

which 1s acceptable to

Ofwat, our customers,

other stakeholders and

which s financeable

within the assumptions

we have used.

The regulatory Group wide
landscxipe s complex

and subject to angoing

change There 15 a nsk

that processes may fail

or that our processes

may not effectvely keep

pace with changes In

legislation leading ta the

nsk of non-compliance

QOur assets or processes  Group wide
may fail resutting In

njury to an employee,

contractor or member of

the public.

" \We submit a business plan to

Ofwat every five years At each of
these pnce reviews, we haveansk  prce review penod We are engaging with Ofwat
that changes wil be requrred to cur  1n order to respond to the feedback from therr Risk
plan to meet Ofwat's expectations

Once plans have been ogreed,

we face nsks to delvery of the

plan wrthin the constramts and
assumptions that we hove

odopted.

Falure to achieve the torgets set
out in our agreed plan for the
cument pnce review penod could
result in Ofivat being less willing
to support our business plan

™ We are using our estoblished business planning
processes to update our plan for the 2015-2020

Bosedi Review We will ba prowding an updated
proposal n June which reflects Ofiwat’s feedback,
the Risk and Reward Guidance and the views of
our austomers

We are reviewang progress aganst the plan
agreed for the current pnce review penod to
confirm that we expect to ochieve the ogreed
targets or that we have induded appropnate
compensation in our plan for the next period
where we hove falled to fully deliver the required
servce levels and outputs.

submission for the next pnce review  We will continue to engage with our customer
penod and could resultin eddional - challenge group (the Water Forum) to ensure that
funding requirements inthe curent  we contmue to respond to our customers when

reflect the cumrent legal and
regulatory ervirenmient and all

- Einngourplon .- .
Dunng the year, we have mamtainad our focus
on ransing awareness of updated policies via
e-leaming, face to face coaching and general

relevant employess mustbe kept  communicabons These communicabions
aware of new requrernerts, Due

to the sprecd of our opergtions,
and changes in actity and

include rerminders of the prinaiples of our Code
of Conduct. Dong the nght thng - The Severn
Trent way

onjanisational structure thisisnot  We are reviewing our methods of obtaining
atwoys straightforword. Thegroup  assurance in relation to complionce ssues to

as a whole may face censure for
non-complionce m an mdwdual

ensure we have a consistent approach for oll
key obligations, induding licence condrtions,

graup comparty or a spedfic region  competiion legistation and ant-bribery and

in which we operate

| Thenc;m;eofourworkreq.lwes

corrupton legislation

" Our ongoing strotegy for heaith, safety and

our emplayees and contractors wellbeing covers mproving the managerment

toundertake actmties or to use system, addressing the causes of Inadents and
equipment whuch hove potential  improving hedlth, safety and wellbeing.

to cause serious ham. Whistwe  During the year, we have delivered a number of
toke every precoution to prevent rnprovements, ncluding a new reporting system
njury, asset foilure or failure to and a new standard for local safety improvement

follow agreed processes may result  teams. Qur next steps iIndude mplernenting

in sormecne being hurt, Specific
examples ndude fallure of one of

our key assets such as a reservolr

which could result in mjury to

custorners ar the public

new dpprogches to our safety stondards and nsk
assessment. -
In addton to leaming tessons from inadents,
we continue to measure Improvements in culture
and the bebef n our vision as well as substantial
proactive safety actvity todentify and remove
hazards.
QOur assets are subject to reqular and ngorous
manitonng, including independent inspection of
our reservorrs to ensure that they refrain safe
and that maintenance work s undertaken where
needed.
We will cortmue with our progromime of safety
miprovernents and with aur ngorous monitorng
_ and maintenance regimes for aritical assets
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Ref Whatisthensk?  Which buri of Sevem  What does it mean for us?

Trent s affected?

" What are we doing to manage the risk?

Operations, assets and people

7 Wemayfoltomeet Severn Trert Water

dll of our reguiatory
targets including
targets from Ofwat n
relation to opergbonal
performance of our
assets resulting n

regulatory penaities.

1f we are unable to meet
operational performance targets,
we may be subected to sgndficant
regulatory penalties ether wathin
the currert pnce review perod, or
applied to the next pnce review
Regulatory targets apply to all of
our water treatment, distribution,
sewerage and sewage treatment
assets. Measures are in ploce in

We continue to focus on finding and deanng
blockages m our sewers and on our education
programmes to help custormers understond how
{0 use our assets responsibly

Our business plan for 2015-2020 ndudes
consderable mvestment In our above ground
water assets to improve the resiience of our
networks, reduce interruptions and improve the
service that our cUstomers recee

relaton to water quality, continuous

supplies, sewer flooding, sewer

. .. collapses and pollution events

8 F&ilureofcermmléy " Sevemn Trent Water Sorme of our assets are Mol 1o

assefs or processes
gy result in inability
to provide a contmuous
supply of quality water
1o lorge popuiotions
within our areq, or In
damage to third party
property

e e "

Financalnsks
9  (hanging demogrophics  Group wide
and fluctuations in the
investment market
may affect our obility to
fund pensions prormises
sustainably

the provsion of water to lomge
populations for which there are
imded altemative means of
supply These assets are regularty
nspecied and rmantaned ond our
assessment of the overall condition
s.good. Ifa failure were ta ocour
the consequence would resutt in
temporary nability to conbnue to
serve our customers.

In addibon, our ITand tetephory
systerns gre amicol to our aperabions
and falure of these systerms, for
example matenabsaton af o

cyber threot affecting our rermote
moanitonng systemn, could havea
significant effect.

We prowide significant funding
for our schemes. We may be
called upon to provide more
money to reduce deficts m our
pensions schemnes.

_ supples in the event of faiure

Durng the year, as part of our planrung for the
next pnce review penod from 2015-2020, we
have undertaken extensive surveys of same

of our lorgest, most cntical assets. As ¢ result
we hove a better understanding of the specific
panits around our network which coutd present
a threat to our continuous apergtion This has
belped us to prontise our spending requirements
and infarrmed our asset monagement plans
which dnve nvestment in mantenance and
mnprovement of our assets in order to mantain
our senace to customers.

Dunng the year we have progressed work on
implernenting dual data centres to prowde
increased resibence for our key IT systems

We hove also assessed the secunty of our
systerns In line with the ‘10 steps to cyber
security’ managed by CESG.

Cur business strategy for 2015-2025 includes

significant iInvestrnent ko Improve the resillence of

our network, particularty by improving our ability
tomowve waleraround our network.

We alse have securty meesures to protect

our assets and cantingency plans to maintamn

T We regularly revalue our schemes and monitor

aurinvestmert performance
We will continue to manttor the performance of
our pensions Investments and to work closely
with our third party odvisors to ensure that the
schemes are managed effectvely _

The Strateqic Report, as set out from the mside front cover through to page 41, hos been approved by the board

By order of the boord

Bronagh Kennedy
General Counsel and Company Secretary

28 May 2014

i

yoda: 51533p0s
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B Audit Commitee
A Corporgte Responsibility Cornmittee
< Executve Commitice
® Nominotions Committee
*  Remuneration Comrmsttee

1. DrTony Ballance ¢

BSc (Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (49)

Director, Strategy and Regulation

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Tony's extensive expenence in utilty pobey and
regulotion keaves him eally ploced to kead

the compxay’s strateqic ond regulotony work,
Prior to pining Severm Trent he held the posts of Chief
Economist for Ofwat, director of London Bconomics
ond drector of Stone and Webster Consultants,

Extamal uppolnmniu
Mernber of Water UK Coundl

2. John Coghlan ®

BCom ACA {56}

Independent non-executive director
Appointed to the board on 23 May 2014

John s o chartered accountent with substantal
finanaal experbse ond 1s a valuable addiion to the
boord's exstmg skl set. He witt becorne Chairman of
the Audit Committee with effect from the conciusion
of the AGM on 16 July 2014 lohn is currertly
Chairman of Inchcope Shepping Senaces and a nen-
executive drector und Charmman of the Remunenaton
Committee of Lovendon Group ple. He wos prewqusly a
non-exeautive diector of Hibu ple (formesdy Yell Group
plc} from June 2002 to February 2014 and Charman
of the Audt Committee Pror to this he was a non-
execunve director of Ashley House plc and DX Sences
PLC and unbl 2006 he was Deputy Chwef Executive and
Group Finance Director of Exel Plc.

External cppomtments

Chairman of Inchcape Shippmg Services
Non-executive director ond Charman of the
Rermunerabon Commiktee of Lavendon Group pic
Chorman of Freight Transport Assoaiation Ireland Limited

3. Richard Davey me

BA (65)

Senior independent non-executve director

Appointed to the board on 1 January 2006

Richard spent the rojonty of his executive career in

irwestrment banking ot NM Rothschild and Sens, m roles

mickuding Heod of investrnent Bankmng. Rxchard brings

rvaluable speaalist finoniaol expertise to the board,

the Audit Committee and as char of the Remuneration

Committee, having run Rothschild's Firarool Servces
and worked with a number of high street barks

andinsurers Previously he held non-executive reles at

Yorkshire Building Sooety, where ha was Vice Chairmaon,

Freeserve Pic gnd Scothsh Widows Fund and Lfe

Asaumnce Sogety.

External appeintments

Non-executive Thairman, member of the Risk ond

Solvency Committee and Chainman of the Nomination

Committee of Amln Plc

4 Andrew Duff a e

BSc FE1 (55)

Non-executive Chairman

Appainted to the board on 10 May 2010 and
Chairman on 20 July 2010

Andrew’s extensve expenence of intematonol and
regulated business, strotegic management and
customer service Infugh profile, dynamicervronments
have equpped him well for the role of Charmnan of the
group Andrew spent 16 years at BP in marketing,
strategy and oil trading He Joned Natlonct Power in
1598 and the baard of Innogy plt upon its demerger
from Natonal Power 1In 2000 He led the restructunng
and subsequent sale of Innogy to ®WE in 2003

He becamne CEQ of the successor comparry, npower,
and amember of the RWE Group Executva Cornmittee
He was a non-executive drector of Wolseley Fic from
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July 2004 until ks retrernent i Novernber 2013
Andrew was

8 MartinLamb e «
of Blementss ple on 1 Aprl 2014 and became

1 BSCMBA (54)

non-executive Chaimman of Elerents plc on Independent non-executrve director
24 April 2014 Appointed to the board on 29 February 2008

- .- - * Mortin hes extensive expenence of managing and
Externat appeintments | developing large engineenng businesses in oll parts
Non-executive Charmon ond Chasrnan of the I of the warld, In May 2014, Martin left the board of
Nommation Comrmittee of Elernents pic f M Fi¢ having senved os Chief Exeautve for 13 yeors
Member of the CBI President’s Cormmittee and after 33 years with the He oversgw the
Trustee of Mocrnidlian Cancer Support and Eorth Trust fundamental reshaping of IMI and held o number
Fellow of the Enengy Institute of servor management moles there On 1 March

2014, Martn was apponted Charman of Evoqua
Water Technologies His strong commeraal acumen,

5 Gordon A® expenence of managing complex projects, and
Fryett formibianty with current market pressures leave hym

(60) well ploced to odd value 1o the Sevem Trent business

Independent non-executive director Previously Martin wos a non-exacutive director of

Appainted to the board on 1 July 2009 Spectns plc.

Gordon has extensve expenence working in and with - - B -

ntemationol businesses, manoging signdficant coptat Extemal appointments

expenditure His in-depth retail expertrse at both
exectve and operational level in o customer facing,
highly competitive esvronment, enablas ham to bring
substanbol expenence and expertse to the board and
the Corporate Responsibity Commitiee. Gordon held
the postion of Group Dwector gt Tesco Pic
untd his retrernent in Novernber 2013 He

held 0 number of senior rotes within the Tesco Group,
ncluding Operations Director, International Support
Drractor and CEO Republic of Irelond

Chorman of Evoqua Water Technologres LLC
Mernber of the Adwsory Boond of AEA Investors
Managernent (UK} Lmited

" 9, Michael McKeon ¢

MACA(57)
, Finance Director

Appainted ta the board on 13 December 2005
- Hichael brings sgruficant finantal and commeragl
Extamal appolntmants ' expertise to the board and has over elght years'
Alumnus of INSEAD expenence of the Severn Trent group. Pror ko janing
Sevemn Trent he was Finonce Dwnector of Novar Pic and
befare that, held vanous senwor roles with Rolls-Royre
6 Olivia Garfield ae e Pl including Finance Director of the Aerospace Group

, Hehas extenaveinternobonal business experence

BA [Hons) (38) i having worked overseas for CamaudMetolbox, B1f
Chief Exeartive Atachern and Pnce Waoterhouse Michoel & o chortered
Appoirted to the board an 11 Apnl 2014 accountant and a member of the Enstrtute of Chortered
Otvio {Lwv) brings to the board o wegith of experntence Actountants of Seotland,
managing custarmer senvce delivery and complex B
mifestructure ond argonsations m a regulated Externcl appomtments
ervronment. Before joining Severn Trent, Liv was Chief Nen-executve director ond Charman of the Audit
Executve Officer of Openreach, part of the BT Group, 1 Comrmuttee of The Merchants Trust Pl
where she spearheaded and oversaw the commercial
rell-out of fibre broodband to two thirds of the country
She joned BT n 2002 and held the prvotal roles of
Group Durector of Strtegy and Regulabon, Manoging
Dwector Commercial and Bronds, Global Services
and UK Customer Services Dwector Frorn 1958 to
2002, Liv worked for Accenture as @ consuitant n the
Communicabions and High Tech Markes Unit, desigreng
and mplementing busness change solutions ocross o

10 Baroness Nockes me

DBE LLB FCA (64)

Independent non-executive director
Appointed to the board on 29 February 2008
Shetla brngs valuoble expertise to the board as
an expenenced director ond Audit Committes

nurnber of industry sectors Choirman of UK listed companes and with extensive
R —_— e - - and vaned professional, polbod and public sector

External oppointments expenence. A quolified chartered accountart, she

Nor-executve director Tesco Plc previously headed KPMG's and Intematanal

Government practices and has been President of the
Inshitute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wiales, Sheilo was appointed to the Howse of Lords
mn 2000 and has served on the Corservative front
bench m vonous roles s shadow trecsury
minister between 2003 and May 2010, Previcusly she
held non-executrve roles on the Court of the Bank of
England, Hanson Pie, ICT Fle, jobn and STheee
Sheilq will retire from the board with efiect from the

7 Martin Kane ¢

BSc CEng CErw MICE MIWEM FTW (61)

Cheef Exeutive Officer, Sevemn Trent Services
Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007
Martin joned Severn Trent Water in 1975 and has
hetd wanous senror roles gving him an extensive ony

unique understanding of the design, construcbonang— conclusion of the 2014 AGM.
operation of water ond waste water treatment plants, - - - -
water dsstribubion nebworks and seweroge systems. i External appolntments
Martin was Director of Customer Relctions, Severn Nen-executive director, member of the Group Audit
Trent Warter, from May 2006 until lonuary 2012, when | Commattee ond Normmatons Commuttee ond
hewas appointed Cheef Executive Officer of Sevem ' Chalrmon of the Board Risk Committse of The Rayol
Trent Servces. ' Bank of Scotlond Group Pie

. - . - Deputy Charman, senior ndependent director
External appolntments ond Charman of the Nerminatrons Commmittee

Member of the boands of Utlites ond Service Industnes  of Carpetnght Pic
Tromung Lirmuted ond Notional Assodiation of Water
us)

Companes
Trustee of Intemational Soaety for
Trenchiess Technology

w

g

a

n

)

§
11, The Hon. Philip Remnant me mé— i
CBE ACA MA (59) 2
Independent non-exeautive director B
Appainted to the board en 31 March 2014 3

Philip 15 a seror Investrment banker with substaral
advisory and regulgtory expenerice. A charterad
occourttant, he s Seror [ndeperdent Director of
Pruderbial A, o Deputy Charman of the Takaover Ponel,
a non-exeriinve director of UK Finanoal Irvestrments
Liruted and Chowrmian of City of London Investment
Trust plc, He was previcusly @ Vice Chairmon of Credit
Sunsse First Boston Europe ond Heod of the UK
[nvestroent Banking Departrment, Philip wos Director
General of the Takeover Fone! for two years between
2001 and 2003, and egainm 2010. Previously he served
on the board of Northe:mn Rack pic and from 2007 to
2012 was Cherman of the Shareholder Executive
Externai appolntments

Seriar ndeperxdent director and member of the
Audit, Norminations ard Remunenation Cormmittees
of Prudential Ptc,

Deputy Chamman of the Takeover Pane
Norr-exequtve director of UK Finonaal
Irvestrments Limited

Non-executive Charman of Gty of London
Irwestrment Trust ple
Governor of Goodenough College

Trustee of St Paul's Cathedral Foundabon

12 AndySmith ¢

BTech (Hons) {53)

Director of Water Services

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Andy brings a broad range of executive and operational
expertise ganed from diverse sectors to the board,
Andy has significant expenence heving worked n

the UK and oversees with global businesses such os
B#, ors and Pepsi, m engneenng and operabional
ranagement rotes. Previousty he was @ mermber of
the board at Boots Group Pic

uoloWIOJNIBIO  STUBLLPIDS Jonuouy Aupdiire)  SJUBWaIDS Jonuouy dnosg ¢

13. Dr Angela Strank A @ %

B85c PhD (Geology) (61)

Independernt non-executive diractor

Appomnted to the board on 24 Jonuary 2014

Angela is Choef Scientist at BP Group She hos held -

" varlous senior stratequc, techrical and commeraol

leadership roles at BP since jorng in 1982, most
recently Vice Pressdent and Head of the Creef
Executive's Office In 2010 Angelo was the winner of
the UK First Woman's Award n Soence and Technology
;nmcogmtm of proneenng UK women m business and
Inchustry, Her trock record and expenence in y
technology and tronsformational change m;u;ategy
complementary addiion to the board's skl set

External appointments

Board of Governors of the University of Manchester
Unaversity College London, Energy Institute
internabional Advisory Board

43
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Executive Committee

The Chief Executve dunng the year under review was Tony
Wray, who retired on 11 Apnl 2014 Liv Garfield succeeded
Tory as Chief Executive on 11 Apnf 2014

The Executive Committee oversees the developrrent and
execution of the Sevem Trent strategy: It also has accountobility
for achieving business results The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee are avallable on the company’s webstte
(wwwiseverntrent.com) or from the Company Secretary

Dunng the year, the Executive Cormmittee met to consider
stroteqy, business monagement, policy and planring,

and operationat performance

Mesmbers of the Executive Committee are delegated
responsibility to st on steenng groups that oversee the
delvery of our strategy and business management.

During the year, steenng groups were set up to oversee
areas such as the subrission of our PR14 plan to Ofwat and
the integrated delvery of our year end results ond Ofwat

Annual Regulatory Returms.

Image removed Image removed Image removed Image removed
1 2 3 4
Image removed image removed Image removed Image removed
5 6 7 8
image removed image removed image remaved
9 10 11
1 Dr Tony Ballance 3. Evelyn Dickey 6. Angela Hunter-Dobson 9 Michael McKeon
BSc {Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (49) BSc (Hons) (51) MA (Hors) {42) MACA(57)
Director, Strategy and Regulation Director of Hurman Resources Customer Relations Director Finonce Director
Please see full biography on page 42 Jomed Severn Trent in Novernber 2006.  Jomed Severn Trent n May 2012 Please see full bography on page 43
Evelyn has extensive HR expenence Angelo corumnenced her coreer with
2 Simon Cocks leading design and delivery of mayor ~ IBM d‘#gng its transforraton fram 10. Alec Richmond
change prograrnmnes, business manufactunng to services business.
BA (Hons} (48) restructunng, amployee relations, She has since held sanior operational Bsc (Econo)fFCA FllAl (55;
Waste Water Senvices Director resoUITINg, EXecUtve remunerahion, leadership pasttions for Barciays, Directar of Internal ‘?'-' It
Joined Severn Trent in July 2005 organisational capabilty and Hiscox and Vodafone, delvenng Jomed Severn Trent in June

Strnon 1s an electrcal engineer

by trarung He praviously worked
for London Electneity in vanous
operational and management
reles end, more recently, for
Nabonal Gnd where he was Head
of UK Operations Performance and
Planning, then Commercial Director
for the gos ond electricity business
in the UK and Furope and held

the position of Chuef Procurerment
Officer before joring Severn Trent,
Simon 1s a board mermber of UK
Woter Industry Research.

performance management
wruhatves Before joning Severn Trent
Evelyn worked in HR consultoncy and
as HR Derector (HR Operatians) for
Boots the Chemists.

4 Qlwia Garfield

BA {Hons) (38)
Chief Executive
Plegse see full biography on page 43

5. Myron Hrycyk

MBA (57)

Chuef Information Officer

Joined Sevem Trent in April 2008,
Myron has held senior TT posts

for major orgaresabions across a
range of business sectors, Financial
Setwices, Publshing, Autormative
and Logisties/Supply Chon. He has
delvered strategic IT and business
transformation programenes,
restructured corporate IT units
and deployed tugh performance IT
practices Myron also has executive
responsibility for Suppty Chain &
Procurement

customer services across B2B, B2C,
domestic, international, indirect and
regulated markets In addtionto
leading oword winning asstomer
operations, she has consutted
widely inthe area of custormer
service In multiple sectors.

7 Martin Kane

BSc CEng CEnv MICE MIWEM FIW (51)
Chuef Executve Officer,

Severn Trent Services

Pease see full biography on page 43

8 Bronagh Kennedy

(BA} {Hons) (50)

General Counsed and

Company Secretary

Joned Severn Trentn June 2011
Bronaghis a sohator and was
presacusly Group Cornpany Secretary
and Generol Counsel at Mitchells &
Butlers, where she worked for 15
years. Pror to that, she was a Senior
Assoaote at Allen & Overy

2007 Pnor to that, he worked for
Codbury Schweppes Pic, leading
the company’s global internal

oudt serwce from 2000-2005
Befare joining Severn Trent, he
worked for RSM Robson Rhodes as
a drrector and o member of the
management board responsible for
Risk Assuronce Services. Alects g
fellow of the Inststute of Chartered
Accountants m El and Wales
and the Institute of Internat Auditors.

11 Andy Smith

BTech {Hons) (53)
Director of Water Services
Please see full biography on poge 43
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Chairman’s letter

Image removed

Andrew Duff
Chairman

Govermnance in Severn Trent

The way we are structured

* Our organisation & structured to allow for
effective and efficent decision maling with
ctear accountabilities

The way we choase ta behave

= Our Code of Conduct: ‘Doing the nght thing -
The Severn Trent way’ sets out our approach
to responsible business behaviours

- The Code of Conduct s supported by 15
group policies and our behaviours model.
Further details of these can be found on our
website (www.severntrentcom)

The way we ensure our effectiveness
+ We dlways look to ensure our people

have the nght skills in order to drve
performance improvement.

= Manogernent essurcnee (s provided
by o combination of effectve
management processes and nsk and
compliance actvities.

- Independent assumance 1s provided
pnmanty by Intemal Audit, by our extemal
quditors and other extemal bodies.

7 N\

The way we are The way ~e
structured choose to behave

The way we work

The way we
€ensure our
effectveness

Dear Shareholder

At Severn Trent, we are committed to delivenng value to our stakeholders and buildmng
0 sustainable business, which 1s underpinned by good govemnance As a board we gre

gecountable to shareholders for ensunng that effective governance processes are In
place and compited with

: The board's role 1s to

» understand and meet Its obligations to the company’s stakeholders,

* govemn the group within a frarmework of prudent and effective controls which enable
rsk to be assessed and managed,

. approve the group's strategic objectives, and

« ensure that suffiaent resources are available to enable it to meet those objectves.

Good governance ensures that decsions flow down the organisation, so we
implement them correctly, and that mformation flows up to those that need it to
make decisions Ultimately, good governance ensures that the board has access to
timely, relevant and robust mformation, so it can run the busimess effectvely

Dunnig the year I led the review of our board's effectiveness.and looked at how we
have made progress with the areas identified as requinng further Improvernent at
the last review We have overseen the continued ermbedding of our Code of Conduct
across our businesses and reviewed our supporting poliaes

I believe that good governance s cntically dependent on behaviour and culture, s well
as organisgtion and process The following sections of this report set out haw good
govemance supports our actvities at Severn Trent and describe how the board applies
the pnnciples of the UK Corporate Governance Code - inthe wdy we are siructured, the
wiay we choose to behave and the way we ensure our effectiveness

Assessing our govemance amangements In terms of these headings enables us to

establish the right long term behaviours, which will help us to delver the group's
strateqic objectives 1n a sustanable manner

I firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achseve sustainable growth
for our company through the successful mix of good governance, a dear strategy with
a supporting business plan and a strong managernent team to exeaute it,

* Andrew Duff

Chairman

Compliance with the UK Corporate Govemance Code

The version of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current reporting
period s the September 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Governanice
Code’). The Governance Code 1s avallable on the Finanaal Reporting Council's website
twwwircorguk)

For the whole of the financiol year ended 31 March 2014, Severn Trent was compliant
with the Governanice Code, with the exception that the odequacy of amangerents

. mrelabon to the company's whistieblowing procedures falls wittun the remit of the
Corporate Responsibility (CR) Committee, rather than the Audit Committee The CR
Committee’s remit is to deal with ary dllegations from employees relating to any
breaches under Sevem Trent's Code of Concluct. The Audit Committee reviews
reports of matters ansing in respect of financiol or intemnal control matters from the
company’s whistleblawing procedures and the compony’s procedures for preventing

" and detecting fraud and bribery, and recesves reports on non-campliance The boord

: considers that these arrangemnents are approprate,

t
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Governance report

Group Authonsahion Arrangerments The way we are structured
The Group Authorisation Arrangements .
(GAA) are the framework throughwhichthe  Board membership ’

Severn Trent Plc board authonses the nght
people, at the nght level, to take smportant
deasions as we manage legal, finanaal

During the year under review your boord has compnsed the non-executive Charrnan,
five executive directors and seven iIndependent non-executive directors Dunng the

nd adrministratve throughout th year the board announced the retirernent of Dr Bemard Bulkin and the appaintrment
gmug %ﬂ"';"gm m'ﬁi‘ﬁneﬁ%ﬁdtﬂtﬁ of Dr Angela Strank as a non-executive director, with effect from 24 January 2014
good control, efficent decision making and The board alse announced the appontment of Philp Rernnant gs a non-executive
demonstrable compliance director with effect from 31 March 2014 During the year the board also annaunced

The flow of authorty s fromthe Seven Trent the appointment of Liv Garfield as Chuef Executive with effect from 11 Apnl 2014

Ple board to the Chief Executive andthe Following the year end, the board announced the appeintrment of John Coghlan as a
ﬁ‘g’;ﬂﬁgﬁgﬁgﬁi‘%ﬁ&&%@ non-executive director with effect from 23 May 2014 and the retirement of Baroness
subject to an obligation to work wich specialist Noakes as a non-executive director with effect from the condusion of the AGM on

business services areas (such as Tax, Treasury, 16 July 2014

Group Finance and Comparny Secretariat) Photographs of the mambers of the boord, together with their biographies and a

‘x;‘gh 2@"’5;:’2‘1'&0”0[ expertise and A QrOUP e ohon of the complernentary skills and diverse expenence that they bring to bear,
persp can be found on pages 42 and 43

Governarice of subsidianes

We believe this unitary board bnngs an appropriate balance of innovation, expenence,
The membership of the board of the listed independence and challenge to ensure effective decision making
carmparty, Sevem Trent Plc, 1s the some as that

of its requiated subsiciory, Severn Trent Water [N accordance with the Govemnance Code, all the directors will retire at this year's
Limtted This structure wos implermented AGM and subrmit thermselves for election or re-election by the shareholders, with the
in 2007 when it was decided to ntegrate exception of Baroness Noakes who will be retinng frorm the board with effect from the

the management of the companies to gan :
greater transparency and insight of Severn condlusion of the 2014 AGM.

Trent Water by the Plc board. Details of our policy on diversity in the boardroom are provided in the Norminations
Foliowing his appointment as CEO of Severn Committee report on pages 52 and 53

Trent Services in January 2012, Marbin Xane .

became o non-executive director of Severn Role of the Chairman

Trent Water Limited. The role of Andrew Duff, your Charrmnan, is to lead a unitary board, facilitating the
The two _lgr?mbpor::jes oqaemlte “C:]f{ r?ltsﬁlﬂCtSevlegﬂl contribution of s members ot its meetings, and to be responsible for ensunng that
%gg{eps(c B G e at o the * the principles and processes of the board are mantained mn ine with the board

Severn Trent Woter Limited MattersReserved  governance framework

to the board. They are assisted thraugh the Agendas for board meetings are agreed by the Chaman in consultation with the
managernent of separate agendas, meetings

Chief Executve and Company Secretary, atthough any director may request that an
gmé’n#‘t ters,:? nﬁzu;;?:gr;y bifﬁ:gtggg:g% item be added to the agenda. The Charman has authonty to act and speak for the
Secretary where appropriate. board between its meetings, nduding engaging with the Chief Executve He reports
Subsidary cormpany boards are required to the board and committee chairmen as appropnate on deasions and octions taken
to be managed scrupulously with respect between meetings of the board, He also meets with the non-executive directors
tolegol, fiscal and cdrministrative mattes. . without the executve directors present, to consider the performance of the executive

Inpartieutar, the relationships between Severn
Trent Water Linited and our cther businesses

such as Severn Trent Services are monitored ot
and controlied to ensure that we comply with Senior independent non-executive director

our obligations on amn's length transactions Richard Davey 1s your seruor independent non-executive director He chairs the

betweer them Remuneration Committee and s a member of the Audit and Nominations
Committees The board has agreed that Richard will act as Chairman of the board in
the event that the Chairrmar s unable to do so for any reason

directors and to prowide feedback.

Non-executive directors

Your nan-executive directars gre appointed to the board to contnbute therr
independent extemal expertise and experience in areas of mpoertance to the

group Therr competencies ndude corporate finance, general finance, corporate
strateqy, customer care, property, environmental and technolegy matters, general
management, transformational change and supply chain management They also
provide Independent chatlenge and ngour to the board's deliberations and are
encouraged to make independent assessments of the group’s competencies The non-
executive directors, led by the senior ndependent non-executive director, meet without
the Charman at least ance a year for them to appraise the Chaiman's performance

. ond they have other meetings dunng the year without executive directors present.
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Reporting obligations
As a public lsted cormparty, the compary i

required to comply with 0 range of reporting
acbligations set out by law and regulation

The company recagnises the importance

of effective communication os o key part
of bulding shareholder volue and that, to
prosper and achuieve grawth, it must eam
the trust of securtty holders, employees,
custorners, suppliers, cormmunibes and

the economic regulator of Sevem Trent
Water Limited, Ofwat, by being open in its
cornmunications and consistently delaenng
on its commitments,

The company announces Its results
on o half yearly basis and complies
with the requirement to maoke mtenm
management statements

The Chief Executive has established a
Disclosure Carnmittee, charred by the Finance
Director, with specific respensibilities for

the delivery of the iIntenm and vear end
financal and regulatory reparting processes
The Disclosure Committee oversees the
delivery of an integrated plon incorporating all
elerrients of the yeor end reportng process,
namely the group’s prelirminary results
announcernent and report and accounts, the
company’s AGM, the statutory and regulatory
accounts of Severn Trent Woter Limited, the
Annual Reguiatory Cornpliance Staterment and
the Annuoal Reguiatory Performance Repart.

Your board has reviewed the status of the non-executve directors and considers them
dll to be independent in character and judgement as defined by the Governance Code

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive to implemernt the company’s
strategy Dunng the year under review the Chief Executive was Tony Wray, who retired
on11 Apnl 2014 Lw Garfield succeeded Tony os Chief Executive on 11 April 2014 and 1s
empowered to toke all decisions and actions that further the company’s strategy and
which in her judgement are reasonable, having regard to the Chief Exacutive lirmits set
out n the company’s GAA. The non-executive directors, led by the Charman, appraise
the Chief Executive’s performance annually

Executrve directors

The executive drectors support the Chief Executive in driving the implementation of
strategy forward in Severn Trent They are committed to doing this in a responsible
way which takes account of comrrutment to our Code of Conduct, the tong term

. sustainabie and responsible stewardship of the business and the delivery of better

volue, better services and a heglthwer ervironment for our customers and the
cormnmunities inwhich we live and work

Role of the Company Secretory

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Comparyy Secretary, Bronogh
Kennedy, and the Company Secretanat team, Bronagh s resporsible for ensunng that
the board operates In accordance with the governance framework it has adopted

and that there are effective Information flows to the board and its committees and
between serwor management and the nonrexecutive directors.

The appointment and resignation of the Company Secretary is o matter for
consideration by the board as o whole

Terms and condhions of appointment

We have made the terms and conditions of appointrnent of the directors available for

mspection by any person at the company's regstered office dunng normal business
hours They will alsc be available at the AGM,

Board processes
We have docurnented processes in place regarding

"« the board’s tasks and actvities, and

+ the matters speafically reserved for the board's deasion making, the authonty
delegated to the Cheef Executive, the accountablity of the Cuef Executive for that

authority, and guidance on managing the relgtionship between the board and the
Cheef Executive

The board has reserved the followirg for its own considergtion,
» the gppaintmert of the Chief Executive, directors and the Cormpany Secretary;

, * the strategy and budgets of the compary;

+ the GAA which set out the group's delegated approval lenits,

"« deasions regarding the comnpany and its subsidiaries required to be made by the

company’s GAA, constitutional decurments, statute or external regulation, and

- the opproval or adoption of documents, induding the report and accounts, required
to be made by the board by the company's GAA, constitutional documents, statute
or external regulation
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Governance report continued

Board meetings

We have reguiar scheduled meetings of the board and of its permanent committees
throughout the year ond any addhional meetings and od hoc committee meetings are
corvened as and when required.

Papers, Including rrunutes of board committees held since the previous board meeting
and performance reports, are arculated in advance of each meeting

There 1s an agreed procedure in place which allows directors to take ndependent
professional adwice in the course of their duties and all directars have access to the
adwvice and sennces of the Cormpany Secretary If a director has a concerm over any
unresotved matter they may requira the Company Secretary to minute that concem
The chart oppasite shows how the board has spent its trme ot scheduled board
meetings The board monitors the performanice of the Severn Trent Water and

Severn Trent Services businesses ot every meeting and receves monthly updates

* on performance against the KPIs stated on pages 8 and 9 of the Strategic Report

Board attendance at scheduled
meetingsin2013/14 L
Andrew Duff L _m
ToryBdllonce L
DrBemardButkn 66
Richard Davey _ "
Gordon Fryett ] 717
MarunKare o
Martin Lamb ) L
MchasiMckeon T
Boroness Nogkes* 617
Andy Smith "7
Dr Angela Strank A2
Tory Wray o 17

* Unabte to ottend one meeting ov g to frsond recsons.

Graph removed

Board ottendance at additional
meetingsin2013/14 L
Andrew Duff i "
ToryBallonce mn
OrBemord Bulkn ) 5:/5~
Richard Davey 7
Gordon Fryett* o 67
Martin Kane* &7
Martin Lamb* _ o 67
Michael McKeon oo
Baroness Noakes* o 517
AndySmith T
DrAngelaStrank 3
Tory Wray _ ) N/

*Uroble o ottend certon oddbonal meetings held ot short
notice owing to pnor business commitments.

The board also regularty discusses reports on capttal efficency The board monitors
govemnance matters and developments n best practice through the Govemance
report provided by the Comnpary Secretary, a standing tterm on the board agenda
The board aiso formally revews compliance with the Govemance Code onan
annual basis

Dunng the year three additional board meetings were corvened to consider the
submission of the business plan to Ofwat and the appointment of the new Cluef
Executive The board met a further four times to carefully evaluate the proposals
recewved from LongRiver Partners. As part of this process, the board also carefully
listened to the views of its shareholders.

Four ad hec commuttee meetings of the board were convenad to consider
such matters as Severn Trent Pic's preliminary ard intenm results and intenm
manogament statements

In addmon to format meebings, the board attended a full day strategy session this year,
where the board and executive teom together considered the areas of future value
creation across the Severn Trert business

Board cormmittees

+ The four permanent committees of the board assist in the execution of its

responsilites and the board hos delegated sorme of its responsibiities to those
board committees The committees assist the board by fulfiling therr roles and
responsibilines, focusing on ther speafic octivibes, reporting to the board on decisions

. and actions taken, and makng any necessary recommendations.

The terms of reference of the Audit, Rernuneration and Nominations Committees
comply with the prowsions of the Governance Code, except as reported on page 45,
and are gvailable for Inspection, together with the terms of reference of the Corporate
Responsibility Cornmuttee, on our website (www sevemtrent.com) or rmay be obtained
on request from the Cornpany Secretary

The effectiveness of each of the committees has been reviewed duning the year as
part of the nternal board review and the commuttees have also considered ther terms
of reference dunng the year

Reports frem the Chairrnen of these cormmittees are set out on pages 52 to 76 of
this report.
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' The woy we choose to behave

Code of Conduct. ‘Doing the right thing - The Sevemn Trent way’

Every day Sevem Trent employees have to make choices about what they doand how
they do it Most of the time it ts dlear what the nght thing to do s, whether # s about

doing what i safe, doing the nght thing for custormers, doing what s nght ethically -
and indeed what 1s nght legally

However, sometimes tt is not so clear ‘Doing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way'
; detoils the pnnaples we work by This 1s our Code of Conduct and explains who we are,
what we stand for and how we work, it alsa tells our customers and business partners
that they can trust and rely on us. These pnncples apply to everyone in Sevem Trent's
businesses, no matter where in the world they are based They prowide @ common and
consistent frarnework for responsible business practices and set out the standards we
need to follow in our day to day actvities,

During the year we have continued to roll out the Code of Conduct across the group to
make sure that everyone In the business understands what tt 1s afl about and upholds
our ethical standards. All employees are provided witha copy inther local language
as part of their nduction Training sessions are also available and all teams have been
encouraged to discuss it through regutar communicatons exercises,

We have alsa continued to roll out our Code of Conduct into our supply chain, as
explained inthe Corporate Responsibility report on page 59

Duning autumn 2013 employees across Severn Trent Water Lirmited attended

‘Our Journey Continues’ sessions which focused on the next steps in the Joumney to
be the best water and waste water company in the UK These sessions dlso provided
a refresher on the mportance of Domng the nght thing - The Severn Trent way and
emphasised how these prinaples and our Code of Conduct were at the heart of our
standard ways of working

Policies
The Code of Conduct is supported by 15 group policies and our behaviours model
Further details of these can be found on our website (www severntrent.com)

During the year we have completed the annual review of the policies to ensure they
are fit for purpose

Conflicts of interests

The board has a full documented process In place to authornise situational conflicts in

accordance with the provisions of the Comparnies Act 2006 and under the company’s
artides of assoaation.

At every board meeting there 1s a standing ogenda item at the beginning of the
meeting to consider and discuss whether any potential conflict exists If it does then
the relevant director does not attend the meeting when that term is discussed

An annual review of conflicts s carned out and 1s incorporated into the year end
process of verfying directors’ interests Half yearly reports are also made to the board
of all drectors’ conflicts ond directors ore reminded of their obligations to disclose ary
potential confhicts.

In March 2014, the Norminations Committee considered in detal the management
of Martin Lamb's situational conflict ansing as a consequence of his appointment as
Chairman of Evoqua Water Technologies, which conflicts with the Severn Trent Services
Water Purification (Products} business in terms of product ine and competsbon for
customners, The benefits of Martin's valuable cortribution to the board as a recently
retired Chief Executive and the relatively small size of the Products business in the
context of the group as a whole were taken into consideration by the Norminations
Committee The board concurred with the recommendation of the Norminatrons
Committee and approved the authonsation of the situatronal conflict in accordance
with the artictes of association and the proposed manogement of the stuational
conflict, which will be kept under reqular review

#
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Governance report continued

Retad shareholder engagernent strategy

The board has an active shareholder
engagement strategy, the man elements of
whiuch are set out below

The annual report and accounts 1s the pnncipal

means of communicating with shareholders.
The group hos adopted e-commurications as
on alternative methed of sending compary

information In March 2012 shareholders were

re-consulted as to theyr preferred method

of recenng company commiunications
Following the consuttation, 49,153
shareholders {79%) recerve confirmation that
the annual report 1s available to view online,
whilst 12,942 shareholders (21%} continue to
recene a hard copy

QOur website {(wwwi.sevemtrent.com) contains
an archive of annudl reports together with
ather informetion relevant to investors

This includes comprehensie share pnce
mformation, financial results, company news
ond financigl calendars

The company offers a Dvdend Reinvestment
Plan (DRIP) Details of the DRIP are available
on our website and the website of Equintt,
our registrar

Shareholder networkang progromme

The aimn of the programme 15 to offer retail
shareholders the opportunity to leam more
about the company, through site visits and
tolking to staff

As part of our Shareholder Networking
Prograrmme, pertiapants in Novernber 2013
haod a choice to vistt ether o waste water

or cleon water ste These were hosted

by Simon Cocks, Waste Water Services
Director and Andy Smith, Director of Water
Senvces. Eighteen partinpants were taken
to our Minworth Sewage Treatrment Works
(Birmingharm} for a tour and prasentabon by
Simon Thirteen participants were taken to
Campion Hills Water Treatment Works (Royol
Leamington Spa) for a tour and presentation
by Andy This was followed by both groups
visiting our cperating centre in Coventry
Positwve feedback was gven on the
organisation and content with strong support

for the company continwng the programirme,
both from shareholders and employees who

enjoyed the inmerest shown in their work,

i

The situational conflict will be managed by Martm Lamb not being provided with
access to any information relating to the Products business However, In order ta
enable him to perform his duties as a director of the compeny, Martin will have access
to information at the eggregated Severn Trent Services kevel In addition, he will not
be present at, or participate I, any board or committee discussions or vote on any
matter relating to the Products business Martin resigned as @ member of the Audit
Committee with effect frorm 21 March 2014,

Interests
No director had a matenal nterest at any time dunng the year in any contract of
sigrficance with the company or any of its subsidiary undertakings

Shareholder engagement

Annual General Meeting
The AGM of the company will be held at the Intemabonal Convention Centre,
Broad Street, Birmingham B1 2€A at 11am on Wednesday 16 July 2014

« Presentations are made on the group’s activities, performance dunng the year and

an aperationally focused presentation prior to the formal business of the meeting
The Chaimmen of the Audtt, Corporate Responsibility, Rermunerohon and Nominations
Commuttees, together with all other directors, attend the AGM.

The AGM gives shareholders an opportunity to feed back to the company on
performance, management and the way we work in @ very direct fashion, through
the way they vote Shareholders may also meet informally with directors and
senior managerment before and after the meeting ond ask formal questions dunng
the meeting

The board encourages shareholders to oitend the cormpany’s AGM and to exercise
thew nght to vote The notice of meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at
least 20 working days before the meeting Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substanbally separate ssue The poll results from the 2014 AGM wilt be made avaflable
on our webstte after the meeting

The way we ensure our effectiveness

Induction

On joining the board, a director's nduction needs are evaluated and then they are
provided with a comprehensive and personalised induction pack which includes
information on our business, key operations and processes, haw we are requlated, how
we are shaping future regulabion, strateqgic plans, financal reports, business plans and
information on our governance framework.

Meetings are arranged with members of the executive managerent team and with
extemnal odvisers who provide support to the relevant board committees on which
the directors may serve Visris to operational and office sites across the group and
management presentations are also amanged for directors joining the board and
subsequently throughout the year

These arrangements have been followed for the induction of Liv Garfield, Dr Angela
Strank, Philp Remnant and John Coghlan.

Continuing professional development

The directors receved updates throughout the yeor on matters such as changes to
best practice governance guidelines The directors also have access to professional
development provided by external bodies and our advisers

Contnumg professional development (CPD) requiremients were considered as part
of the board effectveness review referred to below No addiional requirements

. were identfied
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Instritutioncl shareholders and onatysts

The board recognises the impaortance of
Tepresenting and promoting the interests of
s shareholders and that ttis accountable
to shareholders for the performance and
actmties of the company

Presentations are miade to shareholders and
analysts following the release of the intenm
and year end results. The Chief Executive and
Finance Director regularly meet sharsholders
dunng the year The Charman ond the
sevuar ndependent non-exacutve director
hove also met sharehalders separately from
executive directors and are avaitable to meet
shareholders at therr request. The board
recaves witten feedback following meetings
with institutional shareholders and monitors
shareholder octvity an o quarterly basis at

s meetmgs.

Duning March and Aprit 2013 Makinson Cowell,
an independent capital markets advisory firm,
undertook an investor audt which set out to
ascertain both bendholders’ and shareholders'
views of us as a comparty, our strateqy,
performance, and effectveness of our
cormnmunicobons, [t also amed to determine
our standirg relateve to our peers and to the
equity and debt markets os @ whole

The main findings of the oudst were that
Severn Trent is regarded by shareholders and
bondholders as more strongly placed today for
the next regulatery penod than was the case
three years ogo {when the previous qudrt was
conducted), that the perfarmance of Severn
Trent Water has improved, there was a pasive
view about the company’s financial position
and greater appreciatian of its conservative
finanoial strotegy; and investors rated the
management tegm moare highly than three

years ogo

H
H

H

L

An online directors’ resource library ond CPD repository has been created for use by
the directors The lbrary includes a Corporate Govermance Manual, a Resuits Centre
ond Investor Relations section, Strategy Day matenals and details of board training
sessions It aiso indudes a further reading section which contoins regular updates and
guidonce on changes te legsslation and best practice

Performance and effectiveness reviews

An independent review of the effectveness of the board s corducted every three
years. The tast external review was camed out in November 2011 and on independent
review will be commissioned during the 2014/15 finanaal year

In January 2014, the board commenced an interral review of its effectiveness and
thot of ts comrruttees The review was led by the Chairman and was assisted by

the Company Secretary who conducted a seres of confidentiol interviews with each
director Following the feedback from the board effectiveness review, a review of each
indndual director’s performance was carried cut by the Charrman.

In terms of mprovements identified in the previous year's nternal review, it was
concluded that good progress had been mode Steps had been taken to ensure
approprate time was allocated for consideration of strategic matters The board

: had considered leadership and succession planning with particular focus on the

development of management below the Executive Committee level Dunng the year
the board reviewed progress aganst the five year talent manogement and succession
plan and the autputs from the 2012/13 tatent manogement process

This year's review confirmed continued board strengths, induding the quality of

the relationship between executive and non-executive drrectors, a diverse and
cornplementary balance of skills and expenence and effective use of trme All board
comrmittees remained highly effective and had continued to improve duning the year.

The only suggested impravements to effectiveness were inrelation to the annucl
off-site board strategy discussions which hed been ympacted by the considerable
amount of trne that hod been required to be devoted in the year to the preparations
for submussion of the Severn Trent Water Lirnited final business plan to Ofwat. [t was
anticipated that this should not be the case inthe current year A review of the forward
agendas for each committee will also be camed out at the start of each year to ensure
that matters requinng the attention of the board as a whole were considered in the
nghit forum.

The board will continue to formally review progress against the recommendations
ansing from the board effectiveness reviews every six months
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Nominations Committee

Image removed

Andrew Duff
Chairmon of the Nominations Committes

The mam purpose of the Committee s to
assist the boord by keeping the cormpesition
of the board under review and conducting
angorous and transparent process when
muaking or renewing appointments of directors
to the board. It also advises the board on
1ssues of directors’ conflicts of interest and
independence The full terms of reference for
the Committee can be found on our website
(wwwsevermtrent.com) and are also available
from the Company Secretary

Succession planning
When considenng new appomtments to
the board, the Comrruttee oversees the
preparation of a role specfication that 15
provided to an independent recrutment
organssation retained to conduct a global
search. In addtion to the speafic skilts,
knowledge and experience deemed
necessary, the specification contains cntena
such as
* aproven track record of creatng
sharehotder value;

= unquestioned integnty and a dwversity of
psychdlogcol mindset;

« acommitment to the highest standards
of governance,

* having the required time avolable to devote
tothe job,

« strategc mindset, on awareness of market
leadership, outstanding montorng skills,

* apreparedness to question, challenge and
openly assess, and

= anindependent point of view

This report provides details of the role of the Nominations Committee and the work it
has undertaken dunng the year

The Committee keeps under review the balance of skills on the board and the
knowledge, expenence, length of service ond performance of the directors. it also
" reviews therr external interests with a view to identfiing any actudl, percenved or
potentiol conflicts of interests, nduding the time available to commit to therr duties
to the company The results of these reviews are mportant when the board considers
* succession planning and the election and reappaintrment of directors Mermbers of the
Commuttee toke no part in any discussions conceming their own araumstances
The members of the Commuttee in 2013/14 were the non-executive directors of the
board and the Chief Executrve, Tony Wray

During the year the Committee considered the composition of the board, the
succession plan for the Chief Executive rofe, the board's dversity policy and the board’s
effectveness review It also reviewed the strength and depth of talent and succession
planning below Executive Cornmittee level In addibion, as detailed on pages 49

and 50, the Committee rewewed Martin Lamb’s situational conflict of interest in
March 2014

In Apnl 2013 the Commuttee nbiated a succession planning process to search fora
new Chief Executve foltowing Tory Wiay's announcement of hus intention to retire
. inthe spnng of 2014 Spencer Stuart and The Zygos Partnership were appainted as
adwisors and were provided with o role specification and a detolled bref of the desired
candidate profile and their servces were used to conduct a thorough search to identify

shortlisted were interviewed by members of the board. Tony Wray taok no part in any
meetings relating to this process

Following this process, the boord accepted the Commuittee’s recommendation that Liv
Garfield jon the board as Chief Executive with effect from 11 Apnl 2014 Livbrngs @
wealth of expenence managing customer service delivery and carmplex infrostructure
and organisations in a regulated environment.

Dunng the year the Commuttee also ntiated searches for new non-executive directors.
The Zygos Fartnership was apponted as advisor and was provided with a role
specfication and a detailed bnef of the desired candidate profile and its services were
used to conduct a thorough search to identfy suitable candidates The Cormmittee
considered a list of potential condidates and those shortlisted vrere intervewed

by mambers of the board and ¢lso by Liv Garfield as Chief Executive designate
Followirig this process, the board accepted the Committee’s recommendation that

Dr Angela Strank, Philip Remminant and John Coghlon jon the board

The appointment of Dr Angela Strark as a non-executive director, with effect from
24 January 2014, mantained the balance of the appropriote skill set on the board in

the context of the retrement of Dr Bernard Bullin Angela’s track record and expenence

in technology, transformationa chonge and strategy are complementary to the
board's existng skill set and she becarme a member of the Nominations, Remuneration
and Corporate Responsibility Committees upon joning the board

Philip Remnant was oppointed as a non-executive director with effect from 31 March
2014 and he becarme @ member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations
Commuttees upon jorung the board Philp has substantial finanaal, public sector and

regulatory expenence and provdes a valuable additional contnbution to the board’s
exsting skilt set.

John Coghlan was appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 23 May
2014 and he became a member of the Norminabions Committee upon joining the
board. John will become Chairman of the Audit Cornmittee with effect from the
condusion of the AGM on 16 fuly 2014, ot which time Baroness Noakes will be retinng
« from the board John has substantiat finanaal expertise and s a valuable addtion to
. the board’s existing skill set.

surtable candidates The Cornmittee considered a list of potenbal condidates and those
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As part of the selection process for the new directors, the Committee evaluated the
balance of skills, expenence, Independence and knowledge on the board and used
this evaluation in the preparation of the role specifications Nerther Spencer Stuart
nor The Zygos Partnership has any other connection with the compary, other than
in respect of therr role as advisor n the appeintment of the new Chief Executive
and non-execuive directors

Both search comparues used are signotores to the voluntary code of conduct for
executive search firns to address gender diversity on corporate boards ond best
practice for the related search process

In occordance with the requirements of the Governance Code, all members of the
board wil seek election or re-election at the AGM in July 2014, with the exception of

, Bareness Nogkes who will be retinng frorm the boord with effect from the conclusion
. of the AGM In March 2014 the Committee formally revewed the performance,
contnbution and commitment of each of the directors retinng at this year's AGM and
seeking reappaintment, and supported and recornmended their reappointment to
the board. The Committee has confirmed that each director continues to perform

* well, both on an indmdual ond collective basis, making a valuatle contrbution to the
board's deltberatrons and demonstrating commitrment to the long termn interests of
the company

The Commuttee also supported and recommended the election of the nesdy
opponted directors, Liv Garfield, Dr Angela Strank, Philip Rernant and John Coghlan

, The appointment of these new executive and non-executive directers brings new skilis
" and expenence to the board, and overall the balance of such rernamed both diverse
ond complementary

Dversity
* Further to the publication of the Duvies Report, ‘Wormen on Boards', in February 2011,
boards of FTSE 350 corpanies hove been encouraged to prarmote greater femmale
representation on corparate boards. Gudance from the Financial Reparting Council has
diso highlighted the importance of greater diverstty of psychological profile around the
board table
Severn Trent believes that ¢ diverse and inclusive culturess o key fadiorin being o
successful business Sevem Trent Pic aspires to the targets in the Dawvies Report to
promote greater fernale representation on iisted company boards

As and when boord appointment oppartunities arise, we make full use of the
procedures recommended by the Davies Report and by the Governance Code to
support this aspiration All board appontrnents have been and will continue to be
based on ment and must be in the nterests of all stakeholders

A breakdown by gender of the number of persons who were directors of the company,
senior managers and other employees as at 31 March 2014 1s set out opposite

As at 31 March 2014, we had two female members onour board of 12 (representing
17%)} ard three fernale members out of 11 on the Executve Committee (representing
27%) As at the date of this repart, and following the retirement of Tory Wray and
appaintment of Liv Garfield as Chief Executive on 11 April 2014 and appointment of
John Coghlan on 23 May 2014, there are three fernale members on our board of 13
{representing 23%) and four fernale members out of 11 on the Executive Committee
(representing 36%)

Severn Trent 1s seeking to build a diverse pool of future leaders and detalls of dversity
nibatves being undertaken are set out in the Corporate Responsibility Committee
report on poge 59

Andrew Duff
Charman of the Norminations Committee

yodas 21621005
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Audit Committee

Image removed

Baroness Noakes DBE
Charrman of the Audit Commuttee

The Cormmittee assists the board in
discharging its responsibilities for the integnty
of the comparty’s finonaal statements,

the assessrment of the effectveness of the
systerns of interncl controls ond monitonng
the effectveness ond objectrity of the
internal and external auditors It also oversees
the assurance of regulotory returns mode

by Severn Trent Water Limited te Ofwat.

The role and the responsibilities of the
Comrmittee are set out in written terms of
reference These can be found on our website
{www severntrent.com) and are also available
from the Company Secretary

This report provides details of the role of the Audit Cornmittee and the work it has
undertaken dunng the year

The members of the Commuttee are Baroness Noakes DBE (Chairmany), Richard Davey
and Philip Rernnant (appomted with effect from 31 March 2014}, whose expertence
and backgrounds are set out on poges 42 and 43 Martin Lamb was appointed to the
Committee upan the retirernient of Dr Bernard Bulkin on 24 Jonuary 2014 and resigned
fromn the Committee with effect from 21 March 2014 The board 1s satisfied that alt

the Cormmittee members have recent and relevant financial expenence and that all
members of the Commuttee remain independent

The members of the Cormmuttee recerve updates on financial reporting and the group’s

regulatory framework in vanaus forms throughout the year The Chairman, Chief

Executive, Finance Directar, Director of Intemal Audit, Group Finanaal Corttroller and

the external audttors normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the Committee

Other members of senior management are olso Invited to attend as appropnate

The Commuttee regularty holds prvate discussions with both the internol and

axternal auditors

In performrung its duties, the Committee has aceess to the services of the Directar of

Internal Audt, the Cornpany Secretary and, if required, extemal professtonal advisers

The Committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the Committee’s

work, [t met four tmesin 2013/14 and ts work focused on four key areas

« financal statements and occounting palicies,

« nsk management and internal controls,

- gversight of mternal and extemal audtt, and

» the regulatory reporting oblgations of our subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited,
including scrutinising the assurance pracess underpinning the PR14 submission

The Committee’s performance wos incuded m the review of the boards effectreness
referred to on poge 51

Financial stotements and accounting policies
The Committee looked carefully at those aspects of the financial statements which

: required significant accounting jJudgements or where there was estimetion uncertainty

These areas are explained in note 4 of the finoncial staternents on page 98
The Committee receives detalled reports both from the Finance Director and the

+ external auditor on these areas ond on any other matters which they believe should be
, drawn to the attention of the Cormmitiee The Commmittee also reviews the draft of the

extemnal audrtors’ report on the financial statements, with particutar reference to those
rnatters reported as camying nsks of rmatenal misstaternent. The Commuttee disausses
the range of possible treatrments both with management and with the external

: audtors and satisfies itself the Judgernents made by managerment are robust and

should be supported The following areas were the most iImportant ones examined
for2013/14

« » whether further mpairments of the goodwill and intangible ossets related to

businesses in Sevem Trent Services, in particulor in relation to the Products business
were required,
+ whether the assumptions used to calculate the amount of the deficit in the group’s

defined benefit pension schemes were reasonable and in ling wath those used by
simnilar compantes,

= the way in which denvative instruments were accourted for and in particutar the

impoct of the adoption of IFRS 13;

» the amount of prowsions held for tax labiities which were still the subject of
discussion with the tax authorties, and

+ the proposed disclosure of matenal items of income or expenditure and whether
these meet the cntena to be dassified as exceptional items.
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The Committee revewed the evidence and assumptions underpinning the use of the
going concemn gssurnption in prepanng the accounts and in making the stutement
made in the Directors’ report thot the company is a going concem

The Comrmuttee reviewed the draft results announcements for intenm and full

year results and analysts’ presentations and paid particular attention to the tone

of the announcements and presentations to consider therr consistency with the
finanadal statements

In reviewing the finanaal staterments, the Committee recerves input from the
Disclosure Committee, which 1s charred by the Finance Director. The work of the
Disclosure Committee s descnbed further on page 47.

An gddmional governance requirement from thes year s for the board to confirm

that the report and occounts are far, balanced and understardable The Misclosure
Committee undertakes a detasled review of the annudl report and accounts pror

to making a recommendation that the boord could make the: far, balanced and
understandable staternent, contamed in the Directors' responsibity statement on
page 82 The Committee reviewed the Disclosure Committee’s process at its meetings
in March and May 2014

Deloitte LLP {Delortte) reported to the Cormnmittes on therr review of the half year
intenm results and on their audtt of the year end financiol statements

Intemal controls

The Committee recenves reguiar reports from Intemat Audit in respect of ther work on
nternal controls and reviews manogerment letters receved from the external auditors,
The Committee reviewed the processes for and outputs from our Enterpnse Risk
Manogement process, through which the pninapat nsksand retated controls are
dentfied. The Cormmittee dscussed the approach to decumenting the Board's nsic
appetite and providing guidonce to nsk owners on the board’s tolerance for different
types of nsk In oddibon, t monitored the ongong development of our complionce and

. assurance processes In respect of the key nsks

Trie Cornrittee reviews the procedures, systerns and controls designed to prevent
and detect fraud and bribery and receves a reqular log of Incidents of froud or
bribery which indudes the ochons taken to imvestigote and respond to the incdents
There were no matenal inaidents dunng the year

The Comrritiee aiso reviewed the group’s approoch to tyber secunty and T conbinunty
Given the ncreasing dependency of the business on technology, this remains an areg
of ounal imporiance and further reviews hove been comed out dunng the year

Further details of our intemal control fromework can be found in the Directors’ report
on page 80

Intemal Audit

The Director of Internal Audtt and his tearn report on a day-to-day baosis to the
executive team on the effactiveness of the group’s systems of intermal controls aned
the adequacy of these systemns to manage business nsk and to safeguord the group’s
assets and resources. This work is summansed and reported to the Committee ona
regular bosis and s a key element of the assurance that the Commuttee receves on
the nsks and contrals 1n the group The Director of Internal Audt s free to raise any
Issues with the Cornmittee or its Charrnan at any tme durng the year

The effectiveness of the Internal Audrt function, ts plars, level of resources and
budget are reviewed at least annually by the ommittee In addition, dunng the year,
an external quality assessmert of Interna! Audit was conducted by Grant Tharmton
ond the findings were reviewed by the Committee There were no matenal matters
dentified for the Audit Committee as a result.

In March 2014 the Committee met separately with the Director of Internal Audit and
his Intemal Audit tearn and hod o detalled discussion of the work of Internal Audtt,
including n parbeular the processes which led to the Internal Audit plon for 2014/15

! !
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Audit Committee continued

Policy on the provision of non-audit seriices

The cornpany has approved o formal policy
on the prowision of non-audit services
aimed at sofeguarding and supporting

the ndependence and objectvity of the
external gudtors.

The policy sets out the approach to be taken
by the group when using the services of the
extemnal guditors, Including requiring thot
certain services provided by the extemal
audttors are pre-approved by the Commuttes
or1is Charman

It defines the non-audit services that may

be prowided by the extemal audrtors and
separately sets out those non-gudit services
which are prohibited, since the iIndependence
of the external auditors could be threatened

Non-audit services where the external
audtors may be used include audrt

related services required by statute or
regulation, tax complionce and tax planning
odwice, due dillgence on acquisitions

and disposals, services reloted to fraud,
Corporate Respensibility report reviews and
regulatory support.

The approval of the Committee or its
Chaurnan s always required if a nor-audit
service provided by the auditors i expected to
cost more thon £100,000 or if non-gudit fees
for the year would exceed the amount of the
oudit fee

Furthermore, the procurement of non-

oudit services will need to comply with the
Utility Contracts Regulotions and all serices
requirements over the current EC threshotd will
have to be subject to tender

! The Committee also rmeets once a year with the Director of Intemal Audit without
« management present

) External auditors

. Delortte qudits all significant subsidiaries of the group Annudlly, the Committee
reviews the external quditors’ audit plan and reviews and assesses information
provided by thern confirming therr independence and objectmty within the context of
applicoble requlatory requirements and professional stondards The Committee also
reviews the auditors effectiveness, which invalves assessment of the auditors by the
Committee and key executives, and confirnation that the auditors meet mirimum
standards of qualification, ndependence, expertise, effectiveness and commurucation
The Comnttee also meets privately with the extemal qudrtors ot least once per year
These assessments are carned out prior to the Commuttee recommending to the
board that the extemal audrtors be proposed for reappointment at the AGM

Delortte was oppoinited audrtors of the company in 2005, pursuant to a competitve
tender process. Tne company does not currently have a policy of tendenng the
externol audtt ot specific intervals but would intikrte a tender process If there were
ary concems about the quality of the audtt or the independence and objectmty of
the guditors. The company 15 commutted to complyng with UK and EU rules on gudit
tenders which will require the audit to be formally tendered in the next few years
There are no contractual obligations that act to restnct the Comimiitee's choice of
external gudtors

Details of the amounts paid to Detoitte for audit and non-audit services are provided in
note 7 to the accounts onpage 103

Severn Trent Water Limited

The reguloted actvbies carned out by Severn Trent Water Limited alsa require two
annual reperting requirernents to Ofwat which are reviewed by the Committee

an annudl subrmisston on Sevem Trent Water Limited's regulatory obligations known
s the Annual Regulatory Performance Report, together with the Annual Regulatory
Compliance Staternent; and ¢ statement that underpins the customer charges made
by Sevem Trent Water Limited, known as the Prinaipal Statement.

in May 2013 the Comnmittee revewed the assurance framework n place for the
Annual Regulatory Compliance Staternent process [n Septernber and Novernber
2013 the Committee reviewed the process, timeline and assurance framewaork for
the production of the 2014/15 Pinapal Statement and its submission to Ofwat.

Delortte mokes reports to Ofwat In respect of Severn Trent Water limited's regulatory
accourts The Annual Regulatory Performance Report, which provides an overall
picture of compary perforrmance, covers marty aspects which are not finenaal end
Sevem Trent Water Limited appaints engineering consultants, Atkns, to report on
those ospects The Committee receives reports from Atkins on their work as part of its
review of the Annual Regulatory Retums

An additional requirernent dunng the year was oversight of the assurance processes
which were designed to ensure that a high quality plan was submitted to Ofwat

as part of PR14 This involved both intemnaol assurance processes and assurance
provided by a nurber of external assurance prowiders for speafic aspects of the

finol business plan submussion. The Committee reviewed the overall processes in
September 2013 and in November 2013 reviewed the draft reports recenved from the
assurance providers The Committee’s findings were reported to the booard as part of its
. deliberations pnor to the submission of the final business plan n December 2013,
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Corporate Responsibility Committee

Image removed

Gordon Fryett
Charman of the Corporate

Responsipiity Committee

The Committee prowides guidance

and drrection to the group’s Corporate
Respansibildy programme, reviews the group's
key non-finanaidd nsks and oppertunities and
monItors progress

The terms of reference for the

Committee can be found an our website .
{www sevemnitrent.com) and are also ovallable
frorn the Company Secretary

The Committee reviews annuatly

the adegquacy of the group's formol
whistieblowing policy and procedures which
deal with allegations from employees
relating to bregches of the Code of Conduct
and reviews at each of ts meetings the
whistieblowing intident log

This report provides details of the role of the Corporate Responsibitity (CR) Committee
and the work 1t has undertaken dunng the year

The members of the Committee are Gordon Fryett (Chamnan), Andrew DUff, Liv
Garfield and Dr Angela Stronk. Gordon Fryett was appointed Charmnan of the
Committee upon the retirement of Dr Bernard Bulkin on 24 January 2014 Dr Angelo
Strank was appointed @ member of the Committee upon her appoirtrment to

the board on 24 Jaruary 2014 and Liv Garfield was appointed a member of the

Committee a3 successor to Tony Wray as Chief Executive on 11 April 2014,

Our CR framework

Our Code of Conduct ‘Doing the nght thing - The Sevem Trent way’, provides the
structure and @ common CR framework for both our businesses - regulated and non-
regulated The nine pnnciples of our Code of Conduct are

Keeping everyone healthy and safe

Supporting employees’ nghts and diversity
Mantoining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from bnbery and comuption

Keeping cur communications open and responsible
Deliverng excellent customer service

Working within the commurity

Protecting our ermironment

Standing up for what's nght

R L I

. To monitor performance, both Savern Trent Water and Severn Trent Services have
; an effective performonce management system in ploce through core business Key

Performance Indicators (KPIs), see pages 8 and 9 of the Strategic Report for further
detalls These are overseen by the relevant management teams and the beard.

Marw of the business KPIs relate directly to our CR focus areas and therefore contrbute
significantly to our CR performance and are linked to our reward armangements

We report intemially on our (R performance through senior manogernent and the
Committee Externally, we report through o nurmber of channels including our website
and our annual report and accounts

Committee meetings

The Committee provdes board oversight of our CR fromework, induding the strategy
and performance related to health, safety, environment and the community s well as
employee and supply chamn matters (R KPIs and whistieblowing cases are reviewed at
every meeting Key areas of discussion and review are set out below

.+ Sevem Trent Services CR framework and ongoing development of measures,

including octions dentified in customer and employee engagement surveys,

+ following a change in guidance by the Ervironiment Agency, the Committee
discussed the approach to categonsation of pollution nadents and the impact on
performance and target setting The Committee also revewed the improvement
and intervention actvities to dnve improved erviranmental performance and
custorner outcomes. The Committee received pollistion nadent performance
reports throughout the year as part of its performarnce monitonng,

« the prowsion of occupational health services in Severn Trent Water ond Severn Trent
Services This is an area of crucal importance, alongside health and safety, ond
the Comimuttee will continue to review absence trends ond the implementation
of occupational health programmes withinthe: group Details of our occupational
heolth programimes are prowded in the Strategic Report on page 23,

+ the Committee recenved two reports from Internal Audit with respect to therr work
onnon-finanaal nsk. an update on Internal Audit activity and progress on key
Internial Audit findings The Committee subsequentiy received rmore detaled papers
on fire safety and the application of our Code of Conduct in our Supply Chatn, and

woda: afimons
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Corporate Responsibility Committee continued

- Addrtionally, the Committee discussed updates on waste management, the PR14
engagement programme, nver water quality, community imvolvernent, employee
satisfaction, supply chaim managerment, customer communications and dnnking
water quality.

CR activities

We are commmitted to CR and see 1t as an integrated part of our business Therefore our
activities in this regard are discussed in the Strategic Report becatise operating in a
respansible way 1s how we work at Sevemn Trent.,

Hurman nghts

We have a responsibility to understand eur potential impacts on hurman righits and

to mibgate or eliminate them We are committed o operating in accordance with
the United Nations Global Cormpact Principles and our Code of Conduct supports this
commitment Whilst not having a specific hurman nghts policy, we have group palices
on Human Resources, Ant-Bnbery and Ant-Fraud, Whistleblowing and Procurernent.
These policies are in tum supported by a broader range of policies within Severn Trent
Water and Sevem Trent Services to support key human nghts

freedorn of assoaation and collective bargaining

We recagruse the nght of all employees to freedom of asseciation and collective
bargaining We seek to promote co-operation between employees, our management
tearn and recogresed trade urions We believe this fosters a joint understanding

of business needs and helps to deliver cornmon solutions aimed at making our
business successful

Internationatly, Severn Trent Services operates a srall number of soles ond

. marketing offices where union membership 1s not avalloble due to national law 1t s

importont that these employees and those who do not wish to join a union are not at
a disadvantage

All Severn Trent employees are encouraged to raise concemns at work through therr
line manager, however, we recognise that employees may feel mhibited in certain
creumstances In this case, employees are encouraged to use our confiderttial and
independent whistteblowing helpline, operated by Safecdll, on independent company
that speadlises in handing concems at work. The service 1s available mternationally
ond Safecall provide a translation service allowing any employee to access it
Equality

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key factor inbeing a

. successful business We do rot tolerate discnrmingtion under any crcumstances

and believe In treating everyone equally with faimess, encouragernent and respect.
Our Code of Conduct and our group Human Resources Policy govern all aspects of

+ ernployee nghts and diversity Underpinning these are indmdual business level policies

that define our approach to a dverse and indusve emaronment.
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! Dersity

To ottract ond drow skills from o dverse pool of tolent we airn to have on appropnate
balance of gender and ethniaty thot represents the labour market we are part of and
the qustomer base we serve In 2012, we conducted gender drversity research with
wormen employees in Severn Trent Water to understand what is important to themn
in developing careers at Severn Trent. We hove used the cutcomme of this research

to provide opportunities to all employees to shadow our Executive teom and better
understand what 1s mvolved in senicr managerment

Our dwersity monitoring provides us with details that help focus our dwersity effort

n speafic parts of our work and our organisation and provides insightts about how
attractive we are to different parts of the labour market, We measure actnty ot three
recruitment stages {attract, shortlist and hire) for gender and ethruaty This informs our
nterventions and investigates whether we have an appropnate mox of employees,

We have also undertaken training with employees iInvolved in recruttment to

ensure that we do not have an unconscious bias within the attraction ond selection
programime This Includes lnoking at how and where we advertise roles to ensure we
reach a diverse pool of potential applicants

Throughout 2013/14, we have also focused on increasing diversity in our applicants
with a pnmary focus on our entry level schemes for apprenticeships and graduates
We have looked ot the commumicabions we use to attract new applicants and how we
can reach a broader range of our cormmunity

within Severn Trent Services we are cuttently establishing partnershups with a number
of job ste providers with o view to helping us encourage greater diversity in our
management positions

Our gender diversity metrics as at 31 March 2014 are set out in the Normunations
Cormmittee report on page 53

Prevention of child labour and forced labour

We will refuse the use of child labour and forced labour under any circumstonces
The highest risk for Sevemn Trent 15 through our supply chain, therefore we work with
our suppliers 1o ensure they operate to the same stondords we set ourselves.

Our Code of Conduct has been built nto the procurement tender process as part of
the prequalfication questionnaire template in Severn Trent Water. Dunng 2013714
500 supptiers have been assessed for nsk and importance, to guide further
engagement on our Code of Conduct. We have engaged with all our prionty suppliers
and dentfied plans to dose eny gops s appropnote

Severn Trent Services has implernented a nsk based approach to assessing supplier
cornphiance with ther Supplier Code of Conduct. All igh nsk supplers hove undergone
a review for compliance and cormmitment to the Code [n addition, 1008 of new
supphiers dunng 2013/14 signed docurmentation to voldote ther commitment.
Prevention of bribery and cormuption

Cur group-wide Ant-Brbery and Ant-Froud Policy prohibits brbery and corruphionin
oll our business dealings, regardless of the country or culture within which we work.
Employees identified as hugh nsk through a sk review for Severn Trent Water and

alt employees of Severn Trent Services are required to undertake an online traning
madule and examingtion to ensure awareness of and compliance with this policy

Dunng 2012/13 Severn Trent Services undertook a nsk assessment and review of its
exsting international sales representative and distrbutar netwaork to dentfy potential
nsks and check compliance with the policy. A nsk profile and review 1s undertaken

for dll new sales representotives and distnbutors This helps to ensure that our global
channel partners comply with our policy and expectations
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Remuneration Committee

Image removed

Richard Davey
Charrman of the

Remuneration Committee

The Commuttee determines, on behalf of
the board, the company's policy on the
remuneration of executive directors, other
members of the Exacutve Commuttee and
the Charman of the board. The Committee
determines the tota rernuneration packages
and contractual termns and conditians for
these ndwviduals The policy fromework for
remunerating all senior executve managers
15 consistesit with the approach taken for
executive directors.

Dear Shareholder

In 2013/14, we have delivered on our commitments to our stakeholders, with

operational improverments, below inflation nses to customer bills, higher levels of

service to custorners and higher returns to sharehclders through the growing dvidend.
+ This performance has been reflected in the payments under our incentive plans.

The arnual bonus payments to executive directors for the finanoad yeor to 31 March
2014 were between 49.3% and 78 7% of base salary, reflecting a good year of
operatonol performance of the business Dunng the year, awards under the Share
Matching Plan (SMP} vested at 78% of the maximum based on performance over the
three years to 20 May 2013 The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) awards based on
performance over the three years to 31 March 2014 will vest i full There s a detoiled

' breakdown of the targets set and the payments under the annual bonus, SMP and LTIP
on pages 68 to 70

Key policy developments for 2014/15
Dunng the year the Committee revewed the remuneration policy to ensure that
it supported the business strateqy and prowded an appropnate rmeans to reward
the executives for their contnbution to our performance Following this review and
consultation with the company'’s key shareholders, the Committee has decided to
simplify the long term incentive structure and have o single long term incentve plan.
No further awards will be mode under the SMP and sharehclder approval 15 being
sought at the AGM for a new LTIP to replace the curent LTIP which exprres in 2015
. The performance metncs under the new LTIP wil be the same s under the current
plan (a sliding scale of Return on Regudatory Caprtal Vatue (RORCY) targets measured
" over three years) and the award levels for 2014 will be 125% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 80% af salary for the other execuive directors, which incorporates the
value of the SMP forgone.

In addition, we would like to inform you that we are introducing a change to the bonus
structure for executrve directors and other managers for 2014/15 While the Severn
Trent Water balanced scorecard and indnadual performance reman highly relevant,
the Committee hos now deaided that a significant element of the bonus for these
directors should be based on demanding key business objectives, the achieverment of
which has the capaaty to transform the business, Finally, fallowing a revew of market
proctice and shareholder feedbac, the shareholding guidelines for the Chief Executive
have increased from 150% to 200% of salary and the guidelines for the other executve
directors have increased from 100% to 125% of salary respectrvely No other significant
changes are being mode to the remuneration policy

Executrve director changes

Dunng the course of the year, the Committee considerad the retirement of the cument
Chief Executive, Tory Wray and the recruitment arrangernents for his successor,

Liv Garfield Full detalls of thewr respective leaving and joining arrangements are set
out in the Annual report on remuneration on page 75.

Structure of the report

Thus ts the first year of compliance with the new regulations on remuneraticn

reporting and I hope you find the remuneration repert more transparent and easy

to understand. In tne with the requiations, the remuneration report & split Into two

sections. The Policy Report sets out the remuneration policy for the executve directers

of Severn Trent Plc for the next three years and will be subject to o binding vote by

shareholders at the AGM. The Annuat report on remunerction provides detalls of the

amounits paid to the directors for the year ended 31 March 2014 and sets out how

. the polky will be appled for the forthcoming year This letter and the Annual report
on remuneration will be subject to an advisory vote ot the AGM There will also be a
separate binding vote to approve the new LTIP.

We have sought and carefuily considered the feedback from shareholders in the
« changes we have made to smplfy the remunemation policy I hope you ane supportive
and can opprove all three resolutions at the AGM

Richard Davey
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Policy report

This section of the remuneration report, setting out the remuneration policy for the directors of Sevem Trent pic, is subject to
approvat by shareholders at the AGM on 16 Iuly 2014 and wall take effect, subject to Gpproval, from this date

Setting the remuneration policy

The Committee sets the remuneration policy for executive directors and other senior executive managers, taking nto account the
company’s strategic objectwes over the short and the long term and the externad market.

The Committee oddresses the need to balance nsk and reward. The Committee monitors the vonable pay arrangemants to take
account of the nsk levels ensunng an emphasis on long term and sustanable performance The Committee believes that the
Incentwve schemes are appropnately managed and that the chotce of performance measures and targets does not encourage
undue risk taking by the executives so that the long term performance of the business 1s not compromised by the pursurt of
short term value The schemes incorporate a range of ntermal and extemat performance metncs, measunng bath operational

ond financial performance over diffenng and overlapping performance penods providing a rounded assessment of everall
compary perfarmance,

Linkage to all employee pay

The Committee reviews changes in remuneration arrangerments in the workforce generally It aims to ensure that executve

salary increases are normaolly aligned to the increeses for the rest of the workforce Rurthermore, the annual bonus operates on

a similar basis with the bonus schermes operated throughout Severn Trent Waoter (usmg the same balanced scorecard), all UK
employees rmay particpate in the HMRC approved Save As You Eam (SAYE) scheme and UK based Sevem Trent Water employees
may also partiapate in a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) The company has not directly consulted with employees on the topic of
executive remuneration, however, the Committee does consider the general base salary increase, remuneration arrangements end
employment condrbans for the brooder emplayee group when determining the rermuneration policy for executive directors

Shareholder views

The Committee engages pro-actively with the company’s major shareholders, and takes their views nto account. The Committee
reviews any feedback receved from shareholders as a result of the AGM process and throughout the rest of the year ond takes into
consideration the lotest views of investor bodies and thesr representotves, nduding the Assoaation of British Trsurers, the Nabonal
Assoaation of Pension Funds and proxy advice agenaes such as Institutional Shareholder Services. When any matena! changes are
made to the remuneration policy, the Remuneration Committee Charman will discuss these with major shareholders in advance,

and will offer @ meeting for a more detaled discussion

Remuneragtion policy for the executive directors
The following table sets out o summary of each elerment of the executive directors’ remuneration packages

Fijrpose?lr:d bk to

Element strategy QOperotion findluding performance metncs) Moxirnum opportunty
Salary Torecrut and reward  Base salanes for ndwidual directors are reviewed annually Details of the salary levels for
executives of a by the Committee and normnally take effect frorm 1 July the directors for 2014 are set
sutable calibre for Salanes are set with reference to indmdud perfermance, out in the Annug! report on
the role and duties expenence and contnbution, together with developments remuneration on page 75
required in the relevant employment market (having regard to Ay increose to directors’
sirmilar roles in publicly quaoted cornpanies of  comparable  salaries will generally be
size {currently FTSE 51-150) and practice in other water na higher than the average
companies), comparty performance, affordability and increase for the UK workforce
interngt relatnaties However, a higher norease
The company, where appropnate, may set base salary may be proposed in the event
levels below the muorket reference salary at the ime of a role change or promoetion,
of appantrnent, with the intention of bnnging the base or in other exceptional
salary levels in line with the market as the indwvdual gains arcumstances
) i _ the relevant expenence N ] i i
Benefits  Toprovide competitve A car allowance, family level prvate medical nsurance, ife . The volue of the other benefits
benefits in the assurance, personol occident iInsurance, health screening, an 15 based on the cost to the
market to enabie Incapacity benefits scheme and other inadertal expenses.  company and there 15 no pre-
the requtmentond  Relocation, disturbance and expatnate allowances and tax determined moamum bmit.
retention of drectors  equalisation may be paid as appropriate
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Remuneration Committee continued

mRnrpose andlink to
Element strategy Operation {induding performance metnics) Mmamurm opportunity
Pension Toprovde apension A defined contnbution scheme and/or cash supplement in Compariy contribution to ¢
comparable with lieu of pension pension scheme and/or cash
simiar companies in allowance up to a maxmum
the market to enable of 25% of salary Different
the recruitment and tegacy amangements remain
retention of directors in place for some directors
and the maomum bmits
are as set out in the notes
following this table
Annual To encourage For executives other than the CEQ of Severn Trent Senaces Maxirmum annual bonus
bonus improved operational  {STS), ot least 50% of the bonus will be based onthe Severn  of 120% of base salary
performance and Trent Water balanced scorecard, with the balance relating {target annuct bonus of 60%
abgn the interests to key business objectives and personal contribution Farthe  of base salary)
of directors with CEOQ of 5TS, the majonty of the bonus will be based on the
shareholders through ~ finanaal and non-fincnoial performance of STS No more
the partial deferral of  than 20% of the bonus wilk relate to personal contribution for
payment in shares any executive
50% of the bonus 1s paid in cash and 50% 1n shares which
vest after three years (with the volue of any dvidends tobe
rolled up and pad on vesting)
A clawback mechaenism applies to allow the recoupment
within three years of the payment of the benus or the gront
of deferred shares in the event of finanaal rsstaternent,
) error In the colculation or gross misconduct
LTIP Toencouragestrong  Awards are granted annuclly and are subject to a three Maximum bmit 1s 150%
and sustained year performance condition which requires the company’s of base satary {with 200%
improvernents in RoRCV to out-perform the target set out in Ofwat's final being used In exceptionel
financial performiance, determination A sliding scale of targets is set. crcumstances) The curent
inhine with the The value of dmdends paid on the shares compnsing the grant [evel s 125% for the
compary’s strategy  award will be rotled up and paid on vesting Chief Executive and 80%
ard long term The award may be structured as o conditonal share award  of base salary for the other
shareholder retums (awards may also be settled in cash m certain crcumstances)  directors.
A dowback mechanism opplies to allow the recoupmentof  Upto 25% of an award
vested incentve awards within three years of vesting in the may vest for threshold
event of finanoaol misstatement, an eror in cateulating the performance
R N . level of vesting or gross negligence, fraud or gross misconduct. o o
Save As To encourage The executive directors are able to partiopate inthe group’s  The moximum hrmits under
Youkam  widespread employee SAYE scheme and SIP on the sarme terms os other eligible the plans are as set by HMRC
scheme share ownership to employees
(SAYE) enable employees to
and Share  share in the success
Incentve  of the business,
Man (SIP)  and to align thewr
interests with those of

shareholders
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Further deteils on the venable pay policy
Annual bonus

The performance meosures and targets are carefully selected annually to align with the relevant business unit’s strategic and
key performance indicators. The annual weighting of the bonus between the vanous metrics and personal contnbution may vary
depending on the key prorities of the business for the year ahead Robust ond demonding targets ore set taking mto account the
operuting environment and prionties, market expectations and the business plan for the year ahead

Long term incentives

ali7ip

RORCV is used to assess performance under the LTIP This 1s consistent with the measure used by Ofwat I setting customer pnces as
part of the final determination {the process whereby Ofwat sets the level of pnces Sevem Trent Water can charge custormers) and
reflects the efficency of earnings rather than simply being an absolute megsure of profit. 1 1s venfied and published os port of the
Annual Regulatory Performance Report. The Committee believes thaot the use of RoRCY provides a strong alignment between the
long term financiol and operational performance of the group and the reward delivered to rmanagement.

Perforrnance I1s measured over the three finanaal years with a siding scale of targets applied The Committee reserves the
discretionary power to adust the formulaic outtum of the RoRCV condition to ensure that the vesting result s reflectve of the
undertying financial and operational performance of the company over the performance period The use of this discretion 1s
expected to be exceptional, but may be invoked by the Cornmittee in order to take into account factors such as regulatory changes,
changes 1n the finanang of the company ond extreme wecther events (not an exhoustve listy This discretion can be operated
upwards or downwards, but the Committee would consult with its major shareholders before making any upwaords adjustment.

In relation to the awards granted n 2013 and pnor, there s a cap and collar lmrhing the extent to which this diseretion can be
applied (f the vesting result indicated by the RoRCV condttion s greater than 50% the Committee may reduce the vesting toa
number not less than 50%, and if it s 0% it may ncrease it to any figure not greater than 50%). This cap and collar approach will not:
apply to awards granted from 2014

In addiuen, for any awards to vest, the Committee must be sabisfied that there has been no compromise to the commercial
practices or operchional standards of the group I the Comrrittee 1S not so satisfied, then the vesting percentage may be scaled
back as appropnate {induding to 0%)

b) Legacy Share Matching Plan

Untit 2013, awards were also made under a Share Matching Plan (SMP) Under the SMP, the policy has been that executive directors
rould receve up 1o 0 5 matching shores for each share deferred under the onnuc! bonus plan {the maxmum oword level wos
therefore 30% of salary) The matching awards were subject to achievement of a relatve total shareholder retum performance
condibon and financial underpin At the tirme of release participants alse recesve the value of the dvidends paid on vested shares
over the performance penod The executive directors have outstanding awards under the SMP reloted to grants mede in 2011, 2012
and 2013 The outstanding awards will be allowed to pay out under the approved policy subject to achieverment of the performance
condions on which they were granted,

Rernuneration Committee discretion

The Committee will operate all plans according to the rules of each respective plan and the discretions contained theren

The discretions cover aspects such as the timing of grant and vesting of awards, deterrmining the size of the award (subject to the
policy brits), the treatment of leavers {see policy on terminations), retrospective adjustent of oward size (e g for o nghtsissue,

a corporate restructuring or for speaat dvdends) and, in exceptronal crcumnstances, the dscretion to adjust previously set targets

if evertts happen that cause the Committee to determine that it would be appropnate te do so In exercising such discretions the
Committee will take into account generally accepted market practice, best prachce guidelines, the prowisions of the Listing Rules and
the company’s approved reruneration policy

Pension policy

The executwve directors porticpate in @ vanety of pension amangements The policy for future appaintments, wivchis reflacted in the
remuneration package agreed for Liv Gorfield, is a company contnbution to o defined contnbution schernie and/or cash allowance
up to a maximum of 25% of salary. Legacy armangements for the other directors melude a 40% of salary cash aflowance for Michoel
McKeon and Andy Smith and 30% of salary for Martin Kane Toriy Ballance is a member of the Sevemn Trent Pension Scheme
(Pension Choices section), a defined contribution scheme. He currently contributes 3% of salary and the company contnbutes 30%,
plus a further 2 5% in respect of death in service and ill heaith benefits The nommal retirerent age for the scheme s 65 although
retrernent prior to 65 is possible with the consent of the company

Martin Kane, Andy Smith and Tony Wity are legacy members of the company’s defined benefit pension scheme Plegse see poges
72 and 73 for further details.

!
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Remuneration Committee continued

External directorships

Executive directors are permitted to take on extemal non-executive directorships, though normially onty one other FTSE 100
appontrment, to bring a further external perspective to the group and help in the development of key individuals’ experierce
In order to avoid any conflicts of Interest, all appointments are subject ta the approval of the Nerminations Cormnmittee
Executwe directors are permitted to retain the fees ansing from one appointment.

Shareholding guidelines

The company operates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to buld and mainton a shareholding
In the company The Chief Execuitive 1s expected to build and maintan a holding of shares to the volue of 200% of salary and other
executive directors 125% of salary Executive directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number of shares they recene
through the LTIP, SMP and deferred share bonus untl the shareholding guidelines have been met.

Reward scenarios

The charts below show how the composition of each of the executive directors’ remuneration packages vanes at different levels of
performance achievermnent.

Graph removed

Mnimum po:. o fixed pay oniy (| & solary + benefits + pension) On-target pay rxiudes fixed pay, 6 60%s of sdlory bonus ond 50%% vesting of the LTIP awards (with grant levels of 125% of salary for
the Chief Executive and B0*. of sctary for the other executive directors) Maxsrmum pay includes fied poy ond assumes 100¥.s vesting of both the anruok boms and the LTIP gwords Na shore price
growth has been foctored nto the above chart and ot amourts have bean roundexd to the nearest £1,000 Salary levels [which are the bose on which other elernents of the pockage are colculated)
are based on thosa applying at 1 July 2014 The value of taxcble benefits 1s the cost of prawding those benefits in the yeor ended 31 March 2014 {esumated value used In the case of Liv Gaorfield)
Motz that the majenty of Martin Kane .. taxcble benefit« relote to his relocation to the LS. Tha executive directors are olso parrnitted to participete i the comgany Sere As You Eaen Scheme and
Share Incentrve Plan but they ha e been exciudad from the abave graph for smrplicity

Service contracts and policy on paymenits for loss of office
The remunerabion related elements of the current contracts for executive directors are shown i the table below

Provision’ Policy i

Notice penod 12 months from erther party

Termination payment Under the policy and as reflected in the senace contract for Liv Garfield and all future appointments,
payments for loss of office compnse a mearum of 12 months' salary and benefits only
The policy under other executive directors’ legacy contracts prowvides for @ maximurm payrment in
the case of redundancy, payment inieu of notice or termination in breach of the agreement by the
company of 175% of base salary In determining octual payouts, the Committee sholl have regard
to the ovemding requirement to be farr to both the company and the executive In particular, the
comparty shall not be required to reward farlure on the part of the executive (which in the case of the
contracts other than for Michael McKeon s reflected in the finanaal performance of the group) and
shall have regard to the current corporate governance standards at the date of termination of the
executive In such cases, the Committee may exerase its discretion to reduce the payment by up to
10% (lowenng the payment to 157 5% of salary} and in the case of Michael McKeon it may reduce the

i payment os it thinks fit.

Mihigation Any termination payment will not be made automatically but will be subject te both phasing and
mitigation (including offset against any earungs from nevs employment). i
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Change of controt There are no speafic contractual payments or benefits which would be tnggered in the event of
" 0 change In control of the company Outstanding iIncentive owards would vest in line with the
treatment set out below for a good leaver except that the perfermance and vesting period will end on
the date of control

Annuol bonus The Committee may exercise its discretion to pay abonustoaq depqrbng executive, subject to

performance ond pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the year worked. The bonus would be paid at

the same tirne s for the other directors and if the executive hos left employment by that date, &t ray

be paid solely in cash

Any outstanding deferred bonus shares will vest on cessatbion of employment unless the departure sa

L ) _ resutt of summoary dismissal.

LTIP The default treatment 1s that owards wil tapse on cessation of employrnent. However, executives will
be considered a good leaver in certoin prescnbed arcumstances or by the discretion of the Committee
If an executive 15 g good leaver, the award will ordmarily vest on the normal vesting date subject
to performaonce and tme pro-~mating {bosed on the proportion of the perfermonce pertod that the
executive has been employed rounded up to the nearest month) The Committee may determine that
the award should vest early, and in excepbional arcumstances may tme pro-rate the award to a lesser
extertt. For the outstanding owards under the legacy 2005 LTTP, the time pro-rating is calculated by

o i ___ rounding up to the nearest fult year

Share Matching Plan The directors have outstanding awards relutmg to gmnts mode in 2011, 2012 and 2013. The default "
treatrnent 1s that awards will lapse on cessation of employment. However, executives will be treated as
a good leaver in certan prestrbed oroumstances or by the discretion of the Committee, in whith case
the matchung award will normally continue to run for the full three years subject to performance and
time pro-rating (rounded up to the nearest colendar month) The Committee, however, may decide to
pro-rate to a lesser extent and/or aliow the award to vest earty

Recrutment gwards As detailed under the recrutrment policy, the Committee -has the discretion to grant awards to buy-out
an executive’s awards at therr previous employer if necessary to secure their employment. The terms
of any recruitment award will be determined on a case by case basts In relation to the one-off awards
granted to Liv Garfield, on her appontrient as Chief Executive, these ore subject to performance
condrtons and will not be subject to time pro-rating in the event of the early termination of her
appaintment by the comparty Trus lack of time pro-rating was agreed in recognition of the fact that
the expected value of the forfeted awards at BT wos significantly higher with much of it being non-

) ) performance related (and which would not have been scaled back for a similar event)

Outplacement services and reimbursement of legal costs may be provided where appropnate Any statutory entitlements or sums
to settle or compromise daims in connection with a termination would be pard as necessary Outstanding awards under the SAYE
and SIP would vest in accordance with the terms of the plans as approved by HMRC

Al non-executive directors have letters of oppointrnent with the company for an inibial pened of three years, subject to annual
re-gppaintment at the AGM The Charman’s appointment may be terminated by the compary The appointment letters for
the Chairnan ond non-executive directors provide that no compensation is payable on termination, other than accrued fees
and expenses

Approach to recruitment and pramation

The remuneration packages for all new executve directors will be set in ke with the company’s approved policy The Comimittee will
take mto account, in arrmng at o total package, the skills and expenence of the candidate, the market rote for a condidate of that
level of expenence, as well as the importance of secunng the best condidate

Annugl bonuses and long term incentives will be awarded In ine with the maximum limits set outiined in the policy on page 62
Porticipotion 1 the plons will normatly be pro-rated for the yeor of joirng

The Committee may rcke additional cash andor share based awards if defered pay is forferted by an executve on leaving

o previous employer Such awards would take into account the nature of awards forferted (Le. cash or shares), time horzars,
attnbuted expected value and performance condsitions Awards would typically be made under the terms of the LTIP or under

the exernptions permitted under the Listing Rules Nen-performance related payments e ‘golden hellos', will not be made

Other payments may be made In relation to relocation expenses and other Inadental expenses as appropnate

In the case of an internal appomtrnent, ary varable pay element awarded in respect of the pror role would be allowed to pay out
occording to the terms on which it was onginally granted

das 21Ba1001S

i yo

UDADULIMUI YD SIUAWSIDIS |paubul AUpdwso)  SJUSLI0]S [DIduDUy dnois  83UDUSaACD

65



Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Remuneration Committee continued

Chairman and non-executive directors

The remuneration poticy for nan-executive directors, other than the Chaimmian, 1s determined by the board. The fee for the Charman
is determined by the Remuneration Committee {without the Chairman present)

Purpose andlink to

Elernent strategy Operation Maarmum Opportunity

Fee Torecruit and retan  Base board fee with edditional fees paid for the senior Detals of the cument fee
non-executvesof @ independent director and charmanship of the board levels for the directors are set
surtable calibre for Committees The Chamnan recerves a total fee in out in the Annual report on
theroleond duties  respect of his board duties. Fees are paid monthly rermuneration
required. Reasonable expenses are paid where necessary The fee levels are set subject

The fees for the non-executve directors and Chairman are o the maximum birruts set out
set taking into account the tme commitment oftherole 0 the articles of assocation
and market rates in comparable corpanies The fees are

nomnaily reviewed annually (but not necessarily ncreased).

Non-executive directors normally serve terms of three years. They do not have service contracts. Instead they are engaged by
letters of appointment which are terminable by either party with no notice penod and no compensation in the event of such
terrination All of the directors are subject to appointment or reappointment at the 2014 AGM, with the exception of Baroness
Noakes who will be retining from the boord with effect from the condusion of the 2014 AGM

Annugal report on remuneration
Thus part of the report will be subject to an advisory vote at the AGM The information on pages 67 to 74 1s audited

Membership of the Remuneration Committee and its adwisors

The members of the Committee are Uisted in the table below All are iIndependent non-executve directors, as defined under the
Governance Code, with the exception of the company Chairmnan who was independent on his appoirtrnent. Dunng the year ended
31 March 2014, the Cemmittee met six tmes to discuss key remuneration ssues arising, the review and operation of the compary’s
remuneration policy and market updates by its advisors

Rermuneration Committee attendance in 2013/14
Richard Davey* ' "

- o o ) ~ . 56
Andrew Duff* ) o Sl6
Dr Bernard Bulian o T o vy
Martin Lamb o i 6!6~
Dr Angeb Strank i i 202

* Unable to attend one meeting owing 1o prod business comamtments,

The Comrnittae members have no personal finanaal interest, other than as shareholders, in the matters to be deaded The Chief
Executive, Director of Hurnan Resources and General Manager of Reward and Policy also ottended the Committee meehings

to provide adwice and respond to specific questions Such attendances spedficolly excluded any matter concerrung their cwn
remuneration The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee

To ensure that the compary’s remuneration practices are in line with best practice, the Comrruttee has access to advice from New
Bndge Street (NBS) (o trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited) NBS is the independent adwsor to the Cornmittee and were appointed
in 2011 Netther Aon Hewntt Limited nor any ather part of Aon plc provided other services to the comparry dunng the year The total
fees paid to NBS during the year were £209,089 excluding VAT The Committee reviews the appointrert of its advisars annually and
is comfortable that the adwice it receves 1s objective and independent.
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Directors’ emoluments

" o " Year ending 31 March 2014 ’ Year ending 31 March 2013

Bosesalaty  Benefits Amual  Longterm Base salory Benedits Arcugl  longterm

£000 andfees Inkind® Pension®  bonus® incentves™ OtherM Totl  ondfees ke Pensor® bonus™ mcentvess) Other?  Totol
OrBemard T o T ) o i )
Bulkin - 473 - - - - 01 474 &0 - - - - - 630
RchardDavey 750 - - = - 02 72 750 - . " _ 03 753
{Chamon) 2500 - - - - - 2500 2500 - - - -~ 2500
Gordon Fryett 533 - - - - - 833 0 - < - - - 500
Martmtomb 500 - - - - - se0 50 - C - - 500
Baroness - ) T ) )
Nookes 650 - - - - 63 653 650 - - - - 03 653
Philp ) )
Remnant'® 02 - - - - - 02 N
Dr Angela - ’
Strank & 94 - - - T 34

TonyBallonce 2021 166 746 1620 1442 63 6058 1985 165 728 1958 789 42 5667

MotnKone 2555 1458 766 1265 1619 50 7733 7508 1210 752 2880 987 24 8361
Mhael

Mckeon 4631 165 1856 348 3269 05 13374 4522 166 1813 4462 1997 0612966
Andy Srrith 2629 165 1499 2105 1923 97 8418 2568 169 1607 2538 1174 06 8062
TonyWrmy | 5612 165 2286 4526 4895 119 17601 5524 165 2233 5464 2061 0616353
Total 22950 2119 7153 12962 13148 340 58672 22637 1875 713317302 7908 905695
Footnotes

M Benefits include o cor ollowance of £15,000 per annum, Tarmily leved private medicot insurance, life assuminee worth § x base solory telephone ollos onees and particpation in an incnponty
benefits scheme The figure shown far Marte Xane ncludes ramuneriton pad as compensation for his required relocation 1o the US This figure includes his US cost of Ivng cxpenses, compnsing of
occommaodaban costr, UK and US prvete medical mnsuronce, vehidle costs, o foms, tox odvice, flexible benefits, US disturbonce ollowance, utilty costs and o residuol poyment in re-pect of o share
ow o, He olso receved compen.abion for UK Lax suffered on US bensfits £49 434 (2017 £44,270}

() In the yeor to 31 March 2014 Andy Smith wa: a member of the defined benefit pension scheme and the figure shown represents the anmual o to the companty of providing the defined benefit
perizan up ta the annual scheme cag £141,000 (2013 £137,400) pies the annual cash supplement paxd in leu of o pension above the cop £52,770 (2013 £51,676) From 1 April 2014 Andy Smith
will receve g solary supplemertt i liey of pension worth 40+ of base sakry i Line with legocy controctual grrangernents Tory Bollonce is a mermber of tha defined contnbution scheme ond the
figure shown s the contribubon pad into the scherne b, the company n the veor For the other executve directors the figure shown s the annuel cosh supplerment paid in heu of @ pension.

(i) The onmnuth bomss i pod 507610 cash 6nd S0% 0 shores with the portion defersed into shares subject to on sddiont! heiding pened of thiee yeors with no further perfomance
condibions aftocked.

() The 2014 figure is compried af

- The vasting of the 2011 LTIP cward The perfarrtiance period for this award ended on 31 March 2014 and the awantds will vest in June 2014 The volue of the shar. has been esumated by using
the averoge shore prce for the penad from 1 Jonuory 2014 to 31 Morch 2014 of £17 71

- The vesting of the 2010 SMP oward, The performance panod for this owond ended on 20 May 2013 and the awords vested on 14 Juna 2013 ot o share price of £17.57
The 2013 figure & cearvgmsed of
- The vesting af the 2010 LTIP gward, The perfarnance penod for this oward ended on 31 Morch 2013 and the awards vasted on 14 June 2013 atashare pnce of £17 57

{w) For non executive directors, this figune relates to expenses For exetutree directors, ths figure consists of the salue obtained from nclusion I tie Severn Trent all employee Save As You Eam
Scherne ornd Share Incertrve Plon.

(v Rerzred from the board on 24 January 2014
(vil) Jomed the board on 31 Morch 2014
(T} Joned the bogad on 24 Joruary 2014
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Remuneration Committee continued

Annugal bonus outturn for 2013/14
The waighting of the performance measures for the ennual bonus awarded during the year was as follows

Graph removed

Performance of Severn Trent Water
The bonus outtum In respect of Severn Trent Water performance was determined by reference to a balanced scorecard of
measures, based on 10 of the company’s 16 Key Performaonce Indicators (KPls) The Committee believes that the use of the
selected 10 Sevemn Trent Water KPIs cortinues to be both an effecve and challenging annual bonus metnic and meets the needs
ofthe business The bonus entitlement was deterrmined by reference to the oggregate nurmber of points awarded across all the
KPIs The targets token together are considered by the board to have an impoct on the longer term finanaiol performance of the
company and a number of them are reported to Ofwat.

The KPIs used to deterrmine the annual bonus are

Key Performance Indicators Torget Stretch Outtum  Points
Employee KP11 _Lost ime nadents per 100,000 hrs worked 028 027 021 130
» Praviding a safe working KPI2  Employee motivation 79% 80% B81% 130
environment
« Developing a canfident and
productive workforce
Customer KPL4  Serwice Incentive Mechanism - Qualitative 452 473 448 99
* Qualtty interaction with the KPL5  Service Incentve Mechanism - Quantitatve 162 154 143 130
customer KPL7 Semceqlgll!ty—Wcs_.tg i __ o T35 66 57 130
KPIB  Serviceability - Water ) 7 T 68 202 0
Financial KPI9  Copital Expenditure {net) versus final determination - 0% 02% 0% 100
» Asset bose enhancement % outperformance
* Monagerment of cost base KPI11 Operating Expenditure versus final determination - T 0% 06% 0% 100
% outperformance
Environment KPL12 Pollubon incdents {cat 1,2 and 3} 491 475 449 130

+ Minirmising environmental impact  KpL 16 Leakoge MUd - Post MLE

456 449 441 130
Totat 1,079

Ench KPL hos 100 torget pounts, 130 stretch points and, in theory, extra poutts von be eamed for obove stretch performance For erecutive directos to be ovaarded the maxsrum borus available they
are required to ochieve 3,300 oggregate points. uring the year, 6 of the 10 KPIs exceeded the stretch level of performance, generoting an aggregate netial score of 1,443 points. After exarvining the
overall performonce and indicatve bonus outtum the Committee determined that eoch of the 6 KPEs should be copped ot the levet of stretch performance (Le. 130 pomts per KFT) As o consequence
the find oggregate score was 1,079 ponts The resulting bonus o arded for the Severn Trent Woter porton of the onvwel benur wes 63 2 1 of its bonus element moumum, rpresenting 6 strong
performance in the year and continues the pesitne progressive trend in the outturn of the KPis,
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Petformanice of Severn Trent Services

In respect of Martm Kane, performance was measured ogamst, the profit before interest and tax {PBIT) {before exceptional tems)
and non-financiol objectives of Severn Trent Services

Weighting ) % ochieved
PBIT - o il L 6%  (%outof65%
Non-financial objectives 35% 26.75% out of 35%
Total 100% 2675%

The tatal bonus payable for Severn Trent Servces’ performance was 26 75% of the maximunm. In respect of Michae! McKeon,

his performance was measured aganst the achieverment of the Sevemn Trent Services business plan. He was awarded 25% of the
maximurm bonus avallable as although the financial measures were not met the strategi: cutcomes were driven successfully
Personal contnbuton

All directors had 10% of ther bonus opportunity measured against personal objectives, with the exception of the Chief Executive
and Chief Execuitve of Sevem Trent Senvices, who had 20%. The persanal objectives set related to PR14 and the AMP6 business plan,
development of the retail business, talent and succession planning and trensition monagerment.

Overoll achievement for 2013/14

STW STS Personal

performonce  performance performiance Total bonus
% salary Deferred shares

% salary % solary %salory  {max120%}) Cash £ £ Total £

ToryBallance 6826 - 840 7666 _ 80587 80,587 161,974
Martn kane 758 2247 1920 4925 63267 63267 126534
Michael Mckeon ) €067 300 1020 73BT 1Al 172,417 344,834
Andy Smith ) _ 6826 - 840 7666 105,249 105,249 210,497
Tony Wray 60.67 - 1800 7687 452 364 - 452,364

The bonus 1s paid 50% in cash ond 50% in shares (deferred for three years) The deferred shares will be granted in June 2014
The deferred shares are not subject to any further condtions save for continued emplayrment. Tony Wiay retired fram the board on
11 Apnl 2014 and the Commuttee exerased is discretion to pay his bonus solely in cash

Long term ncentive owards vesting in relobion to performance in 2013/14
The 2010 SMP awards and the 2011 LTIP awards have or will vest based on performance during the year

2010 SMP awards

The 2010 SMP awards were subject to a TSR performance
condition, megsured relative to companies ranked 51-150:n
the FTSE by market capitalisation {excluding investrent trusts)
The performance penod was three years commencing on

the date of grant (21 May 2010) In addition, the Committee
must be sobisfied that the company’s TSR wos reflective of the
comparny’s underlying performance The performance penod
ended on 20 May 2013 with Severn Trert ranked 27 out of 82 Graph removed
comparnes The Committee was satsfied that the company's

TSR appropnately reflected the company’s undertying
performance and the award vested at 78 0%
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Remuneration Committee continued

2011 TIP awards

The 2011 LTIP owards were subject to an RoRCY performance
condition, measured over three finanaial years to 31 March
2014 The Committee has vanous discretions in relation to
determining the final vesting outcome as set out in the policy
report. The performance perod ended on 31 March 2014

The Committee considered the level of ReRCV out-performanice
of the Ofwat final determination for the 2011 LTIP award after
adjusting RoRCV to exclude the impoct of an exceptional tax

credit. This showed the average RoRCV over the three years Graph removed !
endng in 2013/14 had still outperformed the RoRCY Ofwat final |
determination by 16 5% therefore resulting in 100% vesting
Surnmary of long term incentive award's vesting based on performance in 2013/14
i i ' Number of Endof Volue of
shores performonce Nurnber of resultont
Exacutive Award type Grant date gronted penod % vesting shares vesting oword® Vesting date
Tory Ballance ] SMP 21/05/10 2,069 20/05/13 78% 1613  £28340 21/05/13
LTIP_ 22/06111 6525 310314 100% 6525 £115558 01/04/14
Totol } £143898
Martin Kane ) _SMp 21/05/10 2,586  20/0513 78% 2017 £35439  21/05/13
i LTIP 22/06/11 7121 31/03714  100% 7,121 £126113  01/04M14
Total £161,522 \
Michael Mcieon ~ SMP_ 21/05/10 5177 20/05/13 78% 4038  £70948 210513 |
LTIP 22/06/11 14411  31/03114 100% i 14411 £225219 01/06/14 ‘
Total £296,167 ‘
Andy Srmith SMP_ 21/0510 3,049 20005113 78% 2,378 £41,781 21/05/13
LTIP 22/0611 8477 310314 100% 8477 £150128 OLOL/14
Yotol £191,909 ]
Tony Wray® SMP 21/05/10 5591 200513  78% 4360 £76605 21/05/13
LTIP 22/06/11 23,271 31/03n4 100% 23271 E412129 01/04/14
Total

£488,734

{i} For the SMP awaord this 15 based on the share price at release of £17 57 For the LTIP award thys is bosed on the overaga shore price over the finat three months of the performance penod (£17 ™1)

ar the oword: will not be relecsed until June 2014

(#} Tony Wrory retired from the board on 11 Apel 2034 As nated on poge 75 he s beang trected os o good leaver under the rules of the LTIP His oward vests as normel on § April 2014 and wil be
refeased after the end of the daswt period. inocoondance with the nules, there i no pro-roto reduction since he served for the whote of the performance peried
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Outstanding scheme interests, induding share awards grarted dunng the year

The table below sets out details of the executives’ autstanding awards under the LTIP and SMP, deferred share awards under the
Annuol Bonus (ABS) and SAYE scherne as at 31 March 2014

Maxmum Percentoge vesting " Endof Awards grarited dunng the year
nurnber of atmmimum Berasepnce  performance

Executre Award type shares performance {p period exercse date Bassofoward  Facevalue

ToryBollonce ™ 20110T1P __ __ 6525 _ 0% - 310374 01/04/4 - -
2012170 T 5,741 0% - 3103nS oueAs T T
20131TIP 5855 0% _ T 310316 01O4e  50% salaly _£103,050°
2011SMP ~ 1,868 _ 5% T < T19/051%  20/05/i4 oY
0125MP 71721 _ 5% .- 24J05/15° 25/05115 - -
2013SMP 2963 5% - 12406/16 T06AE T 05imatch T £48926°
2011 ABS 3,736 - - =~ 30/06/14
2012 ABS 3442 X - = - 28I06N5 - 7 J
2013 ABS™ 5926 ~ - -~ 26/06/16 ~ Deferred bonus £97,852
2013SAYE 725 -l - Muy~16 -
2013 SIP 32 - - - - -
Totol 38,534 )

Martn Kane  2011LTIP 7121 0% - 31/03714 01/04/14 - -
2012LTP 7119 0% _ . - 3103/15 010415 - -
20130MP 7,119 0% - 3103/16 01/4/16 ~  S0%salary £125300°
20115MP 2131 S% 5 1905h4 20054 00 - -
2012SMP 2162 5% - 240515 250515 0 - <
2003SMP T 43600 5% ~  12/06/16 "13/06116_  051match =~ £72,000
2011ABS 4262 - = =o30M0804 oo )
2012 ABS 4,324 - - —_ _2BI0B/1S. - -
2013ABS 8721 - - - _26/06116 Deferredbonus £144,000
011SAE " 7 316 - _n3yr = May-14 -
2012SA¥E | 152, - 1 - May-15. - -
2013sAVE T 290 - T 1 _ May-16 - -
200488~ T 270 - 1331 - May-17 - -
2013 5P .32 - - - ST - -
Total 48379

Michoel McKeon 2011 UTIP 14411 _ 0% - 310314 010414 - -
200217 T 12684 0% - 310315 01/04/15 - )
2013L7P _© 12,937 ) 0% - _ 3403716 QU046 S0%salary £227,700
20118MP~ 3938 5% - 7 19f05/16 00515 - =
2012 SMP 3,685 5% - _24/05A5_ 2505115 L -
2013 SMP 6757 5% - T 1206/16 13/06/16  05imatch £111,564
2011485 7876 - e - _30/06/4 - -
201248~ 7370 . - - - moeAs - %
2013 ABS 13514 - - - 26/06/16 "Deferedbonus ~ £223,128_
2009 SAYE ~ 1943 - 82 - Mayls B )
2013 SIP 32 - o - L -
Total 85,147

AndySmth ~ 2011L7IP 8477 0% - 31/0314_ 01/04/14 - -
2012L7P 7460 0% - _ 31/0315. OM04/15 - oo
W01BUP - 7T 7610 0% - 3103116 01/04/16 50%sctary  £133,950
2011 SMP 2399 5% - 190514 20/05/14 - -
20125MP ~ 2234 5% - 24j05/15"  25/05/15 - -
2013sMP T 3842 5% - 12/06/16 13/06/16  0S51match  £63,436
2011ABS 4798 - - - "30/06/14 - z
2012485 4468 - - - 28/0615 " -
2013 ABS 768 = T~ -TT26/06M16 Deferredbonus " £126,872
013SAYE T T 7257 - 1241 - Muy—16 -
20138IP 12 ) T - . .- -
Total 49729
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Remuneration Committee continued

Maxmum®  Percentage vesting End of T Awards gmnteﬁ d;rnlr“\-g—ﬁyedr
nurmber of ctrunmum Exerasepnce  performnonce Vesting/™
Executive Award type shares pedfomance (p) penod exerase dote Bssofoward  Focevalue
Torny Wray 201101F 23271 ) 0% - 3103114 _ 010414 .- i -
2012LTIP . 21,875 . 0% - 3Y03/15_ QU04/15 - o
013 T 32312 . T 0% 0 - 31/0316 010416 TO%salay  £392700,
2011 5MP 4,542 5% - 19/0514 20/05/14 - -
2012SMP 4733 5% - 20515 2500515 . 7 .. -
2013sMP 8,273 5% - 1206/16_ 13/06/16_ = 051match £136592
2011 ABS 9,084 ) - - = 14/04/14 - -
2012ABS 9467 _ - } - - laosns T =
2013AB5 16,546 ) - - - 14/0614 Deferredbonus  £273,185
20138AYE . 725 - 1241 - May-16 - -
20138k 32 . - - - .- ) = -
Total 120,860

[0 & sords that cre due tovet m o close penod will be released an the first dealing day where practicable, after the end of the dose perod The expected releose date for the 2011 LTIP owords &
June 2014

(i} Additional dvidend eguivalent shares may be reteasec where pro aded in the rules

Long Term Incentive Plan awards

The LTIP awards are granted s conditional shares The target range for all outstanding awards 1s the same as for the 2011 LTIP set
out on page 70

As noted on page 70, the 2011 LTIP vests at 100% on 1 Aprii 2014, however as the compary was In a close penod the release of
award will be made ofter this period ends The 2013 LTIP awerds were granted on 19 June 2013 The share pice used to colculate
the number of shares granted was £17 60

Share Matcting Plan awards

Awards are granted in ine with the policy outlined in the Policy Report. For awards granted in 2011 onwards, TSR performance is
measured over three different measurement penods, each commenang on the date of grant - 20% of each award s measured
aver 18 months, 30% over 27 months and 50% over 36 months 25% of each part of the award will becorne eligible for vesting for
median performance increasing {on a straight ine basis) to full vesting for upper quartile performance or above However, for ony of
the aword to vest, the Committee must be satisfied that the company’s TSR s reflective of the company’s undertying performance
over the full three year performance penod

The 2011 SMP awards vests, subject to performance, on 20 May 2014 The 2013 SMP awards were awarded on 26 June 2013
The share pnce on that date was £16.51

Deferred shares urder the Annual Bonus Scheme
Each year, 50% of an executive director's annual bonus is deferred in shares for three years. The owards are granted in the form of
conditional shares The 2013 oward relates to the deferral of the annual bonus for 2012/13. The oward wos granted on 26 June

2013 The share price used to calculate the number of shares gronted was £16 51. The deferred shares relating to the annual bonus
for 2013/14 will be granted 1n June 2014

Sove As YouEarn

The executive directors, n common with gll ehgible UK employees of the group, are entitled to particspate in the cormparty’s HMRC
approved SAYE Scheme

Share Incentrve Plan

The directors received an award of free shares inked to the performance of Sevemn Trent Water under the Share Incentve Pian
{worth £583) during the year on the same temns as ather Severn Trent Water employees The shares vest immediately on grant

Directors' pension provisions
T h Service -7 T Incessen” o0 - i
completed n Increosen occrued Tronsferwolue  Transfer value Increase m Increcse in
year {iIncluding Accrued oocrued  pension dunng of occrued ofaccrued  tronsfervaue  valuenetof

transferred in pensionat pension dunng the year (net of penson at pension at net of directors’ directors’

Name senvice gedits) 310314 the year nflation} 310313 310314 contibutons  contributions

AndySmth 9 43459 2680 5835 6808 8047 11564 888,

Tony Wray & 30,743 925 269 5115 5476 361 00

Martin Kane 35 151,924 2,811 -469 2,7489 28287 798 -84

Notes

The accrued pension figure and transfer volue caiculations have been provided by Tawers Wotson The inflation figure used in respect of the yeor to March 2014 was as ot Septamber 2012 {2 260} in
line with stotutery guxionce for colculating the increqse in volue
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Torty Wraty and Andy Smith are deferred members of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme {SSPS Section) Tory Wray ceased to
contribute to the Scheme from 31 Decernber 2011 and Andy Smith from 31 March 2014, when they became deferred pensioners
of the Scheme and stopped accruing pensionable service, Ther normal rebirement age under the scheme is 60 Early retrement

is available after the age of 55 with the consent of the company Any pension woid be subject to a reduction that the trustees
consider appropriate, acting on actuanal adwice, to reflect the expected longer payment of the pension. In the event of total
mcapaciy, ecrly retirement is available on an unreduced basis allowing for pensionable serce te oge 60 Under the Trust Deed
and Rules, pensions in payment are guarariteed to increase in line with retail pnce nflation subject to a maxmurm of 5% each year
(subject to Guaronteed Minimurn Pensions being increased at least in line with statutory requiremnents)

Martin Kane 1s 0 member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme (WPS Section} but opted out of the scherme n fune 2007 While he
no longer acaues addional years of service for pension purposes, consistent with the legslation, Mertin Kane's accrued benefits

generglly continue to be inked to s final salary {or £161,000 plus RPI from 30 June 2007 to the date of ts retirerment, if higher)
and scherme benefits are preserved in relation to ilthedlth retirement and deoth in servce

Extemnal directorships
Michael Mckeon was appeinted as a non-exeautve directar of The Merchants Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 and m respect of the
appointment for the year ended 31 March 2014 he was poid fees of £26,042 (2013 £23,458)

Tony Wy was oppointed os a non-executive director of Grainger plc on 24 October 2011 and in respect of the appontment for the
year ended 31 March 2014 has been paid fees of £48,500 (2013 £41,250).

Both Michiael McKeen and Tory Wray retained their respective fees in accordance with the above policy No other executive directors
currently hold any external fee eaming non-executive directorships

Directors shareholdings and summary of outstanding share interests

As disclosed in the Policy Report, the comparty operates sharehalding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to
build and mantain a shareholding in the company (this was increased to 200% (2013 150%) of salary for the Chief Executive and
125% (2013 100%) of salary for other executive directors in Jonuary 2014) Details of the curent shareholdings of the directors and
whether they have met the new shareholding guidelines are set out below

Interests in shares os at 31 March 2014

Qutstanding scheme interests % shareholding
Benefically Defemed shares under gudelne
Director owred  LTIP ond SMP the Annivol Borus  SAYE options Totol ochreved*
DrBernard Bulkin® _ i 554 o - - .- -
Richard Davey 588 - - - . T -
AndrewDuff ) 3,500 - - - - -
GordonFryett 2220 - ST e T ST
Mortin Lomb 3,012 i - - - - -
Baroness Noakes o 4018 = i = - -
Phitp Remnant? - - - - - -

Dr Angela Strank® - - . ce e
Tony Ballgnce _ 15,526 24673 13,106 735 38502 = 152
Martin Kane i 235807 30012 17,307 1028 48,347 185
Michaet McKeon _ 36215 54412 28760 143 85115 158
Andy Smith ) 26220 32022 16950 725 49,697 185
Tony Wray* N 45,596 85,006 35,097 725 120828 100

*  The shame pnee used Lo cotouiate the permentage of the shomeholding guideting netieved was £15.23 {os at 31 Morch 2014)
1 Or Angeta Strank joined the boont an 24 lanuary 2004
& Torn Wiy retired from the boord an 11 Aprl 2014
Shares counting towards achievernent of the guideline intlude benefically owned shores end the net of tox value of deferred shares
under the annuat bonus since they are not subject performance condrtions The executive directors are expected to retain all shares

1 Dr Bemard Bulkn retived from the boand on 24 January 2014
2 Phiip Remnant jeined the board on 31 March 201+

receved through the vesting of ony incentve schemes {after the settiernent of any tox babiity) undd the shoreholdmg guidelines arermet.

There has been no change In the directors’ interests in the ordinary share copitat of the comparny between 31 March and 28 May 2014,
other than Martin Kane acquired 316 shares on 27 May 2014, with o market pnce of 1,899 pence per share, following the exercise of
his 2011 three year Sharesove scheme option, generating a £2,408 gain

In additon, Tory Wray acquired 241 shares on 12 May 2014, with a market pnce of 1,885 pence per share, following the earty exercise of
bws 2013 three year Sharesave scheme oplion, generating @ £1,552 gain The rermaining 484 Sharesave options lapsed on 12 May 2014
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Remuneration Committee continued

Percentage increase :n the remunerction of the Chief Executive

Chief Executwe (£000) 2014 013 %Change
- Salary i o o _ 5612 5524 _16%
- Benefits T S eS| 185 -
- Bonus ] o 4524 546.4 (17.2%)
Average per emnployee (£1000)

- Solory o - 285 275 36%
-Benefits' - B T 04 -
- Bonus? - 13 12 83%

1 Indudes car allowance and faruty kevel prmvate medwcol insuronce for senior and middle menogens
2 The figures are based on an estimote as the 2014 tanuses ore not finalised before the dole of publcotion

The tabte above shows the mavement in sclary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current and
previous financial year cormpared against that of the average employee The Committee has elected to use the averoge eamings
per employee as this avoids the distortions thot can occur to the company’s total wage bill as a result of movements in the number
of employees. The comparator group used were Sevem Trent Water employees based in the UK as this s where the vast majortty of

our employees are based

Totat sharehalder return chart (not subyect to audit)

This graph shows the value, by 31 March 2014, of £100 invested
in Severn Trent Plc on 1 April 2009 cormpared with the value of
£100 nvested in the FTSE 100 index. The FTSE 100 was chosen
as the comparator index because the company Is a constituent
of that index. The intermediate points show the value at the

intervening financia! year ends
Graph removed

Tetal remuneration of the Chief Executrve

o o7 ] T - Year ending 31 March

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Chief Executive ToryWray TonyWmy  ToryWray  TonyWray  Tory Wray
Total remuneration (£'000) i . ... 0270 9498 12441 16353 1,7601
Annuat bonus (% of maxmum) _515%  432% 481% 824% 78 7%
Pvestng (% of maxmum) ) 630% 00%  284%  575%  100%
SMP vesting (% of maxirmurm} ) ) ’ ]  T78%

Relative importance of the spend on pay

The table below shows the expendrture of the company an staff costs agairst dmdends pait to shareholders for both the current

and prior financral penods, and the percentoge change between the two penods

2014 2013 %Change
Staff costs (Em} : N 3405 3409 (01%)
Dmidends (Em} 1853 3220 (42 59%)9

@ The drvdend in 2013 was unusudly hugh due to the specat divdend of £149.9 mEbon pasd m hdly 2013
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How the poticy will be opplied in 2014 onwaords

Salary, benefits and pension

Base salaries for all executive directors will be increased by 2 7% from 1 July 2014, with the excephion of the Chief Executive,
LivGarfield As a new joner to the company, Liv's salary will next be reviewed on 1 July 2015 The level of iIncrease to be applied for
201415 aligned to that which the company will apply to the salanes of the general UK workforce

The base solaries for the executive directors fromn 1 July 2014 are as follows

vGarfield o ) o ) ) . £650,000
Michael McKeon ) £479,500
AndySmth L L. ) o  £282,100
Martin Kane o i i o L - £_263,900
TEJny 8allance £217,100

Benefits and pension prowvision will be applied n kne with the policy set out in the tabte on puges 61 and 62

Annual bonus

For 2014715 the bonus weightings will be 50% on the Sevem Trent Water balanced scorecard, 40% on key business objectives and
10% on personal performance For the CEC and CFO the key business objectives will relate to a mixture of Severn Trent Water and
Severmn Trent Services performance, while for the Drector of Water Services ond Director of Strategy and Regulation they will relate to
Severn Trent Water performance Martin Kane's bonus will be based 90% on the financial and non-finanaal performonce of Severn
Trent Services and 10% on personal objectives.

The structure and operatton of the annual bonus wall be as outimed in the policy table. The Committee considers the performance
targets to be commercally sensitive and has therefore detenmined nat to disclose them in advance. Full details of the targets used will
be set out In next year's Rermunerution report.

Long Term Incentrve Plan

The LTIP awards for 2014 will be granted under the new plan, subject to its approval by shareholders ot the 2014 AGM The grants
will be 125% of saiary for the Chuef Executive (set os part of the recrutment package) and 80% for the other executive directors
{the award size baing determined by the Committee after taking into account the potential value of the SMP forgone and after
exarruning maorket rernuneration levels generlly) The awards will be subject to an RORCY performance condition in line with
existing awards,

The vesting scale will be as shown on page 70 {100%~107%)

Retirerment from the board of Tory Wray T .

Tony Wray retired from the company on 11 Apnl 2014 after completing his 12 rmotkh riotice perfodt: Ne wilt not recenve any
compensation for toss of office As a retiree, Tory Wray will be tregted as agood leaver in relation to his outstonding incentive
awards Consistent with the policy on terminations, his bonus for 2013/14 will be pald in cash and his outstonding deferred share
bonus awards vested, in full, on cessation of empleyment. His outstanding awards under the SMP and LTIP will continue to vest
on the normal vesting dates, subject to performance and a time pro-rata reduction For the SMP awards and, as @ condition of the
grant of his 2013 LTIP, time pro-rating s calculated to the nearest month. For the 2012 LTIP award time pro-rating is calculated to
the nearest full year Any outstanding SAYE and SIP awards vest in accordance with their terms.

Recrurtrment of Liv Garfield os Chief Executive

The remuneration package granted to Liv Gosfield on apportrment 1s os follows

» Salary of £650,000

* Pension contribttion of 25% of salary

+ Annual bonus patentral of 120% of salary

+ LTIP grant level of 125% of salary

The annual bonus and LTIP targets are inline with our policy A one-off LTIP awaord was necessary to secure her appontrment,

as partidl consideration fer her signficartt unvested entitlenents ot BT, The award will be split into three equal tranches, the face
value of each being £812,500 (125% of base pay of £650,000) vesting in 2014, 2015 and 2016 {matching the vesting times of

her unvested entitlernents) It will be subject to the same performance condition and continued employment condition as the
equrvalent Severn Trent LTIP awards vesting in each of those years. Awards will vest on a tokeover and in the event of a good teaver
subject to performance. There will be no scaling back on @ time pro rata bass This ladk of pro rating was agreed in recognition of the

fact that the expected value of the forfeited owards 15 very signficantly higher with much of it being non-performance retated {and
which would not have been scaled back for a similar event).

In addition to this one-off oward she will be rembursed for reasonable expenses in relation to her relocation.
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Remuneration Committee continued

Non executve directors’ fees
The Chairman will receive o single fee of £257,000 for 2014/15 to cover all his board duties.
The 2014 fee levels for the non-executive directors are set out in the table below

Fees
Base fee paid to all non-executve directors ) £51,350
Supplementary fees ] o o - ] ) o
- Senior independent director ) o ) ~_ £10,00"0n_
- Audtt Committee Charmar o i o i _ £15000
- Rernunerction Committee Chairman i £15,000
- Corporate Responsibility Committee Chamman ) " £13,000
The Charman and non-executve directors nomally serve for terms of three years The current expiry dates of their letters of
appointrnent are Richard Davey (31 December 2014), Andrew Duff (9 May 2016), Gordon Fryett (20 June 2015}, Mortin Lamb
{1 March 2017}, Baroness Noakes (16 July 2014}, Philip Remnant {31 March 2017) and Or Angela Strank (24 January 2017}
However, dll of the directors are subject to reappointment at the 2014 AGM
Statement of shareholding voting at AGM
At lost year's AGM, the Directors’ remuneration report recenved the following votes from shareholders.

i " i ’ ’ Total number of votes % of votes cast
For ] 141,217,885 89 74%
Aganst - 367,093 026%
Total votes cost L . 141,584,978 o .. 100%
Abstentions - - 131,174
Richard Davey

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

28 May 2014 F%c&nb@av-q_
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the gudrited
aroup finanoal staterments, for the year ended 31 March 2014
The Governance section set out on pages 45 to 76 forms part of
this report.

Principat activity

The pnncipal actmity of the group 15 to treat and provide water
and remove waste water in the UK and intermationclly

Details of the pancipal joint ventures, assoaated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2014 are shown in

notes 19, 20 ond 46 to the finanaal statements on pages 112
and 142

Business review

The Strategic Report onthe inside fromt cover through to poge 41
provides detalled information relating to the group, its business
models and strategy, the cperation of its businesses and the
resuits ond finanaal poston for the yeor ended 31 March 2014

Details of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties foang the group
are set out in the risk management section on pages 38to 41

Directors and their interests

Biographies of the directors currently serving on the board are
set out on poges 42 and 43

All of the directors will be offenng themselves for election or
re-election at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as set out

n the Gavemance repart. an page 46, with the exception of
Boroness Noakes who will be retring from the board with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM.

Details of dwectors’ senace contracts ore set out in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 64 and 65. The interests of the
directors in the shares of the company are shown on pages 70
to 73 of that report.

Insurance and indemnities

The compony mantains Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought

agamnst s directors and officers. in accordance with the
compary’s articles of association, and to the extent permitted

by law, in Novermber 2011 the compary indemnified each of its
directors and other officers of the group against certain liobilites
that may be incurred as a result of thewr posttions with the group

Indemnities were also entered into with Dr Angela Stronk,
Lw Garfietd, Phlip Rermnant and John Coghlan upon their
appontrments to the board.

Severn Trent does not have in place any ndemnibes for the
benefit of the udrtors. 1

Employees
The gverage number of employees within the group is shown in
note 9 to the financaial statements on page 164

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key
foctor in baing o successful business. Apart from ersunng an
indvidual has the ability to do the job we do not discnminate

n ary way and make every effort to ensure that those with
disabiittes can take up emnployment with us. We endeavour to
retan employees in the workforce if they become disabled, we
moke all regsonable adjustments to their role and, If necessary,
loak for redeployment appartunities to support thern in seeking
on altermative role within Severn Trent. We ensure that trainmg,
career developrment and promotion opportunities are avaiable
for all cur employees irespective of their gender, race, age

or cisability

The provision of occupobonal health programmes s of cruacl
importance and, i parbautar, wark has been undertaken dunng
the year to promote awareness of mental heglth issues and
the employee assistance programme available to Severn Trent
Water employees

The group actvely encourages employee involvernent and
consultation ond ploces ernphasis on keeping its employees
informed of its actvity and fingnoat performance by way

of company wide communication forums, bnefings and
publication to staff of all relevant Information and corporote
announcements To help algn employees’ Interests with the
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" success of the company’s performance, Severn Trent offers two

employee share plans The Sevem Trent Sharesave Scheme,

an HM Revenue ond Customs approved SAYE plan, 1s offered

to UK ernployees on an annual basis. The Sevem Trent Share
Incentrve Plan, approved by HM Revenue and Customs, mokes
an annual award of shares to Sevemn Trent Pic and Sevemn Trent
Water Limited employees, based on performance aganst the
company’s KPI targets

Research and development

Expendrture on research and development s set out In notes
7 and 17 to the Financial statements on pages 103 and
110 respectively

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Farr Value Directive oy
relgtion to the use of finanaal mstruments by the company are
set out in note 37 to the Finonaal statements on poges 127 to

135 Rurther details on our treasury policy and management are
set out in the Financiol review on pages 36 and 37

Post balance sheet events

Details of post balance sheet events are set out i note 44 to the
group finanaal staterments on page 141
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Directors’ report continued

Dividends

An ntenm dwidend of 32 16 pence per ordinary share was paid
on 10 January 2014 The directors recommend a final dmdend
of 48 24 pence per ordinary share to be paxd on 25 Juty 2014
to sharehotders on the register on 20 June 2014 This would

Substantial shareholdings

" Asat 31 March 2014 the compary had been nobfied In

bring the totel dividend for 2013/14 to 80 40 pence per ordinary

share {2013 75 85 pence) The payment of the final dvdend s
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM

On 27 July 2012 o speaal dvdend of 63 0 pence per ordinary
share wus paid to shareholders.

Capital structure

Details of the company’s issued share capital and of the
movernents during the year are shown in note 32 to the
finandial statements on page 123 The comparny has one

class of erdinary shares which carmes no nght to fixed income
Each share cames the right to one vote ot general meetings of
the comparty The issued nominal value of the ondinary shares is
100% of the total issued nomingl value of all share capital

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of the artides of associotion and prevaling legslation
The directors are net aware of any agreements between holders
of the company’s shares that may result in restnctions on the
transfer of securties or on voung nghts

Detaits of employee share schemes ore set out in note 38 to the
financial statements on pages 135 to 138 For shares held by
the Severn Trent Employee Share Gwnership Trust, the trustee
abstains from vating

No person has any speaal nghts of control over the comparty’s
share capital and oll issued shores are fully paid.

With regord to the appointment and replacement of directors,
the company s govermed by tts artides of association, the
Governance Code, the Comparues Act 2006 and refated
iegislation The articles may be emended by special resolution
of the shareholders. The powers of directors are described in the
Severn Trent Plc Board Govemance docurnent, the arbdes and
the Governance report on pages 4610 51

Unider its articles of association, the directors hove authonty to
allot ordnary shares, subject to the aggregate norminal omount
it set at the 2013 AGM

There are @ number of agreements thot take effect after, or
terrinote upon, o change of control of the company, such as
comrmercal cortracts, bank loan ogreements, property lease
arangements and employee share plans. None of theseIs
considered to be signficant in terms of therr Likely impoct on
the business of the group as a whole. There are no agreements
between the comparty and its directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employment that
ocaurs because of a takeover bid

accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules of the following major shareholdings.

Ne. of ordlﬁcry Penrl:enmge of ;otlng

shares of 97'%sp nghts and ssued
Narne of holder each share capital
Blackrock Inc ) 23,457 458 987%
" Newton Investment
Managernent Ltd 11,474,764 4 B0%
Legal & General ) N
Group Plc 9,523,698 399%

Percentages rounded to two decimal places
As at 28 May 2014, the company had been notified of the

following holdings of voting nghts in the ordinary share capital
of the cornpary Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 {9 87%), Newton

« Investment Monagement Ltd 11,474,764 (4 80%}) and Legal &

General Group Plc 9,523,698 (3 99%)

Authority to purchase shares

The company was given authonty at its AGM 1n 2013 to make
market purchases of ordinary shares up to @ maximurm number
of 23,882,260 shares. Sirvilar authorty wil again be sought from
shareholders at this year's AGM No market purchases were
made by the company duning the year ended 31 March 2014

Contributions for political and charitable purposes
Donabons to chantable erganisations during the year amounted
to £108,000(2013. £97,707) Donations are gven to charities
whose projects align closely with our dim to promote the
responsible use of water resources and waste water services

* which provide the opportunity for longer termn partnerships.

In addihion, we prowide donations to employee normnated

charties through o matched funding scheme and health and
safety reward schernes We are also committed to supporting
WaterAuid, the UK’s only major chartty dedicated to mproving

. access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation in the world’s

poorest courtnes

Sevemn Trent's policy i not to make any donations for poliical
purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU pottical parties or incur
EU political expenditure Accordingly neither Sever Trent Plc nor

! Its subsidianes made any poltical donations or incurred polical

expenditure in the financal year under review
Under the provisions of the Poliical Parties Elections and

. Referendums Act 2000 (the relevant provisions of which are now

contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006), shareholder
authonty s required for polttical donations to be made or
poliiogl expendrture to be incurred by the company or any of
its subsidianies in the EU and disdlosure of any such payment
must be made in the annual report. The legislotion gives a wide
defintion of what constitutes political donations and polibcal
expenditure indudsng sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of
expenses, paid leave for employees fulfiting public duties and
support for bodies representing the business commundy in
policy rewiew or reform The company has therefore obtainex
lirnited authonty from shareholders os a precautionary measure
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to allow the company to continue supporting the community
and such organisations without inadvertently breaching
the legislation

At the 2013 AGM, shareholders gave the company cuthonties
to make polibcal donations or to iIncur political expenditure

in the EU (which would not ordinarily be regarded as political
donations} up o an oggregate annual imit of £150,000 for the
comparny and its subsidwones Pursuant to those authonbies,
dunng the year ended 31 March 2014 the group mcurred costs
of £nil 2013 £nil) Those authonties will exprre at the 2014 AGM
and, in Line with market proctice to renew the authonties on an
annual basts, the board has deaded to put forward a resolution
to this year's AGM to renew the authonties to make donations
to political erganisations and to incur political expenditure up to
a maximum aggregate of £150,000 per annum As permitted
under the Compantes Act 2006, this resolution also covers any
polical donations made or political expendsture incurred, by any
subsichanes of the compary

Report on greenhcuse gas emissions
This ts the first year Sevem Trent has been required to report
greenhouse gas {GHG) emissions In the Directors' report.

Sevem Trent 15 committed to reducing its GHG emissions

For Severn Trent Water, which accounts for 98% of our total
group emissions, we have been publidy reporting on our
emissions since 2002 In that time we have reduced aur
emissions consistently We hove achieved this prmarily by being
mare energy efficent and generating maore renewable energy

Our continued investment in renewable energy over the past
decade and beyond now allows us to generate 204 GWh pa,
the equivalent of 23% of Severn Trent Water's electncity needs
We continue to lead the UK water industry in renewable energy
production and our aim 15 to generate the equnvalent of 30%
by 2015

Severn Trent Water has hetd the Carbon Trust Standard since
2009 in recognihon of consistent emissions reductions and
effective carbon manogerment processes Qur gross GHG
emissions have continued to reduce since we first achieved the
Standard becruse of our reduction n energy consumption and
our increase in self-supplied renewable energy This yedr, Severn
Trent Water used 824 Gwh of electncty, which s 22 GWh

(2 4%) less than in 2009 and Sevemn Trent self-supplied 154
GWh of electricty, 26 GWh (20 5%) more thon in 2009

Our approach of generating more of our own energy and
reduang the amount we use reduces our costs and our relance
on the electncity gnd.

Further details about our approach to cimate chaonge and the
nsks ahd opportunhies it presants to our business are set out in
our Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) subrmisston (www cdp net)
The CPP request nforrnotion about cimate change from
companies each year on behalf of investors and score each
company on the quality and completeness of their responses,
We have seen g year on year improvement in our CDP score and
In 2013 we achieved 83%, compared to the average score of
81% across the FTSE 100

Our GHG emissions are reported in tonnes of carbon dioxde
- equivalent {tCO,e), for the period 1 Apnt 2013 to 31 March 2014
. The GHG data we report is reported internally duning the year
1o the Corporote Responsibitity Comimittee and to the board.
We have subjected our GHG dato and processes to external
assurance by Atkins

Sevem Trent Plc d‘lrect;:punﬁmql green}m:;e gas
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emissions {tC0.e) 201314

Enrissions frorm combustion of fuel and operation

of faclites (Scope1) i _ 169,844

Ernissions from electniaty purchosed for own use

{Scope2} i 330,679

Total annue! gross operabional emssions 500,523
* Annual GHG Intensity ratio ({00, At} 2013014

Operational GHG emissions of Severn Trent per

£rm tumover 2696

Our long term aim is to be carbon neutral and energy self
sufficient, provided this 15 the best value option for our
customers and investors We planto continue to reduce our
emussions within Severn Trent Water by a further 3% between
2015 and 2020, pnranly by reducing our energy use We plan
to continue to Increase our renewable generation mainly within
our non-regulated business where the focus for expansion is
the emerging food waste digestion market. Pursuing these
rneasures will continue to reduce our key sources of emissions,
reduce our rebance on the electnoty gnd and bnng financial
benefits for our custormers and investors.

Notes,

Our approach to reporting ts based on the GHG Protoond Corponate Accounting ond
Reporting Stondard and we have included only ernissions from the assets which we
own and operote and which we con directly influence ond reduce, known as the
fingnoal control boundory In eccordance with the reporting reguitrhans, we have not
reported on ermissians we con influence bt which we ore not respansible fer, referred
to os ndrect emssions.

For Sevem Trent Water, we have colaudated owr ermissions using the ‘Carbon accounting
nthe UK Water industry mgthodology fer estmatang operational emussions, Verson B.1°
{relegsed March 2014) Ths s o peer-reviewed calculotion tool devetoped and used by
all the mayor water componies n the UK. [t s updnted each year to include the lotest
availoble erressions foctors. For Severn Trent Seraces, we have used the iotest Defo
Emessions factors which mclude the relevant comversion factars for overseas electnaty
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Directors’ report continued

Internal controls

The board 15 responsible for the group's system of intermal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness The board reviews
the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including
finanaol, operational and cornpliance aspects induding .
nsk maonagement, at teast annually in accordance with the
requiremnents of the Governance Cede The intemal control
systern can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenol misstatement or lass, as #t1s designed to
manage rather than elminate the nsk of falure to achteve '
business objectves. '

The Audit Committee reviews the group’s nsk management
process and the effectiveness of the system of mternal control
on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which
to enhance the control and assurance arrangements The Audit
Commitiee recenves reports every six months from the Chief
Executive detailing the significant nsks and uncertainties faced
by the group, an assessment of the effectiveness of controls
over each of those nsks and an action plan to improve controls
where this has been assessed as necessary During the course of
its review of the system of intemal control in 2013/14, the Audit
Commuittee has not identified nor been advised of any falings or
weaknesses which it has determined to be significant.

The Internal Audrt department provides objective assurance and
adwvice on nsk management and control. The external auditors
(Delorttte) also report on significant finanaal contral issues tothe |
Audit Committee

An independent reporter (Atlans) provides objective ossurance
in relation to the Sevemn Trent Water Limited Annual Regulatory
Complance Statement and Annual Regulatory Performance
Report. Delortte camed out a review of the agreed upon
procedures relating to the catculabion of the finonaiol KPIs :
included in the Annual Regulatory Compliance Staternent and
the Annual Requiatory Performance Report.

The board confirms that procedures providing an angong i
process for idenirfying, evaluating and managing the poncpal
nsks and uncertainties faced by the group have beeninplace .
for the year to 31 March 2014 and up to the date of approvol
of the annual report, which is in accordance with the revised
guidance on internal controt published in October 2005

(the Tumbull Guidance)

The group’s procedures for exercising control and managing nsk
in relation to financial reperting and preparation of consoldated
occounts include
+ the formulation and communicabion of group accounting
policies which are regulorly updated for developments in IFRS
and other reporting requirements,
« speaficauon of a set of financiol contrals that oll of the
group's operating busmesses are required to implement as
a rinmum,
* deployment of a group-wide consalidation system with
controls to restnct access ond mantain integrity of datg,
« recrutment, training and development of appropnately
qualified and experienced financial reporting personnel,
oversight by the Disdosure Committee of the group’s
compliance with its disclosure obligations; and
monthly reviews by the board of financial reports frorm the
group’s operating businesses

Relevant audit information
The directors confirm thot,

= sa far as each of them is aware, there 5 no relevant audrt
information of which the company’s auditors are unaware,
and

= eqch of them has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
hove taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of
any relevant audit informabon and to estoblsh that the
cormpary's auditors are aware of that informabion

This confirmation s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006

External auditors

Heing camed out a review of therr effectiveness during the
year, the Audit Committee has recommended to the board the
reappantment of Deloitte LLP and a resolution to that effect wall
be on the ogenda at the AGM Delortte LLP hove indicated their
willingness to contmue as auditors. The Audit Committee will
also be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of

: the board

Accounts of Sevem Trent Water Limited

Requlatory occounts for Severn Trent Water Limited are
prepared and sent to Ofwat. A copy of these accounts wall

. be available on the website of Severn Trent Water Lirmited

(www.stwater co uk) or on request to the Company Secretary.
There 1s no charge for this publicotion




Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Going concern

The group’s business actwvities, together with the factors likely
to affect its future devetopment, performance and posiion and
the business reviews of Sevemn Trent Water and Severn Trent
Services ore set out in the Strotegic report, frorn the inside front
cover to page 41 The financial position of the group, its cash
flows, bquidity position and borrowmg facilities are described in
the Financick review on pages 33 to 37 The group's objectives,
palicies and processes for managing its coptal and its financial
nsk management objectives are descnbed in the Financial
review on pages 33 to 37 and in the Governance report.

Details of the group’s finanad nstruments, hedging activities
and exposure to credit nsk and liquidity nsk are described in note
37 to the group finonaa! statements.

The group’s panaipal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water,
15 a regulated long termn business characterised by rult

year investment programmes The group's strategic funding
objectves reflect this The group therefore seeks to attan

a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds
ocross a range of funding at the best possible economic cost.
Average debt maturtty 15 16 years and the effective average
interest cost dunng the year was 5 B%. The group s 1n a strong
higuidrty posttion ond had £123 2 milion n cosh and lquid
reserves and £500.0 million of undrown comenitted bank
focilibes at 31 March 2014, which are expected to be sufficient
to fund tts Investrent and cash flow needs at leost untit
December 2015 in the normal course of business

Severn Trent Water cperates in an industry that 1s cumently
subject to economic regulation rather than market competition
Ofwat, the economic regulotor, hos o statutory obligation to set
price brmits that 1t beleves will enable the water companies to
finance ther actvites. As a consequence the directors believe
that the group 1s well placed to manage its business nisks
successfully despite the cumrent uncertain econorruc outiook.

After making enquines, the directors hove a reasonable
expectation that the comparty and the group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence forthe
foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adapt

the going concern basts in prepanng the annual report

and accounts

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the companty will be held at the International
Convention Centre, Broad Street, Brrmingham B1 2EA at 11om
on Wednesday 16 July 2014 The notice convening the meeting,
together with detalls of the business to be consilered and

" explanatory notes for each resolution, is dstnbuted separately

to shareholders [t is also available on the cormpany’s website
{www severntrent.comn)

By order of the board

Bronogh Kennedy

General Counsel and Cornpany Secretary
2B Moy 2014
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annuat report

and the financiol statements in accordance with applicable low

and regulations
Company low requires the directors to prepare finandal

statements for each finanaal year Under that law the directars

are required to prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with Intemationat Finanaot Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the

IAS Requiation and have elected to prepare the parent compary

financiol statements in accordance with Finanaal Reporting

Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Frarmework, Under company

low the directors rmust not approve the accounts unless they
are sahsfied that they give a true and far vew of the state of,

affars of the comparty and of the profit or foss of the comparty

for that penod

In preponng the parent company financial statements, the
directors are required to

+ select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimeates that are
reasonable and prudert,

state whether Finanaial Reporting Standord 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclesed and explained in the finanaal
statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis
unless It is nappropriate to presurne that the company will
continue in busness.

In preponng the group finanaal statements, International

Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors

« properiy setect and apply accounting policres,

» present information, including accounting policies, N a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

- provide addttional disclosures when compliance with the

specific requirernents in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users

to understand the impact of particutar transactions, other
everits and condrtions on the entity’s financial posttion and
finanaal performance, and

- make an assessrment of the compaory’s abilty to continue as

Wy

agoing concem

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient te show and explain the company’s
transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable

thern to ensure that the finonoial statements comply with

the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other rrequlanmbies

The directors are responsible for the montenance and
ntegnty of the corperate and finanaial informetion induded

on the company’s website Legsslation in the UK governing the
preparation and disserrunatbion of finanaal statements may

« differ from legislabion in other junsdichions

The directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as awhole, i farr, balanced and understandable and
provides the nformation necessary for shareholders to ossess
the company’s and the group’s performance, business models
and strategy

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

» the finanoal staterments, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financia! reporting framework, give o true and far
view of the assets, labilities, financal position and profit o
loss of the company and the undertakings induded in the
consolidaton taken as a whole, and

- the manogement report, which 15 incorporated into the
Dyrectors' report, includes o farr review of the devetopment
and performance of the business and the positon of the
company ond the undertokings induded in the cansolidation
taken a5 a wholg, together with a description of the pnnaipal

nsks and uncertanties that they foce.
By order of the boord
' Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Charman Fnance Director
28 May 2014

At W
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Independent auditor’s report to the members

of Severn Trent Plc

Opinion on financial statements of Sevem Trent Plc
In our opinion:

» the finanaal statements give a true and farr view of the
state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affarrs
as ot 31 March 2014 and of the group's profit for the year
then ended,

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with Interational Financial Reporting
Stondards (IFRSs) as odopted by the European Union,

« the parent company finanaal statements have been properly
prepared n accordance with Finanaal Reporting Stondard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

» the finonoal statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Componses Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Aracle 4 of the
IAS Requlation

The finanaal statements compnse the Consolidated income

statement, the Consolidated and Parent staterment of

comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Porent company
balance sheets, the Consolidated cash flow statement, the

Consolidated and Parent company staternents of changes in

equity and the related Consolidated notes 1 to 46 and Parent

company notes 1 to 18 The financiol reporting framework
that has been applied n the preparation of the group financiol
staterments 1s applicable law and [FRSs as adopted by the

Risk

Eurcpean Umon. The finanaal reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the parent company financiol
statements s apphicable law and Financiol Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclasure Framework.

. Going concem

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’
statement contained withun the Directors’ report on page 82
that the group is @ going cancem We confirm that.

= we have conduded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basts of accounting in the preparation of the financial
staterments 1s appropnate, and

- we hove not dentified any matenal uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt on the group's obility to continue as @
going concem

However, becouse not all future events or conditions can be

predicted, this staternent 1s not a guarontee as to the group’s

abilty to continue as a going concern

Our assessment of risks of material misstaternent

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement descnbed below
are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the
allocat:on of resources In the qudit and directing the efforts of

. the engagement team

) How the scopa of our audit responded to the nsk

Determination of the provision for impairment of trode
receivobles.

Provisions gre made cgamst Severn Trent Water's trade
recenvables based on hustoncal expenence of levels of recovery
from accounts in parbicular ageing categones

Revenue recognition risk In relgtion to the estimation of
unbilled revenue in Severn Trent Water,

For water and waste water customers with water meters,
the amount recognised depends upon the volume supplied,
indluding an estmate of the sales value of units supplied
between the date of the last meter reading and the year
end The estimated usoge 1s based upen historical data and
assumptions around consumption pattems.

_sample of this data back to its source

We reviewed and challenged the imformation used to
determine the bad debt provision by considenng cash collection
performance against histoncal trends and the level of bad debt
charges over tme Specfically, we reviewed the actual history of
slow paying custorners in Sevem Trent Water in the perod using
data anolytics to understand the collection of previously aged
debtors and to recompute the ogeing analysis. We also tested
the key cortrols relating to the data used in the bad debt model
and agreed a sample of this data back to its source, being the
billing system

T we choltenge& the valdity of nwnagerhgnfs estimate of the

current year accrued revenue by companing actual amounts
billed to the estirmate made in the pnor yeor to determine the
accuracy of the estimation techruquies In addrtion, we used
data analytics to recompute the total level of unbilled revenue
for the current year in Severn Trent Water as well as testing the
controts around the key data inputs to the model and ogreed a
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Resk

i Haut?uescnpecfwrwd:trespondedtothensk

The assessment of the carrying value of goodwitl
Management is required to carmy out an annual Impairment,
test. This is a complex and subjective process which requires
managerment to make estmates concerming the future cosh
flows of each cash-generating unt and assooioted discount
and long term growth rates based on their view of the future
prospecis of the busmess

Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit
obligations.

This process is complex and requmes monagement {after
taking adwice from their actuanial advisors) to make @ number
of assumptions concerming long term interest rates, inflation,
salory and pension increases, svestrment returns and longewity
of current and future pensioners.

Determination of cumrent and deferred tax balances
Assessing the outcorme of uncertan tax positions requires
judgements to be made regarding the result of negotiotions
with, and enquines frorn, tax authonties 10 a number of
Junsdiciions.

“We challenged the key assumptons relating to the estmated
future cash flows of each cash-generating unit {'CGU) by
considenng histoncal performance aganst budget and our
understanding of future prospecis We also compared the
long term growth rates and discount rates for each CGU to
Industry benchrnarks and performed sensitivity analysis to
understond the cash flow impact of a reasonably possible
change In assumptions

Regarding the £24.7 millon impament charge recorded in
The group's US Water Purification business, we considered the
impairment indicators dentrfted by management, erbcally
reviewed therr assurnptions N relation to estmated future cash
flows of this CGU and held discussions with servar manogement
to understand the future prospects of this business, and the
__related sensitvity analysis

" With support from the pension speaaiists within our audtt
teamn, we challenged the assumptions used in the calculation
of the pension scherme defiat as detaled m note 30,
specfically regarding the discount rate, inflation rate and
mortalty assumphons with reference to comparable market
and other date

With support frorn the tax spequhsts within our audit teamn, we
considered the likely outcomes of uncertain tax positions and
reviewed correspondence with the tax authorties to assess the
appropnateness of the tax balances thot have been recorded in
the bolonce sheet

The Audit Cormnmittee’s consideration of these risks s set out on
page 54

Our qudit procedures refatng to these matters were designed
in the context of our oudit of the financiot staternents as a
whole, and not to express an opinon on indwduol accounts

or disclosures Our opimion on the finanaal staternents is not
rodified with respect to any of the nsks described above, and
we do not express an opinion on these indmdual matters.

Our agpplication of materiglity

We determined planning matenality for the group to be

£18 rmullron, which 1s approximately 7% of pre-tax profit before
exceptional tems and other adjustments inctuding the farr value
moverments in financial instruments, These items are excluded
to focus on the group’s underlying trading performance,
consistent with the group’s intemal and extemal reporting.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report

to the Committee all audit differences 1n excess of £750,000,
s well as differences below that threshold that, m our view,
warranted reporting on guabtatve grounds

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group oudit scope focused on the consolidation at the
parent compary level and the group’s two business segments
being Severn Trent Water ond Sevemn Trent Services Sevem Trent
Water was subject to a full statutory qudt and accounts for over

90% of the group’s net operating assets and operating profit.
The extent of our testing on Severn Trent Services was bosed
on our assessment of the risks of material msstaternent and
the matenality of the segment’s global business operations,
pnnapally in the UK and the US, the matenolity of each
component being lower than that of the group

The group audit team follows a programme of planned wsts to
the gudrtors of each of the significant components of the group
not audited by the group tearn This pnmarily relotes fo the
Severn Trent Services oudit tearn n the US. The Senior Statutory
Auditor or another sanior member of the group tearm vists the
Severn Trent Senvices cudit teom in the US at least once every

, DWo years.

" Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006
In our opinior;
+ the part of the Cirectors’ remuneration report to be cudited

has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, ond

.« themnformation given in the Strategic report and the Directors’

report for the finanaal year for which the financial staternents
are prepared is consistent with the finanad statements

UORBLLIOJUI JBYY0  SIUBLLIYDIS [DuBLY Aupdwo) SIUAWBL0IS [pPuDLY dnoig | aduDLaneD yodas 21631045

85



86

Independent auditor's report to the members of Severn Trent Plc continued

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Adequacy of explanations recerved and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, \n our opinion

 we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our qudit, or

« adequote accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or retums adequate for our cudit have not
been receved from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company finanaal statements are not in
agreernent with the accounting records and returms.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Birectors’ remuneration

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are also required to report if
1 our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have
not been made or the part of the Directors’ remuneration report
to be audited 1s not In agreement with the accounting records
and returns Under the Listing Rules we are required to review
certain elements of the Directors’ remuneration report We have
nothing to report ansing from these matters or our review

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the

part of the Corporate governance staterment relgting tothe
compary's compliance with nine provisions of the UK Comporate
Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from

our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report

Under the Intemational Standards on Auditmg (UK and Treland),
we are required to report to you if, m our opimion, information in
the Annual Report 5.

+ matenally inconsistent with the information in the audted
finonaal staterments; or

- apparently matenally incomect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group ocquired in the
course of perforrning our audrt, or

= otherwise misleading

In particular, we are requrred to consider whether we have
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired
dunng the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider
the Annual Report is farr, balanced and understandable and
whether the Annual Report appropriately discloses those
matters that we communicated to the Audrt Committee

which we consider should have been disclosed We confirm
that we have not identfied ony such nconsistencaes or
misleading staternents

* Scope of the audit of the financial stotements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilties

staternent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of

the finana statements and for being satisfied that they give

a true and farr view Our responsibitity 1s to audtt and express

an opinion on the financial staternents In accordance with

applicable low and [nternational Standards on Auditing (UK and |
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing |
Proctices Board's Ethical Standands for Auditors We also comply

with Internabional Standard en Quality Contrel 1 (UK and

Ireland} Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that

our quality control procedures are effective, understood and |
appled Our quality controls and systerns indude our dedicated

" professional standards review tearn, strategicatly focused

second partner reviews and independent partner reviews.

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, asa
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audst work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the compary’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an gudrtor's report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent perrmitted by low, we do not accept or
assume respensibility to aryone other than the company and
the cornpary’s members as o body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed -

An audit ivolves obtaining evdence about the amounts

. and disclosures in the finanaal staternents sufficent to gve

reasonable assurance that the finangal statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by froud or

error This indudes an assessment of whether the accournting
policies are appropnate to the group’s and the parent
company's arcurnstances and have been consistently appled
ond adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sgnificant
accounting estrmates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the finanaial statements In addhion, we read all
the finanaal and non-finanaa information in the Annual Report
to dentify matenal nconsistencies with the audrted finanaal
staternents and to identify any information that is apparently
rmaterally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing

the audit. Ifwe become oware of any apparent materiol
misstaterments or inconsistenaes we consider the implications
for our report.

C0Y. L~

Cari D Hughes MA nior statutory auditor)
+ for and on behalf of D LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtor
London, UK
. 28May 2014
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2014
o ot T - T R o T s
2084  Restated
Note £m £m
Turnover 56 1,856.7 1,8316
Operating costs before exceptional tems _ o ] 7 (13399) (1,336 5!
Exceptional operating costs 8 {4ind) (43)
Totol operating costs 7 {1,3843) (1,340.5)
Exceptlonui loss on dlsposal of business 8 - {1.5)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptronal tems i i 5 516.8 495 4
Exceptional tems before interest and tax 8 {&hs.4) (5.8)
Profit before interest and tax &72.4 489.6
Finonceincome i o i 10 B08 784
Finance costs 11 (3287) (327)
Net finance costs. o _~ i L i 2479) “(2%.3)_
Gains/({losses) on financil Instruments ) 12 580 (45.3)
Share of results of ossoactes and iy ventures 02 02
Profit before tax, gains/{losses) on financral nstruments and exceptional tems 2691 2513
Exceptional items before tax o o o .8 A& (58
Gans/{losses) on financal instrurnents ) 12 58.0 {653)
Profit on ordinary actrvities before taxation 2827 200.2
Current tax excluding exceptional credt 13 (56.5) (27 9}
Deferred tax exduding exceptional credit i i .13 (1.5 8.2
Exceptloml tox credit 13 2302 384
Totol taxation on profit on ordinory actvibes 13 1522 18.7
“Profit for the year T 4349 2189
Attnbutableto L L i i _
Owners of the company ) 4338 2160
Non-controlling interests 11 29
4349 2189
Eamings per share (pence) . )
Basic i B i . 15 182.1 i " 909
Diluted 15 1813 905
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Sevem Trenl Plc Annual Report und Accounts 201!4

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2014
) ’ ) 2013
2014  Restated
£m £m
Profit for the year o . o B i _ h3nes 2189
Other comprehensive Income T -7
Iterns that will not tg_e__reg_lassrﬁed to the mcome stntement - L ) N
Net actuanal gain(ioss) on defined benefit pension schemes - 37 (392
Tox on net octuanal gmnl!oss B 08 90
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate (123) {3 4)
(9.54) (336)
Itemns that may be reclassified Lo the iIncome statement: i i i - i o
Gmn!ﬂoss) on cash flow hedges 151 (39 0}
Deferred tax on gamvloss on cosh flow hedges (30 90
Amounts on cash flow hedgest transferred to the ncome stutement ntheyear o 81 148
Defen'ed tax on transfers to ncome staternent i (1.6) (34)
Exchunge movement on translotion of overseas results and net assets (3.7 54
8.9 (132)
Other comprehensive loss for the year {0.5) {46 8)
Tatol comprehensive mcome for the year &34k 1721
Attnbutable to . i ) . i
Owners of the company . i o i i 4343 1687
ﬁéﬁ-controlhng rterests 0.1 34
4345 1721
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014
i i ) éqfatyutﬁbﬁmbha;mmofﬁ;em ” o
Share Share Other  Retained mntr:l!ﬁmn; Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At1April 2012 232.6 838 4002 256.9 9735 79 9814
Profit for the year (restated see note 3) - - - 2160 2160 29 2189
Losses on cash fiow hedges - - - B0 - (3%0) - {390)
Deferred taxon losses on cush flow hedges e 1 - %0 - 90
Amounts on cash flow hedges tronsferred
to the incomne stotement - - 148 - 148 - 148
Deferred tax on transfers to the Income
stotemert - - 34 ~ (34) - (34)
Excﬁange movement on transiatton
of overseas results and net ossets - - 49 - 49 05 54
Actuanal losses (restuted see note 3) - - - (392) (352 - (392
Taxon actuandal losses (restated see note 3) - - - 90 S0 - 90
Deferred tox ansing from rate change - - - 34) 34 - {34)
Total comprehensive income for the year e T I BT 1824 1687 34 1721
Share options and LTIPs S
- proceeds from shures Issued . _ by 58 - - 66 - 66
- value of employees’ services - B 69 69 - 6.9
- own shares purchased - - - (13) {13) -y
Current tax on share based puyments - - ) ~ 08 08 - 08
Transfer of |nﬁ'astructure reserve - - (3142 3142 N - -
Dnadends poid - - - {322 0) {3220 {09) {3225)
At 31 March 2013 2333 897 723 4379 8332 108 8440
Profit for the year T - 4338 4338 11 4349
Gains on cash flow hedges - - 151 - 15 1 - 151
Deferred tox on gains on cash flow hedges - - B0 - £y - GO
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
tothe income staterment ~ - 81 - 81 - 81
Deferred tax on transfers to the income ’ i
statement - - (16) - (16) - e
Exchonge ovement on ironsiation
of overseas results and net assets o - - 87 - 87 (10 97
Actuanal gains - - - 37 37 - 37
Taxonactuanal gons o - - - 08 ©08) - ©8)
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - N - 123)  (123) B (123)
Total comprehensive ncomne for theyear - - 99 4ah 4 4343 01 4344
Shareoptonsand(Ttes T T T L
~ proceeds from shares issued 06 45 -~ T 51 - 51
-wdlue of employees’seraces - - - 58 S8 - 58
-ownsharespurchased - - - @8 _ 8 - (28
Current th on share based paymeqt;:_ - - - 10 10 - 10
Adyustment onsing from change n ’
non-controlling interest - - - w37 (3n 22 (115)
Dwdends paid - - - (1853 (1853) (06 (1859
At 31 March 2014 2339 94.2 822 667.3 1,077.6 125 1,090.1
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Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 March 2014
- . T T o . T e T 2013
Note fm £m
Non-current assets ) i
Goodwill o o o 16 1“8 417
Other intangible assets . i " 17 802 ) EQ 3
Property, plant and equipment o i o 18 70235 67600
Interests m jont ventures 19 03 703
Interests in associates L o B ) 20 &9 47
Denvatwve financiol ussets i 21 724 1301
Available for sale financial assets ) 35 01 01
7,196.2  7,036.2
Current assets ) ) o
Trwentory py) 212 321
Trade and other recenvables o ) 23 5132 5060
Current tox recenable 165 405
Denvative ﬁnunctcll assets - i o 2 129 10
Cash and cash equrvalents 24 1232 4036
6930 9832
Total assets 7,8892 80194
Current Labilies . L o N
Borrowings ) 3s " {2061)  (1703)
Dervatwe ﬁnancnul labilires N ) (24.8) _oe)
Trude and other payables 28 (412 7} (3%930)
Provisions for Liabilities and churges 31 (12.1) {111)
6557y (5810)
Non-current babilties - o .
Borrowings i 35  (s0160) (46313)
Dervatwe finoncal babiities ) 27 (2062)  (3096)
Trade and other payables . B o i 28 (492.&) (453 4)
Deferred tax o L 2977 (65600  (7858)
Retirernent benefit cbligations o B - 30 (368.3)  (3837)
Prowsions for liabilities and charges 3 (26.5) {306)
(5,1434) (65944)
Total kabdihes 6,799.1) (7,1754)
Net ossets 1,050.1 8440
Equity _ ] ) .
Calledupsharecaptal o o . .32 2338 2333
Share premium account ) 33 942 897
Other reserves . o 34 812 723
Retanedeamings 6673 4379
Equrty attributable to owners of the company o L 10776 8332
Non-controlling nterests 12,5 108
Total equity 1,090.1 844D

Signed on behatf of the board who approved the accounts on 28 May 2014

Andrew Duff
Charman

Michael McKeon

Finance Director «_Q l 0
Company Number 2366619 Q)iw

AV,
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2014
) S o ) o - ) " 2014 2013
- Note- £m £
Cash generated from operations . o i N L 40 7302 7312
Tax recerved/(paid) 272 {725)
Net cash generated from operating actrvities 7574 6587
Interest recerved ) 65 37
Net cash inflow fram sale of businesses o o - - S ¥4
Acqunsltson of SUbSIdIOrIES 39 - (13
Acqusition of non<contralling lntemsts i ) _ 114 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets ) L _ 103 161
Purchases of Intongible assels ) (13.9) (160)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment L . .. (4%06)  (4292)
Contnbutions and grants recerved 303 273
Net cash used in investing activibies {468.8) (3870)
Finonang ociviiles o i
Interest paid o i - {2069) (1868}
Closed outswaps o o - (443)
Interest element of finance lease pﬁyments T ) ) ) C(@2) 60)
Dvdends paid to shareholders of the parent . o . i . (1853)  (3220)
Dwvidends pad to non—controﬂlng interests o o (0.6) _(05)
Repayments of bormwmgs N i ) o ~ (f72.4) (2599
Repayments of obligatrons under ﬁnonce leases L i ) (0.4) (17 4)
Newloonsrosed " 0.7 6683
Isuesofshares o L ) o Y | © 66
Purchase of own shares ) ] T es 0y
Net cash used i finanaing actmbies (566.8) {163 3)
(Decrease)/increase m cash and cash equivalents (278.2) 1084
Net cash and cash equwulents at beginning of penod i ) £03.2 2047
Effect of foreign exchange rates e ) B ) 01
Net cash and cash equivatents at end of period 1232 4032
Net cosh and cash equivalents compnse
Total cash and cash equivalents i T oo o T T 1232 T s036
Bank overdrafts ) - 04
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period 123.2 4032

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents is reconciled to the movernent in net debt in note 40
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Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

1 Generadl information

The Severn Trent group has a number of operations. These are
described n the segmental anatysis in note 5

Sevemn Trent Pic 1s a company incorporated and domialed in the
UK The address of ts registered office 1s shown on the back of
the cover of the Annual Report and Accounts.

Severn Trent Plc 15 listed on the London Stock Exchange
2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The finoncal statements have been prepared in accondance
with International Financiol Reporting Stondards (IFRS),
Intemnational Accounting Standards (IAS) and [FRIC

Interpretations issued ond effective and ratified by the Europecn

Union as at 31 March 2014,

“The finanaal statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis (see Directors’ report on page 81) under the
histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
cartam finanaial assets und Yabitbes (nduding denvatve
instruments) at fair value

The preparation of financial statemnents in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of estrates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and biabilites at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses for the reporting penod. Although these estimates
are based on manogement’s best knowledge of the amount,
event or actions, actud! results may ultmately difer from
those estimates

b) Basisof consolidation
The finanadl statements ndude the results of Severn Trent Ple

and its subsidiones, joint ventures and assoaated undertalings

The results of subsichanes, jont ventures and associated
undertokings are included from the date of acquistion or
incorporction and excluded from the date of disposal

The results of subsidianes are consolidated where the group has
the power to control a subsidiory

The resuilts of joint venture undertakegs are accounted for on
an equity basis where the group exerased joint control undera
contractual arrangernent.

The results of associates are accounted for on an equity basis
where the group holding 1s 20% or more or the group has the
power to exercise significant influence

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consoldated
subsidianes are wdentified separately frorn the group’s equity
therem Non-controlling interests consist of the amourt of those
interests at the date of the onginal business combination and
the non-controling mterests’ share of changes in equity since
that date

All Intro-group transactians, balances, Income and expenses are
elmmnated on consolidation

c) Revenuerecognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration recervable,
excluding value added tox, trade discounts and inter-comparty

. sctes, in the ordinary course of business for goods and

services provided

Revenue is not recognised until the service has been provided to
the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have erther
been despatched to the customer or, where they are held on
the customer's behalf, title hos possed to the customer

Tumover indudes an estimate of the amount of mains water
and waste water charges unbilled ot the year end The accrual ts
estimated using a defined methodology based upon a measure
of unbilled water consumed by tanff, which s calculated from
hsstonical biling information

In respect oflong term contracts, revenue is recogrused
based on the value of work camed out duning the year with
reference to the total sales value and the stage of completion
of these contracts.

Interest income Is acaued on o time basss by reference to
the prncipal outstanding and at the effective interest mte
applicoble Drdend incorme from investments 1s recognised
when the group’s nghts to receve payment have been
established. Interest ond dividend income are ndudedin
finance income

d} Exceptional items

" Exceptional temns are incorne or expenditure, which indmdually

or, f of a similar type, in aggregate should, in the opirien of

. the directors, be disclosed by virtue of thew sze or nature fthe

financial statements are to gve a true ond far view Inthis
context, matenality 1s assessed at the segrment level

e} Taxation

Curent tox payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs frorn net profit as reperted in the income
statermnent becouse it excludes items of ncome and expenses
that are taxable or deductible in other years and t further
exdudes tems that are never taxable or deductible The group’s
Liability for current tax is catoulated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

. sheet date

Deferrad taxation 1s provided in full, using the kability method,
on toxable temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and labiittes and therr carrying amounts in the financial
statements A deferred tax asset is only recogrised to the extent

+ It 5 probable that sufficient toxoble profits will be avalable n

the future to utilise it. Deferred taxation 1s meagsured on a non-
discounted busis using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and

. are expected to apply when the related deferred mcome tax

asset 5 redlised or the deferred tax bability 1s settied

Deferred tax assets and liabilibes are offset whenthere isa
legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against
current tax lobilmes and when they relate to income taxes

, levied by the sarne taxation authonty and the group intends to

settle rts current tox assets and labilibes on a net basis
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the faw vatue of the net assets aoquired
Goodwill ansing on acquistion of subsidiaries 1s included

in intangible assets, whilst goodwill ansing on ecquisition

of assoaates is ncluded 0 investments i assocates. If an
acquisttion gives nise to negative goodwill this is credited directly
to the income statement. Fair value odjustments based on
prowsional estimates ore amended within one year of the
acquistion, if required, with a corresponding adpustrment

1o goodwilt

Goodwill orising en ol acgusitions prior to 1 Apnl 1958 was
written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated
oganst reserves Purchased goodwill ansing on acquisitions after
31 March 1598 is treated as an intangible fixed asset.

Goodwll 15 tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
set outin note 2m) below and camed at cost less aecumulated
impairment losses Goodwill s allocated to the cash-generating
urut thot derves benefit from the goodwill for impairment
testing purposes

Where goodwill forms part of o cosh-generating unit and

all or part of that untt 1s disposed of, the assoaated goodwill

15 induded in the carning ameunt of that operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operabon

g} Intongible non-current assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are caprtalised at cost and
when acguired in a business combination are copitalised at foir
value gt the date of acguisttion Following ikl recogribion, the
histoncal cost mexdel is applied to intangible ossets.

Finte life ntangible assets are omortised on a straight line basis
over ther eshmoted useful economic ives as follows

Yowrs
Software 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Arnortisabon charged on assets 15 taken to the income
staternent through operating costs.

Intangible ossets are reviewed for iImpoirment where indicator's
of mparment exist

h} Reseurch and development

Reseanch expenditure 1s expensed whan s incurred.
Development expenditure s capitalised and wntten off over
its expected useful economuc life where the following cntena
aremet

* it technically feasible to create and make the asset avadable
for use or sale;

= there are adequate resources available to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset,

= there ks the intention and ability to use or sall the asset,

* itis probable thot the osset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

« the development cost can be measured reliably

Expendrture on property, plant and equiprent relating
+ to research and development projects is capitalised and
, depreaated over the expected useful life of those assets

; ) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred except where it 1s
probable that the contract will be awarded, in which case they
are recognised as a prepayment which s wiitten off to the
income statement over the life of the contract.

The group assesses that it 1s proboble that a contract will be
awarded when prefemred bidder or equivalent status has been
achieved and there are no signficant impediments to the award
of the contract.

j) Property, plont and equipment

Property, plant and equipment s held at cost. (or at deemed
cost for infrastructure assets on tronsition to IFRS) fess
cccumulated depreciation. The costs of lke for like replacement
of infrastructure components are recognised in the income
staternent as they anse Where ttis probable that the
expendrture witl cause future economnic benefits to flow to the
group, then costs are capitalised.

Where tems of property, plant and equipment are transferred
* to the group from customers or developers, the farr value of the
usset transferred s recognised in the bolance sheet. Forr value
15 determined based on estimated depreciated replacement
cost. Where the transfer is in exchange for connection to the
network and there 1s no further obligation, the coresponding
credrt s recognised immediately in turnover Where the transfer
. Is considered to be linked to the provision of ongoing sernvices
the corresponding credi is recorded in deferred incorne and
released to opergting costs over the expected useful lives of the
related assets

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the aoquisition,
constiuction or produchon of assets, that necessarily take a
substontial period of tme to get ready for therr intended use, are
added to the cost of those assets until such tme as the assets
are readly for ther intended use

: Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated to its estmated
residual volue over Its estmated useful life, with the exception
of freehold lond which 1s not depreaated. Assets in the course of
construction ore not depreciated until commisstoned.

The eshimated usefud lves arer

£

Years

Infrastructure assets o L

‘ Impounding resenvors o 250
Rew water oqueducts R ~ 250
' Mans o ) 80-150
Sewe,s 150-200
Other assets T T -
Buldngs T 3080
Fixed plont end equipment o 2040
Vehicles and rmobile plant 2-15
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Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting pelicies (continued)
k) Leased assets

Where the group obtains assets under leasing arrangements
which transfer substantelly all the nsks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the group as lessee (finance leases),
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present
value of the mmimurm lease payments 1s caprtalised as an asset
with a comespanding liability representing the obligation to the
lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of o capital
element and a finance charge, the caprtal element reduang the
obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written
off to the mcome statermnent at a constant rate over the penod
of the leose In proportion to the capital amount outstanding
Depreaation 1s charged over the shorter of the estmated useful
Ife and the lease penod

Leases where substantially ol the nsks and rewards of
ownerstup remain with the lessor are dassified os operatng
leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed
ona straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land
are nomally treated as operating leases, uniess ownership s
transferred to the group at the end of the lease

) Grants and contnbutions

Grants and contributions receved in respect of non-current
nssets, induding certain charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated
as deferred mcome ond released to the income statement over
the useful economic life of those non-current assets.

Grants and contribubions which are given in compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related costs ore recogrised in
operating costs in the Income statement in the period that they
become recenvable

m} Impaiment of non—current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwatl, an stem of property, plant
and equipment, or any other non-cument asset 1s esimated

to be less than its carnying amaunt, the carrying amount of
the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount. Where the
asset does not generate cosh flows that ore ndependent from
other assets, the group eshimates the recoverable omount

of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
fRecoverable amount s the higher of fair vatue less costs to

sell or estirmated value n use at the date the imparment
review ts undertoken Fair value less costs to sell represents

the armount obtainable fram the sale of the asset man amm's
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third

H

Goodwill s tested for impaimment annually. Imparment reviews
are alse camed out if there 1s an indication that an impaiment
may have occurred, or, where othenatse required, to ensure
that non-current assets are not comed above therr estmated

+ recoverable omounts.

Imnpaiments are recognised in the iIncome staternent.

n) Inventory
Inventory and work in progress 1s stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable vatue Cost indudes labour, matenals, transport
and attnbutable overheads

0) Service concession agreements

Where the group has on unconditionol nght to recesve cash from
a government body 1 exchange for constructing or upgrading o
public sector osset, the arnourts receivable are recogrised a5 0
financial asset in prepayments and accnied income

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recognised ona straight ine basis, before adjusting for expected
inflation, aver the ife of the contract.

p) Retmement benefits

The group aperates both defined benefit and defined
contrbution penston schemnas.

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension
scherne assets and defined benefit pension scheme liabiities
i1s recorded on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset
or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured

at farr value using bid pnce for ossets with quoted pnces
Defined berefit nension scheme lobilities are measured at
the balance sheet date by anindependent actuary using the
projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of
ratumn on high quality corporate bonds of equivatent term and
currency to the lability

" Senvice cost, which ss the increase in the present value of the

licbilities of the group's defined benefit pension schernes

. expected to onse from emplayee service in the penod, is

induded in operating costs. Net finance cost s caloutated by
apphying the discount rate used for the schemne babitbes to the
net defict

Changes inthe retirement benaft cbligat'on anse from
differences between the retum on scheme ussets und interest

_ induded in the income statement, and frorn actuanal gains

partes, less costs of drsposal. Vialue m use represents the present

value of future cash flows expected to be denved from a cosh-
generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessmenis of the cost of caprtal of the
cash-generating unit or asset.

The discount rate used is based on the group’s cost of capital
adjusted for the nsk profiles of indwdual businesses.

i
'
i

3
{

1

and losses from expenence adustments and changes in
dernographic or finanaal assurptions. Such changes are
dassified as remeasurements and are charged or credited to
equity and recorded In the statement of comprehensive income
in the penod m which they anse

Contnbutions to defined contnbution pension schemes are

charged tothe Income statement in the penod in which they
fall due
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
q) Provisions

Prowisions are recogrused where

+ there 15 a present obligation as a resutt of o past event;

+ 1t1s probable thot there will be an outflow of economic
benefits to settie this obligation, and

+ areliable estimate of this armourt con be mode

Insurance provisions in the group's captive nsurance subsidiary
are recogrused for daims notified and for dlwms incurred but
which have not yet been notified, based on adwvice from the
group’s independent insurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the nsks specific to the lability where
the effect 1s matenal.

) Purchase of own shares

Shares hetd by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust which have not vested uncenditonally by the balonce
sheet date are deducted from shareholders’ funds untu such
time as they vest.

s} Financial instruments

{ Finanoadl ossets
Financial assets are classified into the following categones

« at far value through profit or foss,

* held to rmaturty investments,

+ avalable for sale financial assets,

+ loans and recenvables, and

» denvatives designated as hedging instruments

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset 15 clossfied at far volue through profit or loss

if it 15 50 designated or f it 1s classified as ‘hetd for trading’
Dervative finanaal assets that are not designated and effective
as hedaing instruments are required to be dassiied as ‘held

for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Treasury Folicy,
descnbed in the Finonocl Review on page 36, 1s that the

group does not hold or issue denvatve finanaal instruments

for trading Finanaal assets ot for vatue through profit or

loss ore stated at far vatue, with any gans or losses ansing

on remeasurernent recognised in gansflosses on financial
instruments in the income staternent. Fair value is determined
using the methodology desonbed in note 36 Interest recenvable
in respect of denvative financial assets 15 induded in

finance income

Held to matunty vestments

Where the group has the obility and ntent to hold an
Investment to maturity the finanaal asset 1s dassified as held to
matunty Such finanaal assets are measured at amorbised cost
using the effective interest rate method, with any gains or losses
being recognised in the Income statement.

Availoble for sole finanoiol assets

After intiol recogrtion at cost (bemg the fair value of the
consideration pard), investrnents which are dassfied os
ovallable for sale are measured at far value, with gains or losses
recognsed in other comprehensive income When an available

" for sole rwvestment s dispased of or impaired, the gain or loss
* previously recognised in other comprehensive income 1s taken

1
1

to the income staterment. Where there s no active market in the
investrnents and the far value cannot be measured reliably, the
investrnents are held ot cost.

, Loans and recevables

Trade recenvables, loans and other recevables that have fixed

or determinaoble payments and that are not quoted in an active
rmarket are clossified as loans and recervables Such assets are
measured at fair value on vl recognition and are subsequently
meas.red at amortised cost using the effective nterest rate
method unless there 15 objective evidence that the asset s
impaired, where it 1s wiitten down 1o its recoverable omount
and the mecoverable amount s recognised as an expense

Trade recenables that are assessed not to be impaired
individuaily are assessed collectvely for impairment by reference
to the group's histoncat collection expenience for receivables of

© similar age.
Denvatnes designated as cash flow hedges

i

The far value of dernvative financiol assets that are designated
as hedging instrurnents is determined using the methodology
included in note 36 Hedge accounting 1s descnbed below

{f) Fingnaol libilies

Financial liabilities are clossified os either

« at far value through profit or loss,
= other finanaal Labilities, or
» dervatives designated as hedgng instrurenits

Finanaal liabiltbes at far value through profit or loss

Afinonoial Labitty ts classfied at far value through profit or

loss if tt 15 so designated or (f it 15 dassified as ‘held for trading’
Berwvobive finonoal hobiibes that are not designated ond
effective as hedging instrurments are required to be classified us
"held for tracing’ by 1AS 39 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
descnbed in the Finandal Review on page 36, is that the group
daes not hold or issue demvative finandial Instrurnents far trading
Finanaal habilties at far vatue through profit or loss are stated
at fair value, with any gains or losses ansing on remeasurement
recognised in gansAosses on finanoial instruments in the
income statement. Fair value i1s determined using the
methodology desanbed in note 36 Interest payable in respect
of dervative finanaal liobilities 1s ncuded in finance costs.

Other finoncial babitibes

Other financial lobilites, nctuding barrowings, are nmially
recognised at fair volue less transacbon costs After inibial
recognition, other finanaal babilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective iterest rate method

Denvatves designated as cash flow hedges

The fan value of derivative financial liobilites thot are designated
as hedging instruments 1s deterrnined using the methodology
included in note 36 Hedge accounting 15 descnbed below
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
s} Financiclinstruments {continued)

(ii)) Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative finanaal nstruments such as cross
currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge tts nisks associated with foreign curency and
interest rate fluctuations Such denvative Instruments are
recogrised and measured in accordance with the accounting
polices descrbed above

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the group documents

« the reigtionship bebween the hedging instrument and the
hedged ftem,

« 1ts nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking

hedge transactions, ond

whether the hedging nstrument 15 highly effective m

offsetting changes in farr values or cash flows (as appropriate)

of the hedged item

The group continutes to test and document the effectiveness of
the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires, Is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualfies for
hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing is in a fair value hedging relotionship
it 15 remeasured for changes in far value of the hedged nsk ot
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised n
gams/losses on financial instruments in the income staternent.
The gain or loss on the hedging nstrument 1s token to gains/
losses on finanaal instruments in the incorme staterment where
the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on
the hedged tem

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued, the far value
edjustment to the carmying amount of the hedged tem arising
from the hedged nsk 1s amortised to the income statement
fromn that date

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument that
is determined to be an effectve hedge 1s recognised directly n
equity ond the ineffective portion in gansfosses on financial
instruments m the iIncome statement. The gains or losses
deferred in equity in this way are recyded through gainsflosses
on finanaial instrurments n the income statement i the same
peniod in which the hedged undertying transaction or firm
commitrment 1s recognised N the ncome statement.

When hedge accounting is discontinued any cumulative gain
or loss on the hedging instrurment recogrised in equity 15 held
in equity untit the forecast transoction occurs, or transferred to

gansAesses on finanaal mstruments in the mcome staterment if

the forecost transaction 1s no longer expected to occur
Hedges of net iInvestrnents in foreign aperations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign
currency denominated operations, to the extent that they

are designated and effective as net investment hedges, they
are matched in equity against changes in value of the related
assets Aryneffectiveness is token to gans/losses on financal
instruments in the income statement.

{iv) Embedded dernvotives

Dervatives embedded in other finanaal instrurments or other
host contracts are treated as seporate denvatives when their
nisks and charoctenstics are not dosely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract 1s not camed at far value,
with gains and losses reported In gains/losses on financial
instrurments in the Income statement.

t) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees The fair value of the
employea services received n exchange for the grant 1
recognised os an expense over the vesting period of the grant.

The fair value of employee services 1s determmuned by reference

to the fair volue of the awards granted, catculated using

on appropriate pricing maodel, exduding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions The number of awards that

are expected to vest takes into account non-market vesting
conditions mduding, where appropnate, continuing employment
by the group The charge is odjusted to reflect shares that do
not vest as a result of faling to meet a non-market condrion

u) Cashflow statement

For the purpese of the cush flow statement, cash and cash
equvalents ndude highly liquid investments that are readdly
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an nsignficant nsk of change in value Suchinvestments are
normally those with less than three morniths maturty from the
date of acquistion and include cash and bank balances and
nvestments in ligued funds Cosh and cash equivalents also
incdude overdrafts repayable on dermand

Net debt compnses borrowings, cross currency swaps thot are
used to fix the sterling hability of foreign currency borrowings
(whether hedge accounted or not), cash and cash equivalents.

Interest paid in the cash flow statement includes amounts
charged to the incorne staternent and amounts iIncluded in the
cost of property, plant and equipment.

v) Forelgn currency
The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings

gre translated into sterling, the presertational currency of the
group, using average rates of exchange ruling dunng the year

The net investmients In overseas subsidiary and associated
undertatengs are transtated into sterling at the rates of
exchange uling at the year end. Exchange differences ansing
are treated as movernents in equity. On disposal of a foreign
currency denorminated subsidiary, the deferred cumulative
amount recogrised In equity since 1 April 2004 relating to
that entity s recognised In the incorme staternent under the
transitiondl rule of IFRS 1
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2 Accounting policies {continued)

v) Foreign currency {continued) - :
Exchange differerces ansing in respect of foreign exchange i
instrements taken out as hedges of overseas Investments are
also treated s movernents in equity to the extent that the

hedge (s effective (see note 2s))

All other foreign currency denorminated assets and labitibes of
the comparny and s subsidiary undertaiengs are translated into
the relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling

at the year end. Any exchange differences so ansing are dealt -
with through the income staternent.

Foreign currency transactons arsing durnng the year are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling

on the date of the trensaction. All profits and losses on
exchange ansing dunng the year are dealt with through the
Income statement.

w) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets {a disposal group) is availcble *
for mmediate sale gnd the sale s highly probable and expected
to ccaur within one year then the disposal group s dassifiedas .
held for sale The disposal group s measured at the lower of the
camying amolint and fair value less costs to sell

Where a group of assets which cornprises operations that can

be clearly distingushed operationally and fat finanaal reporting

purposes, from the rest of the group (0 cornponent), hasbeen

disposed of or dasstfted as held for sale, and it

- represents a separate major line of business or geographicat
area of operctions, or

« s part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of o separate
magjor line of business or geographical area of opergtions, or

+ 15a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,

then the component is clossified as a discontinued operation

Non-current assets dassified as held for sole are measured ot
the lower of camying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Depreadtion s not charged on such assets

3 New accounting policies and future requrements
The group has also adopted 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ {revised)
The revised standard changes the method of calculating the net
finance cost on defined benefit pension schermes Previously the
discount rote used tocaloulote the scheme liobiles ot the
previous balance sheet dote was applied to the liabilties and
the expected retum on the scherne’s ossets was appled to

the assets Under the revised standard the discount rote 1s
apphied to the et defiat to determine the net finance cost.
Scheme administration costs were previously deducted from
the expected retum on assets. Such costs are now incduded

i operating costs There 1s no change to the measturement

of the net surplus or defict recognised in the balance sheet.

The difference between the interest income calculated pn the
scheme gssets and the actual retum s recogrised in other
comprehensive income as an actuanal gain or loss.

The standard must be applied retrospectvely ond so the prior
year numbers have been restated The net impact of this
chonge 15 shown below

2014 2013
£m £m

Profitforthepenod N L

Operating prafit (3.0} {2 6)
Net finance cost {172) (124)
Decrease In profit before tax for the penod ~ (20.2) (150)
Deferred tax 40 35
Decrease in profit for the penod (16.2) {115)
Other comprehensive Incorne . ] N
Netactuanalgans B o202 150
Tax on actuanal gains (4.0} (3.5)
Decrease in other comprehensive loss 162 115
Impact on net assets - -

The group has adopted IFRS 13 ‘Far Value Measurement”

in this financial year This standard sets out the approach to
determining far values in finanaal statements and provides
addrtional guidance on how to measure farr value but does not
change when fair value s permitted or required. In particular,
the standard requires the group to take account of 1ts own
credrt nisk in determinmg the fair value of financal liabiites

The standard 1s applied prospectively and hence has no impoct

. onamounts previously recognsed In the current penod the farr
. value of dervatwve financial babives and the gain on financial

instrurnents was £8 5 midlion bigher as a result of the adoption

of this stondard
¢ Following odoption of IFRS 13 the group hos reviewed and

amended its methodology for calculating the fair value of debt.
The approoch taken and the impact on armounts disdosed
previously are set out innota 36.

The Impact of new accounting polices on eamings per share 15
disclosed in note 15

IFRS 13 dlso emended IAS 36 ‘Impairments of assets’ to require
disclosure of the recoverable amount of cash-generoting units.
However, this requirernent was removed by an omendment to
TAS 36 which s not mandatory for the group untll 1 April 2014
but it has been adopted early in these financal statements

1FRSs10, 11 and 12 were ssued in May 2011 with an effective
date of 1 January 2013 The EU hos edopted these stendords
with effect from 1 January 2014 but with early application
permitted The group has elected not to apply these standards
earty and will adopt them with effect from 1 Apnl 2014

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Finanaat Statements’ ndudes a new
defintion of control to be used to determine when entities are
consolidated. The standard 1s not expected to have @ matenal
trpact on the group's finanaal statements.

sjuatLaynls poubuy dnoig  2upwiea0n  uoda 2Balnns

UOTDULIOJU JLI0  SIUSWISIDIS [BIubUl Aundwio)

97



98

Severn Trent Pic  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

3 New accounting policies and future requirements
{continued)

IFRS 11 Joint Agreements’ replaces LAS 31 ‘Interests in Joint
Ventures' and SIC-13 Yointly-controlled Entities’ IFRS 11 uses
the defintion of control gven in IFRS 10 to define jont control
and removes the option to account for joint vertures using
proportionate consobdation This 1 not expected to have a
matenal impact on the group's finanaal statements.

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ provides
disclosure requirements for subsidianes, associates, joint
agreements and structured entities which were previously
covered in 1AS 27, IAS 28 and 1AS 31 Additional disclosures
will be required m the group financial statements to meet the
requirements of the standard

At the date of approvat of these financial staternents, the
following Standards and Interpretations were m ssue but not
yet effectve

TFRS 9 ‘Finoncial Instrurnents’ 15 likely to affect the
measurament and disdosure of finanaal instruments.
This Stondard hos not yet been adopted by the EU

4 Significant occounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group's accounting policies,

the group Is required to make certain judgernents, estimates
and assunptions that it believes are reasonable based on the
information available.

The rmore significant judgements were

a) Tox provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires
Judgements to be made regarding the resuilt of negotiations
with and enqumes from tox authorities i @ number of
Junisdichons. The assessrments made are based on advice from
independent tax advisers and the status of ongoing discussions
with the relevant tax outhorties

b) Prowisions for other linbilities and charges

Assessing the finanaai outcome of uncertan commeraial and
legal positions requrres judgements to be made regarding the
relative ments of each party’s case and the extent to which any
daim agamst the group s likely to be successful The assessments
rnade are based on advice from the group’s intemial counsel
and, where appropnate, independent legal adwice

o) Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requrres an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
(CGLY to which goodwill has been allocated. The value inuse
calculation requires the group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to anse from the CGU and a suitable discount rote to
calculate present value Details of the assumphons used are set
out In note 16 to the finanaal statements.

t
1

The key accounting estimates were,

a) Depreciation and canying amounts of property, plant

and equipment

Colculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying
value for property, plant and equiprent requires estimates to

be rade of the useful lives of the assets, The eshimates are
bosed on engneenng data and the group's expenence of similar

" gssets Detais are set out in note 2 j)

b) Retrerment benefit obligations

Determinmg the amount of the group’s retirernent benefit
obligations and the net costs of prowding such benefits requires
assumptions to be made concerning long term interest rates,
inflation, salary and pension increases, investment retumns and
longewvity of current and future pensioners. Changes in these
assumptions coutd significantly impact the amount of the
obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The group
makes assumpbons concerning these matters with the
assistance of advice from independent qualified actuones
Details of the assumpbions made are set out n note 30 to the
finonaal statements

¢) Unbiled revenue

Severn Trent Water raises bills and recogrises revenue In
accordance with its nght to recenve revenue iInine with the imits

« established by the penodic regulatory pnce review processes.

Forwater and waste water custorners with water meters, the
amount recognised depends on the volume supphed mcluding
an estmate of the sales value of units supplied between the

. date of the last meter read and the year end. Meters are read

on a cydicol basts and the group recognises revenue for unbilled
amounts bosad on estimated usoge from the tast biling to

the end of the finanaal year The estimated usage is based on
histoncol data, judgement and assumptions.

d) Provision for imparment of trode recevables

Provisions are made aganst Severn Trent Water's trade
recetvables bosed on histoncal expenence of tevels of recovery
from acoounts in a particutar ageing category The actual

. amounts collected cotdd differ from the estimated level of

i

recovery which could impact operating results

e) Far value of denvatives

Determirung the fair value of dervatives where quoted pnces
are not availoble requires estimates to be made of the future
expected cash flows and an appropnate discount rate which
reflects the credit nsk of the counterparties The valuation
techniques and key Inputs used are descnbed in note 36
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5 Segmental analysis

The group has two repartable segments Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services. The key factor determining the identification
of reportable segments ts the regulatory ervronment in which the businesses operate Severn Trent Water 1s subject to economic
regulation by Ofwat and operates under a licence to provide water and sewerage services within a defined geographicat region

in England and Wales Sevemn Trent Senvices 1s not subject to economic regulaiion and operates in markets in the USA, Furope

and Asta

The Sevem Trert Executive Committee (STEC) is considered to be the group’s chief operoting deasion maker The reports provided to
STEC include segmental information prepared on the basts described above Detalls of Sevem Trent Water's operations are descnbed
on pages 13 to 24 of the Strategic report and those of Severn Trent Services on pages 25 to 32

Transactions betwseen reportable segments are induded within segrmental results, assets and liobiities in accordance with group
accounting polioes These are elminated on consolidation

The group has a large and diverse custorner base and there 15 no significant reionce on any single customer

The measure of profit or loss that 1s reported to STEC for the segments 1s profit before interest, tax and excepbonal terns {underlying
PBIT) A segmentui analysss of sales and underlylng PBIT)s presented below

Se-uém Trent Severn Ti'ent-
Waoter Servlces

2014 £m
External soles ) 15426 310 o
Inter-segment sales 22 14
Totol sales 15448 3114
Profit before iInterest, tox ond exceptionoltems o L.51e. 71
Exceptionat tems 82 (315)
Profit/{loss) before interest and tax 5268 (24.4)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems is stated after .
Arnortsa'uon of mtunglble assets 280 13
Depreciation of property, plant and equpment 5 2675 43
Profit on disposal of fixed ossets {0.3) {02)
o T - T . t SevemTrent Sevem Trent
Water Services
Restated  Restoted
2013 £m £m
Extemalsales 1,5093 3206
Inter-segment sales T ) ) S 17 79
Total sales 15110 3285
Profit before interest, tox and exceptional tems i 4985 126
Exceptional tems ) ) 133 (161)
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax 5118 (35)
Profit before interest, tox and exceptionat tems Is stated after
Amomsauan of mtungib(e e assets m R T T o - 289 715
[)eprecn:nt@n_o:lr property, plant and equiprment o H_ ) T . i ] 2614 T 53
Loss/{profit) on disposat of fixed assats 15 (14)

The group’s treasury and tax affairs are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax Departrments. Finance costs ore managed

on a group basis and hence interest iIncome and costs are net reported at the segmental level. Tax s not reported to STEC ona
segmental basis

Interests in joint ventures and assocates are not matenal and are not induded in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC

89
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)

Separate segmental analyses of assets and labilities are not reviewed by STEC The balance sheet measure reviewed by STECon a
segrnental basis s capital employed which indudes the following components

“Swemfhmt Severn Trent

Weater  Services
2014 £m £m
Qperating assets 74422 1728
Goodwill 13 146
Interests in joint ventures and assodates 01 50
Seament cssets 74436 192 4
Segment operating lobilives {1,155 7) @22
Capital employed 6,287.9 100.2
SevemTrent  Severn Trent
Water Services
2013 fm £m
Operating assets 7,2187 1731
Goodwill 13 417
Interests in joint ventures and assoaates 01 49
Segment assets. ) 7.2201 2197
Segrnent operating iabilhes {1,137 4} (840}
Capital employed 6,082 7 1257

Operating assets compnse other intangible assets, propert;}, plant and equiprment, Inventory and trade and other recenables
Operating tabilities compnse trade and other payables, retrerment benefit obligations and provisions.
Additions to other intongible assets and property, plant ond equiprmient were as follows

) "SevernTrent Severn Trent
Water Services

2014 £m £m
Other intangible assets 82 55
Property, plont and equipment 5196 69
’ " SevemTrent Severn Trent
Water Services

2013 £m £
Other ntangible assets i 136 22
ﬁnperty plant and equipment 4517 86

The reportable segments’ revenue s reconciled to group turnover as follows

o ’ 2014 013

£m fm

Sevemn Trent Water 1,544.8 1,5110
Sevemn Trent Services 3114 3285
Other 131 (101
Inter-segment sales (12.6) (180}
Graup turmover 1,856.7 1,8316

100
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
Segmental underly(ng PBITs reconciled to the group s profit before tax und discontinued cperutmns asfollows -

© 2013
2014  Restated
£m £m
Underlying PBIT i o .
- Sevemn Trent Water ) i o 5186 4985
- Severn Trent Sennices o o ) o . . 71 126
- Corporute and Uther costs . o L L .. 15 (169
Consalidation odjustments ) 26 12
Groupunderlyng PBIT . . L o o ___ .. 5168 4G54
Exceptional terns ollocuted to segmems 3 o . D o
-SevemTrentWoter ) L o . 82 133
- S;avem Trent Services _ . (31.5) (161)
- Corpomte and other ) ) (21.1) (30)
Share of results of associates and Jont ventures ) 02 02
Net finance costs i )  2679)  (2443)
Gans/{losses) on financial nstrumertts 58.0 (453)
Profit before tux 282.7 2002
The reportable segmerrts’ assets are recondiled to the group 's total assets as follows
o - o - T T e T 2014 2013
£m £m
Segmentassets i ) i
- Severmn Trent Water i i 7443.6 72201
- Sevem Trent Servgces i ] 1924 2197
Corporate assets i i 682 495
Other finonciol assets ) i ) i 2086 5348
Curenttoxrecoverable ] o i o 165 405
Consoldation adpustments T (%01) " (452)
Total assets 78892 80194
The consalidation adjustments compnsa elirrination of intra-group debtors and unrealised prafits on fixed nssets.
The reportable segments’ hab1rt|es are recondiled to the group’s totcd liabilites as foliows
T T ’ U o . " 2014 2013
£m £m
Segment iabiiyes ) i
- Seven Trent Water o - {11557} (1,1374)
- Sevemn Trent Services o o ) o 922 (540
Coporatebobiites " T T e (601)  (647)
Otherfinonadibabiites  ~ =~ 7 w833y (51118
Deferred tax T _ __lesa0)  (7858)
Consolidation adjustments 160 183
Total lablies {6,799.1) (7,1754)

The consoldotion adjustments compnse elimination of intra-group craditors
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)

Geographical areas

The group’s sales were denved from the following countres
i 2014 2013
£m Em
UK i 16169 15847
uUsa 145.9 142 2
Cther 93,9 1047
1,8567 18316

The graup’s non-current assets (exduding finanaial Instruments, deferred tax assets and post employment benefit assets) were

located in the following countnes

2014 2013
£m £m
UK 7,084.8 6,8342
USA 361 611
Other 29 108
7,123.8 6,906 1

6 Revenue
201% 2013
- fm fm
Weter and sewerage services 15345 15009
Other services 1811 1801
Sate of goods 939 1107
Service concession grrangerments {note 42) 422 399
Total tumover 1,856,7 1,831.6
Interest recervoble {note 10) 4.8 26
1,86135 1,834 2

102




Severn Trent Plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

7 Operating costs

" 2013

2014
Before
Before excepbonal
exteptional Exceptional costs  Exceptonal Total
costs costs Total Restoted costs Restated
£m £m £m £m fm £m
Wages and satares 2861 43 2904 2829 12 2841
Social secunity costs 12.7 - 227 202 - 202
Pension costs i 323 - 323 298 - 298
Share based payments 6.2 - 6.2 68 - 68
Total employee costs 3473 43 3516 3397 12 3409
Power 711 - 2y 658 - 658
Carbon Reduction Commitrment 5.9 - 59 57 - 57
Rkaw matertals and consumables 126.6 0.3 1269 130.8 - 1308
Rates 75.7 - 757 732 - 732
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 321 - 321 331 - 331
Service charges 3L - 316 319 - 319
Depreciation of praperty, ptant and equipment 270.0 - 2700 2646 - 2646
Amartisation and impairment of intangtole fixed assets 293 24 317 305 36 341
Imparrrnent of goodwill - 247 247 - 46 46
Hired and contracted services _ 2127 215 2342 1962 37 1999
Operating leases rentals
- lond and bulldings 29 0.2 ER | 31 - 31
- other 16 16 19 - 19
Hire of plant and machinery i 3 - i3 44 - 44
Research and developrment expenditure 50 - 50 54 - 54
(Profitiloss on disposol of property, plant and equiprrent (04&) 82) {8.6) 29 (133) (104)
Foregn exchange gan/(lossas) 07 - 0.7 o3 - ©3
Infrastructure mantenance expenditure 1403 - 1403 1477 - 1477
Other operabing costs 86.3 (0.8) 855 958 45 1003
1A442.0 &ad4 14864 1432 4 43 14367
Release from deferred income (9.5} - @s) 083 - _ 93
Own work capttabsed {92.6) - (92.6) '(869) (86.9)
1,339.9 444  1,3B43 1,3362 43 1,3405
Further detafls of exceptional costs are given in note 8
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the quditors.
2014 2013
£fm fm
Fees payable to the company’s ouditors for
- the audtt of the comparty’s annual accounts 01 01
- the audtt of the compary’s subsidianies 05 05
Total oudit fees 0.6 06
Fees payable to the comparny’s auditors and their associotes for other services to the group
- audtt related gssurance services 0.1 02
- other services reiating to taxation - - 01 -
- other assurance services 0.4 -
- services relating to corporate finance ) - 01
Total nan-gudit fees 06 03

Detanls of directors’ rerunerciion are set out in the Directors’ rermuneration report on poges 60 to 76
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8 Exceptional iterns before tax

2014 2013
£m £m
Exceptional operatirg costs
Severm Trent Water i
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (8.2) {133)
(8.2) (133}
Severmn Trent Services
Restructunng costs 56 16
Imparment of intangible assets 24 45
Impaiment of gooadwill 247 46
Provision for custormer contractual dispute 1.2} 35
315 146
Corporate and other -
Prefessional fees on proposed transaction that did not proceed - 30
Professional fees reloted to LongRiver proposal 18.7 -
Provision for termminated operations and disposals 24 -
211 30
Total exceptional operating costs L b 53
Exceptional loss on disposal of businesses - 15
Excepironal temns before tax &bre 58
Exceptional tax s disclosed in note 13
9 Employee numbers
Average number of ermployees {induding executve directors) dunng the year
" 2014 2013
Number Nurmber
By type of business
Severn Trent Water i 5.634 5,458
Severn Trent Services 2,339 2,749
Corporate and other 19 14
7,992 8,221
10 Finance income
’ 2013
2014  Restoted
£m fm
Interest revenue earmed on i
Bank deposits i i 18 26
Cther financial ncome 30 -
Total interest revenue i 48 26
Interest Income on defined benefit scheme assets 76.0 758
B0.8 784
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11 Fingnce costs

ToT T T i 2014 2013

Totol Toic

£m £m

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts i 220 27.7
Interest on other loans i 205.0 1916
Interest on finance leases 77 85
Total borrowing costs 234.7 2278
Other financiol expenses i o 23 2.7
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme obligotions 9.7 92.2
328.7 3227

Borrawnng costs of £13 8 million (2013 £10 4 million) incurred funding eligible copital projects have been capitabised at an nterest
rate of 5 11% {2013+ 5 12%) Tax relief of £3 2 mitlion (2013, £2 5 millon) was clamed on these costs which was credited to the
income staternant, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £2 8 mitlion {2013. £2 4 rrillion)

12 Gains/{losses) on financial instruments

t

2014 2013
£m £m
Loss on cross currency swaps used os hedging instruments in farr volue hedges (26.5) (73)
Gain arsing an adjustment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges 219 34
Exchange gain/{loss) on other loans 242 (1.1}
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (8.1} {14 8)
Herlge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges 0 -
Gan/{loss) ansing on swaps where hedge arcounting is not appled 4435 (25.5)
580 {45 3)
The group's hedge accounting armangements are descnbed i note 37 e)
13 Toxation
¢} Analysts of tax charge in the year
’ i 2014 2013
Befora
Before exceptonal
exceptional Exceptional tox  Exceptonal Total
tax tax Total Restated tax Restatad
£m fm £m £m fm £m
Current tax i
Current year ot 23% (2013 24%) ) 472 - 412 571 {405) 166
Prior years at 24% (2013 26%) 93 {59.2) (49.9) {29 2) - (292)
Totol current tax 56.5 (59.2) L)) 279 {40 5} {126)
Deferred tax i i
Oniginotion and reversal of temporary diferences N ’
- current year ) . 30.2 - 302 (38 388 350
Cngingion and reversal of temporary dfferences
~ prior year 8.7 {56.2)  (64.9) (44) - {44}
Excepliongt credit ansing from rate change - {1148) (114.8) - (367) (367)
Total deferred tax 215 {171.0) (149.5) (8.2) 21 61}
780 (2302) {1522) 197 (384) {187)

The current tox charge before exceptionol tax was £56 S milion (£27 9 milion) This mcludes o charge of £9.3 milion ansing from
adjustrments to prior year tax computations In the previous year o cumrent tax credit of £29 2 million arose due pnmarty to an
industry agreement gver the treatrment of infrastructure incorne in prior years’ computations,
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13 Taxation (continued)
a) Analysts of tax charge n the year {continued)

Tox credits ansing from unusual tems in each year hove been disdlosed as exceptional An exceptional current tax credit of

£59 2 million has been recognised, reftecting the antiopated refund of overpayrment of taxin pror perods as HMRC hos now agreed
that certain capital expenditure within our water and waste water treatment works is eligible for capital allowances as plant and
machinery This has also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of £56 2 millon

In the prer year the group’s UK subsidiary companies adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101, which changed the basis for
thase comparies’ corporation tax computations. The most significant impact of this change is that cartain emounts that had been
taxed 1n previous years were recogrused as profits and will be taxed in future penods Therefore, to prevent such items being taxed
twice, the tax alreacly paid on such items was repayable The impact of this change was an exceptional credt of £40 5 mithon to
current tax and an exceptional charge of £38.8 million to deferred tax

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted in the year and implemented a reduction in the corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% with
effect frorn 1 April 2014 and then to 20% with effect from T Apnl 2015 This has resulted ina defemed tax credit of £114 8 millon n
the Income statement and a deferred tax charge of £12 3 million in reserves

b} Factors affecting the tax charge in the year
The tox credtt for the year 1s reconciled to tax on profit at the standard rote of corporation tax i the UK below

2014 2013
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 282.7 2002
Tax at the standard rote of corporation tax i the UK 23% (2013 24%) ) 65.0 482
Tax effect of expendture not deductible n determiming taxable profits 15.7 40
Current year impact of rate change i ] ) 3.7 12
Effect of different rates in overseos jurisdictions 0.4 06
Ad]ustments In respect of prior years (114.8) (336
fixcep'aonul deferred tax credit ansing from rate change {114.8) (367}
Total tox credit {152.2) (187)

c) Tax charged/(credited) directly ta equity

In addrtion to the amount credited to the incomne staterment, the following ameunts of tax have been charged/(credited) directly
to equity:

2013

2014  Restoted

£m m
Current tax ) }
Tax on share based payments i (Lo) (0.8}
Tax on pension contributions in excess of profit and loss charge - (15)
Total current tax credited to equity (1.0} (23)
Deferred tox o A o ) i
Tax on actuonal gainy/losses i i 1]] (75)
Tax on cash flow hedges ) 48 (56)

Effect of change in tax rate 123 3.4
Total deferred tax charged/{credited) to equity 17.7 (97)
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14 Dividends
Amounts recogrused os distnbutions to equity holders mn the pericd - - - - - = - -
2014 2013
Pence per Pence per

shara fm share £m
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012) 45.51 1036 4551 898
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013) 3216 767 3034 722
Total ordinary dvidends ) 77.67 1853 7585 1721
Specic! dvidend - - 6300 1499
Total dividends 7767 1853 138.85 3220

Proposad final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2014 48.24

The proposed final dvdend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been induded as o lability in these
financial statements

15 Earnings per share
a) Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by drding the eamings attnbutabte to ordinary sharehalders by the weighted average
nurmber of ordinary shares n issue dunng the year, excluding those held in the Sevem Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust which
ore treoted os concelled.

For diuted earrungs per share, the weighted averuge number of ordinary shares i issue 15 odjusted to assurne conversion of all
potentially dilubve ordinary shares. These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price 1s less than the
average market pnce of the company's shares dunng the year

Basic and diluted earnings per shiare from continuing operations are calculated on the basis of profit from contmung operctions
attnbutable to the equity holders of the campary

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following data

{i) Eamings for the purpase of basic and diluted earmings per share from contmnuing operations

2013
2014 Restated
£m £
Profit for the penod attnbutable to the equity holders of the compary 4338 2160
{f) Nurnber of shares
R T T 2014 2013
m m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic eamings per share ) 2382 2377
Effect of dilutve potential ordinary shares o
—share options and LTIPs 11 11
Weighted average nurmber of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnmgs per share 239.3 2388
b) Adjusted eamings per share
) 2013
2016  Restated
pence pence
Adjusted basic earmings per share 88.4 926
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 88.0 921

Adyusted earnings per share figures are presented for contnuing operations These exclude the effects of deferred tax, gans/losses
on financial nstrurments and exceptional tems in both 2014 ond 2013 The directors consider that the adjusted fiqures provide 6

useful addryonal indicator of performance The denominators used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted eamings per
share are the some as those used in the unadpisted figures set out above.

supwianon  podar xbalong

{
]

UOODULOM N0 SIUDLIRIDIS BuDW) AUDDWIGD | SIUBw:ms [ououy dnoig

107



“108

Severn Trent Plc  Annuol Repart and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

15 Eamnings per share (continued)

b) Adjusted eamings per share (continued)

Adjustrments to eamnings

The ud)ustmems to earmungs thot are made in mlculutlng udjusted eamlngs per share are os follows

72013

2014  Restoted

£m fm

Earmings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations i 4338 2160

Adjustrments for i o i N

- exceptional tems before tax L i 4s 58
- cumrent tax related to exceptional iterms at 23% (2013 24%) I - B 1)
- {gons}losses on financial Instruments ,. T (s80) 453
- deferred tax exciuding exceptional charge o T o215 (82)
- excepbond tax (2302) (38 4)
Earmings for the purpose of adjusted bosic and diluted earnungs per share 2106 2200

c) Impact of changes in accounting pobicy

As described in note 3, the group has adopted IAS 19R and [FRS 13 in the penod. The impact on basic and diluted earnings per share
in the cument and prior year 1s shown below

(i) Basic earmings per share

2018 2013

Penca Penice

Basic eamings per share under previous accounting policies } 1853 957
Impact of 1AS 19 revised . _ ) ) ) (6.8) {%.8)
Irpact of change in valuaton of dervative liabilities 36 -
Basic earnings per share under revised acoounting policies 182.1 a9

2014 2013

Penice Pence

Adjusted basic eamings per share under previous accounting policies L ... _.969 983
Impact of IAS 19 revised (8.5) {63)
Adjusted bosic earmings per share under revised accounting palicies 88.4 926

(i) Diluted earrungs per share

Tt T o T s 2013
Penca Pence

Diluted eamings per share under previous accounting policies i i i 1845 952
Impact of IAS 19 revised oL (&8 “7)

Impact of changa in valuation of dervative labilibes 36 -

Diluted earrungs per share under revised aocountmg polices 1813 805
- - - T T T T2016°0 2013

Pence Perge

Adjusted diluted earrungs per share under previous accounting polices i i ) 96.4 984
Impact of [AS 19 revised {8.4) 63)

Adjusted diluted earings per share under revised accounting policies 88.0 921
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16 Goodwill

- T = i T o i 2014 2013

£m £m

Cost 3 3
At1 Apnil i i 45.2 558
Disposals o - (120)
Exchonge adjustments {23) 14
AL 31 March 419 452
Imnparment
At1 Apri ) ) (3.5) (109)
Impairrment charge in the year “ (24.7) {486)
Impasmnent previously recorded on disposals ) - 120
Exchange adjustments 01 -
At 31 March (28.1) (35)
Net book value i
At 31 March 14.8 417

Goodwill impairment tests

Goodwil is allocated to the group’s cash-generatmg units (CGUs) identfied according to country of operation and busness segment.
All of the group’s goodwill 1s N the Severn Trent Services segment.

A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU s presented below

2014 2013’

£m £m

Water Purfication US ] 14 271
Operating Services US i . 1.2 123
Services Italy 22 23
148 417

The group hos reviewed the carrying value of goodwill for impairment in accardance with the policy stated m note 2m)

The value in use colcutations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covenng a five
year penod The key assumphion underlying these budgets 1s revenue growth and margin Management of each CGU deterrmines
assumptions based on past experience, current market trends and expectations of future developments.

Cash flows beyond the five year penod are extrapolated using an estimated nominal growth rate stated below The growth rate
does not exceed the long termn average growth rate for the economy in which the CGU operates. The assumptions used in relation
1o growth rates beyond the five year period and dscount rates were

Nominalgrowthrate ~  Posttaxdiscountrate ~  Pre-tax discount rate

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

% % % % % %

Wiater Purtfication US i B _Seebelow 35 6.8 56 173 6.2
Operating ServicesUS ) o 35 35 _ 68 56 81 65
Services ltaly 25 25 65 6.3 88 B2

The weighted average growth rates used are conststent with the forecasts ncluded in ndustry reports except for Water Punfication
US where o growth rate of 3 5% has been apphed for the first five years beyond the initial five year penod which 1s then reduced

by 2% per annum for the next 15 years with an extrapolation at the resuling growth rate ot 25 years into perpetuty This reflects
management’s best estmate of the prospects for the existing products and the business’s current product development expertise

Speafic discount rates for the CGUs are not avatlable and hence a post tax discount rate reflecting nsks relgting to the CGU has been

estimated and used to calaulate the value in use of the CGU from its post tax cash flow projections The equivalent pre-tax discount
rate 1s disclosed above

+
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As aresult of the impairment review, the group has recorded an impaiment {oss against the goodwil in its Water Purfication
LIS CGU The recoverable amount of the business has been determined by calculoting the value in use of the CGU using the
assumpitons descnbed above

16 Goodwill {continued)
Goodwill impoirment tests {continued)

Changes in the growth rate outside the five year penad or in the discount rote applied to the cash flows may cause a CGU's carmyng
value to exceed its recoverable amount. However, in the opinion of the directors, the changes in growth rate or discount rute that
would be required to reduce the recoverable amount of Operating Services US or Services Italy below thewr camying value are not

reasonably posstble and an impairment hos been recorded in relation to Water Punfication US Therefore no sensitvty analysis has
been presented

17 Other intangible assets

Computar software Other
Internally Intemally
genercted  Purchased generated Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At1 Apnl 2012 1218 1796 266 3280
Addmions 60 85 15 160
Acquisiion of businesses - - 13 13
Disposal of businesses - - (17 17
Exchange edjustments - 06 05 11
At1Apnl 2013 1278 1887 282 3447
Additions 46 84 08 138
Disposals - (74.7) (50} {797
Reclassifications 439 639 - -
Exchange adjustments 02) {05) 14 21)
At 31 March 2014 1761 780 226 2767
Amortisation )
Atl Apnl}012 (102 2) (95.7) (14 1) (2120
Armortisation for the year (167) (124) {14 (305)
Excephonal impairment - R (36) (3.6)
Disposal of businesses - - 12 12
Exchange adjustments - (02) (03) {05)
At1 Apnl 2013 (1189)  (1083) (182)  {2454)
Arnortisation for the year (139)  {145) ©9 (293}
Exceptional imparrment (24) - - (24)
Disposals - 747 51 798
Reclassifications 51 51 - -
Exchorge adjustments 01 03 04 08
At 31 March 2014 {140.2) {%2.7} {13.6) (196.5)
Net book value §
At 31 March 2014 35.9 353 9.0 802
At31 March 2013 8.9 804 100 993

Other assets primanly comprise capitalised developrent costs and patents.
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18 Property, plant and equment

Fixed plant

Lond e Infreetruchre and  Movable

buikdings assats  equipment plant Totat

£m £m £m £m £m

CDSt - - - -
AtlApni2012 ) _ © 26732 43104 34205 570 104611
Additions N o ) 1272 1033 2207 87 4599
Disposals i . 28 01 (24 5) @4 (318
Disposal of businesses o L ) _m3y o - @7 I 212
Redossrﬁcanons - i L {04) - 07 - 03
Exchange odJustments 03 - 14 07 24
At 1 April 2013 o . ) ) 27862 44136 36013 620 108631
Addtitions ) 1365 1270 2664 67 5366
Disposals . . e i _ b9 ©3 129 @2 (223)
Exchange adjustments ©7) - 28) (14) (4 9)
At 31 March 2014 259171 45403 348520 631 113725
Depreciabion o L ) L - i i ) i
At Apnl 2012 . (8688) (1,1217) (1,857 4) (354) (38833
Charge for the year 609 (96 (1675  {66)  (2646)
Disposals T 30 O 191 41 262
Disposal of businesses ) 75 - 18 - 193
Reclossifications . o 07 01 0B 04 10
Exchange adjustments (©2) - 10) 05) 17
MIApH2013 . .7 Tesn g5 0552 (380) (6103Y)
Charge for the year (641) (309) (168.4) {66) (2700)
Disposals ) ) ) ) 37 - 128 38 203
Exchange adjustments 02 e 25 11 38
At 31 March 2014 {978.9) (1,1821) (2,1483) {39.7) (6,349.0)
Net book value o e o i ~ i
At 31 March 2014 19382 33582 17037 234 70235
At 31 March 2013 18675  3,2624 1,606.1 240 67600

The carmying amount of property, plant and equipment indudes the following ormounts in respect of assets held under
finonce lecses.

Fixed plont
Lend and Infrostruchure and
bnldings assets  equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Net book_vo_tue - o ) i =
At 31 March 2014 ) - 1196 385 1581
At 31 March 2013 - 1185 548 1733

Property, plant and equipment includes £604 1 million (2013 £509 2 millon) in respect of ossets In the course of construction for
which no depreaation is charged
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19 Interests in joint ventures

2014 2013

£m £m
Group's share of _ B
Non-current assets o ) o ) S - o i T oa 01
Cumentassets ) ) o ) 06 07
Current liabilies co e - ’ o ’ 0% ©5
03 03
Group's share of o o o i
Tumover ) ) e S 04 04
Operating costs 04 04
Profit before tax ] i o i i ) - -
Tax o T T =
Profit after tax

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013 the joint ventures had no significant contingent babibes to winch the group was exposed and the
group did not have any significant contingent Labil ibes in relation to its nterests in the jomt ventures The group had no capital
commitments 1n relotion to Its interests in the joint ventures at 31 March 2014 or 2013

Pariculars of the group’s principal joint veniure undertakings at 31 March 2014 werer

-Properﬁon of

Countryof  ownershup

Nome incorporation interest
Cogricg Limited i i ) Great Brtan 50%
Jackson Water Partnership USA 0%

The partnership agreement for the Juckson Water Partnership requires that certain key decisions require the ungrumous consent of
the partners and consequertly the partnership has been accounted for as a joint venture

20 Interests in associates

2014 2013

£m £m
At April - ] &1 46
Share of profits _ o i o o . ) 03 02
I_Exdmr;ge adstments (0.1) 01N
At 31 March 49 47
Group's share of L o . i i i
Totolassets . . L 136 248
Total labilbes {187} (201)
49 47
Tumover A7 47
Profit after tax 0.2 02

At 31 March 2014 and 2013 the assoacate company had no significant contingentt liabiliies to which the group was exposed
The group had no capital commitments in relation to its interests in the assoaate at 31 March 2014 or 2013

The pnncipal associate at 31 March 2014 was Servizio Idnco Integrato S cpa {SII*, @ company incarporated in Italy. The proportion
of ownership interest held by the group was 25%

The group has gven certain guarantees in respect of the associate’s borrowings. The guarantees are brmited to €5 1 million
(2013, €11 2 milion) The group does nat expect any labiies that are not provided for in these financial staternents to anse from
these amangements.

Dunng the year the group has entered into agreements with the other investors in SII to re-finance that company As part of these
agreements the guarantees referred to above were reduced from €11 2 rmillion to €5 1 rrillion and trode recevable balances

amounting to €21 million were converted to a shareholder’s loan repayoble over 15 years. The group's equity and loan investrnents
in SII are fully pronded against.
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21 Cotegories of ﬁnuncnul ossets ®
- T o T 016 2013 %’
£m £m S,
Forr votue through profit ond toss . i i 3
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted i i 395 488 8
Interest rate swaps - not hedge cccounted i 121 210 &
Foregn exchunge forword contracts - not hedge orcourted 0.1 01 3
517 69% %
Dermvatives designoted as hedging instruments i ) o i
Cross currency swaps - foir volue hedges ~ o o . .. 338 603 §
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges - 09 %
336 612 £
Total denvotve financat assets 853 1311 g
Avalable for sale mvestments comed ot farvalue o ) o . 8
Unguoted shares 0.1 01 &
Loans and recenvables {including cash and cash equivalents) '§
Trade recevables i 1956 1967 g
Short term deposits i » . o 768 3557
Cash at barkn hand ” 4646 479 8
Total loans and recevables 3188 600 3 §
Total financial assets 404.2 7315 g"
o
Disdosed inthe baolancesheetas B §
Non-current assets ) ’ B
Denvatwe financial assets Tih 1301
Available for sale financial assets C - i ’ i ’ 6.-i— o 0“1
725 130.2
Curent assets
Dervatwe financiol assets S ) 12.9 10
Cash and cash equvalents T o 1232 4036
Trade recenables {nate 23 - T 1956 1967
3317 6013
4042 7315
22 Inventory
2014 2013
£1m, £m
Inventory and work in progress 272 371
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23 Trade ond other receivables

2006 2013
fm £m
Trade recenvables o L . 3164 3347
Less provisions for impairment of recenables ) ) C ] (1208)  {1380)
Net trode recenvables o . ) 195.6 1967
Other amounts recervoble o i "" ’ ) B o ) C w9 T 325
Prepayments and accrued incorne ) o 289.7 2768
513.2 5060

The camying values of trode and other recenvables are reasonable approximations of therr fair volues

Prepayments and occrued 1ncome includes £24.8 million {2013 £26 8 million) In respect of arnounts due from customers for
contract work and £34 4 milion (2013 £39 4 rrullion) which is recoverable after rmore than one year

Credit control policies and procedures ore determined at the mdwidual business unit level. By far the most significant business unit
of the group 1s Severn Trent Water Lirnited, which represents 83% of group turnover and 76% of net trade recenables. Severn Trert
Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and sewerage services to customers within s region Therefore there 1s no
concentration of credit sk with respect to its trade recewables and the credit quolity of ts customer base reflects the wealth and
prospenty of all of the cormmercial businesses and domestic households within its region None of the ather business units are
indvidually sigrificant to the group

Movements on the doubtful debts prowision were as follows.

2006 2013
£m £m
AL 1 Aprl ] ] 1380 1252
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 321 331
Amounts wntten aff dunng the year . _@sn (2D
ﬁ;rnolgntg recovered dunng the year _ o o o i 02 -
Reclossfficadton o S B @k -
Exchange a&Justments ) o7 18
A 31 March 1208 1380

The reclassification orose on the refinancing of the amounts recervable from the group's assoaate company, SIT, which have now
been dassified as other debtors but rernain fully prowded

Induded in trade recevabies are balances with a carmying amount of £168 3 milion (2013 £176 4 millon) which were past due at
the reporting date but for which no specific provision has been made as the collective impairment recorded aganst such assets i
consdered to be sufficient alowance for the nsk of non-collection of such bolances

The aged analysis of recenvables that were past due ot the reporting date but not incividually impcired is as follows.

2014 013

£m £fm

Upto S0 ga)!s ) o B N ) i L i . 4_9.7 i 49 4
91-365days e I 691 ’"';752
1-2 years I . A e _ .7 303
2_—3 years i — N ) o o Lo 120 1} 3
More than 3 years 7.8 7.0
1683 176 4
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23 Trade and other recevables (continued)

Induded in the allowance for doubtful debts are provisions amounting to £22 9 million (2013 £22 4 million) aganst spectic trade g
recenvables The age of the imparred recevables wos ¢s follows -!i
T o o S T o C T 2014 2013 &
£m £m a
UptoS0days o o o8 37 g
91-365days _ . L L N 33 35 E'g
1-2 years ) ) 76 39 z
2-3 years i o i o L ) 53 122 w
More than 3 years i 73 34 o
241 271 3
2
24 Cash and cash equivalents g'
-0 T - - T o 2014 013 &
£m £m &
Coshatbankandinhand o o o o 44 479 g
Short term deposits 768 3557 (]
1232 4036 ¢
Ofthe £76 8 million (2013 £355 7 million) of short term bank depostts, £43 8 millon (2013 £26 1 million) 1s held as secunty ,.3
depostts for insurance obligatons ond 5 not available for use by the group In addiion, £7 4 mitlion (2013 £6 1 million) s held for 5
use by the Ministry of Defence and is not avaiiable for use by the group g'
25 Borrowings E’
T T T T - 2004 2013
£m £m
Bonkoverdrafts L o i - Q&
Bank oans o - o ) - 7 Tsetg 7587
Other loons i 38260 38409
Finance leases ) 2012 2016

46221 480156

Presented inthe bolonce sheetas: ] )
Current labilitres ) 2061 170.3
Non-cumrent labitibies 4,415.6 i 46313

£6221 48016
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26 Finance leases
Cbligations under finance leases are as follows.
2014 2013
£m fm
Gross oblgatons under financelegses ... 2605 2651
Less future finance charges ] (593) (635
Present value of lease obligations 2012 2016

A maturty analysis ¢f grass obligotions under finance leases 1s induded inthe undiscourted amounts payoble analysis presented in
note 37 Net obligations under finance leases fall due as follows

To014 2013

£m fm

Within 1 year 213 05
1-2 years L L i ) A ) _ 386 212
2-5 years o ) ) B . 30s 66.5
After more than 5 years 1108 113 4
Included in non-current Labiities 179.9 2011
2012 2016

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 3 to 13 years at 31 March 2014 Interest terms are set at the nception of the
legses Leases with caprtal outstanding of £201 2 million (2013 £201 6 million) bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of
5 36% (2013, 5 36%) The lease obligabons are secured against the related assets.

There were no contingent rents, escalation clouses or matenal renewol or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not
impose restrction on dividend payments, addibonal debt or further leasing
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27 Cotegones of financial hiabilities

2013

2014
£m £m
Far value through profit and loss i .
Crosscurency swaps -nothedgeaccounted, . . . .. .. ) . %7 B4
Interest rate swops - not hedge accounted X 1589 1718
Forexgn exchonge forward contracts - not hedge accounted 0.3 02
180.9 1804
Denvatives designoted as hedging mstruments o i -
[nterest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 472 1280
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges 29 18
501 1298
Total denvatve finanaal labiibes 23L0 3102
Other finanoat kubites i i ) i
Borrowings {note 25) ) ] | 46221 48016
Trade payables {note 28) 318 307
Total other finanaat lichilies 46539 48323
Total finoncial liobilities 48849 51425
Disdosed in the bolance sheet as i
Non-current labilrtres S )
Denvative financial licbilises . . . L . 2082 096
Bormowmgs 44160 46313
Trade poyables - © 20
46222 49429
Current liabiles 3 L )
Denvative finoncial llcbﬂmes C T T 24.8 06
Bomowngs s, L2061 1703
Trade payables 318 287
262.7 199 6
48849 51425
28 Trade and ather payables
0T ) - o - ) 2013
£m £m
Current labllites i o oo o N
Trade payables - ) ) ~ 318 87
Socal secunty and other taxes ) o T C o 63 70
Other payables . . - ) 229 257
Deferredincome o ) ’ " Y Y - T)
Accruals 3425 3284
412.7 3990
Non-current liabiities S —
Trode payobles ) ) T o - T I Ty
Otherpayables - e - 04
Deferred income o S ™ % 2 5 )
Accruals 97 138
4924 453 &

The directors consider that the camying values of trade payables s not matenally different from their farr values

Accruals indudes n (2013 ni) in respect of armounts due to customers for contract work.
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29 Deferred tax
An analysis of the movernents n the major deferred tax labilities and assets recogrised by the group s set out below
T o o T Accelerted Refirement  Falrvalueof )
tax benefit financial
depreciation  obligahon  Taxlosses Instruments Other Totol
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At1Apni2012 o ] 9309 (742) 64 (596} 108 8015
Chargetoincome (restated) ) ) ©4  (100) 64 01 346 307
Credit to ncome ansing from rate change i _ {390} 14 - 12 (0] 35 (36 ?i
Credit to equrty (restated) _ o - @ . - 58 - a3y
Charge to equity ansing from rate change - 21 - T12 01 34
At1Apni 2013 ] o 8915 (882 - 627) 452 7858
Reciossificotion 526 - - 1
Chargetomcome ~ . _607) 63 - 122 75 (347
Credit to income ansing from rate change (1231} 38 - "7 3s 7 To70 Ty
Credt to equity . I . 08 - A6 - 54
Charge to equity ansing from rate change - 77 - 43 03 "123
At 31 March 2014 760.3 {69.6) - {37.8) 11 6540

Deferred tax assets and habilives have been offset. The offset amounts, which areto be recovered/settled after more than
12 months, are as follows,

2004 2013
£m £m
Deferred tax asset ) {121.7) (169 1)
Deferred tax lability 7757 9549
6540 7858
30 Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined benefit pension schemes
{) Background

The group operates a nurnber of defined benefit pension schemes In the UK, covenng the majonty of UK emplayees The defined
benefit pension schermes are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and therr assets are held in separate funds
adrninistered by trustees The trustees are required to act In the best interests ofthe schemes’ beneficanes A formal actuanat
valuation of each scheme 1s camed out on behalf of the trustees at tnenrual intervals by an independent, professionally qualified
actuary. Under the defined benefit pension schemes, mernbers are enttled to retrernent beneftts caloulated as a proportion
(varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of their salary for the final year of employment with the group or, f higher,
the average of the highest three consecutive years’ salary in the last 10 years of emiployment.

The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the date of therr last formal actuanal valuction are as follows:

Date of last formal actuarial vetuation

Severn Trent Pension scheme (STPS)* o 31 March 2013
Severn Trent Miror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2013

* The STPS 15 by for the lomest of the group's UK defined benefit schernes

The defined benefit pension schemes will dose to future accrual on 31 March 2015 A new defined contribution pension scheme
has been estabiished and members of the defined benefit pension schermes will then become members of the new defined
contribution pension scheme.
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30 Retirement benefit schermes (continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schernes {comtinued) -

fi r) Amount fnduded in the balance sheet ansmg from the group s obl.'gat:ons under def ined benefit pens:on schemes

006 2013
£m £m
Farr value of scheme assets L L. i . .
Equtes . 8706 8772
Gits e o ) _ 2705 2746
Corporate bonds ) 388.8 3609
Poperty o 1@8.& B 1478
Hedge funds ] i ) . i ) 56.9 55 8
Cash ) 88.4 80
Tptcﬂ_fanrva ue of assets i i i 18236 17243
Present velue of the defined benefit obhgct\ons funded schemes {21625y (20987
) o o S L (3389) (3744)
Presant value of the defined benefit obhgation_s - unfunded schemes (9.4) (9.3)
Ligbility recognised in the balance sheet (3483)  (3837)
The equities, gilts, corporate bonds and hedge funds have quoted prces in active markets.
Movements In the far value of the scherne assets were as follows
) o i i - - T o o - T2013
2014 Restated
£m £m
Forvalue ot 1 Apnl 1,723  1,55772
Interestincorne on scheme assets ~ i i B ) 760 758
Contnbut:ons fmm the sponsonng compunles i i i 730 435
Contnbuhons from scheme members i i 51 51
Retum en plun assets {exduding amounts induded in finance income) . o 249 1163
Scheme adminstration costs {3.0) {26)
Benefits paid (76.0 (710)
Farr value gt 31 March 1,823.6 1,724 3
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows
) T n ’ ) T ’ 2014 " 2013
£m £m
Presentvalueat1 April =~ L } i 21080 19030
Service cost ) ) N ) o 224 22 8
PDStSENEe"C_lﬁtW e “_- “_ o i i i ) 01 o4
Interest cost N T Tey o e22
Contnbuhons from scheme mem_tggrs_ L ’ ) 5.1 51
Actuanal (gamstosses ansing from changes m demographic assumptions ST T asn 1555
Actuannl losses ansing from chonges n ﬁnancnal assurmnptions o o __ ) 370 10
Actuanal gains ansing from expenence adjustments o N . - ]
Benefits pad @6n  (710)
Present value ot 31 March 2,1719 21080
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30 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes {(continued)

of which
2014 2013
£m fm
Amounts relating to funded schemes 21625 20987
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes D94 g3
Present value at 31 March 21719 2,1080

The group has an cbligation to pay pensions to a nurnber of former employees whose benefits would otherwise have been
restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Prowision for such benefits amounting to £9 4 rrulion {2013 £9.3 milion) s nduded
as on unfunded scheme withim the retirement benefit obligation

(ir) Amountts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2013
2014  Restated

£m £fm

Amounts charged to operating costs i

Current §er\r|ce_.-"(_:_ost ) . (22.4) {228)
Scheme administration costs i . i o ) (3.0 (26)
Past service cost e 04
- {25.5) {258)

Arnounts chorged to finance costs . . ) - — e .. .
Interest cost L ) ) ) T e22)
Armnounts credited to finance income )

Interest income on scheme 055815 76.0 758
Totat amount charged to the Income statement (41.2) %22)

The actual return on scheme assets was ¢ gain of £97 2 millien (2013 gain of £189 5 milken)

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive ncome The cumulatve amount of actuanal
gains and losses recognised in the staternent of comprehensive ncome since the cdoption of IFRS 15 a net loss af £315 7 milion
{2013 (restoted) netloss of £319.3 million)

{v) Actuanial nsk factors

The schemes typically expose the cormparty to actuanal isks such as wwestment nsk, inflation nsk and longewity risk.

Irneestment risk

The group’s contributions to the schemes are based on actuana! colculations which make assumptions about the retums expected
from the schermes’ Investments If the nvestments underperform these assumptions n the long tem then the group will need to
make additional contnbutions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits.

Inflatior: risk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are linked to inflation measured by the RPI The group's contributions to

the schemnes are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation I inflation 1s higher than the levels assumed in the

actuanal colculations then the group will need to make additional contnbutions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of
accrued benefits

Longewity nsk

The group’s contrbutions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the ife expectancy of scheme members after
retrement. If scheme members ive longer than assurmed in the octuanal calculations then the group wil need to make additronal
contributions to the schernes in order to fund the payrment of accrued benefits.
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30 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
a} Definedi benefit pension schermes (contmued)
(v} Actuarial assumptions

The majer assurnptions Lsed I the valuation of the STPS (also the approxmate weighted average of assumptions used for the
valugtions of all group schemes) were as follows

2014 2013

% %
Price inflation ) ) L . . L. 33 32
Salary increases N . . - - - o 30
Pension incregses npayment o o - R 32
Pension ncreases indeferment i o N o i . 33 32
Discount rate bt L

The assumption for pnce inflation 1s denved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts and on ndex-
linked gilts The discount rate is set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year corporate bonds

The company has adopted IAS 19 Employee Benefits Revised and therefore expected return on assets ossumptions are no lenger
needed The discount rate s opplied to the net defict to deterrmne the net finonce cost.

The mortality assumptions are based on those used Ik the tnennial voluation of the STPS as gt 31 March 2013
The mortality assumpbons adopted ot the year end and the bfe expectancies ot age 55 implied by the assumptions ore as follows

T4 T 013
-men - ] N C 7T T TsAPS'SINMA L 'SAPS SINMA L
—women o o i SINFA_L SINFA_L
Mortality table compared with standard table ) ’ ] o i i
- men B 116% o 116%
-women 92% 92%
Future Improvemnent per annum . i -1:0% N 10%
Remaining lfe expectancy for members curently aged 65 (years) o o h
-men S n3 215
-women o ] o %4 T 46
Remaning lfe expectancy ot age 65 for memberscumentlyoged 45 years) "~ 7" T T 7 T
-men . e 226 . 2271
- women 26.0 26.2

The calcutation of the scheme babilties &5 sensitive to the actuariol assumphions and m particular to the assumptions reloting to

discount rate, pnice inflabion and mortality The following table summanses the estimated mpact on scheme liabilibes from changes
to key actuanal assumptions whilst holdmng all other assumpticns constarit.

Assumption "Ehmge n nmnphun lmp;lct on scheme liobitrties
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 01% _ Decreosefincrease by £38 millon
Pcesflabion Increose/decrense by 01% _ Decreasefincrease by £35 mitbon

Mortality ) Increase In life expectancy by 1 vear Increqse by £55 million

In reglity, interrelaionships exsst between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and price inflation The above
analysis does not toke nto account the effect of these interrelabonships.

In presenting the above sensitvty analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation hos been coleulated using the
projected unit credit method gt the end of the reporting penod, which 1s the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit
obligation Lability recognised in the balance sheet,

<
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30 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a} Defined benefit pension scheres (conbinued)

{vi) Effect on future cash flows

Contnbubion rates gre set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each parbapating empioyer

The averoge duration of the benefit obligation ot the end of the year 15 18 years (2012 18 years) The expected cash flows payable
from the scheme are presented in the graph below

Graph removed

Following the completion of the tnenniat valuation of both scheres, future lump sum deficit contnbutions have been agreed

with the trustees In respect of the shortfall, a cash contrbution of £40 mullion wos made in the current year, a further £35 milion
contnbution will be made 1n the year to 31 March 2015, £15 million will be paid in the year to 31 March 2016 followed by £12 million
per annum to 31 March 2025 An annual contribution of £8 2 million will also be made through an asset backing funding
amangerment for at least 13 years from 31 March 2014

b} Defined contribution pension scherres

The group also operates defined contrbution arangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees

The Severn Trent Personal Pension scheme was opened in April 2012 This will be replaced by the ST Group Personal Pension scheme
fromn 1 April 2015 and all members of other pension schernes will be transferred The scherne has been open since 1 April 2012
and new employees were automaticatly enrolled from this date. All emnployees who were not previously in a Sevem Trent pension
scherme were automatically enralled into the ST Group Personal Penston scheme from 1 April 2013

The total cost charged to operating costs of £9 8 million (2013 £6 6 millon) represents contnbutions payable to these schemes

by the group at rates specified In the rules of the schernes As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, all contributions all due in respect of

the current reporting penod hod been paid over to the schernes




Severn Trent Plc  Annuol Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

31 Provisions
) Terminoted
Onerous  Opercbons
Restructunng  Insurance  contracts ond disposals Other Total
£m £m fm £rn £m £m
At 1 Aprit 2013 22 251 24 46 74 417
Chaorged/(released) to income statement 39 48 04 24 @5 110
Utisation of provision 23) {68) ©8) (19 20 (13 8}
Unwinding of discount . - - 01 -, 01 02
Reclassifications i L o - - 13 Q 3) -
Exchange differences [01) - - - 048 ©5)
At 31 March 2014 3.7 23.1 21 6.4 33 386
2014 2013
£m £m
Included in o i . o i o . o
Currenthubxlmes . L o o o 121 111
Non-current liabilites 265 306
386 41.7

The restructunng provsion reflects costs to be incurred in respect of cornmitted restructunng programmes  The assoaated outflows
are estmated to anse over the next 12 months from the balance sheet date

Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, is a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Prowisions for daims are made
as set out nnate 2 The assocated outflows are estimated to anse aver a penod of up ta five years from the balance sheet date
The onerous contract provision relates to specific contractual labilities either ossumed with businesses ocquired or ansingin

exstng group businesses, where estmated future costs ore not expected to be recovered in revenues The associoted cutfiows are
estimated to occur over a penod of 10 years from the balance sheet date

Provisions relatng to terminated operations and disposals ncude amourtts that it s probable wilt be paid n respect of daimis ansing
from services performed by these businesses and the indemntties described in note 41 b)

Other prowsions indude prowisions for diapidations and commeraiat disputes. The assoaated outflows are estrated to anse over a
penod of up to six years from the balance sheet date

32 Share capital
- T ) o ) T T T T 2014 2013
Em m
Total ssued and fully paid share capitat i _ i o i
238,942,647 ordinary shares of §7'%sp (2013 238,365,734) 2339 2333
Changes mn share capital were as follows
] ) ) ) - T Number T £m
Ordmary shares of 3%sp N L - L L o
At1 Aprl 2012 i ) 237,608,111 2326
Shares ssued under the Employee Sharesave Scherne 757,623 07
At1Apri2013 ,, - - 238365734 2333
Shares issued under the Ernpl loyee Sharesave Scherne 576913 06
At 31 March 2014 238,942,647 2339
33 Share premium
o ’ - 2014 2013
£m £
Atispnl ] T 89.7 838
Share premrsm arsing on issue of shores for Employee Sharesove Scheme 45 59
At 31 March 94.2 897
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34 Other reserves
i Caprtal
redemnption Infrostructure  Translation Hedging
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Em £m £m £fm £m
At 1 April 2012 ) 1561 3142 240 (94 1} 4002
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - 49 {18 6) (13 7)
Transfer to retained eamings - (314.2) - - (314 2)
At1 Aprl 2013 1561 - 289 (1127) 723
Total cornprehensive meome for the year - - (87) 186 99
At 31 March 2014 156.1 - 202 (94 1) 822

The capite! redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares

The infrastructure reserve arose Inthe pnor year on the group’s transition ta IFRS frorn restating Sevemn Trent Water Limted's
infrastructure assets to farr volue as deemed cost. In the prior year Severn Trent Water Lirrited adopted the new accounting
standard FRS 101, which uses the recognition and measurement cnterio of IFRS The infrostructure reserve was therefore recognised
tn Severn Trent Water Limided Dunng the prior year Sevem Trent Water Limited used ts infrastructure reserve to 1ssue bonus shares,
which were subseguently cancelled. These transactions resutted in a transfer from the infrastructure reserve to retained eamings In
the financial statements

The translation reserve arises from exchange differences on translation of the results and finanaal postion of foreign subsidiones

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on interest rate swaps and energy swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge
accounting provisions of TAS 39 and the transiron rules of IFRS 1.

35 Capital management

The group’s pnncipal objectives iIn managing capital arer

- to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost cornpatible with the need for
continued avatabiity,

* to mantan an investment grade credit rating, and

» to mantain a flexible and sustanable balance sheet structure

The group seeks to achieve a balance of long termn funding or commitrnent of funds across a range of funding sources ot the

best passible economic cost. The group monitors future funding requirernents and credit market condrtions to ensure contiwed

avallabilty of funds

The group does not have a specific geanng target but seeks to mamtain gearing at a level consistent with its capital management
objectives descnbed above.

The group’s dvidend policy 1s a key tool In achieving its capital management objectrves This policy is reviewed and updated in ine
with Severn Trent Water's five year price control cyde and takes into occourtt, inter oli, the planned investrnent progromme, the
appropnate gearing level, achieving a balance between an effiaent cost of capital and retaining an investment grade credrt rating,
and delvenng an attractve and sustainable retum to shareholders.

Dunng the year the group repaid an index-inked £169 million bank loan. No signficant new debt wos raised in the year

At 31 March the group’s equity and debt capital compnsed the following

2014 2013

£m Em

Cash and short term deposits ) ) ) 1232 4036
Bank overdrafts ] - 04)
Bark loans i ) o ) (594.9) {758 7)
Other loons i (382600 (3,8409)
Obligations under finance leases i i (201.2) (201 6}

Cross currency swaps 514 1007
Net debt i {26475y (4,297 3)
Equity attnbutable to the owners of the compary (1,077.6) {833 2}
Totol caprtal {5,525.1) (5,1305)
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36 Far values of finoncial instruments
a) Falr value measurements -

The valuation techruiques that the group applies in determining the for values of its finonoial instruments are described below
The techniques are dassified under the hierarchy defined m IFRS 13 which categorses valuchon techniques into Levels 1 - 3 based
onthe degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Level 1 farr value measurements are those derved from unadjusted quoted pnces in active markets for iIdentical assets or babilibes,

Level 2 far volue measurements are those dernved from inputs, other than quoted prices Induded within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or lability, ether directly (t @ as prices) or indirectly (i e. denved from pnices), and

Level 3 for volue meosurements are those derved from voluation techmgues thist inctude inputs for the osset or bobilty that are not
bosed on observable market data {unobservable inputs)

The followang table descnbes the valugtion techrugque that the group applies for each class of finanagl mstrument which s
measured ot far value on a recumng basis

Far walue os ot 31 Morch
Fair value 2014 2013
herarchy £m fm  Volugtion techniques and key inputs
Cross CUMency swaps Clewel2 Discounted cash flow N i
Assets _ o 731 1091  Future cash flows are estmated based on forward interest
Lgbiltes i T o217 ‘84  rates from observable yield curves ot the year end and
contract nterest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
creddt nsk. The currency cash flows are tronslated at the
) . ; - ; . Spotrate
Interest rate swaps levelz Discounted cash flow
Assets I ¥ | 210 FRuture cash flows are estimaoted bosed on forward mterest
Liobilhes 2061 2998  rates from observable yield curves at the year end and
controct interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
.. - . - ... (Gedtmsk ce
Energy swaps N _ level2 o Discounted cash flow
Assets - . 09 Future cash flows are estmated based on forward
Liabilities 29 18  electnaty pnees frorm observable indices at the year end
ond contract pnces discounted at a rote thot reflects
. e o GEdtesk ..
Foregn currency forward contracts Level2 Discounted cash flow ) )
Assets ) o 01 01  Futurecash flows are estmated based on observable
Liabilties 03 02 forward exchange rates at the year end and contract

forward rates discounted at a rate that reflects credst nsk.
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36 Fair values of finanaal instruments (continued)
b} Companson of fair value of financial instruments with their carrying amaunts

The directors consider that the camying amounts of cash and short termn deposits, bank overdrafts, trade recevables and trade
payabtes approximate therr far values The carrying values and estimated farr volues of other finanoal Instruments cre set

out below
o o T 013 t
Foxr vatue
Carrying Carrying Farvalue As previously
volue  Fair value vatue Restated stated
£m £m £m f£m Em
floobng rate debt . L o
Bank loons ) o ] 3000 2930 3000 2882 2882
Currency bonds 2155 2174 2431 2578 2566
5156 5104 5431 5460 544 8
Fixed ratedebt o - i . L X
Bankloons ) B o 1897 2011 1910 2108 _ 2108
Steringbonds ] ) 19029 23081 19008 22383 22996
Currency bonds X i 5715 627.3 5906 6650 6494
Cther loans ] i . 17 17 17 17 17
Finance leases 2012 197.7 2016 2082 2082
28670 3,1359 28857 3,3240 3,369.7
Index-linked debt . i
Bank loans 1052 1147 2677 2826 2826
Sterling bonds 11363 1,2133 11035 12305 13767
12395 1,3280 13712 15131  1,6593
Non-interest bearing ) ) . - - . - -
Other loars - - 12 12 12
Total 4,622.1 £,974.3 48012 53843 55750

Foilowing the adoption of IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value measurement’ the group has reviewed and amended its methodology for colculating
the fair values of certain debt 1nstruments, The methods used and the changes from previaus methads are summansed below.

The impact on the far volues disclosed in the previous year's financia! statements 1s shown in the table above

Fixed rate steriing and currency bonds are volued using market prices. Previously these bonds were valued by discounted cash flow
rmodels using discount rates derved from observations of credit spreads on a sample of the group's isted bonds
Index-inked bonds are rarely traded and therefore quoted prices are not considered to be a reliable indicator of fair value Therefore,
these bonds are valued using discourtted cosh flow models with discount rates denved from observed market prices for o sample

of bonds.

Far volues of the other debt Instruments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models.
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments

The group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial rsks market sk, fincduding imterest rate nsk, exchange rate risk and other
price nisk), credit nsk, lquidity nsk and inflation nsk. The group’s overall nsk managerent prograrmme addresses the unpredictability
of financiol markets and seeks to reduce potential adverse effects on the group’s finanaal performance or position

Financial nsks are managed by o central treasury departrnent (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the board of directors
Group Treasury identrfies, evaluates and hedges finoncial nisks in clese co-operation with the group's operating units, The board
defines written pincples far overall nsk management, as well as witten policies covening spacific areas such ds exchange rote risk,
interest rate nsk, credit risk and the use of denvative and non-dernvative financial mstrurments The group’s policy 1s that dervatae
financal instruments are not held for trading but may be used to mitigate the group’s exposure to financial nsk. The types of
denvatwve instrurnents held and the related nsks are descnbed below

Interest rate swaps are held to mibgate the group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates. Further detads ore set out n
sections o) i) and ) (i) below

Cross currency swaps are held to mitigote the group’s exposure to exchange rate movements on amounts borrowed in foreign
currencies Further details are set out in section a} {i) below

Energy swaps are held to mitigate the groups exposure to changes in electnarty prices, Further detoils are prowided in section &) (i)
below

Severn Trent Watet, the group’s mast significant business uret, operates under o regulatory emvironment where its prices are linked
to nflation measured by RPL In order to mtigote the nsks to cash flow and eamings ansing from fluctuations m RPL, the group holds
debt instruments where the pnnaipal repayable and interest cost is inked to RPI

o) Market nsk

The graup 15 exposed to fluctuabions in interest rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates. The nature of these risks and the steps
that the group has token to manage them ore descnbed bedow
() Interest rate nsk

The group’s income and ts aperating cash flows are substantially independent of changes 1 market nterest rotes. The group’s
Interest rate nsk anses fromm long term borrowings

Borrowings issued at varable rates expaose the group to the risk of odverse cosh flaw impacts fromn increases n interest rates.
Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the group to the risk of Interest costs above the market rate when interest rates decrease

The group’s policy s to mantain 45% to 30% of ts interest beanng tabiltties in fixed rate instruments In measuing this metnc,
management makes adjustrments to the camying value of debt to better reflect the amount that interest 1s calcutated on Detals of
the adjustrents made are set out below In the recondiliation of Interest beanng liabilies to net debt. At 31 March 2014 75% of the
group’s Interest beanng kabirties was ot fixed rates (2013 68%)

The group manages its cash flow interest rate nisk by borrowing at fixed or index-linked rates and by using Interest rate swaps.

Under these swaps the group receives vanable rate interest and pays fixed rate interest calculated by reference to the agreed
notional prinapal amounts. In prachce the swaps are settled by transferring the net amount. These swaps have the economic effect
of converting borrawings from varable rates to fixed rates The group has entered into o senes of these interest rate swaps to hedge
future interest payments to beyond 2030

The cast of some of the group’s debt 15 inked to changes in the Retail Prce Index (RPI} This index-linked debit provides an economic
hedge for Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatary Capital Value that are also inked to RPI under its regulatory regime

The following tables show analyses of the group’s interest bearing finanaal kabilities by type of interest Debt raised i faragn
currencies has been included at the sterling value of the paycbie leg of the comesponding cross currency swap smce this 1s the

amount thot 1s exposed to changes in interest rates. Valuation adjustments that do not Impact the amount on which interest 1s
calcutated, such s foir value hedge accounting adjustments, are excluded from this analysis.
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37 Risks ansing from finanaial instruments {continued)
a) Market nsk (continued)

{i} Interest rate nsk (continued)

The group uses interest rqte swaps to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates The net principal amount of these swaps
1s shown as an adjustment to floatng rate and fixed rate debt to demonstrate the impact of the group’s interest rate swaps on the

amount of lablibes bearing fixed interest.

Floating Fixed Index-
rate rate linked Total
2014 £m £m £m £m
Bank loans (3000} {189 7) {105 2} (594 9)
Other loans . 2057y (24606) (1,1343) (3,780.6)
Finance leases - (2012) - oy
i (5057) {28315 {L,2395 {(45767)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched aganst specific debt mstruments 5914 {5914} - -
Interest beanng finanaal labiliies 857 (34229 (1,2395) (4576.7)
Proportion of interest beanng financiat Labilities that are fixed 75%
Weighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt i 568%
Weighted average peniod for which interest 1s fixed {years) 10.7
Roating Fixed index-
rate rate linked Total
2013 £m Em £m £m
Overdrafis o4 - - {04
Bank loans (3000) (1910} (267 7} (7587
Cther loans } (2064) (24382) (1,1035) (3,7481)
Finance leases - (201 6) - {201 6)
(5068) (2,8308) (13712) (4,7088)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against specific debt nstruments 3649 {364 9) - -
Interest beanng financial Labilties (1419) (3,1957) ({13712) (4,7D88)
Proportion of interest bearing financial habiirties that are fixed i 68%
Weighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt 5 59%
Weighted average penod for which interest is fixed {years) 113
A reconcliation of net debt to amounts nduded in intevest beanng financial labilres s set out below.
) ’ ’ 2014 2013
£m £m
Interest beanng finanaal lablites o i 45767 47088
Interest free debt . - 12
Exchange on currency debt i i i 186 428
Fair value hedge accounting adiustments 268 488
Cross currency swaps inciuded in net debt at fair value _ (514)  (1007)
Cosh and cosh equivalents {123.2) (403 6)
Net debt {note 40) 44415 4,297 3
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37 Risks grising from financial instruments {continued)
-a) Market nsk (continued)- - - - - -

(i} Interest rate nsk (continued)

Interest rate swaps not hedge aecounted

The group has a number of nterest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow hedges Econormicatly these swaps act to
fix the interest cost of debt within the group which s denorminated as floating rate, but they do not achieve hedge accountmg under
the critena of 1AS 39 This hos led to a credit of £66,7 mithon charge (2013 charge of £30 8 mithion) in the INncome staternert.

Contracts where the group pays fixed rate interest are summansed below-

Average contract fixed
interest rate  Notional prncipal amount Fair value
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Period to matunty % % £m £m £m £m
1-2 years 632 - 2250 - (182) -
2-5Syears i - 6.32 - 2250 - (317
5-10years ] 498 - 2250 - (42.4) -
10-20 years 537 537 2164 149 {63.0) (co6)
20-30years 5.10 510 1250 1250 (35.3) (49.5)
5.44 559 791.4 5649 {158.9) (171.8)
Contracts where the group receves fixed interest ore surmmansed below
Average controct fixed
interestrate  Nobonal pnncipal amount Fair volue
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Period to maturity % % fm fm £m £m
1-2 years 518 - 2000 - 121 -
2-5 years - 518 - 2000 - 210
5.18 518 2000 2000 12.1 210
Interest rate senstvity analysis

The sensitivity ofter tax of the group’s profits, cash flow and equity, Including the Impact on denvatve finoncial nstruments, to

changes In interest rates at 31 March 15 as follows.

2014 2013

+1.0% -1.0% +10% -10%

£m £m £fm £m

Profit or loss 733 (83.7) 627 (74 3}
Cash flow i (L6) 16 2.0 20
Equrty 97.8 {111.0) 1127 (1305)
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37 Risks arising from financial instruments {continued)
a) Market risk {continued)

() Exchange rate risk

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which s hedged, the group’s business does not mvolve significant exposure to foreign
exchange transactions Although the group operates intemationally and its net investrments in foreign operations are subject to
exchange nsk, substantially ail of the group's profits and net assets arise from Severn Trent Water, which has very imited and

indirect exposure ta changes in exchange rates, and therefore the sensitity of the group’s results to changes in exchange rates s
not material.

Certain of the group’s subsidianes enter into transactions in currenaies other than the functional currency of the operation.
Exchange nsks relating to such operations are not matenal but are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forward exchange
contracts to buy or sell currency

In order to meet its objectsve of accessing a broad range of sources of finance, the group has raised debt denorninated in currencies
other thon sterling - pancipally yen and euro In order to mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuations, cross currency
swaps were entered into at the time that the debt was drawn down to swap the proceeds into stering debt bearnng nterest based
on LIBOR The terms of the recesvable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expected
to be effectve hedges

The group’s gross and net currency exposures ansing from currency borrowings are summansed in the tables below These show,
in the relevant currency, the amiount borrowed and the notional prinaipal of the related swap or forward contract. The net posibhon
shows the group's exposure to exchange rate risk in relation to its currency borrowings.

Jupune&e
Euro US Doltar Yen CzechKrona
2014 €m $m ¥Bn CZKm
Bomrowings by curmency (722 9) (527) (24 5) {6200
Cross cumency swaps — hedge accounted i 199 500 145 6200
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -
Net currency exposure (3.0) (2.7) - -
Japanese
Euro US Dolar Yen CzechKrono
2013 €m $m ¥Bn (ZKm
Borrowings by cumency i . (721 ¢6) {(500) {24:5) 620 0}
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 500 145 6200
Cross currency swaps — not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -

Net currency exposure (17 - - -
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments {continued)
b) Credit risk

Operationally the group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk. It has polices in place to ensure that sales of products

are made to customers with an appropnate credit history, other than in Sevem Trert Water Limnited, whose aperating licence
obliges it to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not pard Amounts provided against accounts recenvable and
movements on the provision during the year are disclosed In note 23

Cash deposits and dervative contracts are only placed with hugh credit quality finonoial iInstitutions, which have been approved
by the board. Group Treasury monitors the credit quality of the approved financral instrtutions and the list of financial Institubons
that may be used 1s approved annually by the board. The group has polices that iimit the amount of credit exposure to any one
financial Institution,

Credit nsk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate credit bmits of guthorised counterparties and the armounts held on short term deposits were as follows
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
AAA i i o 200 200 12 13
Double Arange S - ~__ 1c00 1500 252 820
Single A range 6000 £25.0 514 2724
7200 7950 76.8 3557
The fair values of demvative assets analysed by credrt rotings of counterparties were as follows
2014 2013
Rating £m £m
Double A range i i 16.7 297
Single A range ] ) 68.6 1014
853 1311

) Liquidity nsk

t) Committed fodlties
Prudent liquidity managernent requires sufficient cash balances to be maintaired, adequate committed facllies to be avaluble,
and the ability to dose out market postions Group Treasury manages liquidity and flexibilty in funding by rmonitonng forecost and
actual cush flows and the matunty profile of financol assets and liobilities, and by keeping committed credit lines ovalable

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing facilities expinng as follows.

e 20013
£m £m
2-5years 5000 5000
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37 Risks ansing from financial nstruments (continuedy
¢) Liquidrty nsk {continued)

(i) Cash flows from non-demvative financial instrurments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that wilt anse from the group's non-denvative net finanoic! iabiities
The Information presented s based on the earliest date on which the group can be required ta pay and represents the undiscounted

cash flows including principal and interest.

Payments on
Trade fmanciol

2014 Flootingrate ~ Fixedrate Indexlnked  payables  labiirhes
Undiscounted emounts payable: £m £m £m Em fm
Within 1 year ] (1426)  (2202) {238) (318) (4184
1-2 years {54 8) (721 3) (24:4) - (800 °5)
2-5 years (3165  (7373) (77 4) (11312)
5-10 years ] 263 (®771) (3733 (1,276 7)
10-15 years 435) {7880 {424.6) (1,256 2)
15-20 years {168) (558 3) {124.0) . (6930)
20-25 years - (609)  {1512) {2121)
25-30 years - (286 6) (183 6) (#701)
30-35 years - - (2224) (2224}
35-40 years - - (7406) (7406)
40-45 years - - {35735 {3,573 5)
45-50 years - - (337 (337)
50-55 years - - {5455) (545 5)
Total (6004) (4,249.7) (6,498.1) (31.8) (11,380.0}
Receipts

Cashond from

Trade shortterm  financiol

receivables  deposits assets

Undiscounted amounts recelvable: £m £m £m
Within 1 year 1956 1232 3188
) Payments on

Trade financial

2013 Foaungrate  Foedrate  index linked payables labiliees
Undiscounted amounits payobler fm fm £m £m fm
Within 1 year {105) (1443) (1945  (307) (3800)
1-2 years {1679} (217 3) (233} - (408 5}
2-5 years G677) (14210) (28 - (18615)
5-10 years o @09) (5811)  (3623) - (@643)
10-15 years (697 (11796) (1867 - (14360)
15-20 years - 5391 (3469) - (886.0)
20-25 years - 609) (1397) - {2007
25-30years ) - (988 (1698 - (4686)
30-35 years ) . - - (2064) - (2064)
35-40 years - - 7 -
40-45years . - (25977) - (25977)
45-50 years - - (9499) - (9499
50-55 years - - (536 9) - (536 9)
Total {636.8) (44420) (6,504 8) 307) (116143)
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37 Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
¢} Liguecity nisk (continued) -
{fi) Cash flows from non-denvative financal strurments (continued)

Cosh and Receipts from_
Tode  shorttermn finanaal

recenables deposts assets
Undiscounted amounts recesable: f£m £m £m
Within 1 year 1967 4036 6003

Index-linked debt indudes loans with matunties of up to 53 years The pancipal 1s revalued at fixed intervals and is inked to
mavermnents in the Retail Pnce Index. Interest payments are made Hrannually based on the revalued pnncipal The principal
repayment equals the revalued omount at matunty The payrments induded in the toble above are estimates based on the forward
Inflation rates published by the Bank of England at the balance sheet date

(i) Cash flows from denvatve finanadl instruments

The followirg tables show the estimated cash flows that will anse fromn the group’s denvative finanaat instruments The tables are
based on the undiscounted net cash Inflows/{outflows) on the denvative finanaal instruments thet settle on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross inflows/{outflows) on those dervatives that require gross settferment. When the amount payable or recevable 1s
not fixed, the armount dsdosed has been deterrnined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rotes derived from
the forward curves existing at the balance sheet date Actual amounts may be significantly dfferent from those indicated below

Cross curmency Swaps
interest rote Energy  Interestrate Energy Cash Cosh
ﬁ?:émmm (payablelrecevable: sw:pn: méﬁ swciql)“s mﬁfrs\ £m £m Tdﬁ?r:
Within 1year B 606)  (30) 8.5 - 1680 (1794) (45 5)
1-2 years ) ) (384) -~ 35 - 42 (6134) 159
2-5years 870 - - - 31 a7 (65 6)
5~10 years 33 - - - 5.5 {40} (61.8)
10-15 years (284 - - - 215 {143) 212)
15-20years ) 182 - - - 168 @7 101
20-25 years 07 - - - - - 07
(256.6) G0) 120 - 8801  (821.5) (189.0}
T "7 7 Denvetvelobiies ST T T TDevatveossets
€ross curency swaps
2013 ]"te“,'s,smtmc:'ute i:ﬂaw lmm;um ot mccmh % Total
Undiscounted amounts (payable)/recenable: Eﬁ £f:1 E:Psn W&ﬁ e'gmts pam £m Dﬂ'n
Withn Tyear - (363 ©3 86 10 373 362  (259)
1-2 years - ... wmn @ 86 - 1254 (98 23) 70)
2-5years o ~ (1109) - 41 - 6835 {6002 (235)
5-10years ) - 076 - - - 56 32) 952)
10-15 years (358) - - - 407 (237) (188)
15-20 yeors ) N oy - - - P - (201)
20-25 years Q2 - - 7. s - 2
(344 1) (18) 213 10 8925  (7616) (1927)
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments (continued)
d) Inflabon risk

The group's prinapal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, operates under o regulatory ervironment where its prices are tinked
to inflation measured by RPL Its operating profits and cash flows are therefore exposed to changes in RPT In order to mitigate and
partially offset this nsk, Severn Trent Water has rased debt which pays interest at a fixed coupon based on a pinapal amount thot
is adjusted for the change i RPL durng the Iife of the debt instrument {index-trked debt) The amount of Index-linked debt ot the
halance sheet date is shawn m section o) (i) Interest rate nsk, and the estimated future cash flows relating to this debt are shownin
section ¢} @ Cash flows from non-dervative finanaial nstruments

Inflaton rate sensitnvaly analysis

The finance cost of the group’s index-linked debt instruments vanes with changes in RPT rother than interest rates The sensitvity
at 31 March of the group’s profit and equity to changes in RPTis set out in the fallowing table This analysis relates to financicl

instruments only and excludes any RPI impact on Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulated Capital Value, or accounting for
defined benefit pension schermes,

2004 2013
+1.0% -10% +10% -10%

£m £m £m fm

Profit o loss . (95) 85 (104) 104
Equity {9.5) 9.5 (104) 104

e) Hedge accounting )

The group uses denvative finanaal nstruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates

Hedge accounting is adopted for such instruments where the critena set out In 1AS 39 are met.

(i) Farvalue hedges

The group raises debt denorminated in currencies other than sterling - prncipally yen and euro Cross currency swaps are entered
into at the tire that the debt s drawn down to swap the proceeds into steriing debt beanng interest based on LIBOR in order to
mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuabons The terms of the recenvable leg of the swap dosely match the terms
of the underlying debt, hence the swops are expected to be effective hedges. At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps
designated as fair value hedges were as follows:

Notional p;lncpal amount Fair value

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £m

VS dollar 27.0 270 &7 87
Euro 114 114 B4 93
Yen 147 714 159 353
Czech krona 704 147 46 70
1245 1245 336 60.3

(n) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and fleating
Interest rate amounts calculated on agreed notionat pnncipal amounts: Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the nsk of
changing interest rates on future cash flow exposures arising from issued varigble rate debt. The group also entered into @ number
of Interest rate contracts with future start dates during the AMPS requiatory period Such contracts enable the group to mitigate
the nsk of changing interest rates on debt which is highty probable to be ssued over the AMPS penod to fund Severn Trent Water's
capital programme and have been accounted for as cash fiow hedges The far value of mterest rate swaps ot the balance sheet
date 1s determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curve prevailing at the balance sheet date and the credit nsk
inherent in the contract,

The interest rate swaps primarily settle net on a bionnual basis The floating rote on the interest rate swaps 1 six months LIBOR




Severn Trent Plc  Annugl Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financal statements

37 Risks arising from financiol instruments (continued)

e) Hedge accounting {continued) - - — - - T T h
{#) Cash flow hedges {continued)

Detals of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are surmmansed below

’ i ’ Avemge"muctfmd
interest rate  Notional principal amount Fair value

. 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Period to maturty % % £m £Em fm £m
10-20years 5.14 507 (264.7) (4910 472 1280

The group has entered nto a senes of energy swaps under which ¢ hos agreed to exchonge the difference between fixed ond
market pnces of electnoty at six-monthly intervals up to March 2015

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Notiono! contracted
Average contruct pnce amouwnt Fair vatue
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Penod to motunty E£/MWh £MWh MWh Mwh £m £m
Less than 1 year ) 629 333 174720 550,368 ~ gZ.B)W 06
1-2 years - 62.9 - 174720 - {15)
62.9 556 174,720 725088 {2.9) (09)

38 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees Durng the period, the group recognised total
expenses of £6.2 million (2013 £6 8 million) related to equity settled share based payment transactions

The weighted average share price dunng the penod was £18 12 (2013, £16 49)

AL 31 March 2014, there were no options exercisable (2013 none) under any of the share based remuneration schemes

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs}

Under the LTIPs conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff Awards are subject to
performance condrtions and continued employment throughout the vesting penad Awards have been made on diferent bases to
Sevemn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water employees (the LTIP) and to Severn Trent Services employees (the Senices LTIP)

(1 Awards outstanding

Awards made under the (TIP

These awards are subject to Sevemn Trent Water's achieverent of Return on Regulated Captal Value in excess of the level nduded
in the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year vesting peniod It has been assumed that performance against the
LTIP non-market condrtions will be 100% (2013 100%:}

Awards made under the Services LTIP

These awards are subject to achievernent of turnover and profit targets over the three year penod from the finanaal year that the

awards were granted, It has been assurned that performance against the 2012 Services LTIP non-market conditions will be 25%
{2013 2012 Services LTIP 75%) and the 2013 Services LTIP will be 75%
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38 Share based payments (continued)

a) Loeng Term Incentve Plans (LTIPs) (continued)
Detalls of changes in the nurnber of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of awards

LYIP ServicesLTIP

Outstanding ot 1 Apnl 2012 ) 383487 94544
Granted dunng the year i i __ 99886 28599
Vested dunng the year i o (46 025) -
Lapsed dunng the year (116324)  (33,671)
Outstanding at 1 April 2013 o o 321,024 89,872
Granted dunng the year " " '889% 38902
Vested_ _q':J_nng theyear o i ] (6?,302) -
Lapsed dunng the year (66,586) (37,512)
Outstanding at 31 March 2014 276,132 91,262

Detals of LTIP and Services LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were gs follows
’ i Number of awards
Norma! date

Date of grant of vesting 2014 2013
July 2008 B ) 2013 = 31,145
July 2010 i N 203 - 125568
July2011 ) 2014 127,777 129,209
Juty 2012 ] ) _ 0 Ta015 115809 124974
July 2013 2016 123,808 -
367,394 410,896

Details of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out In the remuneration report on pages 69 and 70

b} Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares in the company to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Eam contract for a peniod of three or five years.

Details of changes in the nurnber of options outstundmg dunng the year are set out below

Nuzmber of

" Weighted

average

share oplions  exercse pnce

Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 i _ 3,084,486 950p
Gronted dunng the year _ 601,415 1,241p
Forfeted duning the year i (#1494)  1,005p
Cancelled dunng the year i i (44590)  1,094p
Exerased during the year B i i (757623)  883p
Lapsed dunng the year {7,708}  1,028p
Outstanding at 1 Aprit 2013 ~ N ) 2834486 1027p
Granted duringtheyeor L o o 660331 1331p
Forferted dunngthe year n i B L o (32327) 1151p
Cancelled during the year _ N (58,8500  1,1B4p
Exercised dunng the year i i (576,913) 874p
Lopsed dunng the year (25,713} 1,077
Outstanding ot 31 March 2014 2,800,874 1,125p
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38 Share based payments (continued)
b} Ernployee Sharesave Scheme {(continued) -
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of share options
Date of grant Normal date of exercise  Option price 2014 2013
January 2006 i 2013 823p - 20,468
January 2007 2014 1172p 11273 11392
January 2008 ) ) 2013 1221p S - 74976
January2009 ] 2014 862p 496233 511,960
January 2010 o ) ] 2015 808p 308501 774,028
januery 2011 ) . 201402016 1137p 293,633 315258
Jonuory 2012 o o o ___20150r2017  1177p _ 481830 525534
Joruary 2013 ) ] ©20160r2018  1241p  S51862 600,870
Jonuary 2014 20170r2019 1331p 657,542 -

2,800,874 2,834,486

¢) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the 51P the board may grant shore awards to employees of group companies. Dunng the year the board has announced that
it will make awards under the SIP based on performance against Severn Trent Water's targets for ts Key Performance Indicators.

Eiigble employees will be entrtled to shares to o maximum value of £750 [t 1s expected that these awards will be rnade In
August 2014 SIP shares vest with the employee on the date of grant.

d) Share Matching Plan (SMP)

Under the Share Matching Plan members of STEC receve matching share awards over those shares which have been acquired
unider the defetred share component of the annual bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a maxirnum ratio of one

matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting penod. Duning the year matching shares were
oworded at aratio of 35 1

Matchung shares are subject to total shareholder retum aver three years measured relative to the comparues ranked 51-150 by
market caprtalisation in the FTSE Index (exduding investrent trusts)

The number of shares subject to an award will Increase to reflect dividends paid through the perfarmance peniod on the bosis of
such notional dvidends being reinvested ot the then prevailing share pnce Awards will normally vest as soon as the Remuneration

Commritee determines that the performance condrtions have been met provided that the particpant remains n employment ot
the end of the performance penod

Details of dmnges in the number of uwurds dunng the year are set out below

Number of

awards

Outstandngat1Apnl2022 i 41,450
Gumeddunng theyear N ST T T T 18074
Cancelled dunng the year N o - T 7 ooy
Outstondingat1Apmi2013 ] 57,383
Grnteddunng theyear T 7T T 33803
Comcelleddunng theyear T e (¢,569)
Vested dunng the year o ’ ’ - ’ (16,179)
Outstanding at 31 March 2014 70,438
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38 Share based paymenits {continued)
d) Share Matching Plan (SMP) {continued)

Details of share matching awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of awards
Date of grant Normal date of vesting 014 2013
May 2010 June 2013 - 20,748
May 2011 i May2014 - 18611 18,611
May 2012 i May 2015 18,024 18,024
May 2013 May 2016 33,803 -

70,438 57,383

e} Fair volue calculations

The farr values of the share awards made and share options granted during the year were calculated using the methods, prnaipal
assumptions and data set out below

2014 2013
LTIP SAYE SAYE SMP LTIP SAYE SAYE SMP

3yenr 5 year 3year 5 year

scheme schems scheme scheme
Black Black Black Monte Black Black Black Monte
Methad used Scholes  Scholes Scholes Carlo Scholes  Scholes Scholes Carlo
Share price ut grant date 1,696p 1,69%4p 1,694p 1,785p 1,749p  1,605p 1,605p 1,701p
Option life {years) 3 35 5.5 3 3 35 55 3
Vesting penod (years) 3 3 5 3 3 3 5 3
Expected volatity 182% 18.2% 182%  182% 182%  182% 182% 182%
Expected dvidend yield £.7% 47% 47% n/a 43% 57% 47% n/a
Risk free rate . n/a 087%  183% 0.60% na  046% 096% 032%
Farr value per share 1471p 280p 278p 888p 1,536p 257p 239p 1,143p

Expected volatility 1s measured over the three years prior to the date of grant of the awards or share options Volatility has been
calculated based on histoncal share pnice movements

The risk free rate 15 derved from vields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options
The dwvidend yield 1s calculated using the expected dvidend for the year dvided by the share pnce at the date of gront.
The comparator group for the Share Matching Plan i the companies ranked 51-150 1n the FTSE Index.

For the Share Matching Plan, dvidends paid on the shares dunng the vesting penod are occurmnulated and released subject to the
achievernent of the performance condition, n the same manner os the underying shares. As o result o dvidend yield ossumphion 15
not required

39 Acquisitions and disposals

In July 2012 the group acquired the trade and assets of Chlonne Engineers’ CECHLO business (CEC) for cash consideration of
£1 3 million. This transactien was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting

On 22 June 2012 the group completed the sdle of its meter installation, repar and replacement business to Enterprise Plc
On 4 February 2012 the group disposed of Severn Trent Analytical Services to ALS Limited.
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40 Cash flow statement —

a}—Reconcibation of operating profit to operating cash flows- - g

i : 2014 2013 ‘:’..

fm £m a2

Prof befare nterest and tax 4724 4896 B

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2700 2646 g

Amortsation of mtangible ossets 253 305 g

Exceptional impairmment 295 &2 s

Penston service cost 2_2.5" 232 “

Defined benefit pension scheme administrabion costs 30 26 g

Pension contributions {73.0) {43 5) g

Share based payments charge ) 6.2 68 2

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {8.6) {104) g

Loss on disposal of businesses - 15 g

Deferred income movement {9.5) {93) &

Provisions charged to the income staterment 190 116 g

Utiisation of provisions for liabilibes and charges (13.8) {14 3) E,
Operating cash flows before movernents in working capital 7390 7611

Decrease in inventory b 19 2

Increase In amounts recervable 17.2) 94 3

Incregse/(decregse) In amounts payable 4.0 (2 4) g

Cash generated from operations 7302 7312 g

Tax recenved/{paid) 272 (725) g
Net cash generated from operating activities 7574 6587

b) Non-cash transactions

No additions to property, plant and equipment dunng the year were financed by new finonce leases (2013 nil) Assets transferred

from developers were £24 7 million {2013 £23 0 million)

¢) Exceptional cash flows

The following cosh flows arose from items clossified as exceptional in the ncome statement

2014

2013
£m £m
Restructunng costs (4.3) (4 4)
Disposal of fixed assets . 94 151
Settlement of customer contractual disputes o (1.9) {086)
Obligations ansing from disposal of businesses (i.ﬁ) ’ -
Professional fees relating to LongRiver proposal | (187} -
(17.1) 101
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40 Cash flow statement (continued)

d) Reconcliation of moverment incash and cash equivalents to movemnent in net debt

Asat

RPI upift on Cther Asat

1 April Farvalue  index-inked Foresgn non-cash 31 March

72013 Coshflow odustments debt  exchange movements 2014

£m £rn £m f£m £m fm £m

Cash and cash equivalents 4036 {278 6) - - {18) - 1232
Bank overdrafts 04) 04 - - E - -~
Net cash and cash equivatents 4032 (278 2) - - (18 - 123.2
Bank loans (758.7) 1699 - 61} - - {594 9)
Other loans (3,840.9) 19 219 (308) 2472 23) (3,826.0)
Finance leases (2016} 04 - - - - (201.2)
Cross qurrency SWaps 1007 - (486) - - 07) 514
Net debt (4,297 3) (106 0) (267) (36.9) 224 30) (4467.5)

4] Contingent liabilities

a) Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bends and guarantees in the nomal course of business No liabiity 15 expected to arise in
respect of either bonds or guarantees

The group has during the cumrent year given certoin modified and lower guarantees in respect of the borrowings of its associate,
Servizio Idnco Integrato S ¢ p a The guarantees are now bmited to €5 1 million (2013. €11 2 million) The group dees not expect any
liohilities that are not prowded for in these financiol staterents to onse from these arrangements

b) Disposal of subsidianes
The group has given certain guarantees and indemnities in relation to disposals of businesses

On 1 Apnil 2010 the Commeraal Court in Belgium rendered judgment in favour of the group i relation to claim from Veolia
Propreté SA {Veola’) ansing from the sate of Biffa Belgium to Veoliain 2006 The judgment dedared all of Veolia’s claims to be
unfounded Veolia’s appeal against this decision was rejected by the Court in a judgment delvered on 16 Aprl 2014

The group Is not aware of any other liability thet 1s bikely to result from these guarantees and mdemnities that has not been provided
for in these financial statements

42 Senvice concession arrangements

The group’s contract to provde water and waste water services to the Ministry of Defence (MoD} is a service concession
armangement under the defintion set out n IFRIC 12 The group acts as the semice prowider under the MoD Prgject Aquatnne
Package C - o 25 year contract spanning 1,295 sttes across England covenng the Fostern sea border and from Lancashire in the
North West to West Sussex on the South coast.

Under the contract the group marrtains and upgrades the MoD infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water and
waste water Both the operating services and maintenance and upgrade services are charged under a volumetnc tanff, along with
standard charges, which are adjusted with inflgtion as agreed in the contract.

Since the group has an unconditional nght to recerve cash in exchange for the mantenance and upgrade services, the amounts
recewvable are recogrised os a financial asset within prepayments and accrued incorme At 31 March 2014 the amounts recevable
were £24 8 million (2013 £26 & million).

There have been no significant changes to the arangernent dunng the year
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43 Financial and other commitments
a) Investment expendiure commitments - - -

2014 2013
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided in the finanaal staterments 158.5 2249

In addition to these contractudl commitrments, Sevemn Trant Water Limted has longer term expenddure plans which indude
rvestments to achieve iImprovements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services (Ofwat) and to provide
for growth in dernand for water ond sewerage senvices

b} Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding comrmitmerts for future mimmum operating lease payments under
non-conceliable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2014 2013

£m £m

Within 1 year ) 34 47
1-5 years 7.2 109
After more then 5 years 59 70
165 226

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its affice properties, plant and equipment,

44 Post balance sheet events

Followng the year end the board of directors hos proposed a final dwidend of 48 24 pence per share Further details of this are
shown innote 14

45 Related party transactions

Transactions betwaen the company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been elrminated on consolidation and are
not induded in this note Transactions between the group and 1ts associates and joint ventures are disclosed below

a) Trading ransactions

Amounts due from

Sate of services reioted parties

2014 013 2014 2013

£m fm Em £m

SII 58 69 171 164

The related parties are assoaates and joint ventures in which the group has @ parbapating interest. The retirement benefit schemes
operated by the group are considered to be related parties Details of transactions and balances with the retrement benefit
schemes gre disclosed in note 30

b) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key managemert personnet compnse the members of STEC during the year

The remuneration of the directors 15 nduded within the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration of
indradual directors 1s provided in the oudited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 67 to 74

2014 2013
£m £m
Short term employee benefits i 63 60
Post employment benefits i i ) 04 01
Share based payments - L4 10
8.1 71
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46 Subsidiary undertakings
Principal subsidiary undertakings

Details of the prncipal operating subsidiones as at 28 May 2014 are given below A complete bist of subsidiary undertakings is
available on request to the company and will be filed with the next Annual Retum,

Country of ncorporation and main aperation 1 Great Bntain and registration 1s in England and Wales unless otherwise stated.
Al subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned unless otherwise indicated. All shareholdings are in ordinary shares

All subsndmry undertnklngs hove been |ncluded mthe consolldctmn

" Proportion of
Country of ownership

Name incorporation  Principal activity interest
Derwent Insurance Linnited i Gibroltar Provision of insurance services to other group compantes 100%
Severn Trent Services UK Limited N Great Brtain Operuhon of water and seweroge infrastructure ©100%
Sevem Tn_ant Services Defence lelteq Great Brtan  Provision of water and sewerage services to MoD 100%
Severmn Trent Environmental Services Inc - USA_ Opercmon of water end sewerage |nfrustructure ) 100%
Severn Trent Select Limited _ Great Britan  Provision of licensed water and sewerage services  100%
Sevem Trent Services Limited Great Brtain  Distnbution of water purfication praducts ) 100%
Severn Trent Water Limited _ Greot Britan Provision of regulated water and seweroge services 100%
Severn Trent Water Punfication Inc. USA Manufacture and disinbutton of water punficaion produt:ts 100%

Subsidiary oudit exernptions

Severn Trent Plc has issued quarantees over the labilities of the following companies ot 31 March 2014 under section 479C
of Comparyes Act 2006 and therefore auditors have not been appointed for these entities.

Company number
City Anclytrcal Services Limrted 2050581
East Worcester Water Limited 2757948
Gunthorpe Figlds Limited 4240764
Severn Trent (WES) Limited 3995023
Severn Trent Carsington Limited 7570384
Severn Trert Corporate Haldings Limited 4395566
Severn Trent Data Portal Limited 8181048
Sevem Trent Draycote Limited 7681784
Severn Trent Finance Holdings Limited 6044159
Severn Trent Finance Limited 6294518
Sevem Trent Financing and Investments Limited 6312635
Severn Trent Holdings Limitad 5656363
Severn Trent Investrment Holdings Limited 7560050
Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited 2455508
Sevem Trent Power Generation Limited 2651131
Severn Trent Property Solutions Limrted 8181033
Sevemn Trent Services Holdngs Limited 4395572
Severn Trent Services Intemnational (Overseas Holdings) Limted 3125131
Severn Trent Seniices Punfication Lirted 2409826
Sevemn Trent Systerns Limited 2394552
Severn Trent Litility Senaces Limited 4125386
Severn Trent Wind Power Limited 7742177
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Company statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2013
- - - 2014 Resioted
£m f£m
Profit/{loss) for the year 310.7 (6 8)
Other comprehensive income
Itemns that will not be reclossified to the income statement
Deferred tox ansing on change of rate ] ) 05 (02
(0.5) {02)
Iterns that may be redassified to the iIncome staterment:
Armounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the incorne staterment in the year ) 27 25
Deferred tax on transfers to ncome staternent {0.5) {06)
22 19
Other comprehensive income for the year 17 17
Total comprehensive incerme/(loss) for the year 3124 {(51)
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Company balance sheet
At31 MarclgOl-’-r y
cems oo mommomo oo o o B TRt
Note £m £m
Noncurrent assets _ .
Intangble fixed assets ) ) ) . ) _ 02 _ 02
Tangible fixed assets i 3 04 06
Investments in subsidianes 43,7627 36416
Denvative finanaal instruments ) 26 158
3,7659 36582
Currentossets L ) i i i i o
Debtors ) o . o o 5 250 426
Denvatve finanaal mstruments ) ] ) ] o 3% 01
Cosh at bank and In hand 259 30
~ ] ] ] ] 545 457
Creditors. amounts falling due within one year 6 @71 i {185 7)
Net current iabiliies (162.6) (140 0)
Total ossets less current liabilities 36033 35182
Creditors amounts falling due after more than ona year 7 (113.8)  (1638)
Net assets 3,4895 33544
Copttaland reserves i )
C_(_:Iled up shore capital i i i 9 2338 2313
Share premum account o o . 10 9%2 897
Otherreseves S o . .. m_ 1565 1544
Retaned eamings 3,009 28770
Total capttal and reserves 34895 33544

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 28 May 2014.

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chairrman Finance Di

Compary nur:nber 02:66619 'EC’CO"‘ ) “0 (L( 2
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014
’ o T Share Share Other ~ Retoined
capital-  premium reserves eamings Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At1 Aprt 2012 2326 818 1524  3,2000 36688
Loss for the penod o ) - - - 68 68)
Armounts o cash flow hedges tronsferred to the incorme stotement - - 26 - 26
Deferred tax on tronsfers to the income statement - - ({06} - 0§
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - o2 02
Total comprehensive loss for the penod o o -~ 20 70 (50
Shure options and LTIPs o o N i o
- proceeds from shars smed i i i 07 59 - - 6.6
- value of emp oyees’ services - - - 60 60
Dmdends paid - - - (3220) (3220}
At 31 March 2013 2333 857 154 4 2,8770 33544
Profit for the penod - - - 3107 3107
Amounts on cash flow hedges trangfgir_ed to the mcorne statement . i - - 26 - "2;6_
Deferred tax on transfers to the income. stutement . i - - {09 T 05
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - ©5) " (05)
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - 21 3102 3123
Share options and LTIPs H
- proceeds from shares issued . i _ 06 45 - - 51
-value of employees' sevces - - - 30 30
Dridends paid o - - -7 11853) (1853)
At 31 March 2014 2339 94.2 1565 3,004.9 3,489.3

Inprevious years £1,221 2 million of the compary’s retained profit arose as a result of group restructunng exercises, and is not

considered likely to be distnbutable
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Notes to the company financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

1 Accounting policies
a) Accounting convention

The finanaal staternents have been prepared under the
historical cost cervention as modified by the revaluation of
certain finanaal assets and kabiities {(inctuding denvatve
instrurnents) at fair value, and in accordance with applicable
Urited Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the
requirements of the United Kingdorm Companies Act 2006 (‘the
Act’} The prncipal acoounting policies, which hove been applied
consistently n the current and preceding year are set out below

b) Basis of preparation

The compary has elected to odopt early the new accounting
framework 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council,

The comnpany meets the defintion of a qualifying entity under
Financial Reporting Standard 100 (FRS 100) Accordingly, in the
year ended 31 March 2014, the company has adopted FRS 101
‘Reduced Disctosure Framework’ and has ceased to apply all

UK Accounting Standards issued prior to FRS 100 Therefore the
recognition and measurement requirements of EU-adopted IFRS
have been applied, with amendrnents where necessary in order
to comply with Compantes Act 2006 and The Large and Medum-
szed Cormparves and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regutations
2008 (SI 2008/410) as these are Companies Act 2006 accounts

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage
of the disclosure exernptions availabie under that standard

in relation tv share based payments, financal Instruments,
copital managernent, presentation of comparative information
In respect of certan assets, standards not yet effective,
impairment of assets and related party transactions.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group
financial staternents

As permitted by section 408 of the Compories Act 2006, no
profit or loss account or cash flow stoternent s presented
for this compary The profit for the year s disdosed in the
stotement of comprehensive income

Sevemn Trent Pic 15 a partner in Severn Trent Limited Partnership
{'the partnership?), which is registered in Scotiand As the
portnership is Induded n the Severn Trent Plc consclidated
gccounts, the companty has taken advantage of the exemption
conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 from the requirements of Regulotions 4 10 6

€) First time adopticn of FRS 101

The company’s date of transition to FRS 101 15 1 April 2012 and
all comparative information i the finanoal statements has
been restated to reflect the company’s adoption of FRS 101,
except where otherwise required or permitted by paragraphs

& to 33 of Intemnational Financia! Reporting Standard 1 - “First
Time Adoption of Intemational Financal Reporting Stondards’
(IFRS 1). Details of this transiion are given in note 18

The group adopted IFRS for the first time in ts consolidated
financal statements in the year ended 31 March 2006

In accordance with IFRS 1, the company has measured its
assets and liabibbies at the carnying amounts that would be
included in the consolidated firancial staternents of the group

" d) Intangble fixed assets

Intongible ossets ocqured separately are capitalsed ot cost
and are capitalised ot fair value at the date of acguisiion
Following (nital recogrition, the historical cost model s appled
tointangible assets

Intangble ossets are amortised on a straight line basss over their
estimated useful econamic bves os follows,

Yeors

Software 3-10

Amortisation charged on assets with finte bives 1s taken to the
income statemment through operating costs

Intangible assets are reviewed for simpairment where iIndicators
of impaimnent exist.

e) Tangble fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are nduded at cost less accumulated
depreciotion Freehold lond 1s not depreciated Other assets
are depreciated on a straght Une basis over ther estimated
economic lives, which are prnapally as follows.

Years
Buldings i 60
Office fixtures and equiprnent 3-20

f) Impawment of fixed assets and mvestments

If the recoverable arnount of a fixed asset or iInvestment 1s
estirnated to be less than its carrying amount, the carmying
amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent fronn other assets, the compary estirmates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs Recoverable omount i1s defined as the higher of
far value less costs to sell or estmated value in use ot the date
the impairment review s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell
represents the amount obtanable from the sale of the usset In
an am’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
third parties, less costs of disposal. Value in use represents the
present value of future cash flows expeacted to be denved from
a cash-generating unit, discounted using d pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the cost of
capital of the cash-generating unit or asset.

The discount rate used 15 based on the estimated cost of capital
of the asset or cash-generating unit.

Impairments are recagrised immediately In the profit and

. loss account.
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial staterments

1 Accounting policies (continued)
g) Anancialinstruments ~ -

i) Financial assets
Finoncial ossets are dassified into the following categones

» gt far value through profit or loss,

» held to matunty investments,

» avallable for sale finonaal assets,

» {pans and recenvables, and

» denvatives designated os hedging instrurnents

Finanaial assets ot foir value through profit or loss

A fingnaial asset s dassified qt far walue threugh profit or loss

if it 1s 50 designated or f t1s clossified as *held for trading’
Denvative finanocl assets that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments are required to be dassified as held

for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
descnbed mn the Financia! review on page 36, s thot the group
does not hold or ssue denvative finanaal instruments for
trading Finanaal assets at farr value through profit or loss

are stated at fair value, with any goins or losses ansing on
remeasurement being recogrsed in the profit and loss account.
Far value 1s determimed using the methodology described in
note 36 to the group’s financiol statements

Held to maturity tvestments

Where the company has the abilty and intent to hold an
imvestment to matunty the finanaal asset & dassified as held to
matunty Such finanaal assets are rmeasured ot amortised cost
using the effective Interest rate method, with any gains or losses
baing recognised m the profit and loss account.

Avaiable for sale finanaal assets

After nitial recognibion ot cost (being the farr value of the
carsideration pad), mvestrents wivch are dassified gs
available for sale are measured at faw value, with gains or losses
recogrised nequity When an avatlable for sole rvestment, s
disposed of or iImpaired, the gain or loss previously recogrised in
equity is taken to the profit and loss account. Where there s no
active market i the iInvestments and the fair value cannot be
mecsured reliably, the investrnents are held at cost

Loans and recenobles

Trade recenvables, loans and other recewvables that have fixed

or deterrninable payments and that are not quoted m an active
myrket are classified gs loans and recervables Such assets

are measured ot farr volue oninitol recognition and are
subsequently measured at amortsed cast using the effective
interest rate method unless there is objective evidence that

an asset s impared, when t is wiitten down to s recoverable
amount and the imecoverable amount is recognised as
anexpense.

Derrvatives designated as hedging instruments

The foir value of denvative finanaol ossets that ore designoted
s hedging instrurnents 1s determined using the methodology
induded i note 36 of the group financidl staterments

Hedge aocounting 1s descnbed below

) Finanaal iabibties
Finonco! hobibes are dassfied os ethen

« ot far value through profit or loss, or
« other finonoiol lobilties, or
« denvabives designated as hedging instruments.

Financial trabditres at fow volue through profit or loss

A financial labilty s dassified at fair value through profit or
loss If 1t is so designated or ff it is dassified as ‘held for trading’
Denvatve financat liabilibes that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments are required to be dossified
as 'held for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Tregsury
Policy, described in the Financial review an page 36, 1s that the
group does not hold or ssue denvative financial instruments
for trading Financial liabilties ot farr value through profit or
loss are stoted ot far value, with any gains or losses ansing on
rerneasurement betng recogrused in the profit and lass account.
Fair value 15 determined using the methodology desabed in

* note 36 in the group finonciol staterments

Other financal lobilities

, Other finanaal labilibes, nduding borrowings, are mitially

recognised at fair value less transaction costs. After initiat
recognition, other financial liobilites ore subsequently measured
at amorused cost using the effective interest rate method.
Denvatives designated as hedging instruments

The far value of denvatve finanoel Lobilibies that ore designated
s hedging instrurments 1s determined using the methedology
included in note 36 of the group financial statements.

Hedge occounting 1s described below

#) Hedge accournting

» The company uses demvative financial mstruments such as

cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest

rate swaps to hedge its nsks ossociated with foreign currency

and interest rate fluctuotions. Such dervative Instrurments are

recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting

policies descibed above

At the Inception of the hedge relationship the

compary docurments

» the relatronship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged tem,

* its nsk monagement objectives ond strategy for undertaking
hedge transactons, and

+ whether the hedging instrurnent is hughly effective in
offsetong changes n fair volues or cosh flows (os oppropnote)
of the hedged item

The company continues to test and document the effectvenass
of the hedge on an ongoing basts

Hedge gccounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrurnent
expires, is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting

Farr volue hedges

* Where a loan or borrowing 1s in a farr value hedging relabonship

. It s remeasured for changes in farr value of the hedged nsk at

» the balance sheet date, wath gains or losses being recognised in
the profit and loss account.

ooubwianoy  podai aibaong
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accounting policies {continued)
g) Financial nstruments (continued)

it} Hedge accounting {contiriued)

When hedge accounting is discontinued the far value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged tem arnsing
from the hedged nsk 1s amortised to the profit and loss account
from that date

Derivatnves designated as cash flow hedges

The farr value of denvative finanaal babilties thot are designated
as hedging Instrurnents 15 determined using the methodology
tncluded n note 36 of the group financial statements

Hadge occounting 1s descnbed belaw

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrurment that
1 determned to be an effective hedge 1s recognised directly In
equity and the ineffective portion in the profit and loss account
The gains or losses deferred in equity In this way ore recycdled
through the profit and loss account in the sarme penod in which
the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment 1s
recognised n the profit and loss account.

When hedge accounting is discontinued any cumulative gain
or loss on the hedging mstrument recognised in equity & keptin
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to the
profit and loss account I the forecast transaction 15 no longer
expected to occur

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign
curmency denominated operations, to the extent that they
are designated and effective os net investment hedges,
they are matched in equity against changes in value of the
related assets. Any neffectveness 1s taken to the profit and
loss occount.

{iv) Embedded dematives

Denvatives embedded in other financal instruments or other
host contracts are treated os separate denvatves when their

nsks and charactenstics are not dosely related to those of the
hest contract and the host contract 1s not camed at forr volue,
with gains and losses reported in the profit and loss account.

h) Irvestments

Investments n subsidiary undertakings are held ot
histoncal cost.

After invtial recognition at cost (being the fair volue of the
considerabion paid}, Investrments wiuch are clossified as held
for trading or available for sale are measured at far value,

with gains or losses recogrised in profit and loss or equiy
respectively When an available for sale nvestment is disposed
of or impatred, the gain or loss previously recogrised in reserves
15 taken to the profit and loss account

) Share bosed payments

The company aperates a number of equity settled share
based compensation plans for employees. The far value of
the employes services recenved in exchange for the grant is
recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant.

: The farr value of employee senices is determuned by reference

to the fair value of the awards gronted calauated using a pnang
model, exduding the impact of any non-matket condiions

The number of awards expected to vest takes into account
non-market vesting condrtions induding, where appropnate,
continuing employrent by the group. The charge 1s adjusted

to reflect shares that do not vest as a resuit of faling to meet a
non-market based condition

Where the company grants awards to employees of subsidiary
companies, the company records the fair value of the awards as
an increase in s investment in the subsidiary The investment s
adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest os a result of falling to
meet o non-market based condtion

) Retrement benefits

The company partiapates in the Sevemn Trent group’s defined
benefit pension scheme As there is no controctuol agreement,
or stated policy, for charging the net defined benefit cost to

the partiapeting group companies, the company recogrises a
charge in the profit and loss account equal to the contnbutions
payable in the year The net defined benefit cost s recognised by
the sponsoring emptoyer, Severn Trent Water Limrted

The company also participates in the Severn Trent group's
defined contnbution pension scheme Contributions are charged

' to the profit and loss account in the year in which they foll due,

k) Taxation

Current tax payable 15 bosed on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
profit and loss account becouse it excludes items of income
and expenses that cre taxable or deductible m other years and
it further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible
The company’s kability for cumrent tax 1s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full, using the liability method,
on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and babiiees and theair camying omounts in the financcl
staternents A deferred tax asset is only recognised 1o the extent
that it 1s probable that sufficent taxable profits will be available
in the future to utilise it. Deferred taxation 1s measured on a nor-
discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enactad by the balance sheet dote and
that are expected to apply when the reloted deferred tax asset
1s realised or the deferred tax kability 1 settied.

Deferred tax assets and hobilittes are offset when there s @
legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets aganst
current tax lobilses and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authonty and the company Intends
to settle fts current tax assets and liabilthes on a net bass.
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

2 Intangible fixed assets

Totnt
Em
Cost
At1Apni 2013 08
Addrtions 01
At 21 March 2014 0s
Amarbsation i ) B
At1 Apni 2013 {06)
At 31 March 2014 {0.6)
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 03
At 31 March 2013 02
All intangibtes assets are purchased software
3 Tangible fixed assets
Office
Lend and  fixtures and
buildings equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Asat 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 01 0.6 0.7
Depreciotion
Asatl Apﬂ[ 2013 - _(0 1) 1)
Charge for the year - (0.2) 0.2}
Asct 31 March 2014 - (0.3) {03)
Net book value i
Asat 31 March 2014 0.1 0.3 0.4
Asat 31 March 2013 0.1 05 06
4 Investments
. Subsidiary undertakings
Shares Loang Totat
£m £m £m
Asat 1 Apri 2013 . 33105 3311 36416
Additonsfoans advanced © 31 1180 1211
Asat 31 March 2014 33136 4491 3,762.7

Detatls of prinaipat subsidianes of the compary are given In note 46 of the group financial statements

Foupbwsn0g  1odal 263008
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

5 Debtors -
N ) ) R ) ) o 016 2013
£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings i 192 45
Deferedtax © 7 a9 82
Corporation tax recoverable ) o L T e
Other debtors T S ) o T o Y -
Prepoyments and accrued income - ) ] B ) T o8 04
250 426

An analysts of the movements in the major defemed tax liabiities and assets recognised by the company 1s set out below

Accelerated Foir value of
financial

b |
depreaction  mstruments Other Total !
m £m £m £m |
ALT Apnil 2012 — 02 92 06 100 !
Chorgeto profitandlossgccount o by 09 02 (08 |
Charge to profit and loss account ansing from rate change o R X - {0y
Charge to other comprehensive ncome - o6 - (06}
Charge to other comprehensive iIncome ansing from rate change - 02 - 02
At1 Apnl 2013 ] ] 01 73 08 82
Chargeto prof it and loss account . - - 22 05 an
Chargeto profit and ioss cccount nnsmg from rate chonge i o i o 05 (p :”l)“ o0&
Charge to other comprehenswe ncome i - (05) - {03
Charge to other comprehensive INCOMe arising from rote change - (03) - {05)
At 31 March 2014 0.1 36 12 49
b Credltors amounts fulllng due within one yeor
""""" ’ T T T T e 2013 |
fm £m |
Bank overdrafts i i i 40 196 |
Other loans 264 -
Borrowings (note 8} L . . . e .. 304 O 196
Denvotive ﬁnuncful mstruments . o o . 2,
Trade creditors . 0h 06
Amounts due to group undertakings o i 1462 1552
Other credrtors i . o ) o 101 _ 60
Tcxcmon und social securtty L L L o o 87 -
Accrued expensa 11 41
2171 1857
7 Creditors: amounts fulllng due after more than one year
o o ) ) ) 014 2013 |
£m fm '
Borowings - other loons {note 8} i . i o i 955 1291
Amounts due to group undertakings ) i _ - 30
Denvative financial instruments 183 317
1138 1638
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

8 Bommowings

T ) o e - T ) T s T 2013
£m £m

Borrowangs due within 1 year 304 196

Borrowings due after more than 1 year )

Between 1-2 years o ) 17.8 323

Between 2-5 years i i - 216

After more than 5 years 77.7 752

Total borrowings due after 1 year 955 1291

1258 1487

Borrowings repayable after more than five years compnses the compary's RPE linked retail bonds 1ssued in July 2012 The bonds
carry ¢ coupon of 1 3% on the pnnaipal amount which is uplfted by RPT The bonds are repayable in July 2022

The company’s borrowings are denominated in sterling, after taking account of cross currency swaps the company has entered into
There 1s no significartt difference between the book value and the farr value of the company's borrowings Farr values are based on
the expected future cash flows discounted using zere coupon forward nterest rates related to the expected tming of payments

At the balance sheet dote the compary had committed undrown barrowing facilities expinng as follows

2015 2013
£m £m
Within 1 year . ) . o = LT
1-2years o L L L = .-
2-5 years 2000 2000
200.0 200.0
This facility 15 shared with Sevemn Trent Water Limited.
S Share copital
2015 2013
£m £fm
Total ssued and fully paid share caprtal o o L i
238,942,647 ordinary shores of 97Y/4sp {2013 238,365,734) 2339 2333
Changes in share caprtal were as follows
Ordinary shares of 97"/ ] i
At1Apri2013 ) ) ) . 238,365,734 2333
Shares ssued under the group's Employee Sharesave Scherme 576,913 Q6
At 31 March 2014 238,942,647 2335
10 Share premium
’ ST ) o ’ ST ) T T T
£m £m
Mtpl T T ema . w@ms
Share prernium ansing on Issue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 45 59
At 31 March 94.2 897
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financal statements

11 Other reserves
i Copital i
redemption Hedging

resarve reserve Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2012 1561 37 1524
Total cornprehensive incorme for the year - 20 20
At 1 Apnl 2013 1561 (17) 1544
Totol comprehensive mcome for the year - 21 21
At 31 March 2014 156.1 0.4 156.5

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares.

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting
provisions of IAS 39 and the transttion rules of IFRS 1

12 Share based payments

For details of employee share schermes and options granted over the shares of the cormpany, see note 38 of the group financicl
statements Details of options exeraised and awards vesting duning the year and of the weighited average share price of the
company dunng the year are also disclosed inthat note

13 Pensions

The group operates group defined benefit pension schernes, of which some employees of the companty are mernbers There is

no contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit cost of these schemes between the cornpanies that participate n
the schernes As a result, the net defined benefit cost of the scheme is recognised in the finanaal staterments of the sponsorng
employer, Sevemn Trent Water Limited The cost of contributions to the group schemes amounts to £0 1 midbion (2013 £0 1 rmillion)
There wete no amounts outstanding for contributions to the defined benefit schemes (2013 nil}

Information about the plans os a whole 1s disclosed m note 30 to the group finonaial staternents

14 Reloted party transactions

The retrement benefit schermes operated by the company are considered to be related parties Details of transachons and balances
with the retirernent benefit schemas are disclosed innote 13

15 Contingent liabilities

o) Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarontees in the normal course of business No liabilities are expected to anse in respect
of ether the bonds or guarantees.

b) Bank coffset omangements

The barking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certoin of its subsidiary undertakings. Uncler these
amangernents, participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances,
which can be offset agamst balances of partiapating companies. As at 31 March 2014, the company had contingent habilities of
£25 9 million (2013 £3 0 million)

16 Post balance sheet events

Following the year end the board of directors has proposed o final dwvidend of 48 24 pence per share,

17 Dividends

For details of the dvidends paid in the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 see note 14 1n the group
financal staternents
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

18 Transttion to FRS 101

This 1s the first year that the company has presented its financial statements under FRS 101 The last finanaal staterments prepared
under the previous UK accounting framework were for the year ending 31 March 2013, therefore the date of transihion was

1 April 2012
Reconcilation of equity at 1 April 2012
Aspresously  Effectof  Under FRS
reported tronstion 101
£m fm fm
Intangible fixed assets ) ) ) - 02 02
Tangible fixed assets 02 02 -
Investments 36380 - 36380
Dervative financiol nstrurments 208 - 208
) ~ ] ~ 36590 - 36590
Currert assets o o o ) N T
Debtors - ) o o W3 27 470
Dervatwe financial assets o T 67 o 67
Cash at bank and in hand 2346 - 2346
2856 27 2883
Creditors amounts faling due within one year (181 0) ()] (1816)
Net current babilies 1046 21 1067
Total assets less aurrent babilibes o i o 37636 21 3,7657
Credtors amounts foling due ofter morethanoneyear e ] e - (969)
Net assets 3,666 7 21 3,6688
Copitat ond reserves
Share copital 2326 - 2326
share premium i ) N i ) 838 - 838
Other réserves L L C 124 -7 1524
Retained eamings T 31979 21 32000
Total shareholders’ funds 36667 21 3,6688
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Company financial statements Notes to the companty financial statements

18. Transition to FRS 101 (continued)
Reconciliation of equity at 1 Apnl 2013

Asprevously  Effectof  Under FRS
reported  tronsibon 101
£m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangsble fixed assets S - 02 02
Tangible fixed assets i 08 02 06
Investments L 36416 - 36416
Denvative financial assets 15.8 - 158
) o i ) L o _ 3,658.2 -~ 36582
Current gssets ) L n o . 3 i C
Debtors o ) - 405 21 426
Denvative financial assets i 01 q—— 01
Cash at bank and in hand 30 - 30
] 436 21 457
Creditors amounts falling due within one year (185 6) {01) (1857)
Net current (labilines)/assets (142 0} 20 {(1400)
Total gssets l"essugurrgnt_habrhtl_esw ) - o - 35162 20 35182
Credttors amounts falling due after more than one year (163 8) - (1638
Net assets 33524 20 33544
Capital and reserves i
Share caprtal 2333 - 2333
Share premim 897 - 897
Other reserves i i ) i 1544 - 154 4
Retained reserves 28750 20 28770
Shareholders’ funds 3352 4 20 33544

The company Is included in the consolidated accounts of the Sevem Trent group The Sevem Trent group adopted IFRS In its

consclidated finanaal statements for the first time in the year ended 31 March 2006 In accordance with IFRS 1, the company has

measured its assets and obilmes at the carmying amounts that would be induded in the consolidated finanoial statements
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Five year summary
. i o 2013 o
- 2014  Restated- -2012 - - w011 — 2010
Continuing operations £m fm £m £m £m
Tumover ~ 18567 18316 17706  1,711.3 1,703 9
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 5168 4954 5042 5191 5571
Net exceptional tems before tax (44.4) (58) (509) (21 4) @497
Net interest payabile before gains/fosses) on financial instruments
and exceptional finance costs (247.9} (244 3) (229.0} (2306) (2188)
Gmnsl(losses) on financial Instruments 580 #53) (67.7) (14 2) 457
Results of associates and jomt vantures 0.2 02 01 01 01
Profit on ordinary activibes before taxation 2827 2002 1567 2530 3344
Current taxatron on prafit on ordinary actvities {56.5) (279) 805 321 @07
Deferred toxation i (215) 82 782 536 (42.2)
Excepiional tax 2302 384 - - -
Profit on ordinary actnities after taxation 4349 2189 1744 2745 2515
Profit for the year 4349 2189 174 4 2745 2525
Net assets ernployed
Fixed assets ) 7,1238 © 69061 67436 66353 65161
Other net bobhites excuding net debt, retirement benefit obligation,
provisions and deferred tox i (348.2) (2738) {341 3) {320 4) (317 2}
Dervative finanoal instrument s {197.3) (2798) {261 8) (905  (1253)
Retirement benefit obligation (348.3) (3837) {345 8) (2921) (354 9)
Prowvisions for Labiliies ond charges and deferred tax (692.6) {827 5) (845 5) (9574) (1,0103)
55376 51413 4,949 2 49749 4,708 4
financed by
Called up share caprtol _ 2339 2333 2326 2322 2316
Reserves 8437 5999 7409 8676 7091
Total shareholders' funds ) 10776 8332 9735 10998 9407
Non-controlling irterests i 125 108 79 63 6.3
Net debt? L4715 42973 3,967 8 3,86B8 3,764
5,537.6 51413 49492 49749 4,708 4
Statistics
Eamings per share (continuing) - pence ) 1821 957 725 115.2 105.6
Adjusted eqamings per share - pence 884 989 889 1056 1228
Dradends per share (excludmg special dmdend) pence 804 758 701 651 723
Dridend cover (before exceptional ttems and deferred tox) 11 13 13 16 17
Geanng . 803% B36% 80 2% 778% 799%
Ordlnury share pnee ot 31 March - pence i 1,823.0 1,7]:2 0 1,5{+f+ ¢ 1,446 0 L1850
Average nurnber of employees i i ) N
~ Severn Trent Water 5,634 5458 5162 5,237 5,686
- Other 2,358 2,763 2,889 3,045 3,102

1 Exdludas instruments hedgng fareign curency debt
2 Includes nstruments hedging foreign aumency debt
3 Rastated for 1AS 198 {see rote 3)

Geanng has been calculated as net debt dvided by the sum of equity and net debt.
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The company’s registrar 1s Equinit imited Equing’s main
responsibilites indude mamntaining the shareholder register and
raking dvmdend payments

If you have arny queries relating to your Sevemn Trent Pic
shareholding you should contact Equing

Regsstrar contact details.

Online: www shareview co uk from here, you will be able
to securely email Equints with your query

Telephone 0871 384 2967

Overseas enguines +44 121 415 7044

Text phone 0871 384 2255+

By post Equint, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
Wiest Sussex, BN99 6DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website
www.severntrent.corn whuch prowides

company news and information,

finks to our operational businesses’ websites,

details of our governance amangerments,

detals of our strategy;

details of the group’s business models and business plan, and
the comparty’s approach to operating responsibly

There 15 also a dedicated Investors’ section on the website which
contains up to dote nformation for shareholders including

» comprehensve share pnce information,

financiol results,

a history of dnadend payment dates and amounts, and
access to current and histoncal shareholder documents such
as the annual report and accounts.

Electronic communications

By registenng to receive shareholder documertotion from
Severn Trent Plc electronically shareholders can benefit from
being able to

« yview the annual report and accounts on the day it
is published,
+ receve an emdil olert when shareholder documents
are available;
+ cast their AGM vote electromically; and
» manage therr shareholding quickly and securely online,
through Shareview
Electronic shareholder communications also enable the
company to redure its impact on the emaronment and
benefit from sovings assoaated with reduced pnnting and
mailing costs
For further mformation and to register for etectroruc shareholder
communications vist www.shareview co uk

Dividend payments
Bank mandates

Drvidends can be paid automaticatly into your bank or bulding
society account.

The benefits of dong this are that you will

| * recene deored funds in your bonk account on the

payment date,

. + avoid postal delays, and

« remove the nsk of your cheques getting lost i the post.

To take advantage of this senvice or for further details contact
Equiniti or visit www shareview o ul

Dividend reinvestrent plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the option of using ther dwvidend
payments to buy more Sevem Trent Ple shares instead of
recening cash If you would bke to participate in the DRIF,
please request a dividend remvestment plan mondate from
Equiniti Finanaiel Senvices Limited.

Telephone. 0871 384 2268*

Telephene number from outside the UK. +44 121 4157173

Buying and selling shares in the UK

H you wish to buy o sell certificated Severn Trent Ple shares,
youwill need to use a stockbroker or high street bank which
trades on the London Stock Exchange There are also many
telephone and onbine services available to you If you are selling,
you will need to present your share certificate at the time of
sale Details of low cost dealing senaces may be obtained from
www sharewew co uk or 0845 603 7037**

Share pnce information

Sharehelders can find share price mformation on our website
and m most notional newspapers For a real tme buying or
sedling pnce, you sheuld contact a stockbroker

Shareholder security

Fraudsters use persuasve and high-pressure tactics to lure
investors nto scams. They may offer to sell shares that tum out
to be worthless or non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated
pnce in retum for an upfront payment. While bugh profits are
promised, f you buy or sell shares in this way you will probably
lose your mongy

How ta avod share froud.

« Keep inmind that firns authonsed by the Financial Conduct
Authonty (FCA) are untikely to contact you out of the blue with
an offer to buy or sell shares

» Do not getInto a conversation, note the name of the person
and firm contacting you and then end the coll.

- Check the Finanaal Senvices Register from www fca org uk
to see f the person and firm contacting you is authonsed by
the FCA

» Beware of fraudsters claming to be from an authonsed firm,
copying its website or giving you false contact details

* Calls cost B pence per minuta phus network extras, Lines are open from 8 30am to 5.30pm Moenday to Fnda,

Lines ore open Monda, to Friday, B:00am Lo 4.30pm for Gecking and untl 6:00pm for enquines.
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+ Use the firm’s contact detalls bisted on the Register if you want
to call tt bock ) - }

» Calithe FCA on 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not hove contact

details on the Register or you are tod they are out of date

Search the list of unauthonsed firms to avoid at

www oo org Uk/scams,

Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unouthonsed

firen you will not have access ta the Finanaal Ombudsman

Service or Financial Services Cornpenscation Scheme

= Think about getting independent financial and professional
advice before you hand over any money

= Rermember, f t sounds too good to be true, it probably s

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA usmng the
share fraud reporting form at www fca org uk/scarms, where you
can find out more about Investment scams.

You can also call the FCA Consumer Helphine on 0800 111 6768

If you have dglready paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040

Unsolicited mail

The comparry s legolly obliged to moke its shore regyster
avaiable to the general public. Consequently some shareholders
may recenve unsoliated mal If you wish to bmit the amount of
ursoltaited mail you receive please contact:

The Maiing Preference Serice (MPS), Freepast 29 LON2Q771,
London WI1E OZT

Alterngtwely, register online at www.rmpsonline org uk or colt the
MPS Registration line on 0845 703 4599

Armerican Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

-Severn Trent has a sponsored Level 1-Amencan Deposttary
Receipt (ADR) programme, for which The Bank of New York
Mellon acts as Depositary
The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCQX which s the
premier tier of the US over-the-counter (OTC) market under
the symbol STRNY (it is not listed on a US stock exchange)
Each ADR represents 1 Severn Trent ordinary share

If you have ony enquines regarding Severn Trent ADRs please
contact The Bank of New York Mellon

By post: The Bank of New York Meilon, PO Box 358516,
Pittsburgh, PA 15252 - 8516, US

By telephone
If calling from within the US. (888) 269 2377 (toli-free) T

; Ifealing fram outside the US. +1 201 680 6825

By email: shrrelations@bnymelion com
Website wwwbnymellen comishoreowner

Financial calendar

Ex dvidend date - final dividerd . 18 June 2014
Record date to be eligible for the final dvidend ) 20 June 2014
AGM 16 July 2014
Intenm managermnent staternent - Q1 Year ending 31 March 2015 16 July 2014
Final devidend payment date 25 luly 2014
Intenm results announcement - Year ending 31 March 2015 ’ 25 November 2014
Ex divdend date - intenm dndend ) 4 December 2014
Record date to be eligile for the intenm dividend ) 5 Decernber 2014
Intenm drvidend poymert dote ) 9 January 2015

All dates are Indicative and may be subject to change

Design and production by Radley Yeldar wwwory com
Thus report has been prnted on UPM Fine Offset certified by the Forest

Stewardship Coundl® The paper is rmade at a mill with 15014001
environrmental management system accredrtartion.

This report was produced using the purepnnt® environmental print
fechnology, o quaronieed, low carbon, low v:oste, Independently
oudited process that reduces the environmental mpact of the prnting
process. Pinted using vegetable oit based Inks by a CarbonNeutral”
prmter certified to 1S3 14001 emvironmental managerent system
ond registered to EMAS the Eco Manogernent Audrt Scheme
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Severn Trent Plc
Regrstered office:
Severn Trent Centre
2 St John's Street
Coventry

i

Tel 02477 715000
www severntrent.com
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